CONG HOA XA HQOI CHU NGHIA VIET NAM
Doc lap - Tu do - Hanh phuc
THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence — Freedom — Happiness

So/No.: 603/XLDK-TCKT Ha Noi, ngay 30 thang 05 nim 2025
Ha Noi, day 30 month 05 year 2025

CONG BO THONG TIN
INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

Bién ban va Nghi quyét Dai hji dong cb dong thuwong nién nam 2025
cua Tong cong ty Cod phan Xay lap Dau khi Viét Nam
Minutes and Resolution of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of
PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Kinh gtri/To: S¢ Giao dich Ching khoan Ha Noi/Hanoi the Stock Exchange.

1. Tén don vi/ Name of Organization: Tong cong ty Cé phan XAy liap Dau khi Viét Nam
(PETROCONS)/ Vietnam Petroleum Construction Joint Stock Corporation

2. Ma ching khoan/ Stock Code : PVX

3. Tru s chinh/ Head Office: Tang 14, Toa nha Vién Dau khi, s6 167 phd Trung Kinh, Phuong
Yén Hoa, Quan Cau Gidy, Thanh phd Ha Noi/ 14th Floor, Vietnam Petroleum Institute
Building, No. 167 Trung Kinh Street, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City, Vietnam.

4. bién thoai/ Telephone :04.37689291 Fax: 04.37689290

5. Nguoi thyc hién cong bd thong tin/ Person Responsible for Information Disclosure:
Ng6 Thi Thu Hoai/ Ms. Ngo Thi Thu Hoai.

6. Dia chi thuong tri/ Permanent address: Khu tap thé Nghia Tan, Phuong Nghia Tan, Quin
Cau Gidy, TP Ha Noi/ Nghia Tan Residential Area, Nghia Tan Ward, Cau Giay District,
Hanoi City.
7. Bién thoai (di dong, co quan, nha riéng)/ Phone (mobile, office, home): 04.37689291 Fax:
04.37689290
8. Loai thong tin cong bo/ Type of disclosed information:

BJ 24n [ 72n [C] Yéu cau/Requirement

[C] Bét thuong/Extraordinary  [[] Binh ky/ Periodic

9. Noi dung cua thong tin cong bd/ Content of Information Disclosure:

Ngay 29/5/2025, Tong cong ty Co phan Xay lap Dau khi Viét Nam to chtrc Pai hoi dong
cd dong thuong nién ndm 2025 voi sd ¢6 dong tham dy Dai hoi truc tiép va thong qua uy
quyén tai thoi diém Bao cao_ kiém tra tu cach co dong la 16 cb dong, dai dién s0 lugng co
phan s& hitu va dugc uy quyen 1a 224.284.641 c6 phan chlem 56,07% tong s6 ¢b phan pho
thong c6 quyén biéu quyét cia PETROCONs (Tong sO co phan c6 quyén tham duy PHDCD
Thuong nién nam 2025 la 15.067 co déng sé hitu tong s ¢b phan c6 quyén biéu quyét tuong
duong 399.997.008 c6 phan); sb co dong tham du Dai hoi truc tiép va thong qua uy quyen tai
10930 phat la 19 co dong, dai dién s0 luong co phan sO hitu va dugc uy quyén la 224.289.756
6 phan, chiém 56,07% c6 phan pho thong c6 quyén biéu quyét cia PETROCONs/ On May
29, 2025, PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation held its 2025 Annual General
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Meeting of Shareholders, with a total of 16 shareholders attending in person or via proxy at
the time of the Shareholder Eligibility Verification Report. These shareholders represented a
total of 224,284,641 shares, accounting for 56.07% of the total voting common shares of
PETROCONS. (The total number of shareholders eligible to attend the 2025 AGM was
15,067, holding an aggregate of 399,997,008 voting shares.) As of 10:30 AM, the number of
shareholders attending the meeting in person or via proxy increased to 19, representing
224,289,756 shares, equivalent to 56.07% of PETROCONs’ voting common shares.

Cin ctt Luat Doanh nghiép s6 59/2020/QH14 dugc Qudc hoi nude Cong hoa xa hoi Chi
nghia Viét Nam thong qua ngay 17/06/2020; Cin ctr Piéu 1é t6 chirc va hoat dong cua Tong
cong ty C6 phan Xay lip Dau khi Viét Nam sira ddi, thong qua va ban hanh tai Quyét dinh sb
240/QD-XLDK ngay 05/10/2023, Dai hoi dong cd déng thuong nién nim 2025 cia
PETROCONS véi thanh phan tham du nhu trén 1a du diéu kién tién hanh Pai hoi/ Pursuant
to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the National Assembly of the Socialist
Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020; Pursuant to the Charter on the organization and
operation of PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation, as amended, adopted, and
promulgated under Decision No.240/0D-XLDK dated October 5, 2023, The 2025 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders of PETROCONS, with the aforementioned attendance,
satisfied all conditions for convening the meeting in accordance with the law.

Pai hoi dong c6 dong thuong nién nam 2025 cia Tong cong ty Co phan Xay lip Dau
khi Viét Nam da hoan thanh xin y kién dai hoi 07 noi dung trinh tai dai hoi. Pai hoi cling da
thdng qua Bién ban hop s6 57/BB-DPHPCH-XLDK va ban hanh Nghi quyét sé 58/NQ-
DPHDCDH-XLDK cung ngay/ The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of
PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation successfully submitted seven agenda
items for shareholder approval. The Meeting also adopted Minutes No. 57/BB-DHDCPH-
XLDK and issued Resolution No. 58/NQ-PHBPCH-XLDK on the same day.

10. bia chi Website dang tai ngi dung CBTT cua PetroCons/ The website address for
PetroCons' information disclosure: http://www.pvc.vn hoac/ or http://www.petrocons.vn./
Chung t6i xin cam két cac thong tin cong b trén ddy 1a dung sy that va hoan toan chiu trach
nhiém trude phap lut vé ndi dung cac thong tin cong bd/ We hereby certify that the disclosed
information above is true and accurate, and we take full responsibility before the law for the
content of the disclosed information.

Noi nhin/Recipients: NGUOI PUQC UQCBTT

- Nhu trén/As mentioned above; Authorized Person for Information

- HDbQT/BOD, BKS/BOS (e-copy); Disclosure

- Ban TGD/ Executive Board (e-copy);

- Nguoi PT QT kiém thu ky Cong ty/CGO-CS (‘Q(‘A’v )/ -
(e-copy); -

- BanPC/LD —

- Luu HDQT/Archived by the BOD,

VT/OD, TCKT-KT/ FAD: Ngo Thi Thu Hoa

Ms. Ngo Thi Thu Hoai

Tai liéu dinh kem/ Attached Documents:

- Bién ban hop s6 57/BB-DPHPCPH-XLDK ngay 29/5/2025/ Minutes of Meeting No. 57/BB-PHPCPH-
XLDK dated May 29, 2025;

- Nghi quyét s6 58/NQ-DPHPCH-XLDK ngay 29/5/2025/ Resolution No. 58/NQ-DHPCH-XLDK
dated May 29, 2025;

- 07 ndi dung Bao céo, To trinh thong qua tai Pai hoi nhu Bién ban cudc hop/ 07 Reports and
Proposals approved at the Meeting as recorded in the Minutes.
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TAP POAN CONG NGHIEP - NANG LUONG  CONG HOA XA HQOI CHU NGHIA VIET NAM

QUOC GIA VIET NAM DPoc lap - Ty do - Hanh phiic
VIETNAM NATIONAL INDUSTRY - ENERGY GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
TONG CONG TY Independence- Freedom-Happiness

CO PHAN XAY LAP DAU KHI VIET NAM
PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION T ; §
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION Ha N¢gi, ngay 29 thdng 5 nam 2025

Ha Noi, May 29, 2025

sé: hT /BB-PHPCD-XLDK
No: 5+ /BB-DHDCD-XLDK

BIEN BAN HQP

DPATHQI PONG CO PONG THUONG NIEN NAM 2025
TONG CONG TY CO PHAN XAY LAP DAU KHi VIET NAM
MINUTES OF MEETING
OF 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
OF PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK CORPORATION

THONG TIN VE DOANH NGHIEP/COMPANY INFORMATION

%  Téncongty: TONG CONG TY CO PHAN XAY LAP DAU KHi VIET NAM

Company name: PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
%  Gidy chimg nhan Ping ky doanh nghiép s6 3500102365 thay dbi lan thir 22 ngay

18/01/2024.

Business Registration Certificate No. 3500102363, the 22" revision on January 18, 2024.

%  Dia chi try s& chinh: Tang 14, Toa nha Vién Dau Khi Viét Nam, s 167 phé Trung

Kinh, Phuong Yén Hoa, Quan Cau Gidy, Thanh ph6 Ha Nbi, Viét Nam.

Head office: 14™ Floor, Vietnam Petroleum Institute Building, No. 167, Trung Kinh

Street, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City, Vietnam.

Hoém nay, vao hdi 08 gid 30 phut ngay 29 thang 5 nam 2025 tai Tang 12 - Toa
nha Vién Dau Khi Viét Nam, sé 167 Trung Kinh, Phuong Yén Hoa, Quan Céu Gidy,
Thanh phé Ha Nbi,Viét Nam; Pai hoi ddng cb dong thudng nién nim 2025 cia Tdng
cong ty C6 phan Xay 1ip Déu khi Viét Nam (Tdng cong ty/PETROCONS) duoc tién
hanh véi cac ndi dung sau:

Today, at 08h30 am on May 29, 2025, at the 12" Floor - Vietnam Petroleum Institute
Building, No. 167, Trung Kinh Street, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City,
Vietnam; the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Petrovietnam Construction
Joint Stock Corporation (the Corporation/PETROCON:S) is held with the following contents:
A. PHAN THU NHAT: KHAI MAC, THANH PHAN THAM DU, TINH HQP

PHAP HQP LE CUA PAI HOI PONG CO PONG

PART I: OPENING, PARTICIPANTS, LEGALITY OF THE GENERAL MEETING

OF SHAREHOLDERS

I.  Khai mac Pai hoi dong cb dong/ Opening of the General Meeting of Shareholders
1




Ban T4 chirc Pai hoi déng ¢ dong tuyén bd 1y do khai mac Dai hdi va gi6i thidu
khach moi tham du:

The Organizing Committee of the General Meeting of Shareholders announces the
reason for opening the General Meeting and introduced the invited guests:

%  Ong, Ba dai dién cho c4c cb dong chién lugc, cic dbi tic ciia Tdng cong ty gdm:
The representative of the Strategic shareholders and partners of the Corporation,
including:

+ Dai dién Tap doan Cong nghiép — Ning luong Quéc gia Viét Nam.
Representative of Vietnam National Industry - Energy Group.

+ Pai dién Céng ty TNHH Hing Kiém toan AASC.
Representative AASC Auditing Firm Company Limited.

+  Tdng cong ty Cb phan Xay ldp Dau khi Viét Nam gdm cac Ong/Ba:
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation including:

+ Céc thanh vién Hoi dng quan tri
Members of the Board of Directors.
+ Céac thanh vién Ban Téng giam dbc Tong cong ty.
Members of the Board of Management.
+ Trudng Ban Kiém soat Téng cong ty.
Head of the Board of Supervisors.
+ Trudng cac Ban/Phong/Vin phong Pang doan thé.
Heads of Departments/Divisions/Party Olffices - Mass organizations.

2. Thanh phén tham dy, tinh hop phép hop Ié ciia Pai hoi

Participants, legality and validity of the General Meeting of Shareholders

Pai hoi dd nghe Ong L& Manh Ha — Phu trach Ban T chirc hanh chinh Téng
cong ty, Truong Ban Kiém tra tir cach cd dong trinh bay Bién ban kiém tra tu cach ¢
dong tham dy Pai hoi.

The attendees listened to the Minutes of the Shareholder Qualification Examination
Board presented by Mr. Le Manh Ha — Head of the Organization-Administration Department,
Head of the Shareholder Qualification Examination Board to attend the Congress.

Téng sb c¢b dong c6 quyén tham du Pai hoi dong cd dong thudng nién nim 2025
la 15.067 c6 dong, s& hiru tdng sé c¢b phin c6 quyén biéu quyét twong dwong
399.997.008 cb phin. Danh sach ¢6 dong c6 quyén tham dy Pai hoi theo Danh sach
téng hop ngudi s& hiru chimg khoan (ngay ding ki cudi ciing 12 ngay 28/4/2025) cia
Téng cong ty Luu ky va Bil trir Chimg khoan Viét Nam.

Total number of shareholders entitled to attend the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders is 15.067 shareholders, owning 399.997.008 voting shares in total. The list of
shareholders entitled to attend the General Meeting is specified in the List of securities
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owners (The last registration date is April 28, 2025) of Vietnam Securities Depository and
Clearing Corporation.

Tai thoi diém 8 gio 30 phat ngay 29/5/2025, téng s6 ¢b dong c6 mat tham dyr truc
tiép va ty quyén tai Dai hoi: 16 ¢b dong, s& hiru 224.284.641 cb phin chiém 56,07%
téng s6 cb phan c6 quyén biéu quyét cia PETROCONS.

At 08h30 am, May 29, 2025, the total number of shareholders present in person and
authorized to attend the General Meeting: 16 shareholders, owning 224.284.641 shares
accounting for 56,07% of the total number of voting shares of PETROCON.

Theo quy dinh cia Luét Doanh nghiép sé 59/2020/QH14, Piéu 1¢ t6 chirc va hoat
dong cua PETROCONSs, Dai hdi d(‘“)ng ) dong thudong nién ndm 2025 cua
PETROCONS hop phép, hop 1 va di diéu kién dé tién hanh.

According to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QHI4, the organizational and
operational charter of PETROCONS, the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of
PETROCONs s is legal, valid and meets all prescribed conditions to be held.

Dén thoi diém 10 gio 30 phat ngay 29/5/2025 c¢6 thém 03 cb dong/dai dién cd
dong dén tham dy dai hoi dai dién cho 5.515 ) ph@"m.

Up to 10h30 am, May 29, 2025, there are more 03 shareholders/shareholder
representatives, representing 5.515 shares attend the meeting.

Theo d6, tdng s6 lugng cb ddng/dai dién cb dong tham du dai hoi 1a 19 ¢b dong,
dai dién cho 224.289.756 cb phan, twong tmg véi 56,07% téng s6 cb phan c6 quyén
biéu quyét cia PETROCONS.

Accordingly, the total number of shareholders/shareholder representatives attending

the meeting is 19 shareholders, representing 224.289.756 shares, corresponding to 56,07% of
the total number of voting shares of PETROCON.

3.  Pai hi thong qua Poan Chii tich, Ban Thr ky, Ban Kiém phiéu

The General Meeting approves the Presidium, Secretariat and Vote Counting Committee

Pé didu hanh Pai hoi, gitp viéc Poan Chi tich ghi chép Bién ban va Dy thao
Nghi quyét Dai hoi ddng cb dong, kiém phiéu cac ndi dung thong qua tai Dai hoi, Dai
h¢i da thong qua thanh phan Poan Chu tich, Ban Thu ky, Ban Kiém phiéu bing hinh
thirc gio thé biéu quyét véi ty 1¢ tan thanh 12 100% tdng s6 cb phén c6 quyén bidu
quyét tham dy Pai hoi.

In order to execute General Meeting, assist the Presidium in recording the Minutes and
Draft Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and counting votes for the contents
passed at the Meeting, the Congress approved the members of the Presidium, Secretariat and

Vote Counting Committee by raising voting cards with a confirmative vote rate of 100% of
the total number of voting shares.
<  Doan Chu tich gdm 05 thanh vién sau:

The Presidium consists of the following 05 members:

+ Ong Nghiém Quang Huy - Chu tich HDQT - Chu toa
3
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Mr. Nghiem Quang Huy - Chairman of the Board of Directors - Chairman
+ Ong Pham Vin Khénh - Thanh vién déc 1ap HPQT - Thanh vién
Mr. Pham Van Khanh - Independent member of the Board of Directors - Member
+ Ong Tran Hai Bang - Thanh vién HPQT - Thanh vién
Mr. Tran Hai Bang - Member of the Board of Directors - Member
+ Ong Chu Thanh Hai - Thanh vién HPQT - Thanh vién
Mr. Chu Thanh Hai - Member of the Board of Directors - Member
+ Ong Nguyén Hoai Nam - Thanh vién HDQT - Thanh vién
Mr. Nguyen Hoai Nam - Member of the Board of Directors - Member
Ban Thu ky gdm 02 thanh vién sau:
The Secretariat consists of the following 02 members:

+ Ong Nguyén Phwong Nam - Ngudi phu trach quéan tri Téng cong ty kiém Thu
ky Téng cong ty — Trudng ban

Mr. Nguyen Phuong Nam - Person in charge of Corporate Governance & Secretary
of the Corporation - Head of the Secretariat

+ Ba Nguyén Thj Lan Anh - Chuyén vién Phong Phap ché — Thanh vién
Ms. Nguyen Thi Lan Anh — Official of Legal Department - Member

Ban Kiém phiéu gdm 07 thanh vién sau:

The Vote Counting Committee consists of the following 08 members:

+ Ong Lé Manh Ha - Phy trach Ban TCHC - Truéng ban

Mr. Le Manh Ha - Head of the Organization-Administration Department — Head of the
Department

+ Ong Nguyén Phuong Nam - Ngudi phu trach quan tri Tong cong ty kiém Thu ky
Téng Céng ty - Pho ban thuong trirc

Mr. Nguyen Phuong Nam - Person in charge of Corporate Governance & Secretary of
the Corporation - Deputy Head of the Department.

+ Ba Nguyén Phuong Thao - Chuyén vién Ban KTTM - Thanh vién (Dai dién c6 dong)

Ms. Nguyen Phuong Thao - Official of the Economic and Trade Department - Member
(Representative of the Shareholder)

+ Ong Nguyén Céng That - Pho truéng Ban TCHC - Thanh vién

Mr. Nguyen Cong That - Deputy Head of the Organization- Administration Department -
Member

+ Ong D3 Anh Thiy - Phé truéng Ban TCHC - Thanh vién
4



Mr. Do Anh Thuy - Deputy Head of the Organization- Administration Department -

Member

+ Ba Luong Thi Yén - Thu ky HPQT - Thanh vién
Ms. Luong Thi Yen - Secretary of the Board of Directors - Member

+ Ba Duong Thi Vén Trang - Chuyén vién Ban KHPT&TCC - Thanh vién

Ms. Duong Thi Van Trang - Official of the Department of Investment Plan & Restructuring

- Member

4. Thong qua Chwong trinh Dai hi
Adoption of the Meeting Agenda

Dai héi da nghe Ong Chu Thanh Hai - Thanh Vién Hoi ddng quan tri Téng cong
ty, thanh vién Poan Chi tich Pai hdi trinh bay Chuong trinh Pai hdi dong cb dong
thudng nién ndm 2025 cia PETROCON:S.

The Meeting listened to the Agenda of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders of PETROCONSs presented by Mr. Chu Thanh Hai - Member of the Board of
Directors of the Corporation, member of the Presidium.

Pai hoi da théng qua Chuong trinh Pai hdi dong cb dong bing hinh thirc gio thé
biéu quyét voi ty 1é tan thanh 1a 100% tong s6 cd phan cé quyén biéu quyét tham du

Dai héi.

The Meeting approved the Agenda of the General Meeting of Shareholders by raising
voting cards with the confirmative vote rate of 100% of the total number of voting shares.

Chuwong trinh Dai hji/Meeting agenda

N¢i dung 1:

Content 1:

N¢i dung 2:

Content 2:

N¢i dung 3:

Content 3:

N§i dung 4:

Béo cao hoat dong cua Hoi déng quan tri nam 2024 va Ké hoach
hoat dyng nam 2025; Béo céo cua Thanh vién doc lap HDQT vé
hoat dong cia HDQT/

Report on The 2024 Operation of the Board of Directors and the 2025
Operation Plan. Report on The Operation of the Board of Directors by
the Independent Member of the Board of Directors;

Béo cdo két qua hoat dong san xuét kinh doanh nim 2024 va ké
hoach san xuét kinh doanh ndm 2025;

Report on The 2024 production and business results and the 2025
production and business plan.

B4o cdo hoat dong ciia Ban Kiém soat nam 2024 va Ké hoach
nam 2025;

The 2024 Operation Report of the Board of Supervisors and the 2025
Operation Plan.

T& trinh vé viéc théng qua Béo cdo tai chinh da duge kiém todn
5
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Content 4:
Noi dung 5:

Content 5:
N§i dung 6:

Content 6:

N¢i dung 7:

Content 7:

nam 2024 va Phuong 4n phan phdi loi nhuan nim 2024;

Proposal on approving the 2024 Audited Financial Statements and the
2024 Profit Distribution Plan.

Té trinh vé viée Iya chon Cong ty kiém toan Béo cdo tai chinh
nam 2025;

Proposal on selecting the Auditing Firm for 2025 Financial Statements
T& tinh vé viéc quyét toan tién lrong, thi lao nim 2024 va phuong
an tien luvong, thu lao nam 2025 ctia Hi dong quan tri va Ban
Kiém soat;

Proposal on settling the 2024 salary and remuneration and the 2025

salary and remuneration plan of the Board of Directors and the Board
of Supervisors.

Té& trinh vé cong tac nhan sy Hoi ddng quan tri/Ban Kiém soét
thudc thdm quyén PHDCD.

Bau cir thanh vién Hoi ddng quan tri, Ban Kiém soat.
Proposal on personnel affairs of the Board of Directors/ Board of
Supervisors under the authority of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Election of members of the Board of Directors and the Board of
Supervisors.

5. Théng qua Quy ché té chirc Pai hdi/Adoption of the regulations on organizing

the Meeting

Pai hdi da nghe Ong Chu Thanh Hai — Thanh vién Hoi ddng quén trj Tong cong
ty, Thanh vién Poan Chu tich Pai hoi trinh bay Quy ché tb chirc Pai hoi dong cb dong
thuong nién ndm 2025 cia PETROCON:S.

The Meeting listened to the Regulations on organizing the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders of PETROCON s presented by Mr. Chu Thanh Hai — Member of the
Board of Directors of the Corporation, Member of the Presidium.

Pai hoi da thong qua Quy ché tb chirc Dai hoi déng cb dong bang hinh thirc gio thé
biéu quyét véi ty 18 tan thanh 1a 100% tdng s6 cb phéan c6 quyén biéu quyét tham dy Pai

hoi.

The Meeting approved the Regulations on organizing the General Meeting of
Shareholders by raising voting cards with the confirmative vote rate of 100% of the total
number of voting shares.

Quy ché té chirc PHPCPD thwdng nién nim 2025 ciia PETROCONS (Chi tiét

dinh kém).

Regulations on organizing the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of
PETROCONS (For details, see the attached documents).
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B. PHAN THU HAI: NOI DUNG BAO CAO, TO TRINH

PART II: REPORTS, PROPOSAL
Dai hdi dong cb dong thwong nién nim 2025 ciia PETROCONS da trién khai

cac ndi dung sau:

PETROCONSs’ 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders has implemented the

Sfollowing contents:

1.

Ong Nghiém Quang Huy — Chu tich Héi ddng quan tri Téng cong ty — Chu toa
trinh bay Béo cdo s 50/BC-XLDK ngay 27/5/2025 vé hoat dong ctia Hoi dong
quén trji nam 2024 va Ké hoach hoat dong nim 2025. Ong Pham Vian Khanh -
Thanh vién doc lap Hoi ddng quan trj Tong cong ty trinh bay Bao céo ctia Thanh
vién doc lap HPQT vé hoat dong ctia HPQT.

(Chi tiét Bao céo kém theo).

Mr. Nghiem Quang Huy — Chairman of the Board of Directors — Chairman presented
the Report No. 50/BC-XLDK dated 27/5/2025 on The 2024 Operation of the Board of
Directors and the 2025 Operation Plan. Mr. Pham Van Khanh - Independent Member
of the Board of Directors of the Corporation presented Report on The Operation of the
Board of Directors by the Independent Member of the Board of Directors.

(For details, see the attached Report).

Ong Tran Quéc Hoan — Téng giam doc Tdng cong ty trinh bay Bao cdo sb
579/BC-XLDK ngay 27/5/2025 vé két qua hoat dong san xudt kinh doanh nam
2024 va ké hoach san xuit kinh doanh nim 2025.

(Chi tiét Béo c4o kém theo).

Mr. Tran Quoc Hoan — General Director presented the Report No. 579/BC-XLDK
dated 27/5/2025 on The 2024 production and business results and the 2025 production
and business plan.

(For details, see the attached Report).
Ong Hira Xuan Nam — Truéng Ban Kiém soat Tdng cong ty trinh bay Béo cdo sé

580/XLDK-BKS ngay 27/5/2025 clia Ban Kiém soat vé hoat dong ctia Ban Kiém
so4t nam 2024 va Ké hoach nam 2025.

(Chi tiét Béo cdo kém theo).

Mr. Hua Xuan Nam — Head of the Board of Supervisos presented the Report No.
580/XLDK-BKS dated 27/5/2025 on The 2024 Operation Report of the Board of
Supervisors and the 2025 Operation Plan.

(For details, see the attached Report).
Ong Vii Minh Céng — K& toan truéng Téng cong ty trinh bay To trinh s 51/TTr-

XLDK ngay 27/5/2025 vé viéc théng qua Bdo cdo tai chinh @ duoc kiém todn
ndm 2024 va Phuong an phén phéi lgi nhudn nim 2024.
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(Chi tiét To trinh kém theo).

Mr. Vu Minh Cong — Chief Accountant presented the Proposal No. 51/TTr-XLDK dated

27/5/2025 on approving the 2024 Audited Financial Statements and the 2024 Profit
Distribution Plan.

(For details, see the attached Proposal).

Ong Hira Xuéin Nam — Trudng Ban Kiém soat Téng cong ty trinh bay T trinh sb
581/TTr-XLDK ngiy 27/5/2025 vé viéc lya chon Cong ty kiém toan Béo cdo tai
chinh nim 2025.

(Chi tiét To trinh kém theo).

Mr. Hua Xuan Nam — Head of the Board of Supervisos presented the Proposal No.
581/TTr-XLDK dated 27/5/2025 on selecting an Auditing Firm for the 2025 Financial
Statements.

(For details, see the attached Proposal).

Ong Nguyén Hoai Nam — Thanh vién Hoi ddng quén tri Tng cong ty trinh bay
T& trinh s6 52/TTr-XLDK ngay 27/5/2025 vé viéc quyét toan tién luong, thi lao
nam 2024 va phuong an tién luong, thi lao ndm 2025 cia Hoi dong quan trj va
Ban Kiém soét.

(Chi tiét Té trinh kém theo).

Mr. Nguyen Hoai Nam — Member of the Board of Directors presented the Proposal No.
52/TTr-XLDK dated 27/5/2025 on settling the 2024 salary and remuneration and the
2025 salary and remuneration plan of the Board of Directors and the Board of
Supervisors.

(For details, see the attached Proposal).

Ong Nghiém Quang Huy — Chu tich Hoi ddng quan tri Tong cong ty — Chu toa
trinh bay T& trinh s§ 53/TTr-XLDK ngay 27/5/2025 v& viéc mién nhiém Thanh
vién Ban kiém so4t PETROCONS.

(Chi tiét Tér trinh kém theo).

Mr. Nghiem Quang Huy — Chairman of the Board of Directors — Chairman presented
the Proposal No. 53/TTr-XLDK dated 27/5/2025 on Regarding the dismissal of the
member of the Supervisory Board of Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock
Corporation.

(For details, see the attached Proposal).
Céc cb dong va dai dién dwoc ty quyén tham du dai hdi tién hanh bé phiéu biéu

quyét thong qua céc ndi dung tir muc 1 dén muc 7 néu trén bang hinh thirc bé
phiéu biéu quyét tai Dai hi.



Shareholders and their authorized representatives shall vote to approve the contents
from items 1 to 7 by voting at the meeting.

PHAN THU BA: KET QUA BIEU QUYET BAO CAO, TO TRINH TAI
DPAI HOI

PART III: VOTING RESULT AT THE GENERAL MEETING

Ong Lé Manh Ha — Phu trach Ban Té chirc Hanh Chinh Tdng cong ty, Trudng

Ban Kiém phiéu cong b két qua biéu quyét nhu sau:

Mr. Le Manh Ha — Head of the Organization-Administration Department, Head of the Vote

Counting Committee announced the voting results as follows:

A

Bio cdo s6 50/BC-XLDK ngay 27/5/2025 vé hoat dong ciia Hi ddng quan tri
nim 2024 va Ké hoach hoat dong nim 2025. Bso cdo ciia Thanh vién djc 1ap
HPQT vé hoat dong ciia HDQT:

The Report No. 50/BC-XLDK dated 27/5/2025 on The 2024 Operation of the Board of

Directors and the 2025 Operation Plan. Report on The Operation of the Board of
Directors by the Independent Member of the Board of Directors:

Tan thanh: 224.061.256 ¢b phan, chiém ty 1& 99,90% tong sé cb phan
’ A * A A s 1Al
c6 quyén biéu quyét tham dy Pai hdi.
Affirmative votes: 224.061.256 shares, accounting for 99,90% of the total number

of voting shares of attendees.

Khong tan thanh:  225.000 c6 phan, chiém ty 1& 0,10% téng sé cb phan c6
quyén biéu quyét tham dy Dai hoi.

Negative votes: 225.000 shares, accounting for 0,10% of the total number of
voting shares of attendees.

Khéng c6 y kién: 0 cb phén, chiém ty 1& 0% tdng s6 ¢ phin c6 quyén biéu
quyét tham dy Dai hoi.

Abstentions: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of
voting shares of attendees.

Bio cdo s6 579/BC-XLDK ngay 27/5/2025 vé két qua hoat djng sin xuit
kinh doanh nim 2024 va ké hoach sin xuit kinh doanh niim 2025:

The Report No. 579/BC-XLDK dated 27/5/2025 on The 2024 production and business

results and the 2025 production and business plan:

Tén thanh: 224.061.256 cb phén, chiém ty 18 99,90% téng s cb phin
¢6 quyén biéu quyét tham dy Dai hdi.

Affirmative votes: 224.061.256 shares, accounting for 99,90% of the total number
of voting shares of attendees.

Khong tén thanh: ~ 225.000 cb phén, chiém ty 16 0,10% tdng sé cb phan c6
quyén biéu quyét tham du Pai hoi.
9




4.1.

Negative votes: 225.000 shares, accounting for 0,10% of the total number of
voting shares of attendees.

Khong c6 y kién: 0 cb phan, chiém ty 1& 0% tong sé cb phin c6 quyén biéu
quyét tham du Pai hoi.
Abstentions: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of

voting shares of attendees.

Bio cdo s6 580/XLDK-BKS ngay 27/5/2025 ciia Ban Kiém soat vé hoat djng
ciia Ban Kiém soat nim 2024 va Ké hoach nim 2025:

The Report No. 580/XLDK-BKS dated 27/5/2025 on The 2024 Operation Report of the

Board of Supervisors and the 2025 Operation Plan:

Tén thanh: 224.286.256 cb phén, chiém ty 1& 100% tdng s6 cb phan co
quyén biéu quyét tham dy Pai hoi.

Affirmative votes: 224.286.256 shares, accounting for 100% of the total number of
voting shares of attendees.

Khong tan thanh: 0 c¢b phin, chiém ty 1& 0% tdng sé cb phan c6 quyén biéu

quyét tham du Pai hoi.

Negative votes: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of
voting shares of attendees.

Khong c6 y kién: 0 c¢b phan, chiém ty 1& 0% tdng sé cb phin c6 quyén biéu
quyét tham dv Pai hi.

Abstentions: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of

voting shares of attendees.

Té trinh s6 51/TTr-XLDK ngay 27/5/2025 vé viéc thong qua Bio cdo tai chinh
da dwge kiém toan nim 2024 va Phwong an phin phdéi lgi nhuin nim 2024:

The Proposal No. 51/TTr-XLDK dated 27/5/2025 on approving the 2024 Audited
Financial Statements and the 2024 Profit Distribution Plan:

Noi dung Béo cdo Tai chinh da dwgc kiém todn nim 2024

The 2024 Audited Financial Statements

Tan thanh: 6.179.720 c¢b phén, chiém ty 18 2,76% tbng sb cb phén co
quyén biéu quyét tham dy Pai hoi.

Affirmative votes: 6.179.720 shares, accounting for 2,76% of the total number of
voting shares of attendees.

Khong tan thanh:  225.000 c¢6 phdn, chiém ty 1& 0,10% tong sd cb phan c6
quyén biéu quyét tham du Dai hoi.

Negative votes: 225.000 shares, accounting for 0,10% of the total number of
voting shares of attendees.

Khong c6 y kién: ~ 217.881.536 cb phén, chiém ty 1& 97,14% tdng s6 co phén
c6 quyén biéu quyét tham du Pai hoi.
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4.2.

Abstentions: 217.881.536 shares, accounting for 97,14% of the total number
of voting shares of attendees.

N¢i dung Phwong én phén phdi lgi nhuin nim 2024:

The 2024 profit distribution plan

Tan thanh: 224.061.256 ¢b phén, chiém ty 18 99,90% téng s cb phan
¢6 quyén bidu quyét tham du Dai hoi.
Affirmative votes: 224.061.256 shares, accounting for 99,90% of the total number

of voting shares of attendees.

Khong tan thanh: ~ 225.000 cb phan, chiém ty 1& 0,10% téng sé cd phéan c6
quyén biéu quyét tham dy Dai hoi.

Negative votes: 225.000 shares, accounting for 0,10% of the total number of
voting shares of attendees.

Khong c6 ¥ kién: 0 cb phén, chiém ty 18 0% tdng sd cb phan c6 quyén biéu
quyét tham dy Pai hi.

Abstentions: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of
voting shares of attendees.

T& trinh sé 581/TTr-XLDK ngay 27/5/2025 vé viéc lra chon Céng ty kiém
toan Bao cao tai chinh nam 2025:

The Proposal No. 581/TTr-XLDK dated 27/5/2025 on selecting the Auditing Firm for
the 2025 Financial Statements:

Tan thanh: 224.156.256 ¢ phan, chiém ty 1& 99,94% tong sé cb phan
. A R A . LA
c6 quyen bi¢u quyet tham dy Pai hdi.
Affirmative votes: 224.156.256 shares, accounting for 99,94% of the total
number of voting shares of attendees.
Khong tan thanh: 0 ¢ phén, chiém ty 1¢ 0% tong sé ¢ phin c6 quyén biéu
quyét tham du Dai hoi.

Negative votes: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of
voting shares of attendees.

Khéng c6 y kién: ~ 130.000 c& phan, chiém ty 1& 0,06% tdng sb cb phén c6
quyén biéu quyét tham dy Dai hoi.

Abstentions: 130.000 shares, accounting for 0,06% of the total number of
voting shares of attendees.

Té trinh s6 52/TTr-XLDK ngay 27/5/2025 vé viéc quyét toan tién lwong, thi

lao nim 2024 va phwong 4n tién lrong, thi lao nim 2025 ciia Hi ddng quén
tri va Ban Kiém soat:

The Proposal No. 52/TTr-XLDK dated 27/5/2025 on settling the 2024 salary and

remuneration and the 2025 salary and remuneration plan of the Board of Directors
and the Board of Supervisors:
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Tén thanh: 224.156.256 cb phén, chiém ty 1& 99,94% téng sb cb phan
¢6 quyén biéu quyét tham du Dai hoi.

Affirmative votes: 224.156.256 shares, accounting for 99,94% of the total
number of voting shares of attendees.

Khong tan thanh: 0 cb phan, chiém ty 1& 0% tdng s cb phin c6 quyén biéu
quyét tham du Pai hoi.

Negative votes: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of
voting shares of attendees.

Khong c6 y kién:  130.000 cb phan, chiém ty 1& 0,06% tdng sb ¢ phin c6
quyén biéu quyét tham du Pai hgi.

Abstentions: 130.000 shares, accounting for 0,06% of the total number of
voting shares of attendees.

7.  To trinh s6 53/TTr-XLDK ngay 27/5/2025 vé viéc vé viéc mién nhiém Thanh
vién Ban Kiém soit PETROCON:S:

The Proposal No. 53/TTr-XLDK dated 27/5/2025 on Regarding the dismissal of the

member of the Supervisory Board of PETROCONs:

Tén thanh: 224.286.256 ¢b phan, chiém ty 18 100% téng sb cb phan c6
quyén biéu quyét tham dy Pai hoi.

Affirmative votes: 224.286.256 shares, accounting for 100% of the total number of
voting shares of attendees.

Khéng tan thanh: 0 cb phan, chiém ty 1é 0% tong sb cb phén c6 quyén biéu
quyét tham du Pai hoi.

Negative votes: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of
voting shares of attendees.

Khong c6 ¥ kién: 0 cb phan, chiém ty 1& 0% tong s cb phan c6 quyén biéu
quyét tham du Pai hoi.

Abstentions: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of
voting shares of attendees.

D. PHAN THU TU: NOI DUNG BAU CU THANH VIEN HPQT, BKS

PART IV: ELECTION CONTENTS OF MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS AND BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Tai ky Dai hoi thudmg nién nim 2025 c6 02 thanh vién Hoi ddng quan trj (trong
d6 ¢6 01 thanh vién doc 1ap Hoi ddng quén tri); 01 thanh vién Ban Kiém soat hét
nhiém ky 2020-2025. Pdng thdi 01 Thanh vién Ban kiém soat ¢6 Pon xin tir nhiém.
Do 6, dé kién toan nhan sw Hoi ddng quén tri, Ban kiém soét theo quy dinh, tai dai
hoi 14n nay tién hanh béu thanh vién HDQT,BKS nhiém ky méi 2025-2030.

At the 2025 Annual General Meeting, there are 02 members of the Board of Directors
(including 01 independent member of the Board of Directors); 01 member of the Board of
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Supervisors whose term of office (2020-2025) has expired. At the same time, 01 member of the
Supervisory Board has submitted a resignation letter. Therefore, to complete the personnel of
the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board according to regulations, at this meeting, the
members of the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors will be elected for the new term
of office (2025-2030).

Ong Nghiém Quang Huy — Chu tich Hoi dong quan trj Tong cong ty — Chu toa
trinh bay T trinh sb 54/TTr-XLDK ngay 27/5/2025 v& viéc bau thanh vién Hoi
ddng quan tri, Ban Kiém soét nhiém ky 2025-2030.

(Chi tiét To trinh kém theo)

Mr. Nghiem Quang Huy — Chairman of the Board of Directors — Chairman presented
the Proposal No. 54/TTr-XLDK dated 27/5/2025 on Regarding the election of members

of the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board of Petrovietnam Construction Joint
Stock Corporation for 2025-2030 term.

(For details, see the attached Proposal)
Dai hoi da biéu quyét thong qua To trinh véi ty 1é tan thanh 12 100% tong sb cb

phin c6 quyén biéu quyét tham du Pai hoi.

The Meeting voted to approve the Proposal with a confirmative vote rate of 100% of the
total number of voting shares

Ong Lé Manh Ha — Phu trdch Ban Té chirc Hanh Chinh Tdng cong ty, Trudng
ban kiém phiéu doc Quy ché bau cir thanh vién Hoi ddng quan tri, thanh vién
Ban Kiém soét ctia Tong cong ty ¢ phin Xay lap Dau Khi Viét Nam.

Mr. Le Manh Ha — Head of the Organization-Administration Department, Head of the Vote
Counting Committee read the Regulations on electing members of the Board of

Directors and members of the Board of Supervisors of Petrovietnam Construction Joint
Stock Corporation.

Dai hoi da biéu quyét théng qua Quy ché bau cir thanh vién Hoi ddng quan tri,

thanh vién Ban Kiém soat v6i ty 1¢ tan thanh 12 100% tdng sb cb phén c6 quyén biéu
quyét tham du Pai hdi.

(Chi tiét Quy ché kém theo).

The Meeting voted to approve the Regulations on electing members of the Board of

Directors and members of the Board of Supervisors with a confirmative vote rate of 100% of
the total number of voting shares.

(For details, see the attached Regulations)

Ong Nguyén Van DPdng — Pho Téng giam déc Téng cong ty, Trudng Ban Td
chirc dai hoi trinh bay Béo cdo két qua dé cir, img ctr, gi6i thiéu nhan sy tham gia
HDPQT, BKS.

(Chi tiét Bao cdo kém theo).
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Mr. Nguyen Van Dong — Deputy General Director, Head of the Organizing Committee
presented the Report on nomination, candidacy and recommendation of personnel to
the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors.

(For details, see the attached Report).

4.  Ong Nghiém Quang Huy — Chu tich Hoi ddng quan tri Tdng cong ty — Chu toa
trinh bay Bdo céo s 56/BC-XLDK ngay 29/5/2025 vé Danh sach nhén sy bau
Thanh vién H6i ddng quan tri, Ban Kiém soat Tng cong ty.

(Chi tiét Bao céo kém theo).

Mr. Nghiem Quang Huy — Chairman of the Board of Directors — Chairman presented
the Report No.56/BC-XLDK dated 29/5/2025 on the List of candidates for the Board of
Directors and Supervisory Board of the Corporation.

(For details, see the attached Proposal, Report).

Pai hoi da biéu quyét thong qua Danh séch tmg cir vién thanh vién Hoi dong
quan trj va Ban Kiém soat Téng cong ty v6i ty 18 tan thanh 12 100% téng s6 cb phan
¢6 quyén biéu quyét tham du Pai hi.

The Meeting voted to approve the List of candidates for the Board of Directors and the

Board Supervisors of the Corporation with a confirmative vote rate of 100% of the total
number of voting shares.

5. Céc cb dong va dai dién dugc iy quyén tham du dai hdi tién hanh bo phiéu bau
thanh vién Hoi ddng quén tri, thanh vién Ban Kiém soét bang hinh thirc bo phiéu
béu cir truc tiép tai Dai hoi.

Shareholders and their authorized representatives attending the meeting shall vote to

elect the members of the Board of Directors and members of the Board of Supervisors
by direct voting at the meeting.

E. PHAN THU NAM: THAO LUAN CUA CAC CO PONG TAI PAI HOI
PART V: SHAREHOLDERS’ DISCUSSION AT THE GENERAL MEETING

C dong da néu cdu hoi v tinh hinh san xuét kinh doanh, k& hoach, tai chinh ctia
PETROCONS va Poan chii tich da tra 101 ddy di ndi dung ciu héi tai Pai hoi.

The shareholders raised a number of questions about the production and business
situation, plans and finances of PETROCONSs and the Presidium fully answered the questions
at the General Meeting.

F. PHAN THU SAU: KET QUA BAU CU TAI PAI HOI
PART VI: ELECTION RESULTS AT THE GENERAL MEETING

Dai hoi da tién hanh bau cir va thu duge két qua nhur sau:

The Meeting conducted the election and achieved the following results:
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4 " SO PHIEU BIEU | ¢ :
STT HQ TEN UNG VIEN i KET QUA
No. | FULL NAME OF CANDIDATES ot RESULTS
VOTES
Biu cir thanh vién Hji dong quan tri
Election of Member of the Board of Directors
1 Ong Nghiém Quang Huy/ Tring cur
A 224.064.751
Mr. Nghiem Quang Huy Elected

Biu cir thanh vién djc lap Hji ddng quan trj
Election of independent members of the Board of Directors

1 Ong Pham Vin Khanh/ Tring ctr
Mr. Pham Van Khanh 224.064.761 Elected

Biu cir thanh vién Ban Kiém soat
Election of members of the Board of Supervisors

1 | Ong Hira Xuén Nam/ Tring cir
Mr. Hua Xuan Nam 224.064.761 Elected

2 Ba La Minh Hu¢/ Tring cur
Mprs. La Minh Hue 224.064.751 Elected

G. PHAN THU BAY: TRINH BAY NGHI QUYET VA BIEN BAN PAI HOI
PART VII: PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTIONS AND MINUTES OF THE
GENERAL MEETING
Ong Nguyén Phuong Nam — Ngudi phu trach quan trj Téng cong ty kiém Thu ky

Téng cong ty — Trudng ban Thu ky Pai hoi trinh bay Bién ban va Nghi quyét cia Dai

hoi ddng cb dong thudng nién nam 2025 cia Téng cong ty C6 phdn X4y lip Dau khi

Viét Nam.

Mr. Nguyen Phuong Nam - Person in charge of Corporate Governance & Secretary of

the Corporation - Head of the Secretariat presented the Minutes and Resolution of the 2025

Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock

Corporation.

H. PHAN THU TAM: THU TUC BE MAC PAI HQI
PART VIII: CLOSING PROCEDURES
Bién ban va Nghi quyét Pai hoi déng cd dong thudng nién nim 2025 cia

PETROCONSs da dugc Ban Thu ky ghi lai d?ly du, trung thuc va dugc Pai hoi dong cb

d6ng thdng nhit thong qua bing hinh thirc gio thé biéu quyét véi sb phiéu biéu quyét

1a 224.289.756 cb phin, chiém ty 18 100% tdng s6 cb phin c6 quyén biéu quyét tham
du Dai hoi.
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The Minutes and Resolution of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of
PETROCONs have been fully and honestly recorded by the Secretariat and unanimously
approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders by raising voting cards with the Affirmative
votes of 224.289.756 shares, accounting for 100% of the total number of voting shares of
attendees.

Bién ban Pai hoi dong cb dong dugc lap tai thoi diém 12 gir 20 phut cing ngay
va thanh ba (03) ban, c6 gia tri phap ly nhu nhau.

The Minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders were prepared at 12h20 on the
same day and in three (03) copies of the same legal value.

Chu toa Pai hdi tuyén bd bé mac Pai hoi déng c¢d dong thuong nién nim 2025
ciia PETROCONS vao lac 12 gi¢r 30 phit cung ngay.

The Chairman of the General Meeting declared the closing of the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders of PETROCONSs at 12h30 on the same day.

TM. BAN THU KY TM. PAI HOI PONG CO PONG

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF SECRETARIAT CHU TOA
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF GENERAL
MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

ran)

/

Nguyén Phwong Nam

Nghiém Quang Huy
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TAP POAN CONG NGHIEP - NANG LUGNG  CQNG HOA XA HQI CHU NGHIA VIET NAM

QUOC GIA VIET NAM Doc lap - Ty do - Hanh phiic
VIETNAM NATIONAL INDUSTRY - ENERGY GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
TONG CONG TY Independence- Freedom-Happiness

CO PHAN XAY LAP DAU KHI VIET NAM
PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION . : ,
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION Ha N¢gi, ngay 29 thang 5 nam 2025
S6 : 58 /NQ-PHPCPH-XLDK Ha Noi, May 29, 2025

No: 58/NQ-DHDCD-XLDK

NGHI QUYET
PAI HQI PONG CO PONG THUONG NIEN NAM 2025
TONG CONG TY CO PHAN XAY LAP DAU KHi VIET NAM
RESOLUTION

OF 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
OF PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK CORPORATION

Cin ctr Luit Doanh Nghiép s6 59/2020/QH14 da dugc Quéc hoi nude Cong hoa
xd hgi chi nghia Viét Nam thong qua ngay 17/06/2020;

Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 approved by the National Assembly
of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020;

Can cr Luéat Chirng khoan sb 54/2019/QH14 da dugc Qubc hdi nude Cong hoa xa
hoi chii nghia Viét Nam thong qua ngay 26/11/2019 va cic viin ban huéng din thi hanh;

Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QHI14 approved by the National

Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on November 26, 2019 and its guiding
documents;

Cin cr Diéu 18 td chirc va hoat dong ciia Téng cong ty C6 phan Xay ldp Dau khi
Viét Nam (Tdng cong ty/PETROCONS);

Pursuant to the organizational and operational charter of Petrovietnam Construction
Joint Stock Corporation (the Corporation/PETROCONs);

Cin cir Bién ban hop Dai hdi dong cb dong thuong nién nam 2025 cia Tdng
cong ty CO phdn Xay lip Dau khi Viét Nam sé 57/BB-DHPCH-XLDK ngay
29/5/2025;

Pursuant to the Minutes of meeting of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of

Shareholders of Petrovietham Construction Joint Stock Corporation No. 57/BB-DHDCD-
XLDK dated 29/5/2025;

QUYET NGHI:
RESOLVES:

Piéu 1. Thong qua Bio cdo sb 50/BC-XLDK ngay 27/5/2025 v& hoat dong ciia
Hoi df"mg quan tri nim 2024 va Ké hoach hoat dong nim 2025; Béao cdo cua Thanh
vién doc lap HPQT vé hoat dong cia HDQT.



Article 1. To approve the report No. 50/BC-XLDK dated 27/5/2025 on The 2024
Operation of the Board of Directors and the 2025 Operation Plan; Report on The Operation
of the Board of Directors by the Independent Member of the Board of Directors.

Pai hoi nhét tri thong qua v6i 224.061.256 ¢b phdn c6 quyén biéu quyét tan
thanh, dat ty 18 99,90% tdng s6 cé phan c6 quyén biéu quyét tham dy dai hoi.

The meeting unanimously approves these reports with 224.061.256 voting shares,
accounting for 99.90% of the total number of voting shares of attendees.

Piéu 2. Thong qua Béo cdo sé 579/BC-XLDK ngay 27/5/2025 vé két qua hoat
dong san xuét kinh doanh nim 2024 va ké hoach san xut kinh doanh nam 2025

Article 2. To approve the report No. 579/BC-XLDK dated 27/5/2025 on the 2024
production and business results and the 2025 production and business plan

% Két qua thyc hién cac chi tiéu kinh té nim 2024

Performance results of economic targets in 2024

Nim 2024
Thue Year 2024 Ty 1¢ hoan | TyIE
hi¢n ” thanh KH | 2024/
bonyi | DA B Thye | nim2024 | 2023
TT Chi tiéu i Y2023 hoach hién (%) (%)
No. Items Uni Implemen DH}?{CD Impleme Plan 2024/
s tation in Cha‘p ntation in comp[eﬁon 2023
2023 thugn 2023 percentage (%)
Approved in 2024 (%)
plan
Gia tri SXKD Ty dong
1 | Production and Billion 912,38 | 1.532,00 982,88 64% 108%
business value dong
. Ty dong
CongLy me Billion 44136 |  884,00| 261,84 30% | 59%
Parent company dong
2 Ty dong
T Billion | 123796 | 1.704,00 | 1.317,87 7% | 106%
Total revenues d
ong
4 Ty dong
R Billion 765,74 | 1.05500| 609,04 58% | 80%
Parent company dong
Loi nhuan trudce thué Ty dong
3 ? Billion (267,12) 3,70 4,81 130%
Pre-tax profits dong
3 Ty déng
Cing iy me Billion | (162,65) 9,48 412 43%
Parent company dong
Lgi nhuén sau thué Ty dong
4 |ee1ni Billion | (265,22) 3,70 2,61 71%
After-tax profits doie
Cong ty me Iy dong
& Billion | (162,65) 9,48 4,12 43%
Parent company dong




! Ty dong
51 | SIEp NN Billion 4105 4700| 49,14 105% | 120%
State budget payable dong
. Ty dong
Cong ty me Billion 10,67 14,00 3,81 27% | 36%
Parent company dong
¢ | Thunhdpbinhquan | Trq/ 10,58 10,84 | 11,42 105% | 108%
Average income thang
A Million
o ¢ dong 1325 1325|1325 100% | 100%
Parent company
< K& hoach nim 2025 véi cac chi tiéu kinh té chi yéu
2025 plan with key economic targets
K
Nim 2024/Year 2024 h(]:; k TS 18 %
T Chi tiéu e TS e
No. Items Thuye hién 2025
hoach T s Plan 2025 2025 plan/2024
Plan mp completion ot implementation
percent P
Gia tri SXKD
1 | Production and 1.532,00 982,88 64% | 1.345,00 137%
business value
Cong ty me 884,00 261,84 30% | 332,00 127%
Parent company
2
o | Tong doanh thu 1.704,00 1.317,87 77% | 1.707,00 130%
Total revenues
Cong ty me 1.055,00 609,04 58% | 796,00 131%
Parent company
. a ’ A
3 | Loi nhugn tru6e thue 3,70 4,81 130% 4,56 95%
Pre-tax profits
Cong ty me 9,48 4,12 43% 3,72 90%
Parent company
4 | Loi nhufn sau thué 3,70 2,61 7% | 456 175%
After-tax profits ’ ’ 1
g""g ly me 9,48 412 43% 3,72 90%
arent company
Nop NSNN 0
5 Soase budiet pigiable 47,00 49,14 105% 58,00 118%
gdng ty me 14,00 3,81 27% 9,00 236%
arent company
Thu nhép binh quén
NLD (trd/ ngudi/
6 |thng) 10,84 11,42 105% | 11,90 104%
Average income of
employee
(VND/person/month)
Cong ty me
Farem congaiy 13.23 13,25 100% 14,10 106%
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Dai hji nhdt tri théng qua véi 224.061.256 c6 phan c¢é quyén biéu quyét tin
thanh, dat ty 1¢ 99,90% téng sé cé phan cé quyén biéu quyét tham di dai héi.

The meeting unanimously approved the Report with 224.061.256 voting shares,
accounting for 99.90% of the total number of voting shares of attendees.

Piéu 3. Thong qua Bao cdo sé 580/XLDK-BKS ngay 27/5/2025 ctia Ban Kiém
soat vé hoat dong cua Ban Kiém soat ndm 2024 va ké hoach nim 2025

Article 3. To approve The 2024 Operation Report of the Board of Supervisors and the
2025 Operation Plan No. 580/XLDK-BKS dated 27/5/2025

Bai hoi nhdt tri thong qua véi 224.286.256 cé phdn cé quyén biéu quyét tdn
thanh, dat ty 1é 100% tong sé cé phan c¢é quyén biéu quyét tham dy dai héi.

The meeting unanimously approved the Report with 224.286.256 voting shares,

accounting for 100% of the total number of voting shares of attendees.

Piéu 4. Thong qua Phwong an phén phdi lgi nhuin nim 2024 heo T& trinh sb
51/TTr-XLDK ngay 27/5/2025

Article 4. To approve the 2024 Profit Distribution Plan According to the Proposal No.
51/TTr-XLDK dated 27/5/2025

Théng qua viéc khong trich 14p cac quy va chia ¢d tirc nam 2024,

Approval of not setting aside funds and paying dividends in 2024.

Dai hoi nhat tri théng qua véi 224.061.256 cé phan cé quyén biéu quyét tin
thanh, dat ty 1é 99,90% téng sé cé phan cé quyén biéu quyét tham du dai héi.

The meeting unanimously approved with 224.061.256 voting shares, accounting for
99.90% of the total number of voting shares of attendees.

Piéu 5. Thong qua To trinh s6 581/TTr-XLDK ngay 27/5/2025 vé viéc lwa chon
Cong ty kiém toan Béo cdo tai chinh nam 2025

Article 5. Approval of the Proposal No. 581/TTr-XLDK dated 27/5/2025 selecting the
Auditing Firm for 2025 Financial Statements

Pai héi nhat tri théng qua véi 224.156.256 cé phan cé quyén biéu quyét tan
thanh, dat ty 1é 99,94% tong sé ¢é phan c6 quyén biéu quyét tham dw dai héi.

The meeting unanimously approved with 224.156.256 voting shares, accounting for
99.94% of the total number of voting shares of attendees.

Pidu 6. Thong qua To trinh s6 52/TTr-XLDK ngay 27/5/2025 vé viéc quyét toan
tién lwvong, thit lao nam 2024 va phwong 4n tién lwong, thi lao nim 2025 cia Hoi déng
quan tri va Ban Kiém so4t

Article 6. To approve the Proposal No. 52/TTr-XLDK dated 27/5/2025 on settling the

2024 salary and remuneration and the 2025 salary and remuneration plan of the Board of
Directors and the Board of Supervisors



1. Tién luong, thii lao ciia Hoi ddng quan tri, Ban Kiém soat nim 2024: Quyét

toan tién luong, thu lao cia Hoi déng quan tri, Ban Kiém soat nim 2024 (thye hién
theo Nghi quyét PHDPCP thuong nién nim 2024 s 70/NQ-PHPCD-XLDK ngay
23/5/2024), cu thé:

2024:

1. Salary and remuneration of the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors in
Settlement of salary and remuneration of the Board of Directors and the Board of

Supervisors in 2024 (according to the Resolution No. 70/NQ-DHDCD-XLDK by the 2024
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders dated May 23, 2024), specifically:

Tién lwong/thu lao nim 2024
STT N¢i dung Salary/remuneration (2024)
No. Contents Ké hoach Thyec hién Ty 1é
Plan Implementation Percentage
(4) (B) (1) ) (3)=(2)/(1)
Hoi dong quan tri/ ’
1 | poardo  Directors 2,496,600,000 2,178,200,018 87%
<A .
4 et soltf 593,450,000 501,819,999 85%
Board of Supervisors
1 A
Tong egug 3,090,050,000 2,680,020,817 87%
Total

2. Phuong 4n tién luvong, thi lao ciia Hoi ddng quan tri, Ban Kiém soat nam 2025:
2. The 2025 salary and remuneration plan of the Board of Directors and Board of

Supervisors:

Tién lwong va thi lao ciia thanh vién HPQT va Ban Kiém soat chuyén trach:
thuc hién theo Quy ché tién luong cia PETROCONS phul hop véi quy dinh va
thuc té két qua SXKD ciia PETROCONS.

Salary and remuneration of full-time members of the Board of Directors and Board of
Supervisors: Implemented according to the Salary Regulations of PETROCONs in

accordance with regulations and the actual production and business results of
PETROCON:E .

Tién lwong, thii lao ciia thanh vién doc 1ap HPQT: i) Trudng hgp thanh vién lam
viéc thudng xuyén theo ché do 1am viéc tai Co quan Tdng cong ty duoc chi tra
tién lvong va cic ché do khéc theo ché do ap dung dbi v6i thanh vién HDQT
chuyén trach; ii) Truong hop thanh vién lam viéc khong thudng xuyén tai Co
quan Tdng cong ty (khong chuyén tréch) duge huéng muc thd lao bing 70%
murc luong chirc danh ctia Thanh vién HPQT chuyén trach.

Salary and remuneration of independent members of the Board of Directors: i) In case
a member works regularly under the working regime at the Corporation’s Office, he/she
will be paid salary and other benefits like the full-time members of the Board of
Directors; ii) In case a member works irregularly at the Corporation’s Office (part-

time), he/she will be paid remuneration equal to 70% of the salary of the full-time
member of the Board of Directors.

Thu lao kiém nhiém cta Thanh vién HPQT va Ban Kiém Soat khong chuyén
trach: khong vugt qua mirc 5.000.000 dong/ngudi/thang.
5
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Remuneration of part-time members of the Board of Directors and the Board of

Supervisors: no more than VND 5,000,000/person/month.

Dai héi nhat tri thong qua véi 224.156.256 cé phan cé quyén biéu quyét tin
thanh, dat ty 1é 99,94% tong sé ¢é phan cé quyén biéu quyét tham du dai hoi.

The meeting unanimously approved the above content with 224.156.256 voting shares,
accounting for 99.94% of the total number of voting shares of attendees.

Piéu 7. Thong qua T trinh sé 53/TTr-XLDK ngay 27/5/2025 vé viéc mién
nhiém Thanh vién Ban Kiém soat PETROCONSs

Article 7. Approval of the Proposal No. 53/TTr-XLDK dated 27/5/2025 on Regarding
the dismissal of the member of the Supervisory Board of Petrovietnam Construction Joint
Stock Corporation.

Pai hgi nhdt tri théng qua véi 224.286.256 cé phan c¢é quyén biéu quyét tdn
thanh, dat ty 1¢ 100% tong sé cé phan cé quyén biéu quyét tham du dai héi.

The meeting unanimously approved the above Proposal with 224.286.256 voting shares,
accounting for 100% of the total number of voting shares of attendees.

Piéu 8. Pai hoi ddng cb dong da bau cir thanh vién Hdi déng quan tri va Ban
Kiém soat nhiém ky 2025-2030 véi két qua nhu sau:

Article 8. The General Meeting of Shareholders elected members of the Board of
Directors and the Board of Supervisors for the 2025-2030 term with the following results:
TF HOQ TEN SO PHIEU BIEU QUYET
No. FULL NAME VOTES

Danh séch tring cir thanh vién Hji ddng quin tri

List of elected members of the Board of Directors

1 Ong Nghiém Quang Huy /Mr. Nghiem Quang Huy 224.064.751

Danh sdch tring cir thanh vién djc 14p Hji ddng quan tri

List of elected independent members of the Board of Directors

1 | Ong Pham Vin Khanh /Mr. Pham Van Khanh 224.064.761

Danh séch tring cir Thanh vién Ban Kiém so4t

List of elected members of the Board of Supervisors

1 Ong Hira Xuan Nam /Mr. Hua Xuan Nam 224.064.761

2 Ba La Minh Hué /Mrs. La Minh Hue 224.064.751

Piéu 9. Uy quyén cho Chii toa Dai hoi/Chu tich Hoi dong quéan tri PETROCONs
ky ban hanh cic Nghi quyét/Quyét dinh vé cic ndi dung dd dugce Dai hdi thong qua.

Article 9. Authorize the Chairman of the General Meeting/Chairman of Board of
Directors of PETROCOns to sign and issue Resolution/Decision on the content approved by

the General Meeting.
6



Piéu 10. Diéu khoan thi hanh.

Article 10. Executive provisions.

Nghi quyét nay c6 hiéu luc tir ngdy 29/5/2025.

This Resolution takes effect from May 29, 2025.

Pai hoi ddng cb dong giao cho Hoi ddng quan tri, Ban Kiém soat, Ban Téng
gidm dbc td chirc trién khai cic ndi dung da thong qua tai Pai hoi trén co s¢ dam bao
l9i ich cia PETROCONS va lgi ich cia c6 dong, phu hop véi Dicu 1€ to chirc va hoat
dong cia PETROCONS va céc quy dinh phap luét hién hanh.

The General Meeting of Shareholders assigns the Board of Directors, the Board of
Supervisors and the Board of Management to organize the implementation of the contents
approved at the General Meeting on the basis of ensuring the interests of PETROCONs and

the interests of shareholders in accordance with the organizational and operational Charter
of PETROCON s and the current legal regulations.

Nghi quyét nay dugc Dai hdi ddng c6 dong thudong nién nam 2025 cia Tong
cong ty C6 phan Xay lap Dau khi Viét Nam thong qua toan van tai cugc hop ngay
29/5/2025 véi ty 1€ biéu quyét tan thanh 1a 100% tdng s cb phan cé quyén biéu quyét
clia cd dong du hop.

This Resolution was approved fully by the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders of Petrovietham Construction Joint Stock Corporation at the meeting on May

29, 2025 with the affirmation vote rate of 100% of the total number of voting shares of
attendees.

T/M. PAI HQI PONG CO PONG

o CHU TQA
Noi nhign:
- Nhu Diéu 10 (dé t/h); FOR AND ON BEHALF OF GENERAL
- UBCKNN, S& GDCKHN (dé b/c); ( SHAREHOLDERS
- Ngudi CBTT (dé CBTT); 4

- Website PETROCONSs (thay cho giri TB t6i ¢b
dong);

- Lvu HPQT, VT, PC.

Recipients:

- As per Article 10 (for implementation);

- State Securities Commission, Hanoi Stock Exchange
(for report); . 3 .
- Information publisher (for information disclosure); CHU TICH HOI PONG QU AN TRI

- PETROCONS s website (instead of sending notices to CHAIRMAN OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
shareholders); -

- Kept at: Board of Directors, Archives Department, Nghiém Quang Huy
Legal Department. /%
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AGENDA OF THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS OF PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK

CORPORATION
No. | Time Contents '
| 7:30 - §:30 | - Receive Ih:ﬁ"ulcgates and verify shareholder qualifications
- Salute the llag. introduce delegates;
- The Chairman of the Sharcholder Qualification Inspection
> | 830-8:50 Committee reads the examination minutes and declares the
- ) ) legality and validity of the Meeting;
- Open the General Meeting of Shareholders;
| = Introduce the Presidium;
- Introduce and approve the Secretariat:
3 | B:50-9:00 | - Introduce and approve the Vote Counting Commitiee: |
- Approve the agenda and Regulations on organizing the Meeting
4 | 9:00-11:30| - Content 1: Report on The 2024 Operation of the Board of |

Directors and the 20235 Operation Plan. Report on The Operation of
the Board of Directors by the Independent Member of the Board of

Directors. .

-Content 2: Report on The 2024 production and business results
and the 2025 production and business plan.

~Content 3: The 2024 Operation Report of the Board of
Supervisors and the 2025 Operation Plan.

-Content 4: Proposal on approving the 2024 Audited Financial
Statements and the 2024 Profit Distribution Plan.

-Content 5: Proposal on selecting the Auditing Firm for 2025
Financial Statements.

-Content 6: Proposal on settling the 2024 salary and remuneration
and the 2025 salary and remuneration plan of the Board of

Directors and the Board of Supervisors.

- Content 7: Proposal on personnel affairs of the Board of
Directors’ Board of Supervisors under the authority of the
General Meeting of Shareholders.

- Voting to approve contents from item 1 to item 7

- The Vote Counting Committee conducts vote counting
- The meeting takes a break

- Announcing the voling resulis on the contents

Documenis of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Sharehalders- PETROCONs




No. Time

Contents

- Election of members of Board of Directors. members of Board of
Supervisors - content 7
= The Vote Counting Committee conducts vote counting

- Shareholders discuss and answer guestions

5 | 11:30-11:50

- Announcing the election results

- Introducing the elected members of the Board of Directors and
the Board of Supervisors

- Speech by the representative of the Sharcholders - Vietnam
National Industry-Energy Group

6 | 11:50-12:05

- Approval of the Minutes and Resolutions of the General
Meeting

7 12:10

- Closing of the General Meeting
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VIETNAM NATIONAL INDUSTRY - ENERGY GROUP

SOCTALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
Ha Noi, .......day...... meanth..... 2025
REGULATIONS

ON ORGANIZING THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
OF SHAREHOLDERS OF PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION

CHAPTER 1
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Article 1. Scope of application

The Regulations on organizing the General Meeting of Sharcholders are used for
organizing the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (hereinafier referred io
as the General Meeting) of Petroviemam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
{hereinafter referred to as the Corporation).

Article 2. These Regulations specifically stipulate the rights and obligations of the
participants in the General Meeting. the conditions and procedures for conducting the
General Meeting.

Article 3. Sharcholders and participants are responsible for implementing the
provisions of these Regulations.

CHAPTER 11
RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF PARTICIPANTS

Article 4. Rights and obligations of common shareholders

4.1. Participation conditions

Shareholders who are legal representatives, natural persons or representatives of
shareholders, a group of shareholders owning voting shares of the Corporation on the
closing date of shareholder list (April 28, 2025) are entitled to attend the 2025 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders.

4.2, Rights of eligible shareholders when attending the General Meeting

a. To vole on all matters within the authority of the General Meeting of
Shareholders as prescribed in the Charter of the Corporation.

b.  To authorize a representative in writing to attend and vote on his/her behalf at the
General Meeting of Sharcholders.

¢.  The Organizing Committee of the General Meeting will publicly announce: the
entire contents of the General Meeting agenda. All eligible sharcholders are
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allowed to participate in giving opinions directly or through their authorized

representatives. All opinions will be discussed at the General Meeting of

Sharcholders.

d. At the General Meeting, shareholders or authorized representatives (shareholder
representatives) must bring the following documents to the General Meeting:

- Meeting invitation/Meeting invitation letter:

- Citizen identity card or passport (original);

- Original Power of Attorney with main contents in the form issued by the

Corporation (in case of the authorization to attend the General Meeting);

(In case the shareholder is an individual, the Power of Attorney must be signed
by that shareholder. In case the sharehalder is a legal entinyorganization, the Power
af Attarney must be stamped and signed by the legal representative of thar legal
entibvorganization. In case of re-murhorization, the meeling aitendee must preseni the
ariginal power of attorney of the shareholder, the authorized representative of the
shareholder being an organization (if not previously registered with the Corporation),

Shareholders and shareholders™ representatives shall present the above
documents to the Shareholder Qualification Examination Board and receive one (01)
Voting Card, one (01) Voting Ballot, one (01) Ballot for election of members of the
Board of Directors, one (01) Ballot for election of members of the Board of
Supervisors (the ballots shall contain the shareholder code, voting content and number
of voting shares). The voting value that the shareholder or shareholder representative
holds corresponds to the proportion of voting shares that he or she owns or represents
according to the attendance registration to the total number of voting shares of
shareholders/sharcholder representatives.

¢.  Shareholders and their representatives who attend the General Meeting of
Shareholders, after hearing the report on the contents to be approved, will discuss
and approve each part by voting.

f.  Sharcholders and their representatives who arrive late have the right to register
immediately, then participate and vote immediately at the General Meeting, but
the Chairman is not responsible for stopping the General Meeting to allow them
to register and the validity of the previously conducted voting sessions will not
be affected.

4.3. Obligations of common shareholders when attending the General Meeting

a.  Participate or authorize participation in the General Meeting of Shareholders
according to the Charter of the Corporation.

b.  Sharcholders and their representatives attending the General Meeting, when
wishing to express their opinions. must obtain the consent of the Chairman, and
speak briefly and focus on the key contents to be discussed according to the
approved agenda of the General Meeting. Issues that have been expressed by
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previous people must not be expressed again to avoid duplication. Sharcholders
attending the General Meeting can also write down the contents on the
CQuestionnaire and then submit it to the Secretariat.

¢.  Sharcholders or their representatives must complete the registration procedures
for attending the General Meeting with the Organizing Committee.

d.  Sharcholders or their representatives must strictly comply with the regulations at
the General Meeting of Sharcholders. respect the work results at the General
Meeting.

Article 5. Rights and obligations of the Shareholder Qualilication Examination

Board

The Sharcholder Qualification Examination Board is established by the
Corporation. The Sharcholder Qualification Examination Board receives documents of
attending sharcholders; Issues documents and Voting Cards, Voting Ballots: Election
Ballots: Reports the shareholder qualification examination results to the General
Meeling.

Article 6. Rights and obligations of the Chairman and the Presidium
6.1. The Chairman of the Board of Directors (BOD) presides over the meeting.

6.2. The Chairman of the meeting nominates the Organizing Committee (including:
the Presidium, the General Meeting Secretariat, the Vote Counting Committee)
for the General Meeting's approval.

6.3. The Chairman’'s decision on the order, procedures or events arising outside the
agenda of the General Mecting of Shareholders shall be highly decisive.

6.4. Without consulting the General Meeting, the Chairman of the General Meeting
of Shareholders mav at any time postpone the General Meeting to another time
and at another location at his/her own discretion if he/she finds that:

a.  The behavior of attendees obstructs or is likely to obstruct the orderly progress of
the meeting;

b. The postponement is necessary for the work of the General Meeting to be
conducted properly.

6.5. The Presidium is elected at the General Meeting and has the following duties:

a. Conduct the activities of the General Meeting according to the program approved
by the General Meeting: Carry oul necessary tasks so that the General Meeting of
Sharcholders takes place in an orderly manner, reflecting the wishes of the
majority of attendees;

b.  Instruct delegates and the General Meeting in discussion;

c. Submit drafts and necessary contents for the General Meeting 10 vote;
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d. Respond to issues requested by the General Meeting.
Article 7. Rights and obligations of the Secretariat

a.  The Chairman introduces the Secretariat and organizes the collection of opinions
for approval at the Meeting.

b.  The Secretariat performs the support tasks assigned by the Presidium, including:
- Fully and honestly recording the contents of the Meeting;
- Assisting the Presidium in announcing the draft Minutes and Resolutions of the
Meeting and the Presidium’s notice to shareholders when requested;
- Receiving shareholders” questionnaires through the Presidium’s Working
Group.

Article 8.  Rights and obligations of the Vote Counting Committee

8.1. The Vote Counting Commiitee is nominated by the Chairman of the General
Mecting and approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders. Members of the
Vote Counting Committee may be sharcholders of the Corporation.

8.2. The Vote Counting Committee has the following duties:

- Introduce the content and method of recording voting ballots: election ballots;

- Supervise the voting and election of sharcholders at the General Meeting;

= Check the Voting Cards/Voting Ballots when approving issues submitted to the
General Meeting of Sharcholders for approval;

- Carry out the procedure for counting votes for the election of members of the
Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors;

- Notify the results to the Chairman. the Secretariat and announce the vote
counting results before the General Meeting:

= Beresponsible for the honesty and accuracy of the vote counting results,

CHAPTER III
CONDUCTING THE GENERAL MEETING

Article 9. Conditions for holding the meeting

9.1. The General Meeting of Shareholders shall be held when the number of attending
sharcholders represents more than 50% of the total number of voting shares
according to the list of shareholders made by Vietnam Securities Depository and
Clearing Corporation on April 28, 2025,

9.2. In case the first meeting does not meet the conditions as prescribed in Clause 9.1
of this Article, the notice of invitation to the second meeting shall be sent within
30 days from the date of the first meeting. The second General Meeting of
Shareholders shall be held when the number of attending shareholders represents
33% (thirty-three percent) or more of the total number of voling shares according
to the list of sharcholders made by the Vietnam Securities Depository and
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Clearing Corporation on April 28, 2025,

9.3, In case the second meeting is not eligible to be held under Clause 9.2 of this
Article, the notice of invitation to the third meeting must be sent within 20
(twenty) days from the date of the second meeting. The third meeting shall be
held regardless of the total number of voting shares of the attending shareholders.

Article 10. Meeting order

- All attending sharcholders must be properly dressed.

- Shareholders entering the General Meeting room must sit in the correct position
or area as prescribed by the Organizing Committee; Comply with the direction
of the Chairman and the Organizing Commitiee.

- The attending sharcholders must not smoke in the General Meeting room.

- The atending shareholders must not 1alk privately or use mobile phones during
the General Meeting. Mobile phones must be turned off or not ringing.

Article 11. Meeting proceedings

11.1. The General Meeting will discuss and approve the contents {according to the
contents sent to the shareholders).

11.2. Voting

- In addition to the ballots for members of the Board of Directors (Blue). the Board
of Supervisors (Pink), each attending shareholder will be given 01 Voting Card
{White) and 01 Voting Ballot (Yellow), on which the sharcholder code and the
number of voting shares held by the shareholder are written. All contents in the
General Meeting’s agenda must be approved by obtaining the votes of all
attending shareholders by Voting Card'Voting Ballot.

- Voting card: printed on white paper. used to vote to approve the following
contents:

v Approval of the Presidium;
v Approval of the composition of the Secretariat and the Vote Counting

Commitiee;

Approval of the Meeting Agenda;

Approval of the Regulations on organizing the meeting

Approval of the Election Regulations;

Approval of the contents of the Minutes and Resolutions of the

Shareholders’ Meeting and approval of other issues as requested by the

Chairman.

Shareholders may only use the Voting Card to approve a specific matter once.

Shareholders raise the Voting Card each time they approve, disapprove or have no

opinion on each matter to be voted. This Voting Card is used when sharcholders want

L U N S
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to express their opinions and when the Chairman proposes to vole to approve the

above matters.

- Voting ballot: printed on yellow paper. used to vote to approve the following
main contents:

v Report on The 2024 Operation of the Board of Directors and the 2025
Operation Plan. Report on The Operation of the Board of Directors by the
Independent Member of the Board of Directors:

v" Report on The 2024 production and business results and the 2023 production
and business plan:

v' The 2024 Operation Report of the Board of Supervisors and the 2025
Operation Plan.

v" Proposal on approving the 2024 Audited Financial Statements and the 2024
Profit Distribution Plan.

¥ Proposal on selecting the Auditing Finm for 2025 Financial Statements.

v" Proposal on settling the 2024 salary and remuneration and the 2025 salary and
remuneration plan of the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors;

¥ Proposal on Regarding the dismissal of the member of the Supervisory Board
of Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation.

For the Voting Ballot, each issue on the Voting Ballot has 3 blank boxes showing
the content of Agree, Disagree and No opinion. Invalid voting content is content that
has no or more than one voting status. In that case. the remaining voting content is still
valid and will still be counted in the vote counting results.

Article 12. Approval of the Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders

The Resolutions of the General Meeting of Sharcholders on: Types of shares and
total number of shares of each type: Changes in business lines, occupations and fields;
Changes in the organizational structure of the Corporation: Investment projects or sale
of assets with a value of 35% or more of the total value of assets recorded in the latest
financial statements of the Corporation; Reorganization or dissolution of the
Corporation; shall be approved with the consent of the number of shareholders
representing 65% or more of the total number of voting shares of all attending
shareholders.

Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders on other issues (except for
the election of members of the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors) in the
agenda of the General Meeting shall be approved with the consent of shareholders

owning more than 50% of the total number of voting shares of all attending
shareholders.
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CHAPTER IV
END OF MEETING
Article 13. Minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders

All contents of the General Meeting of Shareholders must be recorded by the
Secretary in the Minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders of the Corporation.
The Minutes and Resolutions of the meeting must be read and approved before the
closing of the meeting and kept in the document system of the Corporation.

CH v
EXECUTIVE PROVISIONS

Article 14, These regulations consist of 5 Chapters and 14 Articles, is read publicly
before the General Meeting of Shareholders and takes effect immediately afier being
voted and approved by the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF

Sent fo: ARD OF DIRECTORS
- As above; 5
- Kept at: Archives Department, Board of J .
Directors, Legal Department 2~ .";": {oing Ty ¢l Py
N | 1 ||I-5.r lfu-' r:' I
\\ VIET NAM
"“*-L"-_r__ &

gluem Quang Huy
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VIETNAM NATIONAL INDUSTRY - ENERGY GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
No.: §) /BC-XLDK Ha Noi, a&rdﬂ}r-.ﬁ.'._nmmﬁ._.. 2025
REPORT

ON THE 2024 OPERATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AND THE 2025 OPERATION PLAN

To: The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
(PETROCONSs/Corporation)

. GENERALSITUATION

In 2024, the world economic and political situation continues to be complicated
and unpredictable; the global economy grows slowly, the financial. monetary and real
estate markets have many potential risks: exchange rates, interest rates, gasoline and
oil prices and input materials have many negative fluctuations, causing difficulties for
the production and business activities of construction enterprises in general and the
Petrovictnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation (PETROCONs/Corporation) in
particular. In addition, because PETROCONS is still in the process of overcoming the
shortcomings in the previous period and gradually consolidating and improving
internal capacity to ensure the common goal of integration with the current strong
changes and competition of the market, the factors of financial resources, human
resources and application of science and technology in management are still limited,
leading to the unsatisfactory implementation of PETROCONs’ 2024 production and
business plan.

In 2024, PETROCONS has developed and implemented many solutions and tasks
to promote production and business activities, striving to maximize the completion of
specific management plan targets as follows:

- For the Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant project: Continue to focus on
completing the construction of the remaining items; complete the scope of work and
conditions as required to ensure that the Project is accepted by the State Inspection

Council for handover and commercial operation. At the same time, urgently carry out
the project settlement.

- For restructuring: review and re-evaluate the entire situation, resources,
advantages and limitations of the parent company and its member units. Thereby,
propose feasible solutions to reorganize production and business activities to ensure the
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goal of fundamentally handling the difficulties and problems of the parent company and
its member units in 20235, gradually improving the capacity of the enterprise.

- For bidding marketing and job search: Promote the search for new job sources
through joint ventures and partnerships, make the most of existing resources and
experience after completing Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plamt project. In addition,
promote the consolidation and development of data systems and regularly innovate and
leam from experiences in bidding methods.

- For debt settlement: review, urge collection, collect documents and documents to
provide/complete internal procedures to completely resolve outstanding debts berween
parties. Be determined in the collection of bad debts, participate in litigation, dispute and
mediation procedures to ensure maximum legitimate rights and interests for
PETROCONS,

I1. THE 2024 OPERATION REPORT
1. Production and business results in 2024

Production and business performance in 2024:

2024 " Plan |
No Tte Unit IH:F:M | ?mrﬂh Ay |
s o = "1‘:'1;“ Approved | Impleme ET 2023
plan ntation | (%)
(%)
Production and Billion ! ’
1 ik vt dong 912,38 1,532.00 982.88 @ 64% | 108% |
Parenr Billion
company dnng 441 36 88400 261.84 J0% | 39%
2 | Total revenues B‘;E!;:“ 123796 | 1,70400 | 131787 77% | 106%
Parent Billion -
i o dmg 763.74 1,033.00 609 04 J8% | A0%%
3 | Pre-tax profits Billion | 267.12) 370 481 130%
Parent Billion
162.65 048 412 43%
company dong { )
Billion
4 | After-tax profits dong | (265.22) 3.70 2.61 T1%
FParemt Billion
162.65 948 4.12 43%
campany dong (i )
State budget Billion
5 41.05 47.00 49.14 105% | 1200
pavable dong 0
Farent Billion 10.67 14.00 381 27| 36%
COmTRY dong
[ Average income Million 10.58 10.84 11.42 105% | 108%
Firent dongimonth | 73 25 1325 1325| 100% | 100%
company
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The total production and business value of the entire PETROCONSs is 982.88
billion dong, reaching 64% of the 2024 plan and equal to 108% compared to 2023;
The parent company alone is 261.84 billion dong, reaching 30% of the 2024 plan and
equal to 39% compared to 2023.

The total revenue of the entire PETROCONS is 1.317.87 billion dong, reaching
77% of the 2024 plan and equal to 106% compared to 2023: The parent company
alone is 609.04 billion dong, reaching 358% of the 2024 plan and equal to 0%
compared to 2023,

The total pre-tax profit of the entire PETROCONS is 4.81 billion dong, reaching
130% of the 2024 plan: total after-tax profit of the entire PETROCONS is 2.61 billion
dong. The parent company”s profit is 4.12 billion dong. equivalent to 43% of the 2024
plan,

The owner's equity of the parent company PETROCONs as of December 31,
2024 is 311.53 billion dong, an increase of 1.34% compared to the beginning of the
year.

(For details, see the 2024 income statement and 2024 audited financial statements. )

2. Activities of the Board of Directors (BOD) in 2024
2.4, Summary of BOD meetings and BOD decisions

Al present, the Board of Directors of PETROCONS consists of 05 members- the
number required by the Organization and Operation Charter of PETROCONS.

[n 2024, the Board of Directors held 07 regular meetings and 107 times of
collecting written opinions from members, adopted 32 Resolutions, 26 Decisions and
other directive documents related to the activities of PETROCONs. The
Resolutions/Decisions issued in 2024 are detailed in the Corporate Governance Report
No. 03/BC-XLDK dated January 16, 2025 sent to the State Securitics Commission and
Hanoi Stock Exchange.

In addition, to strengthen the supervision of the implementation of the
Resolutions and Decisions of the Board of Directors in production and business
activities, the Board of Directors has assigned Board members to participate in
briefing and thematic meetings with the Board of Directors in accordance with their
assigned responsibilities.

2.2. Activities of Board Members

Information about the Board of Directors (BOD) members as of December 31,
2024:
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Appointment date/

Member of Board of o Dismissal date |
No. ; Pasition
Directors Appointment  Dismissal
date date
i | Wi Highions Oueng by | Sheiemen of Boaed. OF|  gipymgny |
' Directors

Independent Member of
Board of Directors
Member of Board of

3 | Mr. Chu Thanh Hai ; 302021
Directors

2 | Mr. Pham Van Khanh 24/6/2020

Member of Board of

: 30062021
Dhrectors

4 | Mr. Tran Hai Bang

Member of Board of

: 0012022
Directors

3 Mr. Nguyen Hoai Nam

The members of the Board of Directors have performed their duties in
accordance with the roles and powers prescribed by the Enterprise Law, the Charter of
PETROCONS, the Regulations on the Board of Directors” operations and other
relevamt legal provisions in managing the production and business activities of
PETROCONs as well as supervising the management and operation tasks of the Board
of Directors through:

- Fully participating in the activities of the Board of Directors:

- Giving opinions on the ballots for the Board of Directors to issue Resolutions,
Decisions, and Documents of the Board of Directors;

- Directly in charge of monitoring specific areas in the production and business
activities of PETROCONSs and its member units as assigned by the Board of Directors
of PETROCONS;

- Well performing the coordination of direction and management of the
enterprise with the Party Commitiee, the Board of Supervisors and the General
Dhrector.

2.3. Salary/remuneration and operating expenses of the Board af Directors in 2024
Salary/remuneration of the Board of Directors in 2024 is VND 2,178,100,018.

Specifically:
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No. Full name Title Salam;t%‘;zfmliﬂn
Total 2,178,200.,818
| | Nghiem Quang Huy | Chaiman of Board of Directors 535318303
2 | e Bang Member of Board of Directors 469,156,106
3 | Py Eow Him Member of Board of Directors 454.408.070
4 | Chia Tharh Hai Member of Board of Directors 460.717.339
"5 | Pham van Khanh i“d‘*"““dt“‘r';iiﬂm el : 258 600,000

The operating expenses of the Board of Directors in 2024 were: VND
409,744,698 in compliance with PETROCONS" internal spending regulations and
current regulations.

2.4. Salary/remuneration and expense plan of the Board of Directors in 2024

- Salary and remuneration of the Board Member who is the Representative of the
Vietnam National Industry- Energy Group at PETROCONs: Implemented in
accordance with PETROCONs" salary regulations in accordance with the Circular No.
28/2016/TT-BLDTBXH dated September 1, 2016 by the Ministry of Labor - Invalids
and Social Affairs and the actual production and business results of PETROCONs,

- Salary and remuneration of independent members of the Board of Directors: i)
In case a member works regularly at PETROCONs Agency accordin g to
PETROCONS" regulations, he/she will be paid salary and other benefits according to
the regime applicable to full-time members of the Board of Directors who are
representatives of the capital of the Vietnam National Industry- Energy Group at
PETROCONS; ii) In case a member works irregularly at PETROCONs Agency (Part-
time), he/she will receive a remuneration equal to 70% of the salary of the full-time
member of the Board of Directors.

- The remuneration of a full-time Board Member is maximum 20% of the salary
of a part-time Board Member.

2.5. Transactions of Board members and their related persons

In 2024, transactions between members of the Board of Directors and related
parties with PETROCONs, Subsidiaries, and Member Companies in which
PETROCONS holds control of more than 50% of charter capital are shown in the 2024
audited Consolidated Financial Statemenis of PETROCONs. These transactions
comply with the current Law and the Charter of PETROCONS.

'*‘m-
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In 2024, PETROCONS has no transactions with Companies in which members of
the Board of Directors are founding members or business managers in the 03 (three)
latest vears prior 1o the transaction date.

6. Activities of Independent Members of the Board af Directors and the
Independent Members' assessment results on the activities of the Board of
Directors

- Independent members of the Board of Directors work on an irregular basis:

- Independent members of the Board of Directors fully participate in meetings of
the Board of Directors and have full opinions on the Board of Directors’™ opinion
[orms;

- Independem members of the Board of Directors fully exercise their rights and
obligations as prescribed in the PETROCONs Charter, the Board of Directors’
Operating Regulations and the Decision on assigning tasks to members of the Board of
Directors,

2.7, Supervision reswlis on ihe General Director and members of the Board of
Directors

The Board of Directors regularly supervises the General Director and members
of the Board of Directors in the process of implementing the contents of the
Resolutions set forth by the Board of Directors. The General Director has clearly
assigned tasks to the Deputy General Directors. The members of the Board of
Directors are all qualified, capable, qualified and experienced and have a good
understanding of the assigned helds and tasks.

The Board of Directors has implemented the business activities of the unit in
accordance with the Resolution of the General Meeting of Sharcholders, the direction
of the Board of Directors and the Charter of PETROCONS and the provisions of law,

The Board of Directors works and organizes regular meetings with member units
to promptly manage business activities at the units in accordance with the general
direction, and resolve difficulties and problems in the operation of each unit.

The Board of Directors has strengthened the implementation of measures to
reduce and strictly control costs and cash flow to maintain production and business
activities; implemented solutions to strengthen internal resources and continue to
promote marketing, bidding, job search and market expansion; actively searched for
investors interested in receiving capital transfers at units as well as promoted work
related to PETROCONS restructuring.

Salaries of emplovees of PETROCONs and the Project Management Board
under PETROCONS is paid on the principle of linking salaries to the assigned job
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positions, quality and efficiency of work, ensuring the lives of employees at the parent
company PETROCONs with stable income.

The Board of Directors has reviewed and implemented the development and
adjustment of PETROCONSs" internal regulations/rules to suit the actual production
and business situation of PETROCONs and submitted them to the Board of Directors
of PETROCONSs for consideration and approval.

2.8, General evaluation
a.  Task implementation

- Successfully organized the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of
PETROCONSs on May 23. 2024,

- Review documents. support member units to organize annual general mectings
of shareholders. extraordinary general meetings of shareholders.

- Regarding production and business results: Based on the 2024 production and
business plan approved by the General Meeting of Sharcholders (GMS) in the
Resolution No. 70/NQ-DHCD-XLDK of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders dated May 23, 2024, the entire PETROCONs group has made efforts to
carry out production and business tasks with the results of implementing economic
targets in 2024 as follows: the entire PETROCONSs group had a pre-tax profit of 4.81
billion dong, reaching 130% of the 2024 plan; The entire group had a profit after tax of
2.61 billion dong. The parent company’s profit was 4.12 billion dong, equal to 43% of
the 2024 plan. The owner's equity of the parent company PETROCONs as of
December 31, 2024 was 311.53 billion dong, an increase of 1.34% compared to the
beginning of the year.

= Construction at works/projects:

+ For the key project of Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant Project: PETROCONs
continues to carry out the remaining sub-items, handling the arising backlog. In 2024,
the State Inspection Council for Construction Acceptance (State Inspection Council)
approved the conditional acceptance of the Units in Notice No. 3895/ TB-HDETNN
dated July 8, 2024. On July 10, 2024, the Investor issued the Handover Certificate
for Unit 1, Unit 2 and shared items (except for Coal Loader No. 5, Coal Warchouse
No. 3 and the remaining works in process). On July 19, 2024, the Electric Power
Trading Company (EPTC) recognized the commercial operation date of the Plant
starting from B:00 a.m. on July 19, 2024, By early August 2024, the project officially
participated in the National Electricity Market. Currently, PETROCONs is

coordinating with the Thai Binh 2 Power Plant Project Management Board to finalize
the EPC Contract.

+ Song Hau 1 Thermal Power Plant Project:
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* PETROCON:S is carrving out the final settlement of the Contract No, C11/SH1-
LLM-PVC&GEOVN on foundation treatment and Contract No. C15/SH1-LLM-
PVC on the construction of construction items with General Contractor Lilama.

* Construction and repair works at Song Hau 1 Thermal Power Plant: In 2024,
PETROCONs won the bid and signed 02 contracts to renovate and repair a
number of items at Song Hau 1 Thermal Power Plant. Currently, construction
work 15 being carried out on the set schedule.

+ Southern Petroleum Institute Office Project:

* Phase 1: PETROCONs has completed the Phase 1 setlement documents.
currently awaiting for approval by the Competent Authority,

* Phase 2: PETROCONs has completed the signing of the Supplementary
Appendix No. 19 with the Petroleum Institute on October 24, 2024 and submined
the Settlement documents to the Project Management Consultant for review and
confirmation and then submit them to the Investor for approval

+ Project of upgrading DCS system of unit 87 - Uong Bi Thermal Power Plant:
By December 9, 2024, PETROCONs has completed 100% of the construction volume
under the signed contract. Currently, PETROCONS is coordinating with the general
contractor to complete the construction steps (o determine the pavment volume.

+ Project of supplying and installing inverters for smoke fans of unit S2 of Vinh
Tan 2 Thermal Power Plant: The work within the scope of PETROCONSs has been
basically completed. Currently. PETROCONS has actively coordinated with the parties
to complete the quality documents for acceptance with the Investor to fulfill the
obligations in the contract.

+ Construction project of slag disposal site, water collection tower, return water
pipeline of Quang Trach 1 Thermal Power Plant: currently being implemented under
the plan.

- Bidding Marketing for signing economic contracts:

+ Al the parent company: In 2024, PETROCONSs parent company participated in
bidding and became the successful bidder of the following packages: Procurement of
equipment and installation of frequency converters to control smoke fans of unit S2 -
Vinh Tan Thermal Power Plant; Construction of slag disposal site, water collection
tower, retum water pipeline - Quang Trach 1 Thermal Power Plant Project;
Renovation of the operation building of Song Hau 1 Thermal Power Plant Project;
Renovation and repair of equipment washing and slag disposal area of Song Hau 1
Thermal Power Plant and Supply of 1A level pump for Cao Ngan Thermal Power
Plant.
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+ At the member units: In 2024, 43 contracts/contract appendices were signed by
member units to supplement work sources, including: PVC-MS signed 18 new
contracts with a total value of VIND 861.4 billion (including 3 major projects: Topside
Phu Quoc with a value of VND 4835 billion, Lac Da Vang base fabrication with a value
of VIND 143.5 billion, P15 project with a value of VND 138 billion): DOBC signed 15
new contracts/contract appendices with a total value of VIND 80.7 billion; PVC-Binh
Son signed 6 new contracts with a total value of VND 27.30 billion; PVC-TB signed
01 new contract with a value of VND 121.73 billion; PETROCONs-Dong Do signed
03 new contracts with a 1otal value of about VND 87.3 billion,

- Debt settlement and collection: As of December 31. 2024. the parent company
has settled and collected VND 5,588 billion. specifically: TID (VND 0.288 billion):
PVNC (VND 2.716 billion): PVC-ME (VND 0.1 billion): PVC-Dong Do (VND 0.731
billion in 2011 dividends) and Vinaconex 39 (1,753 billien). Currently. PETROCONs
is continuing to review cross-debis. resolve problems in backlog projects to develop
solutions to settle/collect debis,

b.  Some limitations and weaknesses:

In 2024, PETROCONSs did not complete the planned production and business
value and revenue, mainly due to:

- The 2024 plan targets were developed by PETROCONs and submitted to the
2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders based on the expected participation,
winning bids and starting construction of projects: Housing area for emplovees of
Song Hau 1 Thermal Power Plant project, Phu My Polypropylene Plant, Yen Hung
LPG Plant and the project of expanding some items of Ca Mau Fertilizer Plant,
However, due to many financial and legal problems of the Investor, up to now, some
projects have not been able to implement bidding and the bidding/eommencement has
been extended to 2025. In addition, due to the limited resources of finance, human
resources and equipment currently in the recovery phase, along with the highly
competitive market, some projects/bidding packages have not been awarded contracts
(Construction of the cooling water channel from the intake to the StopLog of the
cooling water pumping station - Quang Trach | Thermal Power Plant Project, Housing
area for employees of Song Hau 1 Thermal Power Plant, ete.).

- The settlement of contracts/bidding packages at the Song Hau 1 Thermal Power
Plant Project, the Southern Petroleum Institute has raised many issues related to the

adjustment of unit prices and the prolonged examination and appraisal.

Currently, PETROCONSs still has weaknesses and limitations that negatively
affect production and business activities such as:

.H
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- Difficulty in finding new sources of work: PETROCONSs's current capacity
profile has advantages for industrial works/power plants after completing the
construction of the Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant project as the EPC General
Contractor. however, for civil construction and installation works. infrastructure
construction and leveling are still limited (due to similar contracts completed about 10
years ago., so they cannol be used as a capacity profile); which has led 10
PETROCONS’ limited access to construction works. In addition, at the present stage,
industrial energy works/power plants are large projects, currently in the investment
preparation/restart stage and have a small number of projects, so competition from
domestic and intemational contractors is very fierce, Although in recent vears,
PETROCON: has seriously built and trained a basic technical team to meet the
requirements in the fields of mechanical component manufacturing, equipment
installation and maintenance. construction and installation: however. due to financial
and capital constraints. markeling projects/contracts with scope of work suitable for
the existing Capacity Profile is extremely difficult and has not achieved the expected
resulls,

-The scttlement of contracts between PETROCONs and the Investor as well as
between PETROCONs and subcontractors in completed projects’works is still slow,
facing many obstacles such as waiting for competent authorities to approve the arising
value, no cooperation of subcontractors, lack of personnel to coordinate the settlement,
elc.

- Due to the impact of political and economic fluctuations in the world, the
source of input materials such as iron, steel, energy, eic. has increased. many projects
have not signed the appendix to adjust the contract price, leading 1o the slow
implementation by units.

- Many member units of PETROCONS still have outstanding loans from real
estale projects, currently facing great difficulties in restructuring loans, divesting
assets, having to bear huge depreciation costs and interest expenses every month while
the exploitation efficiency is low, leading to large business losses. The parent company
PETROCONSs must make provisions to reduce the value of financial investments at the
units.

- Debt settlement and collection of due/overdue debts of PETROCONs and its

units still have many bad debts, especially cross-debts between units in projects. Most
PETROCONs' member units are currently facing difficulties in production and

business activities and finance, the assets of the units are either non-existent or have
been pledged/mortgaged, so the units cannot arrange resources to fulfill their debt
repavment obligations to PETROCONS.
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- Investment divestment at some units is still slow. During the performance
process, because most units in PETROCONs" divestment plan makes losses or haves
large accumulated losses, it is very difficult to find out partners that accept the transfer.

III. THE IMPLEMENTATION OF AUTHORIZATION TO SIGNING AND
IMPLEMENTING THE EPC CONTRACT FOR THAI BINH 2 THERMAL
POWER PLANT PROJECT

Implementing the contents authorized by the PETROCONs General Meeting of
Shareholders to the Board of Directors in signing and implementing the EPC Contract
for the Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant Project in the Resolution No. 543/NQ-
DHDCD-XLDK dated June 7. 2014, Resolution No. 1104NQ-DHDCD-XLDK dated
December 15. 2017 and the Resolutions of the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders from 2018 to 2022, the Board of Directors reports on the contents related
to the signing and implementation of the EPC Contract for the Thai Binh 2 Thermal
Power Plant Project as follows:

1. Signing of Contract and Contract Appendices:
a.  EPC contract No. 9256/HB-DKVN

In 2024, PETROCONSs signed a number of additional Appendices to the EPC
contract as follows:

- Un September 30, 2024, PETROCONS signed the Additional Appendices No. 54
with the Investor/Project Management Board on not continuing to implement the 12.8ha

slag disposal site and related items (dykes 5,6,7); HFO oil impon port; Ship anchorage
drcd.

- On October 30, 2024, PETROCONS signed the Additional Appendix No. 55 with
the Investor/Project Management Board on the Value of the remaining items in the Lump
Sum Price of the EPC General Contract for the Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant Project.

= On November 20, 2024, PETROCONSs signed the Additional Appendix No. 55

with the Investor/Project Management Board on determining the Time to calculate the
warranty period/duration.

The contents of the amendments to the EPC contract in the next phase will be

updated by the Board of Directors and reported at the nearest Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders.

b.  Contract No. 3WHDKT2012/PVC-SDC on the supply of main equipment for
Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant between PETROCONs and the SDC
Contractor Consortium (referred to as EPS Contract)

In 2024, PETROCONSs will not sign any additional contract appendixes with the

SDC Contractor Consortium. In the next phase, if there are any amendments to the EPS

Contract, the Board of Directors will promptly update and report at the nearest Annual
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General Meeting of Shareholders.

Developments in the contract dispute with the Daelim E&C Contractor (DL E&C)
under the SDC Consortium:

+ On January 25, 2024, the SDC Consortium sent the Official Letter No. TB2-SDC-
PEB-L-5433 o PETROCONs informing: DL E&C Contractor submitted a Petition for
Dispute (“RFA”) over the EPS Contract against PETROCONs to the Vietnam
International Arbitration Center (*“VIAC™).

+ On March 1, 2024, PETROCONSs received the Notice Letter No. 478/ VIAC
signed on February 26, 2024 from the Vietnam International Arbitration Center (“VIAC™)
about VIAC's receipt of the Request For Arbitration (“RFA”) from DL E&C.

= From May 31. 2024 to December 2. 2024, PETROCONs submitted the Statement
of Defence (50D), the Statement of Counterclaims (SOCC) of DL E&C contractor and
the accompanying evidence to the Arbitration Council. At the same time, DL E&C sent
responses to PETROCONs” SOD

+ On December 12, 2024, the Online Meeting on jurisdiction issues was conducted
n accordance with the instructions of the Arbitration Council (AC)

+ The AC issued the Document No. 338/VIAC announcing the issuance of the
Decision on jurisdiction issues dated January 30, 2025, Regarding the issue of arbitration
jurisdiction, PETROCONSs found the Decision of the Arbitration Council on jurisdiction
issues dated January 30, 2025 unsatisfactory. Therefore, on February 10, 2025,
PETROCONS filed a complaint with supporting documents to the Hanoi People’s Count
(the Court) regarding the Complaint against the Arbitration Council Decision on the
Jurisdiction of the Arbitration Council. On March 6, 2025, the Court issued a Notice of
acceptance of the case to the Hanoi People's Procuracy and to the parties. Currently,
PETROCONSs 1s supplementing the case’s supporting documents to the Court.

In parallel with the litigation process, PETROCON: is still working with the Daelim
Contractor to negotiate outside of litigation to move towards a negotiated settlement.
Currently, both parties are still considering the proposals made by each party.

IV. THE 2025 OPERATION PLAN OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Based on the assessment of existing resources and forecasted market demand, the
Board of Directors makes a 2025 production and business plan with the following key
economic indicators:

1. The 2025 Economic targets plan:

e ————————————eeeeeeeeeee—
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Unii: billion dong

2024 o
No liems Plan 2025 plan lmlsﬂg.:l“ !
. Plan ImE:;::ent completion ; implement
percentage ation
L ﬁnﬁﬂﬁ"‘f 153200 |  982.88 64% | 1.345.00 137%
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The 2025 production and revenue plan of the Consolidated Company and the
parent company PETROCONSs is built on the basis of completing construction and
recovering capital at transitional projects from 2024 (Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant
project, bidding packages at Song Hau | Thermal Power Plant project, Uong Bi
Thermal Power Plant, Vinh Tan 2 Thermal Power Plant, Quang Trach as well as
projects that have signed contracts and projects that PETROCONSs plans to market and
participate in bidding such as foundation treatment and leveling of Mui Tram station
and An Minh station - Lot B - O Mon pipeline, Housing area for employees of Thai
Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant, O Mon 4 Thermal Power Plant project, bidding packages
at Long Phu | Thermal Power Plant project, Hydrogen peroxide production plant
project, etc. However, the implementation of the above plan still has potential risks in
case of not winning the bid for the above projects.

2.  Key tasks and solutions:

To sirive to complete the set plan, PETROCONs has set out key tasks and
solutions to be implemented in 2023, specifically:

2.1. Production and business:
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- Strive to complete/over-fulfill key economic targets and tasks set out in the
2025 plan.

- Build models and deplov appropriate management methods such as: fluctuation
management, value chain management, ecosystem management, digital-based
management, etc.: Thoroughly implement the motto of “renewing old motivation,
adding new mofivation™ and be ready to transform the business model in line with the
trend of transformation and modern development.

- Organize and implement well the annual management plan of PETROCONs
and its umis. Focus on effectively controlling costs, especially large cost centers;
mimmize losses due 1o market impacts, ete.

- Focus on directing the implementation of construction contracts and transitional
projects o ensure complenion on schedule and quality according to the requirements of
the Contractor, at the same tme, exceed’achieve efficiency according to the
implementation plan approved by the PETROCONs Board of Directors.

- Closelv follow the production and business plans. investment plans of the
Group and its subsidiaries, promote the search for marketing information, bid for the
provision of industrial construction, electricity, and infrastructure services in projects
inside and outside the mdustry. At the same tUme, organize full preparation and
readiness of human resources, materials and implementation plans to increase the rate
of winning bids and the effectiveness of implementing bidding packages.

- Complete the settlement of contracts/projects that have been constructed such
as: EPC of Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant project, Song Hau 1 Thermal Power
Plant project, Vung Ang 1 Thermal Power Plant project, Nghi Son Refinery and
Quang Trach Power Center. At the same time, carry out settlement with subcontractors
in projects in the direction of negotiating costs to reduce payable debts, reduce capital
costs in works/projects.

- Control and use costs to ensure savings, associated with production and
business results and achieve the highest efficiency for the Corporation.

- Strengthen the direction, control and supervision of production and business
activities at member units, striving that by 2025, the Corporation will not have to set
aside financial investment provisions for capital contributions at units consolidating
financial statements.

2.2. Restructuring:

- Continue to implement the restructuring plan of PETROCONs under the
Resolution No. 332/NQ-XLDK-DHDCD dated October 11, 2022 by the PETROCONs
General Meeting of Shareholders on approving the restructuring plan of Petrovietnam
Construction Joint Stock Corporation for the 2021-2025 period and the direction of the
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PETROCONs Board of Directors in the Document No. 109/ HDQT-VBNB dated
October 8. 2024.

- Research, evaluate and have a restructuring plan on the model and organization
of operations for ineffective units/departments.

- Review, evaluate and rearrange the organizational structure and personnel to
ensure a streamlined structure and quality suitable to the work source and resources of
the Corporation. Focus on training. education and supplementing the workforce in
areas identified as key in the next phase such as Bidding Marketing, Project
Management and other supporting areas.

-Review and amend the svstem of intemal regulations and rules of
PETROCONs 1o ensure consistency and synchronization between/within  the
regulations and rules. while ensuring compliance with current regulations of the State
and the charter of PETROCONS,

2.3, Finance and resovurce wtilization:

- Based on the assessment on classification of debts for PVYN and PYN's member
units at the projects that PETROCONS has been and is implementing: urgently develop
a specific and detailed plan 1o effectively carry out debt collection, supplement
working eapital for production and business activities in the coming time.

- For debts at member units and other partners: review receivables and payables,
the value of unfinished volume at works/projects, make a detailed plan on debt
collection/handling in 2025 and be resolute in the work of acceptance, settlement, debt |
collection, handling/offsetting  cross-debts to ensure capital recovery for |
PETROCONSs’ production and business activities. -

- Make a plan and pay loans related to investment in Lam Kinh Hotel and Thai
Binh Hotel in 2025.

- Continue to arrange sources and urge units to arrange sources, supplement
collateral'repay for PVN's entrusted loans through Oceanbank. Direct the
representatives of PETROCONSs capital at units borrowing from banks guaranteed by
PETROCONs to work with credit institutions to resolve PETROCONs' loan
guarantees for units.

- Focus on consolidating and perfecting financial management and accounting
work throughout the Corporation to ensure compliance with the provisions of law, the
Group and the Corporation. Strengthen supervision of economic management,
business accounting, contract management and cost management to ensure maximum
profits from production and business activities
2.4, Investmeni:

- Proactively work and implement the requirements of competent authorities to
recover the investment value at Soai Rap, recover/handle the Tam Dao land.

m—.
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- Organize the implementation of management and research investment options
to maximize the efficiency of existing assets such as Chua Ha land, Central
Mechanical Workshop. Tam Dao land (in case of not being handled vet): ensure cash
flow for production and business activities, increasing the asset use efficiency of
PETROCONs.

- Review, analyze and evaluate the level of necessity, demand and ensure
efficiency in basic construction investment and equipment/asset procurement in 2023
of the parent company/member units, submit the results to the Board of Directors of
the Corporation for approval before implementation.

The above is the 2024 operation report of Board of Directors of PETROCONs
and the 2025 operation plan, The Board of Directors respectfully reports to the General
Mecting of Shareholders for consideration and approval.

Yours Sincerelv./.

Sent ro: FOR AND ON BEHALF OF
- As above; A DF DIRECTORS
- Board of Directors; Board of Supervisors; —CH

Board of Managemeni (e-copyk

- Kept at: Archives Department, Board of ;; i
Diirectors. | by L
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VIETNAM NATIONAL INDUSTRY - ENERGY GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION

Ha Noi, o day. B...month.... 2025

REPORT

ON THE OPERATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS BY THE
INDEPENDENT MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

To: 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

My name is Pham Van Khanh, born on February 3. 1960, qualification: Geology
Engineer. Master of Business Administration, Doctor of Economics.

I was elected by the 2020 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders of
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation (Corporation PETROCONs) on
June 24, 2020 as an Independent Member of the Board of Directors (BOD) for the
2020-2025 term.

As an Independent Member of the Board of Directors of PETROCONs. [ would
like to report the General Meeting of Shareholders on the evaluation results on the
activities of the Board of Directors of PETROCONs and the work I have done from
January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024, specifically:

1. Ewvaluation on activities of Board of Directors of PETROCONs

= The Board of Directors of PETROCONSs operates/works in accordance with: i)
The Charter of PETROCONs approved by the Annual General Mecting of
Shareholders; ii) PETROCONSs” internal regulations on governance approved by
the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders; iii) The operating regulations of
the Board of Directors approved by the Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders;
iv) PETROCON:S internal regulations and current legal regulations.

- Working principles of the Board of Directors: i) The Board of Directors operates
on the principle of collective, majority decision; ii) The members of the Board of
Directors are responsible for their assigned tasks and are responsible before the
General Meeting of Shareholders and the law for all Resolutions/Decisions of the
Board of Directors in the management activities of the Corporation; iii) The
Board of Directors assigns tasks to the members of the Board of Directors in
charge of professional fields and supervises the activities of PETROCONS,

R e —————=mad
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The Board of Directors approves the contents under its authority as prescribed in
the Corporation’s Charter, the Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders
and the Intermal Regulations/Regulations of PETROCONs, The General
Director’s statements/documents submitted to the Board of Directors for
approval are made by collecting the opinions of each Board Member in the
Opinion Form or exchanging/discussion at the Board of Directors meeting.

The Board of Directors meetings are held periodically according to the Internal
Regulations on Governance, the Board of Direclors organizes extraordinary
meetings subject to the nature of the work to be handled/approved. In addition.
the Board of Directors and the General Director have organized monthly
meetings with Departments/Divisions, member units. meetings 1o review the
implementation status at the Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant Project. the
restructuring work, debt collection, meetings with pariners/cooperators. In
addition, the Board of Directors assigns Board members to attend meetings with
the Board of Directors to supervise the implementation of the Board of Directors’
Resolutions and Decisions in production and business activities.

The Board of Directors does not establish any affiliated sub-committees,
currently, the Corporation has 01 person in charge of administration and the
Secretary of the Corporation.

The Board of Directors is supervised by the PETROCONs Board of Supervisors,
all Resolutions/Decisions/Documents of the Board of Directors are sent to the
Board of Supervisors.

By December 31. 2024, the Board of Directors of PETROCONs has 035
members, including 01 independent member of the Board of Directors, with the
full number and structure as prescribed in the Charter.

In 2024, the world economic and political situation continues 1o be complicated
and unprediciable; the global economy grows slowly. the financial, monetary and
real estate markets have many potential risks; exchange rates, interest rates,
gasoline prices and input materials have many negative fluctuations, causing
difficulties for the production and business activities of construction enterprises
in general and PETROCONS in particular. In addition, PETROCONs is also
affected by difficulties in arranging investment capital and site arrangements by
investors, leading to a limited source of new construction contracts in the market.
In addition to the objective difficulties of the economy, PETROCONSs still has
many internal problems such as: lack of capital, low competitiveness,
management limitations, leading to the unsatisfactory implementation of
PETROCONs' 2024 production and business plan.

Report on the work 1 have done in 2024
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- Working regime:

+ 1 work imegularly at PETROCONs headquarters or go on business trips
according to the assignment of tasks by the Board of Direclors.

+ 1 fully participate in Board of Directors meetings and fully submit opinions on
Opinion Forms.

- Remuneration: Up to now, PETROCONs has fully paid the remuneration of
Independent Members of the Board of Direciors in accordance with the annual
remuneration regime approved by the General Meeting of Sharcholders.

- In the past vear. [ have tried to perform my duties well. fully performing the role
and duties of an independent member of the Board of Direciors in accordance
with the Enterprise Law, the Charter of the Corporation. the Beard of Directors’
Operating Regulations and other relevamt legal provisions in managing the
production and business activities of PETROCONS,

- According to the assignment of tasks of the Board of Directors, in addition to
fully performing the general duties of a member of the Board of Directors, | am
also assigned to be directly responsible for the following areas:

+ Supervise and organize the management and operation of the Corporation based
on the penodic/ad hoc reports of the General Director submitted to the Board of
Directors;

+ Evaluation report on activities of the Board of Directors;

+ Monitor and supervise unit prices, norms and economics:

The above is the report of the Independent Member of the Board of Directors of
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation at the 2025 Annual General

Meeting of Sharcholders. I hereby respectfully report to the General Meeting!

Y ours Sincerely./.

Sl INDEPENDENT MEMBER OF
- As above;
- Board of Directors of PETROCONS (reporting). BOARD OF DIRECTORS

it~

[

Pham Van Khanh

P T ——— e ——— e e —— e e
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VIETNAM NATIONAL INDUSTRY - ENERGY GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
No.: 4 BC-XLDK Ha Noi, 82T .day..B..month.... 2025
REPORT

ON THE 2024 PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS RESULTS
AND THE 2025 PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS PLAN

To:  The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

PART 1
PERFORMANCE RESULTS OF THE CORPORATION'S TASKS IN 2024
I. GENERAL SITUATION

In 2024, the world economic and political sitwation continues to be complicated
and unpredictable; the global economy grows slowly, the financial, monetary and real
estate markets have many potential risks: exchange rates, interest rates, gasoline and
oil prices and input materials have many negative fluctuations, causing difficulties for
the production and business activities of construction enterprises in general and the

Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation (PETROCONs/Corporation) in
particular.

In addition, PETROCONS is also affected by difficulties in arranging investment
capital and site arrangements by investors, leading to a limited source of new
construction contracts in the market.

In addition to the objective difficulties of the economy, PETROCONSs still has
many internal problems such as: lack of capital, low competitiveness, management
limitations, etc. leading to the unsatisfactory implementation of some of
PETROCONs" 2024 production and business plan targets

II. PERFORMANCE RESULTS OF MAIN ECONOMIC TARGETS

Based on the 2024 production and business plan approved by the General
Meeting of Shareholders (GMS) in the Resolution No. TO/NQ-DHCD-XLDK dated
May 23, 2024 of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the entire

PETROCONs has strived to carry out production and business tasks with the following
results:
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The total production and business value of the entire PETROCONs is 982.88
billion dong, reaching 64% of the 2024 plan and equal to 108% compared to
2023, The parent company alone is 261.84 billion dong, reaching 30% of the
2024 plan and equal to 59% compared to 2023.

The total revenue of the entire PETROCONs is 1,317.87 billion dong, reaching
77% of the 2024 plan and equal to 106% compared to 2023; The parent company
alone is 609.04 billion dong, reaching 58% of the 2024 plan and equal to 80%
compared to 2023,

The total pre-tax profit of the entire PETROCONSs is 4.81 billion dong, reaching
130% of the 2024 plan; total after-tax profit of the entire PETROCONS is 2.61

billion dong. The parent company’s profit is 4.12 billion dong, equivalent to 43%
of the 2024 plan.
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- The owner's equity of the parent company PETROCONs as of December 31,
2024 is 311.53 billion dong, an increase of 1.34% compared to the beginning of
the vear.

- The accumulated loss of the paremt company as of December 31, 2024 is
3,765.93 billion dong.

M. PERFORMANCE RESULTS OF OTHER TASKS

1. Construction work of key works/projects
The construction status of some works/projects of PETROCONS 15 as follows:
#  Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plam Project:

PETROCONs continues to implement the remaining sub-items, handling the
arising backlog. In 2024, the State Inspection Council for Consiruction Acceplance
(State Inspection Council) approved the conditional acceptance of the Units in
Notice No. 3895/ TB-HDKTNN dated July 8. 2024, On July 10. 2024, the Invesior
issued the Handover Certificate for Unit 1, Unit 2 and shared items (except for Coal
Loader No. 5, Coal Warehouse No. 3 and the remaining works in process). On July
19, 2024, the Electric Power Trading Company (EPTC) recognized the commercial
operation date of the Plant starting from 2:00 a.m. on July 19, 2024, By early August
2024, the project officially participated in the National Electricity Market.

Regarding the project settlement. PETROCON: has coordinated with the Thai
Binh 2 Petroleum Power Project Management Board to sign the minutes to determine
the settlement value of some items. However, the project settlement progress is still
slow due to some problems related to the determination of price adjustment plan,
supplementing new norms/unit prices, contract rewards and penalties, supplementing
some cost items, ete. PETROCONs is continuing to request the Investor/Project
Management Board to support in settlement.

PETROCONs has negotiated debt reduction of over 38 billion dong with
contractors such as Sojit, Quingiao, Sotec and some other customers,

Regarding the dispute between the SDC/DL E&C consortium and PETROCONs
regarding EPS Contract No. 30HDKT/2012PVC-SDC dated May 22, 2012:
PETROCONMs has established a Dispute Resolution Group and hired a legal
consultancy unit to support the implementation/follow-up of the lawsuit. In addition,
PETROCONs continues to negotiate outside of litigation to move towards a negotiated
seltlement.

#  Song Hau 1 Thermal Power Plant Project:

-  Contract C11/SHI-LLM-PVC&GEOVN on foundation treatment: The contract
setilement is still pending because Lilama must complete the EPC contract
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settlement with the Investor before settling the corresponding settlement with
PETROCONS.

- Contract C15/SH1-LLM-PVC on the construction of construction items:
Currently, the project has been completed. General Contractor Lilama has
terminated the Contract Performance Guarantee of the EPC Contract and moved
on to the warranty work with the Investor. Regarding the approval of the official
unit price as the basis for settlement, PETROCONs has coordinated with General
Contractor Lilama to protect the cost estimate with the consulting unit PECC 1
however, according to the Estimate Appraisal Report that PECC | sent to the
Investor. the coniractor’s explanations have not been updated. Currently.
PETROCONSs is continuing to request the Project Management Board/'General
Contractor to consider resolving the problems. at the same time, coordinate with
General Contractor Lilama to prepare payment/settlement documents.

- Construction and repair works at Song Hau 1 Thermal Power Plant: In 2024.
PETROCONs won the bid and signed 02 contracts to renovate and repair a
number of items at Song Hau 1 Thermal Power Plant. Currently, construction
work is being carried out on the set schedule.

#  Southern Petroleum Institute Office Project:

- Phase I: In 2024, PETROCONSs coordinated with the construction contractor
PVC-IC to carry out warranty repairs of existing problems according to the
meeting minutes with the investor on September 9, 2024, On December 4, 2024,
the parties agreed on the contents of the Minutes of Acceptance of Repair and
Warranty Work. The Investor has signed the settlement documents and reported
to the Group, currently waiting for the Group to approve the settlement
documents for phase 1.

- Phase 2. In 2024, at the Vietnam International Arbitration Center (VIAC), the
parties agreed to mediate all disputes over the number of delayed days for each
item and agrecd on the penalty for delay in phase 2. On November 18, 2024, the
Investor met with the Supervision Consultant and the construction unit to review
and agree on handling the problems regarding the settiement documents.
PETROCONSs completed the signing of Supplemental Appendix No. 19 with the
Petroleum Institute on October 24, 2024 and submitted the Settlement Document
to the Project Management Consultant for review and confirmation for approval
by the Investor,

#  Project of upgrading DCS system of unit §7 - Uong Bi Thermal Power Plant: By
December 9, 2024, PETROCONSs has completed 100% of the construction volume
under the signed contract. Currently, PETROCONS is coordinating with the general
contractor to complete the construction steps to determine the payment volume.

Documents of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders- PETROCONs

il



#  Project of supplying and installing inverters for smoke fans of unit 52 of Vinh
Tan 2 Thermal Power Plant: The work within the scope of PETROCONs has been
basically completed. Currently, PETROCONs has actively coordinated with the parties
to complete the quality documents for acceptance with the Investor to fulfill the
obligations in the contract.

#  Construction project of slag disposal site, water collection tower, return water
pipeline of Quang Trach | Thermal Power Plant: PETROCONs" work progress is until
August 2025, currently being implemented under the plan.

2.  Restructuring

According to the restructuring plan for the 2021-2025 peried approved by the
General Meeting of Shareholders, in 2024, PETROCONs has deploved the following
specilic tasks:

- The Board of Directors of PETROCONs has issued the PETROCONs" Action

Program on implementing the restructuring contents of PETROCONs until the end

of 2025 in the Document No. 13/ XLDK-HDOQT dated February 1, 2024,

- Reviewing the entire current situation and actual restructuring of the parent
company and polential member units; thereby, proposing solutions to organize
production and business activities so that by the end of 2025, the difficulties and
problems of the parent company and member units will be maximally resolved,
gradually restoring production and business activities.

- Organizing implementation, assigning tasks in the Board of Management,
departments and directing PETROCONs" Capital Representatives at units to
implement restructuring solutions for the parent company and member units
approved by the Board of Directors.

- Implementing procedures to post information about the divestment plan on media
{electronic newspapers/papers, eic.) to promote and atiract interested investors to
accelerate the divestment plan at units.

- Strengthening production and business activities for core units by assigning tasks
to the Corporation’s Capital Representatives at PVC-MS and DOBC 1o
implement the restructuring plan for the 2023-2025 period based on the
assessment of the current situation and the developed restructuring plan to ensure
the goals of being a core unit of PETROCONs. The roadmap for the 2024-2025
period is to have positive profits, reduce accumulated losses and 1mprove
financial capacity to increase marketing opportunities for bidding for new
projects. In 2024, PVC-MS will eam a profit of 10.67 billion dong, DOBC will
eamm a profit of 1.22 billion dong.

- Supporting PYC-Duyen Hai to carry out procedures to apply for a certificate of
land use rights and assets on the land plot No. 441, Da Nang Street, Dong Hai 1
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Ward, Hai An District, Hai Phong City at the request of Hai Phong City
Department of Natural Resources and Environment to provide records and
documents under the Decision No. 2105/QD-BCT on determining the enterprise
value and approving the settlement of the equitization of PTSC Corporation, in
which the list of assets that have been included in the emerprise value upon
equitization is declared. Currently, the Department of Natural Resources and
Environment is in the review and appraisal process.

3.  Economic, financial, accounting and auditing contract

3.1. Marketing, bidding and signing of economic confracts:
<  Project/contract signing:

The parent company PETROCONs has won the bid and signed 03 new contracts
with a total value of about 32 billion dong: Procurement of equipment and installation
of frequency converters to control smoke fans of unit 52 with a value of 3.6 billion
dong; Construction of slag disposal site, water collection tower, return water pipeline -
Quang Trach | Thermal Power Plant Project with a value of 31.795 billion dong;
Renovation of the operation building of Song Hau | Thermal Power Plant Project with
a value of 2.693 billion dong: Renovation and repair of equipment washing and slag
disposal area of Song Hau | Thermal Power Plant with a value of 658 million dong
and Supply of Level 1A Pump for Cao Ngan Thermal Power Plant with a value of
11.33 billion dong. Currently, in addition to the contract at Cao Ngan Thermal Power
Plant with a construction period of 2025, other bid packages have been implemented
on schedule.

At member units, 45 contracts/contract appendices were signed with a total value
of approximately 1,200 billion dong, adding work sources including: PVC-MS signed
18 new contracts with a total value of 861.4 billion dong (including 3 major projects:
Topside Phu Quoc with a value of 4835 billion dong, Lac Da Vang base fabrication
with a value of 143.5 billion dong, P15 project with a value of 138 billion dong);
DOBC signed 15 new contracts/contract appendices with a total value of 80.7 billion
dong; PVC-Binh Son signed 6 new contracts with a total value of 27.30 billion dong;
PVC-TB signed 01 new contract with a value of 121.73 billion dong; PETROCONS-
Dong Do signed 03 new contracts with a total value of approximately 7.3 billion
dong; PVC-Duyen Hai signed 02 new contracts with a total value of about 17.82
billion dong.
< Bidding marketing:

In 2024, due 1o many investors’ difficulty in arranging capital and problems with
legal and administrative procedures, the project implementation progress has been
stopped/delayed. In addition, PETROCONSs' capacity is still limited. Therefore, in
spite of being very active in marketing and bidding in 2024, the set targets have not
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been achieved, leading to lower output and revenue compared to the plan.
PETROCONES is continuing to coordinate with partners/joint ventures to participate in
bidding/preparing for bidding packages at the projects: Joint venture with Telico
Company 1o bid for filling and ground treatment packages at the Lot B - O Mon Gas
Pipeline Project; Joint venture with TITAN Electromechanical Joint Stock Company
to bid for the C&I Replacement Materials Procurement Package (DCS Svystem) for
Song Hau 1 Thermal Power Plant (The winning bid letter has been received
Curremtly, the contractor consortium is negotiating contracts and preparing resources
for construcrion); Joint venture with Duc Anh Company to bid for the package of
Supplving gnnding ball, lining plate and grinding tank tightening parts for electricity
production of Pha Lai Thermal Power Joint Stock Company: Bidding for Supplving
goods and services for repairing high pressure heater No. 3 - Duven Hai 3 expanded
Thermal Power Plant. ete.

PETROCONSs continues to prepare and complete bidding documents and plans to
be ready and timely participate in bidding when there is official information for the
projects of Long Phu 1 Thermal Power Plant, O Mon 4 Thermal Power Plant, Nam
Dinh Waste-to-Energy Plant, Supply of fumace water circulation pumps (including
metors and pumps) - Quang Ninh Thermal Power Joint Stock Company, etc.

In addition, PETROCONSs regularly follows up and works with domestic and
foreign partners to implement projects that are preparing for bidding, at the same time,
seeks and selects potential partners who can cooperate for future projects.

3.1. Finance, accounting and auditing:

- Complete the approval of the 2023 management cost settlement of the
Corporation and the Boards of Directors of the Parent Company; the
management cost basically follows the approved estimate. Approve the 2024
management cost plan of the Parent Company of the Corporation.

-  Balance cash flow, arrange capital for projects and regular expenses. Balance
resources, carry out procedures for extending/issuing guaraniees at credit
mstitutions for Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant project and PETROCONs
projects to be constructed in 2024,

- The outstanding principal as of December 31, 2024 is 575.6 billion dong, of
which PETROCONs must collect from the following units: 344.6 billion dong
(including: Lam Kinh Hotel: 200 billion dong; PVC-5G: 128.3 billion dong;
PVNC: 16.3 billion dong); the amount PETROCONs uses: 230.99 billion dong.
As of December 31, 2024, the interest PETROCONs still has to pay PVN is:
172.78 ballion dong, of which: Unpaid interest in due time: 90.08 billion dong;
Penalty for late payment of interest and principal: 82.70 billion dong. Currently,
PETROCONSs is continuing to propose PVN to submit to competent authorities
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4.2

for consideration and approval to waive and reduce these due/overdue interest
CXPETSES,

By the end of 2024, PETROCONSs still has guarantees for member units to
borrow capital of 155.04 billion dong (of which, PVC-HN: 73.67 billion dong;
PVC-ME: 64.27 billion dong; PVC-5G: 17.10 hillion dong). These guarantees
are all overdue, PETROCONS has set aside provisions for pavable obligations up
to the present time: 137.94 billion dong. In 2024, there will be no arising issues
related to the units regarding guarantees, setting aside provisions for guarantees.

Total receivables of PETROCONSs parent Company as of December 31, 2024 is
2.534.05 hlhon dong. accumulated provisions of 87824 hillion dong. The
provision as of the end of 2024 decreased by 47.64 billion dong compared to the
beginning of the vear due to the review and handling of cross-debt with units.

Investment

. Financial investment

In 2024, PETROCONs will not make anv capital investmenis outside the
enterprise. As of December 31, 2024, PETROCONs" paremt company has
contributed capital in 25 units with an investment value of 2,326.55 billion dong.
Of which, 1.38491 billion dong in 07 subsidiaries, 735.45 billion dong in
associated units (11 units) and 206.20 billion dong in other financial investments
(07 units).

Accumulated provision for devaluation of financial investments as of December
31, 2024 is 1,810.13 billion dong. equivalent to 77.8% of the total value of
PETROCONs® financial investments. The total provision for devaluation of
financial investments in 2024 is 12.76 billion dong.

Real estate invesiment, basic construction, infrastructure and procurement of
machinery and equipment

In 2024, the parent company PETROCONs and its subsidiaries will not carry out
basic construction investment and procurement of machinery and equipment.

Divestment/capital recovery/asset management, projects of the parent
company:

Transfer of Soai Rap - Tien Giang project: On July 31, 2024, PETROCONS issued
the Document No. 1167/XLDK-KHPT&TCC reporting to the Prime
Minister/Deputy Prime Minister Le Minh Khai'Tien Giang Province People's
Committee to propose instructions on payment of costs to Soai Rap Petroleum
Service Industrial Park project, Tien Giang. In which it is recommended: (i)
Consider, guide and pay the costs in the Soai Rap Petroleum Service Industrial
Park project to PVN and PETROCONS; (ii) In case there is no plan to pay the
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invested costs to PVN/PETROCONs, we respectfully request the Prime Minister
to hand over the Soai Rap Petroleum Service Industrial Park project, Tien Giang to
PVNPETROCONS as the mvestor so that the parties can continue to invest with
their own resources and seek partners with sufficient capacity and experience to
cooperate and continue to invest in completing the project; thereby promoting the
efficiency of land use. creating revenue for the local budget and enterprises. On
August 7, 2024, the Government Office issued the Document No. 1974/PC-VPCP
o the Ministry of Planning and Investment and Tien Giang province People’s
Committee to request them to resolve PETROCONs" petition according to
régulations.

At the request of the Department of Finance of Tien Giang province in the Official
Letter No. 27395TC-TCDT-DN dated September 13, 2024 and Official Letter
No, 3043/ STC-TCDTDN by the Department of Finance dated October 7. 2024, the
Corporation has sent the Official Letter No. 1533/ XLDK-KHDT&TCC dated
Octaber 16, 2024 1o Tien Giang provinee Department of Finance to provide all
documents related to the investment costs of PETROCONs. The Group has also
provided documents about the costs implemented by the Group at the Soai Rap
Petroleum Service Industrial Park project for Tien Giang province Department of
Finance.

On February 19, 2025, PETROCONs representatives attended the meeting
according to Invitation Letter No. 725/GM-STNMT by Tien Giang province
Department of Natural Resources and Environment. Accordingly, at the meeting,
the departments and branches of Tien Giang province proposed 1o refund the costs
that PYIN had invested in the project. PETROCONs will also receive back the
costs invested in the project after deducting the penalty for late pavment of the
contract between DOBC and PETROCONSs (according to the conclusion of the
State Audit) and the depreciation of infrastructure (temporary roads, temporary
power lines, welcome gates) from 2014 to 2018.

On March 27, 2025, Tien Giang province People’s Committee sent a notice of the
value of assets invested on land at the Soai Rap Petroleum Service Industrial Park
Project to the Group and the Corporation, accordingly PETROCONs was refunded
126,434 billion dong. Currently, the Corporation is reviewing and submitting the
refunded investment value to the Board of Directors for consideration and
approval.,

= Central Mechanical Workshop Projecr: Currently, PETROCON: is coordinating
with PVC-MT 1o promote the search for suitable customers to cooperate in the
exploitation of the Mechanical Workshop site.

- Land plot at Chua Ha: The land plot at No. 01, Lane 86, Chua Ha Street, Dich
Vong ward, Cau Giay district, Hanoi city has a land lease term of 20 years from
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January 1, 1996 to January 1, 2016 and the land lease contract has now expired.
The Corporation 15 carryving out procedures to extend the land lease contract
(including: measuring and drawing the current status map. requesting red line
boundaries, requesting planning information, reviewing the current status of land
use, ete. ).

- Regarding the 3,400m" land plot in Tam Dao town, Vinh Phue province, which
Mai Phuong Company returned ta PETROCONs under the Decision of Hanoi
city Civil Judgment Enforcement Department: On September 27, 2024,
PETROCONs received the on-site handover of the land plot under the witness of
the competent authorities. On November 19, 2024, PETROCONSs received the
Land Use Rights Certificate from the High People’s Court in Hanoi for the land
plot in Tam Dao. On December 5, 2024, PETROCONs worked with Vinh Phue
Province Land Registration Office on the registration of transferring the
ownership of 3.400m2 land at plot No. 6. map No. 20 in Village 1. Tam Dao
town, Tam Dao district, Vinh Phue province to PETROCONS.

On March 25, 2025, PETROCONSs sent the Document No. 320/XLDK-PC to the
Vinh Phue Province Land Registration Office, Vinh Phuc Province Department
of Agriculture and Environment and the Vinh Phuc Province People's
Committee regarding the completion of procedures for registration of changes in
the owner of the above land plot. Vinh Phue Province Depanment of Agriculture
and Environment has given specific instructions and PETROCONs is currently
preparing the documents,

6. Other tasks

- In 2024, PETROCONs actively coordinated with law consulting units to carry
out legal work to ensure the legitimate rights and interests of PETROCONs in
lawsuits and judgment enforcement related to PETROCONs such as: disputes
between PETROCONSs and SDC, debt collection of PVR, disputes with Lisemco,
judgment enforcement in the lawsuit of domestic transportation clearance
contract dispute with Thanh Trang-Tagi joint venture, etc. Conclusion in the
judgments: PVR must pay PETROCONSs 49 billion dong, Lisemco must return
assets to PETROCONs or equivalent to 40 billion dong in cash, Thanh Trang-
Tagi must pay 23 billion dong. Currently, PETROCONS is continuing to work
with the authorities to request the settlement of judgment enforcement and appeal
of the PVR lawsuit because PVR has filed an appeal.

-  The 2024 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders of PETROCONs was
successfully held. Documents were reviewed; member units were supported to
hold annual/extraordinary general meetings of sharcholders in 2024,

- Completed the official assessment of the level of fulfillment of duties and
responsibilities of PETROCONs Representatives at other enterprises in 2023;

-_———_—_— e _ _——0—0n
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Completed the Capital Representatives at member units, ensuring compliance
with the production and business situation of the units.

= At the parent company, the Corporation has carried out the work of staffing and
arranging the use of labors at the Corporation”s Office in 2024 and evaluated the
performance of emplovees at the Corporation’s Departments/Offices. In 2024,
the parent company reduced 21 people compared to December 31, 2023,

- As of December 31, 2024, the total number of emplovees of the Corporation
(including the parent company and 07 controlling companies): 1,279 people. The
estimated average income in 2024 of the entire group is 11.42 million
dong/person/month. equal to 105% of the plan (mainly increasing the average
im¢ome at some units with profitable business results such as PYVC-MS, DOBC).
In particular, the estimated average income of the parent company is 13.25
million dong/person'month (corresponding 1o the salary under the labor contract)
equal to 100% of the plan and equal 1o the average income in 2023.

- In human resource tramning and development, in 2024, the entire Corporation
group will implement 3.42 billion dong, reaching 95% of the plan for 2024 with
1.613 wrained people. At the parent company PETROCONs, 875 million dong
was spent on 18] trainees, including training courses funded by PETROCONs,
training courses funded by the Vietnam National Industryv-Energy Group and
staff assigned to attend training courses organized by the Group.

IV. CAUSES AND WEAKNESSES, LIMITATIONS

In 2024, PETROCONSs did not complete the planned production and business
value and revenue, mainly due to:

- The 2024 plan targets were developed by PETROCONs and submitted to the
2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders based on the expected
participation, winning bids and starting construction of projects: Housing area for
employees of Song Hau 1 Thermal Power Plant project, Phu My Polypropylene
Plant, Yen Hung LPG Plant and the project of expanding some items of Ca Mau
Fertilizer Plant. However, due to many financial and legal problems of the
Investor, up to now, some projects have not been able to be implemented for
bidding and the bidding/commencement deadline has been extended to 2025. In
addition, PETROCONs" bidding marketing apparatus is still weak: limited
financial capacity, almost no machinery and equipment capacity, low
competitiveness leading to failure in bidding some projects’bid packages
(Construction of the cooling water channel from the receiving gaie to the
StopLog of the cooling water pumping station - Quang Trach 1 Thermal Power
Plant Project, Housing area for employees of Song Hau 1 Thermal Power Plant,
etc.). Therefore, all plans for output value, revenue and profit of PETROCONs
from the above projects cannot be implemented in 2024,
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The settlement of bidding packages C11, C135 of the Song Hau 1 Thermal Power
Plant project is still slow, due to the prolonged time in the work of unifying the
adjustment of unit prices and reviewing the estimates; At the same time, the
general contractor Lilama must complete the EPC contract settlement wath the
Investor before making the corresponding settlement with PETROCONS,

Currently, PETROCONSs still has weaknesses and limitations that negatively

affect production and business activities such as:

The financial situation of PETROCONS and its member units is very limited, the
capacity profile/financial report does not meet the requirements of most of the
bidding packages that PETROCONs and its member units wish to participate in.
leading to difficulties in marketing and bidding to find new sources of work;

The technical workforce 1s still weak and lacking. For a long time, PETROCONs
has not participated in marketing and bidding but has mainly been assigned to
bid. so its marketing and bidding capacity is poor, especially the bid price is not
updated and lacks competitiveness

The settlement of contracts between PETROCONs and the Investor as well as
between PETROCONs and subcontractors in completed projects/works is still
slow, facing many obstacles such as waiting for competent authorities to approve
the arising value, no cooperation of subcontractors, lack of personnel to
coordinate the settlement, eic.

Due to the impact of political and economic fluctuations in the world, the source
of input materials such as iron, steel, energy, etc. has increased, many projects

have not signed the appendix to adjust the contract price, leading to the slow
implementation by units.

Many member units of PETROCONS still have outstanding loans from real estate
projects, currently facing great difficulties in restructuring loans, divesting assets,
having to bear huge depreciation costs and interest expenses every month while
the exploitation efficiency is low, leading to large business losses. The parent
company PETROCONs must make provisions to reduce the value of financial
investments at the units.

Debt settlement and collection of due/overdue debts of PETROCONs and its
units still have many bad debis, especially cross-debis between units in projecis.
Most PETROCONs' member units are currently facing difficulties in production
and business activities and finance, the assets of the units are either non-existent
or have been pledged/mortigaged, so the units cannot arrange resources to fulfill
their debt repayment obligations to PETROCONs.

Investment divestment at some units is still slow. During the performance
process, because most units in PETROCONs" divestment plan makes losses or
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haves large accumulated losses, it is very difficult to find out pariners that accept
the transfer.

PARTII
THE 2025 PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS PLAN

In 2025, PETROCONs continues lo face many challenges in carrying oul
production and business tasks, difficulties in finding sources of work as well as
continue -to- emerge potential risks. PETROCONSs has developed a 2025 plan and
largels to present to the General Meeting of Sharcholders, specifically:

1. 2025 PLAN AND KEY TASKS
1. Main economic indicators

Unir: billion dong

=y

Yo
i ) 2025 plan /
Nk, ltems Implement Flan | 2025 plan 2024
Plan itlon completion implement
. percentage | ation |
1| oucion s | ys3200| 98288  64%| 134500 137%
Parent company &84.00 261.84 | 3| 33200 127%
2 | Totalrevenves | 1,704.00 | 1,317.87 | 7% | 1,707.00 130%
Parent company 1.035.00 | 609.04 | 58% 796.00 131%
3 | Pre-tax profits 3.70 4.81 130% 4.56 95%
Parem company & 48 412 43% 372 LUV
4 | After-tax profits 3.70 2.61 T1% 4.56 175%
| Pavent company 048 412 43% 3.72 20%
Bi=risa 4700  49.14 105% | 5800 118%
Parent company 14.00 381 27% g.00 236%
Average income
6 | fngtanuicar| 1M 11.42 105%| 1190 104%
| k)
| Parent company [ 13.25 13.25 10025 14.10 106%

The 2025 production and revenue plan of the Consolidated Company and the
parent company PETROCONs is made on the basis of completing construction and
recovering capital at transitional projects from 2024 (Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant
project, bidding packages at Song Hau 1 Thermal Power Plant project, Uong Bi Thermal
Power Plant, Vinh Tan 2 Thermal Power Plant, Quang Trach as well as projects that
have signed contracts and projects that PETROCONS plans to market and participate in
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bidding such as foundation treatment and leveling of Mui Tram station and An Minh
station - Lot B - O Mon pipeline, Housing area for emplovees of Thai Binh 2 Thermal
Power Plant, O Mon 4 Thermal Power Plant project, bidding packages at Long Phu 1
Thermal Power Plant project, Hydrogen peroxide production plant project. ete.
However, the implementation of the above plan still has potential risks in case of failure
1o become a successful contractor of the above projects.

2. Key tasks and solutions

To strive to complete the set plan, PETROCONs has set out key tasks and
solutions in 2023, specifically:

2.1. Production and business:

- Strive to complete/over-fulfill key economic targets and tasks set out in the 2025
plan.

- Build models and deploy appropriate management methods such as: fluctuation
management, value chain management, ecosvstem management, digital-based
management, et¢.; Thoroughly implement the motto of “renewing old motivation.

adding new motivation” and be ready to transform the business model in line with the
trend of transformation and modemn development.

- Focus on effectively controlling costs, especially large cost centers; minimize
losses due to market impacts, ete.

- Focus on directing the implementation of construction contracts and transitional
projects to ensure completion on schedule and quality according to the requirements of
the Contracior, at the same time. exceed/achieve efficiency according to the
implementation plan approved by the PETROCONs Board of Directors.

- Closely follow the production and business plans, investment plans of the Group
and its subsidiaries, promote the search for marketing information, bid for the
provision of industrial construction, electricity, and infrastructure services in projects
inside and outside the industry. At the same time, organize full preparation and
readiness of human resources, materials and implementation plans to increase the rate
of winning bids and the effectiveness of implementing bidding packages.

- Complete the settlement of contracts/projects that have been constructed such as:
EPC of Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant project, Song Hau | Thermal Power Plant
project, Vung Ang 1 Thermal Power Plant project, Nghi Son Refinery and Quang
Trach Power Center. At the same time, carry out settlement with subcontractors in

projects in the direction of negotiating costs to reduce payable debts, reduce capital
costs in works/projects.
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- Control and use costs to ensure savings, associated with production and business
results and achieve the highest efficiency for the Corporation.

- Strengthen the direction, control and supervision of production and business
activities at member units, striving that by 20235, the Corporation will not have to set
aside financial investment provisions for capital contributions at units conselidating
financial statements.

2.1, Restructuring:

- Continue to implement the restructuring plan of PETROCONs under the
Restructuring Plan of Petroviemam Construction Joimt Stock Corporation for the 2021-
2025 period approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders and directed by the
Board of Directors of the Corporation in the Document No. 109'HBQT-VBNB dated
October 8, 2024,

- Research, evaluate and have a restructuring plan on the model and organization
of operations for ineffective units/departments.

- Review, cvaluate and rearrange the organizational structure and personnel to
ensure a streamlined structure and quality suitable to the work source and resources of
the Corporation. Focus on training. education and supplementing the workforce in
arcas identified as kev in the next phase such as Bidding Marketing, Project
Management and other supporting areas,

- Review and amend the svstem of internal regulations and rules of PETROCONs
to ensure consistency and synchronization between/within the regulations and rules,
while ensuring compliance with current regulations of the State and the charter of
PETROCONSs.

2.3. Finance and resource utilization:

- Based on the assessment on classification of detws for PVN and PVN's member
units at the projects that PETROCONs has been and is implementing: urgently develop
a specific and detailed plan to effectively carry out debt collection, supplement
working capital for production and business activities in the coming time.

- For debts at member units and other partners: review receivables and payables,
the value of unfinished volume at works'projects, make a detailed plan on debt
collectionhandling in 2025 and be resolute in the work of acceptance, settlement, debt
collection, handling/offsetting cross-debts to ensure capital recovery for
PETROCONs" production and business activities.

-  Support member units of PYC-TB and Lam Kinh Hotel JSC to make plans and
complete the settlement of loans related to investment in Thai Binh Hotel and Lam
Kinh Hotel in 20235,
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- Continue to arrange sources and urge units to arrange sources, supplement
collateral/'repay for PVN's entrusted loans through Oceanbank. Direct the
representatives of PETROCONs' capital at units borrowing from banks goaranteed by
PETROCONs to work with credit institutions to resolve PETROCONs loan
guarantees for units.

- Focus on consolidating and perfecting financial management and accounting work
throughout the Corporation 1o ensure compliance with the provisions of law, the
Group and the Corporation. Strengthen supervision of eéconomic management,
business accounting. contract management and cost management to ensure maximum
profits from production and business activities.

2.4. Investment:

- Proactively work and implement the requirements of competent authorities to
recover the investment value at Soai Rap, recover/handle the Tam Dao land.

- Organize the implementation of management and research investment options to
maximize the efficiency of existing assets such as Chua Ha land, Central Mechanical
Workshop. Tam Dao land (in case of not being handled vet): ensure cash flow for
production and business activities, increasing the asset use efficiency of PETROCONS,

- Review, analyze and evaluate the level of necessity, demand and ensure
efficiency in basic construction investment and equipment/asset procurement in 2025
of the parent company/member units, submit the results to the Board of Directors of
the Corporation for approval before implementation.

The above is the 2024 income statement and the 2025 plan of Petrovietnam
Construction Joint Stock Corporation. 1 respectfully report to the General Meeting of
Shareholders for consideration and approval.

Yours Sincerely./.

Sent to: GENERAL DIRECTOR
= A5 above;

- Board of Directors of the Corporation;

- Board of Supervisors of the Corporation:

- Board of Management of the Corporation;

= Departments and Divisions of the Corporation;
- Kept at: Archives Depantment, Department 3{‘

Investment Plan & Restructuring, Tran Quoc Hoan

Documents of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders- PETROCONs

45



VIETNAM NATIONAL INDUSTRY - ENERGY GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
No.: XLDE-BES Ha Noi, .......day....... month.... 2025

THE 2024 OPERATION REPORT OF
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AND THE 2025 OPERATION PLAN

To: The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

- Pursuant 1o the Enterprise Law No, 392020/QH14 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020;

- Pursuant 10 the Organization and Operation Charter of Petrovietnam
Construction Joint Stock Corporation (the Corporation PETROCONs);

- Pursuant 1o the Operating Regulations of the Board of Supervisors of the
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation which was passed by the General
Meeting of Shareholders.

The Board of Supervisors of Petrovictnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
(PETROCONSs/Corporation) would like to report the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders (AGM) on inspection work, reporting and monitoring of preduction and
business activities of the PETROCONs Board of Supervisors in 2024 and the 2025
operation plan as follows:

I. MONITORING RESULTS OF PETROCONS' PERFORMANCE AND
FINANCIAL SITUATION

1. Production and business results in 2024,

Based on the production and business plan approved by the 2024 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders, PETROCONs has proactively developed and implemented
solutions to overcome difficulties. However, in 2024, PETROCONSs did not complete
the assigned plan.

Unit: billion dong

' 2024
| Impleme ::::] 2024/
No. | Items Unit niation Approve | Impleme | etion 12:3
2023 d plaai wistion | %) | (%)
i
Production and Billion 0
1 hisdrs vl , 91238 | 1.532.00 082.88 64% | 108%

e —————— e —
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2024 Plan

Impleme compl 2024/

No, Items Unit niation Approve | Impleme | etion 2023

2023 d plan ntation | (%) (%)

I
Pareni company BJ:F:;" +41.36 884,00 261.84 J0% | 59%
i —

2 | Total revenues H{;f:;" 123796 | 170400 | 131787| 7% | 106%

Pareni company Hjﬁ':'cm 765.74 | 103300 G09.04 58% B4
e | g
3 | Pre-tax profits H{fq‘?:;” | (26712) | 30| 481 130%
Parent company H:.Hm” f162.63) , W48 I 4.12 ! 43%
dong .

4 | After-tax profits B{;f:r‘: (265.22) 3.70 | 261 | 71% |
Parent company Ejf:;” (162.65) 948 2| 3% |
5 | State budget payable E;fj’;" 105!  ar00| 4914 105%| 120% |
Billion | | |
Parent company e I 10.67 14.00 .81 2754 36%
6 | Average income Million | 1p.s8 10.84 11.42| 105% | 108%
Parent company g | dEa 13.25 13.25| 100% | 100%

In 2024, the Corporation did not complete the production and business targets
compared to the plan on output and revenue,

The total production and business value of the entire PETROCONSs is 982.88
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billion dong, reaching 64% of the 2024 plan and equal to 108% compared to 2023;
The parent company alone is 261.84 billion dong, reaching 30% of the 2024 plan and
equal to 39% compared to 2023,

The total revenue of the entire PETROCONS is 1,317.87 billion dong, reaching
77% of the 2024 plan and equal to 106% compared to 2023; The parent company

alone is 609.04 billion dong, reaching 58% of the 2024 plan and equal to 80%
compared to 2023.

The total pre-tax profit of the entire PETROCONS is 4.81 billion dong, reaching
130% of the 2024 plan; total afier-tax profit of the entire PETROCONS is 2.61 billion

dong. The parent company”s profit is 4.12 billion dong, equivalent to 43% of the 2024
plan.

The owner's equity of the parent company PETROCONs as of December 31, 2024
is 311.53 billion dong, an increase of 1.34% compared to the beginning of the year.
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The accumulated loss of the parent company as of December 31, 2024 is
3,765.93 billion dong.

- Among the 7 units that control the consolidated accounting of PETROCONS,
some units have positive after-tax profits with low values such as PYC-MS (9.946
billion deng), DOBC (1.22 billion dong). PVC-IC (0.369 billion dong), PETROCONS
Dong Do (0.376 bilhion dong) and PVC-Binh Son. The remaining 2/7 units are
operating at a loss, which has greatly affected the consolidated profit target of
PETROCONs such as: PVC-Thai Binh (37.61 hillion dong), PVC-Mekong (0.534
billion dong).

The business results of some companies continue to suffer losses, the potential
risk 15 that capital cannot be preserved, leading o the loss of Owner's capital due to
the lack of new sources of work 10 maintain operations. compensate for the minimum
costs for the company, at the same time, the debts recoverable are still facing many
difficulties and the bad debis lead to increased financial costs; the Group’s entrusted
loans due for repavment have not been balanced with the pavment source; member
units suffered losses for many vears, it is not feasible to divest capital o armrange
repavment of entrusted investment loans. It is difficult to find out the marketing
Jobs/sign new contracts, the output and revenue of projects/works are still very low,

2.  Construction/key projects

Construction progress at some specific projects/works of PETROCONs is as
follows:

#  Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant Project:

PETROCONs continues to implement the remaining sub-items, handling the
arising backlog. In 2024, the State Inspection Council for Construction Acceptance
(State Inspection Council) approved the conditional acceptance of the Units in
Notice No. 3895/ TB-HDKTNN dated July &, 2024, On July 10, 2024, the Investor
1s5ued the Handover Certificate for Unit 1, Unit 2 and shared items (except for Coal
Loader No. 5, Coal Warchouse No. 3 and the remaining works in process). On July
19, 2024, the Electric Power Trading Company (EPTC) recognized the commercial
operation date of the Plant starting from 8:00 a.m. on July 19, 2024. By early August
2024, the project officially participated in the National Electricity Market.

Regarding the project settlement, PETROCONs has coordinated with the Thai
Binh 2 Petroleum Power Project Management Board 1o sign the minutes to determine
the settlement value of some items. However, the project settlement progress is still
slow due to some problems related to the determination of price adjustment plan,
supplementing new norms/unit prices, contract rewards and penalties, supplementing
some cost items, etc. PETROCONs is continuing to request the Investor/Project
Management Board to support in settlement.
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PETROCONs has negotiated debt reduction of over 38 billion dong with
contractors such as Sojit, Quingiao, Sotec and some other customers.

Regarding the dispute between the SDC/DL E&C consortium and PETROCONs
regarding EPS Contract No. 30/HDKT/2012/PVC-SDC dated May 22, 2012:
PETROCONs has established a Dispute Resolution Group and hired a legal
consultancy unit to support the implementation/follow-up of the lawsuit. In addition,
PETROCONSs continues to negotiate outside of litigation to move towards a negotiated
settlement.

#  Song Hau | Thermal Power Plant Project:

- Contract C11/SH1-LLM-PVC&GEOVN on foundation treatment: The contract
settlement is still pending because Lilama must complete the EPC contract settlement
with the Investor before settling the corresponding settlement with PETROCONS,

-Contract CI3/SHI-LLM-PVC on the construction of construction items:
Currently, the project has been completed. General Contractor Lilama has terminated
the Contract Performance Guarantee of the EPC Contract and moved on to the
warranty work with the Investor. Regarding the approval of the official unit price as
the basis for settlement, PETROCONs has coordinated with General Contractor
Lilama to protect the cost estimate with the consulting unit PECC 1:; however,
according to the Estimate Appraisal Report that PECC 1 sent to the Investor, the
contractor’s explanations have not been updated. Currently, PETROCONs is
continuing to request the Project Management Board/General Contractor to consider
resolving the problems, at the same time, coordinate with General Contractor Lilama
1o prépare payment/settlement documents.

- Construction and repair works at Song Hau 1 Thermal Power Plant: In 2024,
PETROCONs won the bid and signed 02 contracts to renovate and repair a number of
items at Song Hau 1 Thermal Power Plant. Currently, construction work is being
carried out on the set schedule.

»  Southern Petroleum Institute Office Project:

- Phase I: In 2024, PETROCONSs coordinated with the construction contractor
PVC-IC to carry out warranty repairs of existing problems according to the meeting
minutes with the investor on September 9, 2024. On December 4, 2024, the parties
agreed on the contents of the Minutes of Acceptance of Repair and Warranty Work.
The Investor has signed the settlement documents and reported to the Group, currently
waiting for the Group to approve the settlement documents for phase 1,

- Phase 2: In 2024, at the Vietnam International Arbitration Center (VIAC), the
parties agreed to mediate all disputes over the number of delayed days for each item
and agreed on the penalty for delay in phase 2. On November 18, 2024, the Investor
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met with the Supervision Consultant and the construction unit to review and agree on
handling the problems regarding the settlement documents. PETROCONSs completed
the signing of Supplemental Appendix No. 19 with the Petroleum Institute on October
24 2024 and submitted the Settlement Document to the Project Management
Consultant for review and confirmation for approval by the Investor,

#»  Project of upgrading DCS system of unit 87 - Uong Bi Thermal Power Plant: By
December 9, 2024, PETROCONs has completed 100% of the construction volume
under the signed contract. Currently, PETROCONS is coordinating with the general
contractor to complete the construction steps to determine the pavment volume.

»  Project of supplving and installing inverters for smoke fans of wnir §2 of Vinh
Tan 2 Thermal Power Planr: The work within the scope of PETROCONs has been
basicallv completed. Currently. PETROCONS has acuvely coordinated with the parties
o complete the quality documents for acceptance with the Investor to fulfill the
obligations in the contract.

#  Construction profect of slag disposal site, water collection tower, refurn water
pipeline of Quang Trach | Thermal Power Plant: PETROCONs" work progress is
until August 2023, currently being implemented under the plan.

3. Restructuring

According to the restructuring plan for the 2021-2025 period approved by the
General Meeting of Shareholders, in 2024, PETROCONs has deployed the following
specific tasks:

- The Board of Directors of PETROCONSs has issued the PETROCONs" Action
Program on implementing the restructuring contents of PETROCONs until the end of
2025 in the Document No. 13/ XLDK-HDOQT dated February 1, 2024.

- Reviewing the entire current situation and actual restructuring of the parent
company and potential member units; thereby, proposing solutions to organize
production and business activities so that by the end of 2025, the difficulties and
problems of the parent company and member units will be maximally resolved,
gradually restoring production and business activities.

- Organizing implementation, assigning tasks in the Board of Management,
departments and directing PETROCONs" Capital Representatives at units to implement
restructuring solutions for the parent company and member units approved by the Board
of Directors.

- Implementing procedures to post information about the divestment plan on media
(electronic newspapers/papers, etc.) to promote and attract interested investors to
accelerate the divestment plan at units.
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- Strengthening production and business activities for core units by assigning
tasks to the Corporation’s Capital Representatives at PVC-MS and DOBC to
implement the restructuring plan for the 2023-2025 period based on the assessment of
the current situation and the developed restructuring plan to ensure the goals of being a
core unit of PETROCONs. The roadmap for the 2024-2025 period is to have positive
profits, reduce accumulated losses and improve financial capacity to increase
marketing opportunities for bidding for new projects. In 2024, PVC-MS will eamn a
profit of 10.67 billion dong, DOBC will eam a profit of 1.22 billion dong.

- Supporting PVC-Duyen Hai to carry out procedures to apply for a certificate of
land use rights and assets on the land plot No. 441, Da Nang Street, Dong Hai 1 Ward,
Hai An District. Hai Phong City at the request of Hai Phong City Department of
Natral Resources and Environment to provide records and documents under the
Decision No. 2105/QD-BCT on determining the enterprise value and approving the
setilement of the equitization of PTSC Corporation, in which the list of assets that
have been included in the enterprise value upon equitization is declared. Currently. the
Department of Natural Resources and Environment is in the review and appraisal
process.,

4. Economic contracts, bidding marketing, investment, divestment/capital
recovery/asset management, parent company projects

#  Projeciiconiract signing:

In 2024, the parent company PETROCONs has won the bid and signed 05 new
contracts with a total value of about 52 billion dong: Procurement of equipment and
installation of frequency converters to control smoke fans of unit 82 with a value of
3.6 billion dong; Construction of slag disposal site, water collection tower, return
water pipeline - Quang Trach 1 Thermal Power Plant Project with a value of 31.795
billion dong; Renovation of the operation building of Song Hau 1 Thermal Power
Plant Project with a value of 2.695 billion dong; Renovation and repair of equipment
washing and slag disposal area of Song Hau | Thermal Power Plant with a value of
658 million dong and Supply of Level 1A Pump for Cao Ngan Thermal Power Plant
with a value of 11.33 billion dong.

At member units, in 2024, 43 contracts/contract appendices were signed to add
work sources including: PYC-MS signed 18 new contracts with a total value of 861.4
billion dong (including 3 major projects: Topside Phu Quoc with a value of 485 billion
dong, Lac Da Vang base fabrication with a value of 143.5 billion dong, P15 project
with a value of 138 billion dong); DOBC signed 15 new contracts/contract appendices
with a total value of 80.7 billion dong; PVC-Binh Son signed 6 new contracts with a
total value of 27.30 billion dong; PVC-TB signed 01 new contract with a value of
121.73 billion dong; PETROCONs-Dong Do signed 03 new contracts with a total
value of approximately 87.3 billion dong.
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#  Bidding marketing:

In 2024, due 10 many investors’ difficulty in arranging capital and problems with
legal and administrative procedures, the project implementation progress has been
stopped/delaved. In addition. PETROCONs" capacity is still limited. Therefore, in
spite of being very active in marketing and bidding in 2024, the set targets have not
been achieved, leading to lower output and revenue compared to the plan.

PETROCONs is continuing to coordinate with partners/joint ventures to
participate in bidding/preparing for bidding packages at the projects: Joint venture
with Telico Company 10 bid for filling and ground treatment packages at the Lot B - O
Mon Gas Pipeline Project: Joint venture with TITAN Eleciromechanical Joint Stock
Company to bid for the C&] Replacement Materials Procurement Package (DCS
Svstem) for Song Hau 1 Thermal Power Plant (The winning bid letrer has been
received. Currently, the comractor consoriium is negotiating contracis and preparing
resources for construction). Joint venture with Duc Anh Company to bid for the
package of Supplying grinding ball, lining plate and grinding tank tightening parts for
¢lectricity production of Pha Lai Thermal Power Joint Stock Company; Bidding for
Supplying goods and services for repairing high pressure heater No. 3 - Duyen Hai 3
expanded Thermal Power Plant, etc.

Continues to prepare and complete bidding documents and plans to be ready and
timely participate in bidding when there is official information for the projects of Long
Phu 1 Thermal Power Plant, O Mon 4 Thermal Power Plant. Nam Dinh Waste-to-
Energy Plant, Supply of furnace water circulation pumps (including motors and
pumps) - Quang Ninh Thermal Power Joint Stock Company, etc.

In addition, PETROCONs regularly follows up and works with domestic and
foreign partners to implement projects that are preparing for bidding, at the same time,
seeks and selects potential partners who can cooperate for future projects.

% Investment:

-In 2024, PETROCONs will not make any capital investmenis outside the
enterprise. As of December 31, 2024, PETROCONs" parent company has contributed
capital in 25 units with an investment value of 2,326.55 billion dong. Of which,
1,384.91 billion dong in 07 subsidiaries, 735.45 billion dong in associated units (11
units) and 206.20 billion dong in other financial investments (07 uniis).

- Accumulated provision for devaluation of financial investments as of December
31, 2024 is 1,810.13 billion dong, equivalent to 77.8% of the total value of
PETROCONs' financial investments. The total provision for devaluation of financial
investments in 2024 is 12.76 billion dong.

-1n 2024, the parent company PETROCONs and its subsidiaries will not carry
out capital construction investment and purchase of machinery and equipment.
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< Divestment/capital recovery/asset management, projects of the parent company:

- Transfer of Soai Rap - Tien Giang project: On July 31, 2024, PETROCONs
issued the Document No. 1167/XLDK-KHDT&TCC reporting to the Prime
Minister/Deputy Prime Minister Le Minh KhaiTien Giang Province People’s
Commiltee to propose instructions on pavment of costs to Soai Rap Petroleum Service
Industrial Park project. Tien Giang. In which it is recommended: (i) Consider, guide and
pay the costs in the Soai Rap Petroleum Service Industrial Park project to PVN and
PETROCONs; (ii) In case there is no plan to pay the invested costs fto
PVN/PETROCONSs, we respectfully request the Prime Minister to hand over the Soai
Rap Petroleum Service Industrial Park project, Tien Giang to PYN/PETROCON:S as the
investor so that the parties can continue to invest with their own resources and seek
partners with sufficient capacity and experience 10 cooperate and continue 1o invest in
completing the project: thereby promoting the efficiency of land use. creating revenue
for the local budget and enterprises. On August 7. 2024, the Government Office issued
the Document No. 1974/PC-VPCP 1o the Ministry of Planning and Investment and Tien
Giang province People’s Commitiee to request them to resolve PETROCONs" petition
according to regulations.

At the request of the Department of Finance of Tien Giang province in the Official
Letter No. 2739/8TC-TCDT-DN dated September 13, 2024 and Official Letter No.
3043/STC-TCDTDN by the Department of Finance dated October 7. 2024, the
Corporation has sent the Official Letter No. 1533/ XLDK-KHDT&TCC dated October
16, 2024 to Tien Giang province Department of Finance to provide all documents
related to the investment costs of PETROCONs. The Group has also provided
documents about the costs implemented by the Group at the Soai Rap Petroleum Service
Industrial Park project for Tien Giang province Department of Finance.

On February 19, 2025, PETROCONs representatives attended the meeting
according to Invitation Lemer No. 725/GM-STNMT by Tien Giang province
Department of Matural Resources and Environment. Accordingly, at the meeting, the
departments and branches of Tien Giang province proposed to refund the costs that PVN
had invested in the project. PETROCONS will also receive back the costs invested in the
project after deducting the penalty for late payment of the contract between DOBC and
PETROCONS (according to the conclusion of the State Audit) and the depreciation of

infrastructure (temporary roads, temporary power lines, welcome gates) from 2014 to
2018.

On March 27, 2025, Tien Giang province People’s Committee sent a notice of the
value of assets invested on land at the Soai Rap Petroleum Service Industrial Park
Project to the Group and the Corporation, accordingly PETROCONs was refunded
126,434 billion dong. Currently, the Corporation is reviewing and submitting the
refunded investment value to the Board of Directors for consideration and approval.
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- Central Mechanical Workshop Project:  Currently, PETROCONs is
coordinating with PYC-MT to promole the search for suitable customers to cooperate

in the exploitation of the Mechanical Workshop site.

- Land plot at Chua Ha: The land plot at No. 01, Lane 86, Chua Ha Street, Dich
Vong ward, Cau Giay district, Hanoi city has a land lease term of 20 vears from
Januwary 1, 1996 to January 1, 2016 and the land lease contract has now expired. The
Corporation is carrying out procedures to extend the land lease contract {(including:
measuring and drawing the current status map, requesting red line boundanes,
requesting planning information. reviewing the current status of land use, etc.).

- Regarding the 3,400 land plot in Tam Dao town, Vinh Phue province, which
Mai Phuong Company returned to PETROCONs under the Decision of Hanoi city
Civil Judgment Enforcement Department: On September 27, 2024, PETROCONs
received the on-site handover of the land plot under the wimess of the competent
authorities. On November 19. 2024, PETROCONs received the Land Use Rights
Certificate from the High People’s Court in Hanoi for the land plot in Tam Dao. On
December 5, 2024, PETROCONs worked with Vinh Phuc Province Land Registration
Office on the registration of transferring the ownership of 3,400m2 land at plot No. 6,
map No. 20 in Village 1, Tam Dao town, Tam Dao district, Vinh Phuc province to
PETROCONS,

-On March 25, 2025, PETROCONs sent the Document No. 3200XLDK-PC to
the Vinh Phuc Province Land Registration Office, Vinh Phuc Province Department of
Agriculture and Environment and the Vinh Phuc Province People’s Committee
regarding the completion of procedures for registration of changes in the owner of the
above land plot. Vinh Phuc Province Department of Agriculture and Environment has
given specific instructions and PETROCONS is currently prepanng the documents.

5. Financial condition of PETROCONS.
Some items on the Corporation’s balance sheet as of December 31, 2024

ASSETS (Billion dong) CAPITAL RESOURCES (Billion dong)
At the At the Al the Al the
- end of beginning | Compari end of | beginnin | Compari
Description the of the som (%) Deseription the g of the son (%o
period period period period
i—ucsﬂm 363893 | 3,733.57 | 97.47% | C- Liabilities | 404049 | 415582 | 97.23%
I Cash and
cash 354.57 25048 | 141.56% j_'_.‘f;'.f.:f"’”" 387435 | 403266 96.07%
, F 15 JLITNER -
IT. Shart-
ferm I Long-term
anilil 154.24 206.24 74.92% liabilities 166.14 12316 | 134.90%
inmvestmenis |
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il Short- 1. Chamer”
rerm | 463292 117978 | o495 | VMEE 1 gpps3| 30740 10134%
receivablex | iy
iV -
Brieabiies {38360 LA37.00 96,285 |
V. Other
current 113.33 120.07 04.38%
assels
B. Non-
curment TI3.0m T29.65 97.73%
ARSELS
TOTAL 435200 | 446322 | 97.51% | 4,352.02 | 446322 97.51%
Financial indicators as of December 31. 2024 are as follows:
No. Items Unit 2024 2023
1 | Asset Structure |
Mon-current assctsTotal Assets % 16.39% | 16.35% |
Current AsselsTolal Assets o 83.61% 83.65% |
2 | Capital Structure
| Liabilities/Total Capital % 02.84% 93.11%
! Equity/Total Capital % 7.16% 6.89%
3 | Payability
Quick Pavability Time 0.58 0.57
(Liabilities-Inventories)/Current Liabilities Time 0.94 0,93
4 | Current Pavability |
( Liabilities/Current Liabilities) %o -| 0.001 (0.04)%%
Profit Margin % 0.01 (0.22)%
Retum on Assets (ROA) % 0.01 (0.53%

The quick ratio and current ratio show that PETROCONSs is facing financial
difficulties. Current assets do not include inventories and are not enough to pay short-
term debs.

The debt to total capital ratio as of December 31, 2024 is 0.93; this shows that
PETROCONSs has large debts, accounting for the majority of equity (93%).

Regarding PETROCONSs" quick ratio in 2024, it is 0.58; this shows that it is very
difficult for the company to pay all short-term debts in the short term,

The two ROA and ROE ratios in 2024 compared to 2023 fluctuate significantly.

The ROA and ROE ratios in 2024 are not negative because PETROCONS' business
results in 2024 are profitable.

- Regarding the Group’s entrusted debt through Oceanbank, in 2024,
PETROCONs will continue to seek solutions as well as urge member units to use

B S |
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entrusted loans such as; PYNC, Lam Kinh Hotel, PVC-8G 1o review sources of money,
assets to halance capital sources to repay entrusted loans to the Group. However, so far
there have been no results. The entrusted principal outstanding as of December 31, 2024
is VIND 375.6 hillion, of which PETROCONs must collect from the units: VND 344.6
billion (including: Lam Kinh Hotel: VND 200 billion; PVC-8G: VND 128.3 billion;
PVNC: VWD 16.3 hillion); the amount PETROCONs uses: VIND 230.99 billion. The
interest that PETROCON: still has to pay PYN as of December 31, 2024 is: VND
172.78 billion.

-In 2024, there will be no arising issues related to the units regarding the
guarantee. provision for guarantee. Currently, PETROCONs still has guarantees for
member units to borrow capital of VND 155.05 billion (PYC-HN: VND 73.67 billion;
PVC-ME: VND 64.27 billion; PVC-5G: VKD 17.10 billion). These guarantees are all
overdue, PETROCONS has set aside provisions for pavables of VND 137.94 billion.
The units that PETROCONS guarantees to borrow capital from credit institutions are
all facing financial difficulties, with loss-making business results and potential risks of
not being able to repay bank loans. In recent vears, PETROCONs has worked with
credit institutions, requiring PETROCONs" Capital Representatives at units to find
solutions and arrange capital sources to repav bank debts but has not been able to
handle the above guarantees vet.

- PETROCONS is currently the VND 111.8 billion payment guarantor for PVC-
TB to commit and guarantee PVC-TB’s payment obligations to PVEP under the
contract for transferring the Thai Binh Petroleum Hotel Construction Investment
Project between PVEP and PVC-TB.

- Total receivables of PETROCONs Parent Company as of December 31, 2024
were VIND 2,534.05 billion, with accumulated provisions of YND 878.24 billion. The
provision at the end of 2024 decreased by YND 47.64 billion compared to the
beginning of the year. In 2024, the Corporation has recovered a total of VND 5,588
billion up to the reporting date, specifically: TID (VND 0.288 billion); PVCN (VND
2.716 billion); PVC-ME (VND 0.1 billion); PVC-Dong Do (VND 0.731 billion);
Vinaconex 39 (VND 1.753 hillion). Details of some receivables as of December 31,
2024 are as follows:

+ Receivables from customers: VND 1,309 billion, with a provision of VND
178.86 billion, of which the debt to the Thai Binh 2 Oil and Gas Power Plant Project
Management Board i1s VND 876,70 billion;

+ Advance payments to sellers: VND 558 billion, with a provision of VND 306
billion;

+ Short-term loan receivables: VIND 356 billion, with a provision of VND 269
billion, of which the majority are receivables from units for entrusted loans;
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+ Other receivables: VND 286 billion, with a provision of VND 124 billion.

- For the audited separate financial statements, after the Board of Supervisors
reviewed a number of 1ssues for a disclaimer of opinion of AASC Auditing Company
Limited: As of December 31, 2024, the accumulated loss was VND 3.765.93 billion;
short-term habilities were YND 3,874.35 billion. exceeding current assets by VYND
23542 billion; overdue debts as of December 31, 2024 were VND 575.67 billion.
These factors. together with the contents in Note 1. lead to doubts about the
Corporation’s on-going ability. The Corporation’s on-going ability depends on the
plan to recover debts, restructure investments, complete and settle unfinished projects
to recover money and financial support from sharcholders and creditors. Within the
scope of an audit of financial statements. we do not have sufficient information to
assess the appropriateness and effectiveness of these operating plans (guoted in section
I of the Basis for a disclaimer af apinion on the Pareni Company ‘s auditor s repori).

- Regarding the audited consolidated financial statements. after the Board of
Supervisors considered a number of issues for a disclaimer of opinion of AASC
Auditing Company Limited: As of December 31, 2024, accumulated loss was VND
3.998.41 billion; short-term liabilities were VND 5393.51 billion, exceeding short-
term assets by VND 781.85 billion; overdue debts as of December 31, 2024 were
VND 1,20995 billion. These factors, together with the contents in Note 1, lead to
doubts about the Corporation’s on-going ability to. The Corporation’s on-going ability
depends on plans 1o recover debis, restructure investments, complete and settle
unfinished projects to recover money and financial support from shareholders and

creditors. Within the scope of an audit of financial statements, we do not have
sufficient information to be able to assess the appropriateness and effectiveness of

these operating plans (quoted in section | af the Basis for a disclaimer of opinion of
the Consolidated Auditor ‘s repori).

1. SELF-ASSESSMENT REPORT ON THE PERFORMANCE RESULTS OF
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AND OF EACH BOARD MEMBER

2.1. Organizational structure of the Board of Supervisors
The Board of Supervisors of the Corporation consists of 03 members, including:
+ Mr. Hua Xuan Nam - Head of the Board of Supervisors.

+ Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Cuong - Part-time member of the Board of Supervisors
(from June 30, 2021 according to the Resolution No. 148/ NQ-BHDCD-XLDK dated
June 30, 2021).

+ Mr. Phung Van Sy - Part-time member of the Board of Supervisors (from June 30,
2021 according to the Resolution No. 148/NQ-BHDCD-XLDK dated June 30, 2021).

1.2. Operation results of Board of Supervisors in 2024,
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= The Board of Supervisors has seriously implemented the contents of the 2024
Operation Plan approved by the Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders. The Board of
Supervisors has closely followed the Resolution of the Gencral Meeting of
Shareholders, the operation plan and the actual situation, properly performed the powers
and responsibilities as prescribed by the Enterprise Law, the Charter of the Corporation
and the Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

- The Board of Supervisors has fully participated in the meetings of the Board of
Directors/General Director to grasp the situation of production and business activities.
investment, divestment and restructuring; contributed opinions and made
recommendations to the Board of Directors/General Director within the scope of their
responsibilities and powers. The members of the Board of Supervisors worked with a
high sense of responsibility on the principles of independence and prudence, always for
the benefit of shareholders and the development of PETROCONs Corporation.

- The Board of Supervisors held 02 meetings on March 19, 2024 and September
16, 2024 1o report the implementation of tasks in the Quarter and deploy the action plan
for the next Quarter. The meeting contents were unanimously approved by the members
(3/3) participating in the vote.

- Conduct inspection and supervision at 03 units: Petroleum Equipment Assembly &
Metal Structure Joint Stock Company (PVC - MS), Binh Son Petroleum Construction
Joint Stock Company (PVC-Binh Son), Thai Binh Petroleum Investment and Trading
Joint Stock Company (PVC-Thai Binh).

- For other member units, the Board of Supervisors reviewed the production and
business reports and related reports of the Representative/Representative of

PETROCONs" capital at the units to promptly make recommendations to the Board of
Directors/General Director of PETROCONS,

- The Board of Supervisors reviewed and appraised the financial statements of the
parent ¢company, the guarterly/annual consolidated financial statements of the entire
Corporation and appraised the salary fund of the parent company in 2024,

2.3. Activities of each member of the Board of Supervisors.

In 2024, the members of the Board of Supervisors have performed and completed
their duties and responsibilities in each assigned area, in strict compliance with the
provisions of the Law and the Charter of the Corporation. The assessment results on
completion of duties and responsibilities in 2024 are as follows:

1.3.1. Mr. Hua Xuan Nam - Head of Department: Successfully completed assigned
tasks:
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- Fully participate in the meetings of the Board of Supervisors and give full

opinions on the inspection and supervision of the assigned activities and fields of the
Board of Supervisors.

- Well perform the duties and responsibilities related to the work and fields: Take
general charge of all inspection and supervision activities of the Board of Supervisors
according to the Enterprise Law, the Organization and Operation Charter of
PETROCONS, the Operating Regulations of the Board of Supervisors of PETROCONS,
be responsible for signing periodic and ad hoc reports, as requested, to the General
Meeting of Sharcholders. Major Shareholders - Viemam National Industry - Energy
Group and official dispatches and documents to the Board of Directors. Board of
Directors of PETROCONs. Representatives of PETROCONs at other enterprises:
Participate in meetings of PETROCONs and member units organized by the
Corporation; Be mainly responsible for making the annual operation plan of the Board
of Supervisors to submit it to the General Meeting of Shareholders: Plan periodic and ad
hoc inspections based on the annual operating plan approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders: Organize and preside over meetings of the PETROCONs Board of
SUpPErvisors,

- Well implement the inspection and supervision on the following activities:
Inspect and supervise the implementation of the regulations, processes and rules of the
Corporation, supervise the amendments in accordance with the State’s regulations; the
implementation of the salary, remuneration, bonus, responsibility allowance and other
benefits for Emplovees and Enterprise Managers according to the Law; the annual
production and business plan targets assigned/approved by the Vietnam WNational
Industry-Energy Group; inspect the activities of the Board of Supervisors of capital
contributions unit; inspect and supervise the investment management in projects,
financial investment, divestment and capital transfer in projects and enterprises;
supervise the implementation of production and business results of the Project
Management Boards of the Corporation; Act as a direct focal point in charge of
monitoring and supervising the activities of member units: Petroleun Equipment
Assembly & Metal Structure Joint Stock Company (PVC - MS); Petroleum Pipeline and
Tank Construction Joint Stock Company (DOBC).

2.3.2. Mr. Nguven Ngoc Cuong - Concurrent member of the Board of Supervisors:
Successfully completed assigned tasks.

- Fully participate in the meetings of the Board of Supervisors and give full
opinions on the inspection and supervision of the assigned activities and fields of the
Board of Supervisors.

- Well perform the responsibilities related to the work and fields: Make the annual
operation report, the next annual operation plan of the Board of Supervisors, submit to

T
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the annual General Meeting of Sharcholders of the Corporation; Drafi the inspection
schedule of units and inspection minutes of units under the inspection plan of the Board
of Supervisors: Participate in the inspections on the units by the Board of Supervisors;
Be responsible for urging the units under their supervision to submit reports according to
the documents issued by the Board of Supervisors monthly, quanerly. annually and
review the indicators in the financial statements, control reports of member units, the
Board of Supervisors of member units, the Executive Boards assigned to monitor,
synthesize data and draft the annual operation report of the Board of Supervisors to
submit 1o the General Meeting of Shareholders.

- Well implement the inspection and supervision on the following activities:
mspect and supervise the implementation of the Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant
Project: mspeet and supervise the debt collection and handling of the parent company
and the Project Management Boards of the Corporation; inspect and supervise the
management and handling of assets and equipment of the Corporation; inspect and
review the accounting reports of the paremt company and its member units: consider
preparing the contents of the financial accounting reports, the contents to be appraised
so that the Board of Supervisors can appraise the 6-month and annual reports of the
Corporation; Act as a direct focal point in charge of monitoring and supervising the
activities of member units: Dong Do Petroleum Joint Stock Company (PETROCONs-
Dang Do); Thai Binh Petroleum Trading and Investment Joint Stock Company (PVC-
Thai Binh).

1.3.3. Mr. Phung Van Sy - Concurrent member of the Board of Supervisors:
Successfully completed assigned tasks

= Fully participate in the meetings of the Board of Supervisors and give full
opinions on the inspection and supervision on the assigned activities and ficlds of the
Board of Supervisors.

- Perform well the duties and responsibilities related to the work and fields:
Participate in inspections on the PETROCONs Board of Supervisors by superior
agencies; Be responsible for urging the units under their supervision to submit reports
according to the documents issued by the Board of Supervisors, review the indicators in
the financial statements, control reports of member units, Boards of Supervisors of
member units and assigned the Executive Boards for monitoring. Draft the documents
on issues related to the assigned work as requested by the Head of the Board of
Supervisors to be sent to related agencies, units and Executive Boards for monitoring.

- Well implement the inspection and supervision of the following activities:
Inspect and supervise the compliance with the law on the management and use of capital
of enterprises, the implementation of financial management regulations, intemal
regulations, inspect and supervise the distribution of profits, the establishment and use

e ——
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of funds; Check and review accounting reports of the parent company and member
units; synthesize data to draft the Board of Supervisors’ Operation Reports on a
quarterly. 6-month, 9-month, and annuval basis; Review and prepare the contents of the
financial reports, the contents that need to be appraised, and carry out procedures for the
Board of Supervisors 1o appraise the Corporation’s 6-month and annual reports; inspect
and supervise investment management in projects, financial investment. divestment. and
capital transfer in projects and enterprises; inspect and supervise the provisioning and
provision reversal of the paremt company: Act as a direct focal point in charge of
monitoring and supervising the activities of member units: Binh Son Petroleum
Construction Joint Stock Company (PVC - Binh Son); Petroleum Industrial and Civil
Construction Joimt Stock Company (PVC-IC): Petroleum Urban Development Joint
Steck Company (PVC- Mekong).

[II. REMUNERATION, OPERATING EXPENSES AND OTHER BENEFITS
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AND EACH BOARD MEMBER

- For full-time Board of Supervisors members who are representatives of major
shareholders. PVN: follow the PETROCONs salary regulations in accordance with the
provisions of the Circular No. 282016/TT-BLDTBXH dated September 1, 2016 by the
Ministry of Labor, Invalids and Social Affairs and the actual business results of the unit.

- For part-time Board of Supervisors members: approved by the 2024 Annual
General Mecting of Sharcholders and expenses according to the Intemal Expenditure
Regulations of Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation, specifically:

Unir: Dong
Gross salary/
No. Full name Position remuneration in MNotes
2024
1 Hua Xuan Nam Head 441.418.999

2 | Nguyen Ngoc Cuong | Concurrent member 32 400,000

3 | Phung Van Sy Concurrent member 32,400,000

Total 506,218,999

* The operating expenses of the Board of Supervisors in 2024 are: VND
80,523,000,

Operating expenses in 2024: Administrative and related expenses for the
activities of the Board of Supervisors are carried out in accordance with PETROCONSs’
regulations.
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IV. SUMMARY OF BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETINGS AND
CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS

In 2024, the Board of Supervisors held 02 meetings with the full presence of the
Board of Supervisors members to agree on the Board of Supervisors’ operation plans in
the supervision and inspection at the Corporation and its member units. The Board of
Supervisors has 2 concurreni members, so the Board of Supervisors members
exchanged and contributed opimions on the Board of Supervisors’ operations by calling
and sending emails 1o discuss and agree on the Board of Supervisors® operations. arising
issues as well as exchanging professional work.

i Main contents
participants

- _]mp]t.'m-i'ul: the Board of Supervisors” action plan for the first |

6 months of 2024
I5 Report on implementing 1asks for the latest 6 months of
| 2024 and the 2025 plan.

4
3

a2z
4

V. ASSESSMENT REPORT ON TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN THE
CORPORATION, SUBSIDIARIES, OTHER COMPANIES IN WHICH THE
CORPORATION CONTROLS 50% OR MORE OF THE CHARTER CAPITAL
WITH MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, GENERAL DIRECTORS,
OTHER EXECUTIVES OF THE CORPORATION AND RELATED PERSONS OF
THAT ENTITY: TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN THE CORPORATION AND
COMPANIES IN WHICH MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS,
GENERAL DIRECTORS, OTHER EXECUTIVES OF THE CORPORATION ARE
FOUNDING MEMBERS OR BUSINESS MANAGERS WITHIN THE 3 MOST
RECENT YEARS PRIOR TO THE TIME OF THE TRANSACTION.

- In 2024, the Corporation did not have any transactions with Subsidiaries or other
companies in which the Corporation controls 50% or more of the charter capital with the
Board of Directors, General Director and other executives of the Corporation and related
persons of that entity.

= In 2024, the Corporation did not have any transactions with Companies in which
the Board of Directors, General Director and other executives of the Corporation were
founding members or business managers in the 03 (three) latest vears prior to the
transaction date.

VL. SUPERVISION RESULTS ON THE ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS, GENERAL DIRECTORS AND OTHER EXECUTIVE
OFFICERS OF THE CORPORATION.,
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The business operations of the Board of Directors, the General Director and other
executives of the Corporation in 2024 generally complied with the Enterprise Law, the
Charter of the Corporation. the Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and
relevant legal regulations.

6.1. Activities of the Board of Directors

In 2024, the Board of Supervisors panticipated in regular meetings of the Board of
Directors/ Board of Management and monthly and quarterly meetings.

The Board of Directors of PETROCONs has seriously implemented the
Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders in 2024. The Board of Directors of
PETROCONs has issued the Directives and Resolutions directing the Board of
Directors to conduct operations: The departments at the parent company and the
capital representatives at the subsidiaries. affiliated companies and financial
investment companies implement the directives and resolutions of the Vietnam
National Industry-Energy Group, the resolutions of the General Meeting of
Shareholders, organize production and business in the direction of maximizing
PETROCONS" resources to ensure compliance with the law and have issued a number
of documents and resolutions. The Board of Directors has performed the leading role,
supervising the operation of the Board of Directors in the operation of production and
business to solve difficulties, problems, limit and prevent potential risks, maintain a
stable production and business operation apparatus, organize regular and ad hoc
meetings in the form of voting directly or through written opinions to issue
Resolutions and decisions on resolving issues under the authority according to the
operating regulations of the Board of Directors and the Charter of the Corporation.

The Board of Directors has maintained the form of voting to issue Resolutions
and decisions on resolving issues under its authority according to the Board of
Directors” Operating Regulations and the Corporation’s Charter. In 2024, the Board of
Directors held 07 regular meetings, collected all written opinions of members and
approved 32 Resolutions, 26 Decisions and other directive documents related to
PETROCONSs' activities. The Resolutions/Decisions issued in 2024 are detailed in the
Corporate Governance Report No. 04/BC-XLDK dated January 16, 2024 sent to the
State Securities Commission and Hanoi Stock Exchange.

The Board of Directors has performed the role of directing, supervising and

supporting the Board of Directors in operating FETROCONS" production and business
activities.

The Board of Directors has restructured and rearranged PETROCONs’

production and business activities to stabilize FPETROCONs" production and business
activities.
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The Board of Directors has strictly made the supervision report and sent it to
shareholders, PVN, such as special financial supervision reports and periodic income
stalements.

6.2. Supervision results on the General Director and other executives of the
Caorporation.

In the context of many difficulties and challenges. the Board of Management of
PETROCONs has managed and operated production and business activities in
accordance with the decentralization between the Board of Directors and the Board of
Directors. The Board of Directors has properly performed its role and responsibilities
in managing production and business activities, strictly and fully complying with the
regulations and provisions of the law, PVN and the Corporation.

The Board of Directors has strengthened the implementation of cost reduction
measures. strictly controlled expenses and cash flow to mainain production and
business activities; taken measures to strengthen internal resources and continued to
promote marketing, bidding. and new job search: actively searched for investors
interested in receiving capital transfers at units as well as promoted work related to the
restructuring of PETROCONSs. The Board of Management has ensured that the salary
payment for the employees of the Corporation and the Project Management Board of
the Corporation is carried out on the principle of linking salary with the assigned
position, quality and efficiency of work, ensuring the life of employees at the parent
company of the Corporation with stable income. However, some units still have not
had a source of work for many vears, so they still owe salaries and social insurance.

VI. REPORT ON SUPERVISION OF COOPERATION BETWEEN THE
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT, THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS.

The coordination of activities between the Board of Supervisors, the Board of
Directors, the Board of Management and shareholders is based on the principles of
honesty, objectivity and transparency for the stability and sustainable development of
the Corporation and ensuring the rights of shareholders in accordance with the Law and
the Charter of the Corporation

The Board of Supervisors has been provided with meeting documenis of the
Board of Directors and the Board of Management chaired by the Board of Directors.
The Board of Management has presided over and has fully participated in meetings of
the Board of Directors, contributing opinions on identification and wamning of risks in
the management and direction of the Corporation’s production and business activities.
The Board of Supervisors’ recommendations have been considered and implemented
by the Board of Directors and the Board of Management to ensure the interests of the
Corporation, comply with the provisions of law and the internal management
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regulations of the Corporation. The Board of Directors and the Board of Management
have cooperated to create favorable conditions for the Board of Supervisors to
complete their tasks: such as providing information and documents, assigning staff to
coordinate with the Board of Supervisors when requested and creating conditions for
the Board of Supervisors to participate in meetings of the Board of Directors and the
Board of Management of the Corporation.

The Board of Supervisors has informed the Board of Directors and the Board of
Management about the inspection and control plan in the vear. The Board of
Supervisors has coordinated with the departments of the Corporation in inspecting and

controlling the activities of member units and reporting the results to the Board of
Directors/General Director.

Every guarter. the Board of Supervisors prepares and sends quarterly and annual
inspection and supervision reports to the major sharcholder. the Vietnam National
Industry- Energy Group and the Board of Directors and the Board of Management of
PETROCONS,

The activities of the Board of Supervisors have received support and facilitation
from the Board of Directors, the Board of Management and the control subjects in

accordance with the control requirements, helping the control results to be presented
objectively, reflecting the true nature of the Corporation’s operations.

For other sharcholders: The Board of Supervisors shall report to the General
Meeting of Shareholders, disclose information in accordance with the current regulations,
and report information to the General Meeting of Shareholders honestly, carefully, and
accurately. In 2024, there will be no requests for unusual control activities or the
Corporation’s production and business activities from shareholders.

For the largest sharcholder, the Vietnam National Industry- Energy Group, the
Board of Supervisors shall fully implement periodic quarterly/annual reports and ad hoc
reports when requested by the Group. The Board of Supervisors has submitted them on
the basis of the prescribed content and deadline.

VI REPORT APPRAISAL
8.1. Appraisal on the 2024 Audited financial statements,

The Board of Supervisors has reviewed the 2024 Financial Statements audited by
AASC Auditing Company Limited to assess the truthfulness and reasonableness of the
financial data in accordance with the current accounting standards and regimes.
Basically. the financial statements of the Corporation have honestly and reasonably
reflected the production and business activities. The recording, accounting and
presentation of financial statements are in accordance with Vietnamese accounting
standards and the current regulations.
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8.2. Appraisal on the Board of Directors’ Management and Operation Evaluation
Report.

The Board of Directors has prepared and sent the 2024 operation report and the
2025 operation plan to the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. In particular,
the report specifically assessed the Corporation’s activities in 2024 from the
implementation of strategic orientations, corporate restructuning, ¢ost management,
corporate governance, investment work, etc. The Board of Directors always supervises,
directs and guides the Corporation to implement important and urgent issues related to
investment orientations, human resource development plans, organizational structure
and arrangement and appointment of managers: amend and promulgate internal
regulations and rules of the Corporation.

The Board of Directors’ operation report on the Corporation’s management and
operation in 2024 is consistent with reality; the rights and obligations of the Board of
Directors are stipulated in the Charter of the Corporation and in accordance with current
legal regulations.

8.3. Appraisal on income statement of the General Director

The Board of Supervisors has reviewed the 2024 income statement of the Board of
Directors. In particular, the Board of Directors has reported in details each activity of the
Corporation, restructuring, construction of key projects/works, especially the production
and business situation at key projects such as Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant Project.
The 2023 income statement and management and operation of the Board of Directors
have reflected the actual operations of the Corporation; the revenue and profit indicators
in the report are reflected and recorded in the 2024 Financial Statements audited by
AASC Auditing Company Limited.

< Some auditing recommendations for the Board of Directors/Board of Management
of PETROCONs:

+ Regarding the financial situation on the 2024 Separate Financial Report audited by
AASC Auditing Company Limited issued on March 31, 2025, the “Basis for a
disclaimer of opinion™ is stated in items 1,2,3,4,5. In item 1, it is stated: As of December
31, 2024, the accumulated loss of the Corporation was VND 3,765.93 billion (as of
Janwary 1, 2024, it was VND 3,770.05 billion), short-term liabilities (code 310) were
VND 3,874.35 billion, exceeding short-term assets (code 100) by VND 235.42 billion
(as of January 1, 2024, short-term liabilities were VND 4,032.66 billion, exceeding
short-term assets by VND 299.09 billion; overdue debts as of December 31, 2024 were
VND 575.67 billion (as of January 1, 2024, it was VND 575.67 billion). These factors,
together with the content in note 1, lead to doubts about the Corporation’s on-going
ability. The Corporation’s on-going ability depends on the plan to recover debis,
restructure investments, complete and settle unfinished projects to recover money,
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financial support from shareholders and owners and AASC Auditing Company Limited
also gave a disclaimer of opinion on the balance of unfinished production and business

costs of the Vung Ang 1 Thermal Power Plant project, Quang Trach 1 Thermal Power
Plant, ete.

+ Regarding the Finance of the 2024 Consolidated Financial Statement audited by
AASC Auditing Company Limited issued on March 31, 2025, it stated “Basis for a
disclaimer of opinion” stating 16 items. In item 1, it stated: “As of December 31, 2024,
the Consolidated Financial Statement of the Corporation is reflecting: Accumulated loss
(code 412) of the Corporation is VND 3,998.41 billion, short-term liabilities (code 310)
1s VND 5.393.51 billion exceeding current assets (code 100) is VIND 781.85 billion.
overdue debis as of December 31, 2024 are VND 1.209.95 billion. The financial
situation of the Corporation as of January 1. 2024 is also in a similar situation. These
factors. together with the contents of Note 1. lead to doubts abou the Corporation’s on-
going ability, The Corporation’s on-going ability depends on the plan to recover debis,
restructure investments, complete and settle unfinished projects to recover money,
financial support from shareholders and creditors, etc.

+ The Board of Supervisors of the Corporation recommends that the Board of
Directors and the Board of Management of PETROCONSs have solutions to resolutely
direct the handling of existing problems mentioned in the 2024 Auditor’s Report to
ensure the stable operation and development of the Corporation.

+ Regarding Asset Inventory: Every year, the Corporation has established an Asset
Inventory Council. The Board of Supervisors recommends that the Board of
Directors/General Directors direct the Departments, Boards and Project Management
Boards to conduct the inventory in accordance with the Accounting Law; Law No.
B&/2015/QH13 issued on November 20, 2015 and the Government's decrees,

XI. THE 2025 OPERATION PLAN OF BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Implement
ation
frequency
(*)

MNa. Cantents

| Regular tasks

Check/monitor the implementation and compliance with the unit’s
Charter, Enterprise Law, state laws; the implementation and
I. | compliance with PVN's Directives related to the unit's operations | Regular
of the PVIN Representative at the unit;
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Contents

Implement
ation
frequency
(*)

| Check/monitor and evaluate the implementation of the Resolution

| of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders: financial
situation, capital balance and cash flow management., operational

| efficiency and debt payment ability, capital management and use;
capital preservation and development; implementation of quarterly
production and business plans: check/monitor the implementation,
progress and effectiveness of investment projects;

Regular

Coordinate with State authorities, inspection and intermal audn
teams of the Group and the unit in checking and supervising the
management and production and business activities at the umt

Coordinate with the PVN's Capital Representative in managing
PVIN's capital at the unit and the unit's capital invested in other
enterprises:

Regular

Regular

Review contracts and transactions with related parties under the
approval authority of the Board of Directors or the General Meeting
of Sharcholders and make recommendations on contracts and
transactions to be approved by the Board of Directors or the General
Meeting of Sharcholders; supervise enterprises in disclosing
information about related parties and transactions with related
parties;

Regular

Supervise the implementation of development strategies and
business plans; Inspect/supervise the implemenmation of corporate
restructuring  and  innovation  according to  approved
Decisions/Directives/Resolutions;

Regular

Recommend the Board of Directors 1o amend, supplement and
improve the organizational structure for management, supervision
and operation of the unit’s business activities;

Regular

Perform other tasks of the PVN Representative in charge of control
as required by PVN, the General Meeting of Shareholders and
current regulations; propose the General Meeting of Shareholders 1o
select an independent anditing company;

Regular

1)

Perindic tasks

Implement/coordinate with the Board of Supervisors members 1o

Shareholders for approval and implementation.

make the 2024 operational report and the 2025 operational plan of
the Board of Supervisors to submit to the General Meeting of
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Implement
No. Contents AT
frequency
| (*)
| Implement/coordinate with the Board of Supervisors members to
submit the following reports to the Annual General Meeting of
~ | Shareholders and Petrovietnam: Appraisal on the 2024 Financial I |
= Statements, appraisal on the annual business and production report (natcy
and the 2024 management assessment report of the unit’s Board of
Directors,
| Check the reasonableness. legality, honesty and level of pradence in i
X the management and direction of business activities: the Quarterly
' systematicity, consistency and appropriatencss of accounting, ;
statistics and financial reporting.
: Review accounting books, accounting records and other documents r W
4 |of the company, management and operation of the unit when e
necessary. Ry
Review, inspect and evaluate the effectiveness and efficiency of the
internal control system, internal audit, risk management and early
5 warning of the unit; make recommendations and propesals 10 Quarterly
improve and enhance the effectivencss of the intemal control
system
6 | Appraise the 6-month/annual 2025 financial statements. Quarterly
T | Appraise the 2024 salary fund of Employees and Unit Managers. ?m 035
5
Check/monitor  the  implementation status  and  handle
recommendations of inspection teams of state agencies and
8 | competent authorities at the unit. Quarterly
Prepare the 2026 Operation Plan for approval by the PVN Board of
Drirectors
Prepare quarterly monitoring reports according to the Regulations of Q st
9 | the Vietnam National Industry -Energy Group and other reports as '
required. request
Before
10 Prepare and submit 2026 Operation Plan to PVYN Board of Directors | November
for approval 15 every
year
11 | Supervise year-end asset inventory activities at the unit 31/12/2025
mm [nspection/supervision of specialized subjeets, projects,
subsidiaries and associated companies (*).
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Implement
ation
No. Contents
r frequency
(*)
1 Subsidiaries
| Petroleum Industrial and Civil Construction Joint Stock Company '
1.1 (PVC-IC) CQuarter 111
| 19 {P;l{;u;:::l::}m Pipeline and Tank Construction Joint Stock Company Quarter II1
| 13 | PETROCONSs-Dong Do | Quarter I11
2 Associated companies l
T 2.1 | Thanh Hoa Petroleum Construction JSC | Quarter IV
" __ | Duven Hai Petraleum Construction Investment Joint Stock 5
2.2 i Quarter I'y

l Company (PVC Duyen Hai) |

The above is the operation condition of the PETROCONs Board of Supervisors in
2024 and the 2025 Operation Plan. The PETROCONs Board of Supervisors respectfully
submits it to the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders of Petrovietnam
Construction Joint Stock Corporation for consideration/approval.

Yours Sincerely./.

Sent to:

- As above; ARD "HPERVISORS HEAD

- Board of Directors of PETROCONS; : b

- Board of Management of PETROCONS;

- Kept at: Archives Depantment, Board of
Supervisors.

_.-""‘r..
Hua Xuan Nam
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VIETNAM NATIONAL INDUSTRY - ENERGY GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
No.: 5’.’ MTTr-XLDK Ha Noi. .nf'qu&- ..... month.... 2025
PROPOSAL

On approving the 2024 Audited Financial Statements and
the 2024 Profit Distribution Plan

To:  The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QHI14 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020:

Pursuant to the Organization and Operation Charter of Petrovietnam Construction
loint Stock Corporation (the Corporation/PETROCOMNs);

Pursuant to Resolution No, TONQ-PHDCD-XLDEK dated May 23, 2024 by the
2024 Anmual General Meeting of Shareholders on approving the selection of the
Auditing Company in 2024, the Board of Directors of the Corporation respectfully
submits the 2024 Financial Statement audited by AASC Auditing Company Limited to
the General Meeting of Shareholders for approval, specifically:

1- The 2024 Audited financial statements:
- Parent Company’s Audited Financial Statements 2024,
- Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 2024,

2- Parent Company's profit distribution plan:

Unit: Dong
Undistributed Funds established during the year Dividend 2024
earnings December | Investment and Welfare MNates
31, 2024 development reward E’:::';: sh[:;'ﬂ- n::h
fund fund funds
(3,765,932,031,020) 0 0 0 il 0

We respectfully submit this report to the General Meeting of Shareholders for
consideration and approval./,

Sent fo:

- As above: & #tad

- Kept at: Archives Department, Board of Supervisors,
Board of Directors, Finance-Accounting Department.
CAreached awdited fnancial starements of parent
company and 2024 audited consalidared financial
statemenis of PETROCONs)
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VIETNAM NATIONAL INDUSTRY - ENERGY GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
No: %4 MTr-XLDK Ha Noi, o8¥-day..0._.month.... 2025
PROPOSAL

On selecting the Auditing Firm for 2025 Financial Statements

To:  The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 39 2020/Q0HI4 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020

Pursuant 1o the Organization and Operation Chaner of Petrovietnam Construction
Joint Stock Corporation (the Corporation PETROCONs);

The Board of Supervisors of Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
respectfully submits the list of 03 independent auditing companies for the 2023
Financial Statements of Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation to the
General Meeting of Shareholders for approval as follows:

- VACO Auditing Company Limited.
- AASC Auditing Company Limited.
- Vietnam Auditing and Valuation (VAE).

We respectfully submit this list to the General Meeting of Sharcholders to
authorize the Board of Directors 1o decide to select one of the above-mentioned three
auditing companies to audit the 2025 Financial Statements, review the 2025 Interim
Financial Statements of PETROCONs and prioritize the experienced units to conduct
audits at the majority of the Corporation’s member units to facilitate the audit of the
Corporation’s Financial Statements. In case the auditing contract cannot be signed
with one of the three above-mentioned companies, the General Meeting of
Shareholders shall authorize the Board of Directors to proactively select an auditing
company in accordance with regulations, ensuring compliance with the information
disclosure deadline of the listed company.

We respectfully submit this report to the General Meeting of Shareholders for
consideration and approval./.

St fo:

- As above,

= Board of Directors of PETROCONs;

- hept at: Archives Depanment, Board of
Supervisors, Finance-Accounting Department.

RN
_ -H';uﬁ;fnfﬂnm
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VIETNAM NATIONAL INDUSTRY - ENERGY GROUP SOCIALIST REFUBLIC OF VIETNAM

PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
No.: fol /TTr-XLDK Ha Noi, WT-.day.. ). month...... 2025
PROPOSAL

On settling the 2024 salary and remuneration and the 2025 salary and
remuneration plan of the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors

To: The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Pursuant to:

- The Enterprise Law Ne. 59/2020/0H 14 passed by the Natienal Assembly of the
Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020,

- The Organization and Operation Charter of Petrovietnam Consiruction Joint
Stock Corporation (the Corporation/PETROCONS);

- The Resolution No. TO/NQ-DHDCD-XLDK of the 2024 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders dated May 23, 2024;

The Board of Directors respectfully submits the General Meeting of Sharcholders
for approval of the 2024 salarv and remuneration settlement of the Board of Directors
and the Board of Supervisors and the 2025 salary and remuneration plan of the Board
of Directors and the Board of Supervisors of the Corporation as follows:

1. Settlement of salary and remuneration of the Board of Directors (BOD) and
Board of Supervisors in 2024:

Salary/Remuneration of the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors in 2024
shall be implemented in accordance with Resolution No. TO/NQ-DHCD-XLDK dated
May 23, 2024 by the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, specifically:

Unir: Dong
Salary/remuneration 2024

No. Contents
. Plan Implementation | Percentage
(4) (B) (1) @) | @i=g2ie)
1 | Board of Directors 2,496,600,000 2,178.200,018 8 7%
2 | Board of Supervisors 593,450,000 501,819,999 85%
Total 3,000,050,000 2,680,020,817 87%
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2. Balary and remuneration plan for the Board of Directors and Board of
Supervisors in 2025:

- Salary and remuneration of full-time members of the Board of Directors and the
Board of Supervisors: Implemented according to the Salary Regulations of
PETROCONs in accordance with regulations and the actual production and
business results of PETROCONS.

- Salary and remuneration of independent members of the Board of Directors: i) In
case a member works regularlv at PETROCONs Agency according to
PETROCONs" regulations, he/she will be paid salary and other benefits
according to the rcgime applicable to full-time members of the Board of
Directors who are representatives of the capital of the Vietnam National
Industry- Energy Group at PETROCONS: i) In case a member works irregularly
at PETROCONs Agency (Part-time). he/she will receive a remuneration cqual 1o
70% of the salary of the full-time member of the Board of Directors.

- The remuneration for concurrent members and part-time members of the Board
of Directors and the Board of Supervisors: not exceeding VND
5,000,000/ person/month.

We hereby respectfully require the General Meeting of Shareholders 1o consider
and approve the above contents.

Yours Sincerely./.

Sent to: FOR AND ON BEHALF OF

- As above; BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- Kept at: Archives Department, Board of
Directors, Department of Oreganization-
Administration Department.

i uh o[

ghiem Quang Huy
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VIETNAM NATIONAL INDUSTRY - ENERGY GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTTON Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
No.: "53 MTr-XLDK Ha Noi, u’}f" :fqv.._lj.‘ Jnonth... ... 2025
PROPOSAL

On regarding the dismissal of the member of the Supervisory Board of
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Ta: The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises o, 39/2020/QH 14 approved by the Natonal
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam dated June 17, 2020:

Pursuant to the Charter on Organization and Operation of Petrovietnam
Construction Joint Stock Corporation (the Corporation/PetraCons):

Pursuant to the Document No. 3477/CWNL-QTNNL dated April 29, 2025 of the
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation on Human Resources at PetroCons;

Pursuant to the resignation letter of the member of the Supervisory Board of
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation of Mr. Phung Van Sy dated May 9, 2025;

The Board of Directors of the Corporation respectfully submits to the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders 2025 for consideration and approval of the dismissal
of Mr. Phung Van Sy from the position of Member of the Supervisory Board of the
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation.

Respectfullvy submit to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025 of
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation for consideration and approval.

Sincerely./.

Sent fo:

= As above;

- Kept at: Archives Department, Board of
Directors; Department of Organization-

Administration w:ntw

--'""H*'gﬂe (Quang Huy
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VIETNAM NATIONAL INDUSTRY - ENERGY GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
No: 54 TTe-XLDK Ha Noi, o day.. 3. month...... 2025
PROPOSAL

On Regarding the election of members of the Board of Directors and Supervisory
Board of Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation for 2025-2030 term

To: The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 approved by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam dated June 17, 2020;

Pursuant to the Securities Law No. 542019/QHI14 approved bv the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam dated November 26, 2019;

Pursuant to the Charter on Organization and Operation of Petrovietnam
Construction Joint $tock Corporation (the Corporation/PetroCons);

Pursuant to the Document of nomination/self-nomication of candidate for
election as a member of the Board of Directors, Supervisory Board of Petrovietnam
Construction Joint Stock Corporation by shareholders/groups of shareholders and the
nomination, self-nomication Report of the Organizing Committee of the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders 2025;

Currently, the 2020-2025 term of 02 members of the Board of Directors,
including: 01 member holding the position of Chairman of the Board of Directors, 01
independent member of the Board of Directors and 01 member of the Supervisory
Board holding the position of Head of the Supervisory Board has expired. At the same
time, 01 member of the Supervisory Board has submitted a resignation letter. In order
to complete the personnel of the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board according
to regulations, the Board of Directors of Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock
Corporation respectfully submits to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 20235
for consideration and election of personnel of the Board of Directors and Supervisory
Board of the Corporation for the 2025-2030 term, specifically:

1. Board of Directors members:
= Number of Board of Directors members  : 02 members, including:

+ 01 member holding the position of Chairman of the Board of Directors
+ 01 independent member of the Board of Directors
= Term : 05 years (2025-2030)

e ———————————————
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2. Members of the Supervisory Board:

- Number of Supervisorv Board members  : 02 members, of which
+ 01 member holding the position of Head of the Board.
+ 01 member of the Board of supervisors

- Term : 05 years (2025-2030)

{The list of candidates elected as members of the Board of Directors and the
Supervisory Board will be reporied directly at the General Meeting).

Respectfully submit 1o the Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders 2025 of
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation for consideration and approval.

Sincerely..
ON BEHALF OF
Sent ro: ) | F DIRECTORS
As above: .{‘? . \h
- Kept at: Archives Department, Board of Il [CONG T
Directors, Organization-Administration W \XAY LiP Dis

Department. \ -5,_"- 1..'|E- ;
b i \T :
o
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VIETNAM NATIONAL INDUSTRY - ENERGY GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION

Ha Nai, nf"rﬂ day..d.. monih... ... 2025

REGULATIONS
ON ELECTING THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AND MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF
PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
FOR THE 2025-2030 TERM

Pursuant to the Enlerprise Law No. 3920200/0H 13 passed by the National
Assembly af the Secialist Republic af Vietnan on Jurne 17, 2020;

Pursnant to the Law on Seeprities No. 54 '_'-'I'.r."Q-'_'f_'J'H.i'-,t J|::.:'.|.l;5.1-':'.|’ ":'".1' the National
Assembly af the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on November 26, 201 9;

Pursuant to Decree No. [53/2020/ND-CF dared December 31, 2020 by the
Government detailing a number of articles of the Law on Securities;

Pursuant to Circular No. [15 guiding a mumber of articles on Corporate
Governance applicable to public companies in the Decree No. 155/20200ND-CP dated
December 31, 2020;

Pursuant to the Organization and Operation Charter of Petrovietnam
Construction Jeint Stock Corporation;

The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders of Petrovietnam Construction
Joint Stock Corporation will elect members of the Board of Directors and Board of
Supervisors for the 2025 - 2030 term according to the following contents:

Article 1. Subjects of election

Shareholders owning shares with voting rights and authorized representatives of
sharcholders owning voting shares (according to the list of shareholders made by
Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation “VSDC” on April 28, 2025).

Article 2.  Standards and conditions for members of the Board of Directors
(BOD)/Board of Supervisors (BOS)

2.1. Standards and conditions for members of the Board of Directors

a) Have full civil act capacity, not being a person who is not allowed to manage an
enterprise as prescribed in Clause 2, Article 17 of the Enterprise Law;

P ——— e
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b)

c)

d)

2.2.

Have professional qualifications and experience in business administration or in
the field, sector or business of the Corporation and not necessarily being a
shareholder of the Corporation,

Not a member of the Board of Directors at more than 05 other companies at the
same time:;

Not a relative of the General Director and other managers of the Corporation; of
the manager, the person with the authority to appoint the manager of the parent
company.

Standards and conditions for independent members of the Board of
Directors

In addition to meeting the provisions in Clause 2.1 above. independent members

of the Board of Directors must also meet the following standards and conditions:

aj

b)

c)

d)

2.3,

a)

b)

Not a person currently working for the Corporation or a subsidiary of the
Corporation: not being a person who has worked for the Corporation or a
subsidiary of the Corporation for at least the previous 03 consecutive vears;

Not a person who is receiving salary or remuncration from the Corporation,
except for allowances that a member of the Board of Directors is entitled to
receive according to regulations;

Not a person whose wife or husband, biological father, adoptive father,
biological mother. adoptive mother. biological child, adopted child, biological
brother, biological sister, biological sibling is a major shareholder of the
Corporation; is a manager of the Corporation or a subsidiary of the Corporation;

Not a person who directly or indirectly owns at least 01% of the total number of
voting shares of the Corporation;

Mot a person who has been a member of the Board of Directors or the Board of
Supervisors of the Corporation for at least the previous 05 (five) consecutive
years, except in the case of being appointed for 02 (two) consecutive terms.,

Standards and conditions for independent members of the Board of
Supervisors

Have full civil act capacity and not be subject to the provisions of Clause 2,
Article 17 of the Enterprise Law;

Be trained in one of the majors of economics, finance, accounting. auditing, law,
business administration or majors suitable to the business lines of the
Corporation;
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c)

d)

c)

£)

h)

Mot be a relative of a member of the Board of Directors. General Director and
other managers;

Not be a manager of the Corporation. not necessarily a shareholder or employvee
of the Corporation;

Not work in the accounting and finance department of the Corporation;

Not be a member or emplovee of an auditing firm approved to audit the financial
statements of the Corporation in the previous 3 consecutive vears;

Not be a relative of a business manager of the Corporation and the parent
company: representative of enterprise capital, representative of state capital at
parent company and at Corporation:

Other standards and conditions as prescribed by other relevant laws and the
Charter of the Corporation.

Article 3. Nomination/candidacy/recommendation of candidates to the Board of
Directors and the Board of Supervisors and the number of elected members

3.1. Nomination/candidacy of candidates to the Board of Directors and the

a)

b

Board of Supervisors

Sharcholders or groups of shareholders owning 10% or more of the total number
of common shares (according to the list of shareholders made by Vietnam
Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation on April 28, 2025) have the right
to nominate candidates to the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors.

Number of candidates nominated for the Board of Directors/Board of

Supervisors according to the Enterprise Law and the Corporation’s Charter.
Specifically:

Nomination of candidates for the Board of Directors

v Common shareholders have the right to aggregate their voting rights to nominate

candidates for the Board of Directors. Shareholders or groups of shareholders
holding 10% to less than 20% of the voling shares can nominate 01 (one)
member: from 20% to less than 30% 02 (two) members: from 30% to less than
40% 03 (three) members: from 40% 1o less than 50% 04 (four) members, from
50% or more all members.

¥ In case the number of candidates for the Board of Directors through nomination

and candidacy is still not enough as required under the decision of the General
Meeting of Sharcholders, the current Board of Directors shall recommend
additional candidates or organize nominations in accordance with the
Corporation’s Charter, the Internal Regulations on Corporate Governance and the
Operating Regulations of the Board of Directors. The introduction of additional
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candidates by the current Board of Directors must be clearly announced before
the General Meeting of Shareholders votes 1o elect members of the Board of
Directors in accordance with the law.

- Nomination/'candidacy of candidates to the Board of Supervisors

¥" Common shareholders have the right 1o aggregate their voting rights to nominate
candidates for the Board of Supervisors. Shareholders or groups of sharcholders
holding 10% to less than 30% of the voting shares can nominate 01 (one)
member; from 30% to less than 50% 02 (two) members; from 50% or more 03
members.

v In case the number of candidates for the Board of Supervisors through
nomination and candidacy is still not enough as required under the decision of
the General Meeting of Sharcholders. the current Board of Supervisors shall
recommend additional candidates or organize nominations in accordance with the
Corporation’s Charter, the Internal Regulations on Corporate Governance and the
Operating Regulations of the Board of Supervisors. The introduction of
additional candidates by the curmrent Board of Supervisors must be clearly
announced before the General Meeting of Shareholders votes to elect members of
the Board of Supervisors in accordance with the law,

3.2. Application for candidacy/nomination of members of the Board of
Directors/the Board of Supervisors

a)  Application for candidacy/nomination of members of the Board of Directors/the
Board of Supervisors (in the form)

b) Candidate’s CV (in the form)
¢) Valid copy of ID card/Passpon
d) Valid copy of certificates centifying cultural and professional qualifications;

e} Authorization letter and/or Minutes of group meeting (if the candidate is
nominated by the group):

fi Documents proving eligibility to nominate/run for election according to the
regulations.

% Note: Nominees and candidates for the Board of Directors/Board of Supervisors
must be responsible before the law and the General Meeting of Shareholders for

the accuracy and truthfulness of the content of their candidacy and nomination
documents.

3.3. Number of elected members of the Board of Directors/Board of Supervisors
a) The number of members of the Board of Directors elected at the 2025 Annual

e ——

Documents of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders- PETROCONs 81




b)

c)

General Meeting of Sharcholders is two (02), including one (01) independent
member of the Board of Directors.

The number of elected members of the Board of Supervisors at the 2025 Annual
General Meeting of Sharcholders is one (02) member.

The term of office of members of the Board of Directors and Board of
Supervisors is: 05 years (2025-2030).

Article 4. Ballot and Writing ballot

4.1.

41 1!
il

b)

c)

d)

List of candidates of Board of Directors/Board of Supervisors

Arranged in alphabetical order by name, write the full name on balloi.
Ballot and Writing ballot

Sharcholders or shareholders™ representatives are delivered at the same time:

One (01) ballot for members of the Board of Directors (blue) (including the
content of voting for members of the Board of Directors and independent
members of the Board of Directors) based on the attendance code corresponding
to the number of owned and authorized shares;

One (01) ballot for members of the Board of Supervisors (pink) based on the
attendance code corresponding to the number of owned and authorized shares:

The ballot is printed uniformly with the total number of votes according to the
altendance code;

In case of incorrect recording, the shareholder requests the Vote Counting
Committee to change the ballot;

The shareholder must himselfherself write the number of votes for each
candidate in the corresponding blank box on the ballot. In case of valid
authorization (with authorization letter), the authorized person has full voting
rights.

Invalid ballots

The ballot does not follow the form prescribed by the Corporation and does not
have the Corporation’s seal affixed;

The ballot is crossed out, corrected, added or has an incorrect name or is not on
the list of candidates approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders before
the voting;

The ballot has the total number of votes for the candidates of the
shareholder/shareholder representative exceeding the total number of votes of the
shareholder/shareholder representative;
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d) The ballot does not have the signature of the shareholder/shareholder
representative.

Article 5. Election method

a) Voting to elect members of the Board of Directors/Board of Supervisors shall be
conducted directly by secret ballot under the cumulative voting method.

b) Each shareholder shall have a total number of votes corresponding to the total
number of voting shares (including owned and authorized shares) multiplied by
the number of elected members of the Board of Directors/Board of Supervisors.
Shareholders shall have the right to allocate all or part of their total votes to one
or several candidates.

Article 6. Vote Counting Committee, voting and counting principles

6.1. Vote Counting Committee
a) The Vote Counting Committee is nominated by the Chairman and approved by
the General Meeting of Shareholders:

b)  The Ballot Counting Commitiee is responsible for:

- Introducing the content and method of recording the voting ballots and election
ballots;

- Supervising the voting and election of sharcholders at the General Meeting;

- Carrving out the procedures for counting votes to elect members of the Board of
Directors and the Board of Supervisors;

-  Notifying the Chairman and the General Meeting Secretariat of the results and
announcing the vote counting results before the General Meeting;

- Being responsible for the truthfulness and accuracy of the vote counting results,

¢) Members of the Vote Counting Committee must not be on the list of nominees
and candidates for the Board of Directors/ Board of Supervisors;

6.2. Principles of voting and counting
a) The Vote Counting Committee shall check the ballot box in the presence of

shareholders;

b) Voting shall begin when the distribution of ballots i1s completed and shall end
when the last shareholder places his ballot in the ballot box;

¢) The ballot counting shall be conducted immediately after the voling 15
completed;

d) The ballot counting results shall be recorded in writing and announced to the
General Meeting by the Chairman of the Ballot Counting Committee.
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Article 7. Principles for election of members of the Board of Directors/Board of
Supervisors

- The elected members of the Board of Directors/Board of Supervisors are
determined by the number of votes from high to low, starting from the candidate
with the highest number of votes until the required number of votes is reached.

. 02 or more candidates receive the same number of votes for the final member of
the Board of Directors/Board of Supervisors, a re-election will be conducted
among the candidates with the same number of votes.

Article 8. Preparation and publication of the Vote Counting Minutes

a)  Afier counting the votes, the Vote Counting Commiltee must prepare the Vote
Counting Minutes. The contents of the Vote Counting Minutes are: Total number
ol delivered votes, total number of collected votes. number of valid votes, invalid
votes, abstention votes: the number of votes for each candidate for the Board of
Directors/Board of Supervisors;

b} The full text of the Vote Counting Minutes must be published before the General
Meeting.

Article 9. Executive provisions

Complaints about the election and vote counting will be resolved by the
Chairman and recorded in the minutes of the General Meeting of Sharcholders.

These regulations consist of 09 anicles, are read publicly before the General
Meeting of Sharcholders and take effect immediately after being voted and approved
by the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

Sent to: FOR AND ON BEHALF OF
- As above; F,;W 'D.OF DIRECTORS
- Kept at: Archives Department, Board / r,fr’ i RMAN

=/ TONG

of Directors, Legal Department, ARt
PR b Lip niifee
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VIETNAM NATIONAL INDUSTRY - ENERGY GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
No.: BB-BHDBCB-XLDK Ha Noi, .....day......month.... 2025
DRAFT
MINUTES OF MEETING

OF THE 2023 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

OF PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK CORPORATION

COMPANY INFORMATION

L

-

Company name: PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK
CORPORATION

Business Registration Centificate No. 3500102363. the 22™ revision on January
18, 2024.

Head office: 14th Floor. Vieinam Petroleum Institute Building, No. 167, Trung
Kinh Street, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District. Hanoi City, Vietnam.

Today, at ... hour.......minutes on............... 2023, at the 12" Floor - Vietnam

Petroleum Institute Building, No. 167, Trung Kinh Street. Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay
District, Hanoi City, Vietnam, the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation (the Corporation/PFETROCONs) i1s
held with the following contents:

A.

]'r

PART 1: OPENING, PARTICIPANTS, LEGALITY OF THE GENERAL
MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
Opening of the General Meeting of Shareholders

The Organizing Committee of the General Meeting of Shareholders announces

the reason for opening the General Meeting and introduced the invited guests:

Bl

2

The representative of the Strategic shareholders and partners of the Corporation,
including:

+ Representative of Vietnam National Industry - Energy Group.

+ Representative.........ccccieinunnn

Petrovietnam Construction .T oint Smck Curpc-rah::m including:

+ Members of the Board of Directors.

+ Members of the Board of Management.

+ Head of the Board of Supervisors

+ Heads of Departments/Divisions/Party Offices/Mass organizations.

Participants, legality and validity of the General Meeting of Sharcholders

_—_— _—_———_———
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The attendees listened to the Minutes of the Shareholder Qualification
Examination Board presented by Mr. ...................... — Head of the Organization-
Administration Department, Head of the Sharcholder Qualification Examination Board
to attend the Congress.

Total number of sharcholders entitled to attend the 2025 Annual General Meeting
of Sharcholders is ......... shareholders. owning ..... ... voting shares in total. The list
of sharcholders entitled 1o attend the General Meeting is specified in the List of
securities owners (The last registration date is April 28, 2023) of Vietnam Securities
Depository and Clearing Corporation.

The total number of sharcholders present in person and awthorized 1o attend the
General Meeting: ......... shareholders, owning ................... shares accounting for
ceerr. Yo 0f the total number of voting shares of PETROCONSs.

According to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14. the organizational and
operational charter of PETROCONs, the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Sharcholders of PETROCONS is legal. valid and meets all prescribed conditions to be
held.

3. The General Meeting approves the Presidium, Secretariat and Vote
Counting Committee
To run the General Meeting. assist the Presidium in recording the Minutes and
Draft Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and counting votes for the
contents passed at the Meeting, the Congress approved the members of the Presidium.
Secretariat and Vote Counting Committee by raising voting cards with a confirmative
vote rate of ......% of the total number of voting shares.

<  The Presidium consists of the following 05 members:

+ Mr. Nghiem Quang Huy - Chairman of the Board of Directors - Chairman

Mr. Pham Van Khanh - Independent member of the Board of Directors -
Member

Mr. Tran Hai Bang - Member of the Board of Directors - Member
Mr. Chu Thanh Hai - Member of the Board of Directors - Member
Mr. Mguyen Hoai Nam - Member of the Board of Directors - Member

%  The Secretariat consists of the following 02 members:

+

=

+

.F.

+ Mr. Nguyen Phuong Nam - Person in charge of corporate governance and
Secretary of the Corporation - Head of the Secretariat

+ Ms, Nguyen Thi Lan Anh — Official of Legal Department - Member
%  The Vote Counting Committee consists of the following 08 members:

+ Mr. Le Manh Ha - Head of the Organization-Administration Department —
Head of the Department
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Mr. Nguven Phuong Nam - Person in charge of corporate governance and
Secretary of the Corporation - Deputy Head of the Department.

Ms. Nguyen Phuong Thao - Official of the Technical and Safety Department -
Member (Representative of the Sharcholder)

Mr. Nguyven Cong That - Deputy Head of the Organization- Administration
Department - Member

Mr. Do Anh Thuy - Deputy Head of the Organization- Administration
Depaniment - Member

Ms. Luong Thi Yen - Secretary of the Board of Directors — Member

+ Ms. Duong Thi Van Trang - Official of the Department of Invesiment Plan &

Restructuring - Member

4. Adoption of the Meeting Agenda
The Meeting listened 1o the Agenda of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Sharcholders of PETROCONs presented by Mr. ... = Member of

the Board of Directors of the Corporation, member of the Presidium.

The Meeting approved the Agenda of the General Meeting of Shareholders by

raising voting cards with the confirmative vote rate of ...... % of the total number of
voting shares.

Meeting agenda

Content 1:  Report on The 2024 Operation of the Board of Directors and the

Content 2:

Content 3;

Conftent 4:

Content 5:

Content 6:

Content 7:

2025 Operation Plan. Report on The Operation of the Board of
Directors by the Independent Member of the Board of Directors;

Report on The 2024 production and business results and the 2025
production and business plan,

The 2024 Operation Report of the Board of Supervisors and the
2025 Operation Plan.

Proposal on approving the 2024 Audited Financial Statements and
the 2024 Profit Distribution Plan.

Proposal on selecting the Auditing Fim for 2025 Financial
Statements.

Proposal on setiling the 2024 salary and remuneration and the 2023
salary and remuneration plan of the Board of Directors and the
Board of Supervisors.

Proposal on personne] affairs of the Board of Directors/ Board of
Supervisors under the authority of the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

Election of members of the Board of Directors and the Board of
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Supervisors.

5. Adoption of the regulations on organizing the Meeting

The Meeting listened to the Regulations on organizing the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Sharcholders of PETROCOMNs presented by Mr. ...oovvveiiiniiciinnnan. —
Member of the Board of Directors of the Corporation, Member of the Presndmm

The Meeting approved the Regulations on organizing the General Meeting of
Shareholders by raising voting cards with the confirmative vote rate of ....... % of the
todal number of voting shares.

Regulations on organizing the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
of PETROCONS (For details, see the attached documents ).

B. PART II: REPORTS, PROPOSAL
PETROCONs" 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders has
implemented the following contents:

. Mr ociiie = seriarsserenes presented the Report No. ....../BC-XLDK
dated.. . on The 2024 Operation of the Board of Directors and the 2025
Dpernlum F'lm‘t Mr. . ’ STy - Independent Member of

the Board of D:re:tuﬁ ﬂf !.he Cnrmlmtmn presenled Rﬂpi}n on The Operation of
the Board of Directors by the Independent Member of the Board of Directors.

(For details, see the attached Report).

|
=
A

cesessnrn™ sesrassersarnsssss presénted the Report Ne. ......... /BC-XLDK
171 on The 2024 production and business resuIT.s :md the 2025
production and business plan.

(For details, see the attached Report).

R . presented the Report No. ......./XLDK-BKS
dated...... .. 0N ThE 7'024 Operation Report of the Board of Sup{:rwsurs and
the 2025 Operation Plan.

(For details, see the attached Report).

4. Mr e s presented the Propasal No. ........occnun/TTE-
XLDK dated .......... on approving the 2024 Audited Financial Statements and
the 2024 Profit Distribution Plan.

(For details, see the attached Proposal).

5. Mr i = riieiiinnsenae.. presented the Proposal No. ........./ TTr-XLDK
L on selecting an Auditing Firm for the 2025 Financial Statements.

(For details, see the anached Proposal).

e ———————————
Documents af the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders- PETROCONs L1



6. Mr .= ... presented the Proposal No. .../ TTr-XLDK dated
- ON seltling the 2024 salary and remuneration and the 2025 salary and
remuneration plan of the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors.

(For details, see the attached Proposal).

i T . presented the Proposal No. .../ TTr-XLDK
dated ......... on Regardmg Ihe- dlSl‘mﬁbﬂl of the member of the Euper». isory Board
of Fc*trm ietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation.

(For details, see the attached Proposal).

8. Shareholders and their authorized represemtatives shall vote o approve the
contents from items 1 to 7 by voting at the meeting.

C. PART IIl: ELECTION CONTENTS OF MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
DRECTORS AND BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
At the 2025 Annual General Meeting, there are 02 members of the Board of
Directors (including 01 independent member of the Board of Directors) and 01
member of the Board of Supervisors whose term of office (2020-2025) has expired. At
the same time, (1 member of the Supervisory Board has submitied a resignation letter.
Therefore, to complete the personnel of the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board
according 1o regulations. at this meeting. the members of the Board of Directors and
Board of Supervisors will be elected for the new term of office (2025-2030).
TR . | ORI = (- 1) i i -
Organizing Committee presented the Report on nomination, candidacy and

recommendation of personnel to the Board of Directors and Board of
Supervisors.

(For details, see the attached Report).

2. Mr ......ccoiiiiciiiiiiiiniene.. — Chairman presented the Proposal on Regarding
the election :;'.-F memhers nf the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board of
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation for 2025-2030 term.

(For details, see the attached Proposal).

The Meeting voted to approve the Proposal and the List of candidates for the
Board of Directors and the Board Supervisors of the Corporation with a confirmative
vote rate of ....... %o of the total number of voting shares.

. R | R S R APy P R NP A A SPRAPyPPOTRRRORON , [ 51741 " -
Vote Counting Committee read the Regulations on electing the members of the
Board of Directors and members of the Board of Supervisors of Petrovietnam

Construction Joint Stock Cn_rEmalinﬂ
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The Meeting voted to approve the Regulations on electing members of the Board
of Directors and members of the Board of Supervisors with a confirmative vote rate of
....... % of the total number of voting shares.

(For details, see the attached Regulations)

4. Sharcholders and their authorized representatives attending the mecting shall
voite to elect the members of the Board of Directors and members of the Board of
Supervisors by direct voting at the meeting.

D. PART IV: SHAREHOLDERS' DISCUSSION AT THE GENERAL
MEETING
The shareholders raised a number of questions abowut the production and business
situation. plans and finances of PETROCONs and the Presidium fully answered the
questions at the General Meeting.

E. PART V: VOTING RESULTS AND ELECTION RESULTS AT THE
MEETING

MF. i = sressenssesissinss . Head of the Vote Counting Committee
announced the voting and election resulls as follows:

1. Voting results:

1.1 The Report No. ........./BC-XLDK dated... on The 2024 Operation of the
Board of Directors and the 2025 Operation Plan. Report on The Operation of
the Board of Directors by the Independent Member of the Board of Directors:

Affirmative votes:  ............. shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of attendees.

Megative votes: cessiecsran.. Shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of attendees.

Abstentions: cveesanaseen. Shares, accounting for ... % of the toial number

of voting shares of attendees.
1.2 The Report No. ......../BC-XLDK dated... on The 2024 production and
business results and the 2025 production and business plan:

Affirmative votes:  ............. shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of attendees.

Negative votes: seevensene. Shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of attendees.

Abstentions: cesvenna s Shares, accounting for ... % of the total number

of voting shares of attendees.

e e e LB
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1.3 The Report No. ....... JXLDK-BKS dated........on The 2024 Operation Report
of the Board of Supervisors and the 2025 Operation Plan:

Affirmative votes: ............. shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of attendees.

Negative votes: cevrressnrs.. Shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of attendees.

Abstentions:  ...oceeeenees shares, accounting for ... % of the total number

of voting shares of attendees.

1.4 The Proposal No. ........... STTr-XLDK dated ... on approving the 2024
Audited Financial Statements and the 2024 Profit Distribution Plan:

1.4.1 The 2024 Audited Financial Statements

Affirmative votes: oo shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of attendees.

Negative voles: ..occeeeeees shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of attendees.

Abstentions: ceeessneenn.. Shares, accounting for ... % of the total number

of voting shares of attendees.
1.4.2 The 2024 profit distribution plan

Affirmative votes:  ............. shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of anendees.

Negative votes: <vreereesse. Shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of attendees.

Abstentions: cvensenssess. Shares, accounting for ... %o of the total number

of voting shares of atlendees,

1.5 The Proposal No. ........./TTr-XLDK dated..... on selecting the Auditing Firm
Jfor the 2025 Financial Statemenis:

Affirmative votes: veressneeees. Shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of attendees.

Negative votes: ... shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of attendees.

Abstentions: ceveeasseens. Shares, accounting for ... % of the total number

of voting shares of aitendees.

1.6 The Proposal No. ........./TTr-XLDK dated.......... on seftling the 2024 salary
and remuneration and the 2025 salary and remuneration plan of the Board of
Directors and the Board of Supervisors:

Affirmative votes: ............. shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of attendees.
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Negative votes: s+ vransansees Shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of attendees.

Abstentions: cveveneeenses Shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of attendees.

1.7 The Proposal No. ........ SATr-XLDK dated..... on Regarding the dismissal of
the member of the Supervisory Board of Pefrovietnam Construction Joinr Stock
Corporation:

Affirmative voles:  ............. shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of attendees.

Negative votes: sesrennsnees. Shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of altendees

Abstentions: cesieasseeer. Shares, accounting for ... % of the total number

of voting shares of altendees.
2. Volting results:

The Meeting conducted the election and achieved the following results:

FULL NAME OF |

No. | RESULTS
o CANDIDATES VIEES

Election of Member of the Board of Directors

| | e it Elected

i

Election of independent members of the Board of Directors

Election of members of the Board of Supervisors

1 Elected

F. PART VI: PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTIONS AND MINUTES OF
THE GENERAL MEETING
Mr. Nguyen Phuong Nam - Person in charge of Corporate Governance &
Secretary of the Corporation - Head of the Secretariat presented the Minutes and
Resolution of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Petrovietnam
Construction Joint Stock Corporation.

G. PART VII: CLOSING PROCEDURES

The Minutes and Resolution of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Sharcholders of PETROCONs have been fully and honestly recorded by the
Secretariat and unanimously approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders by

-_—
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raising voting cards with the Affirmative votes of ................. shares, accounting for
s+ ¥o Of the total number of voting shares of attendees.

The Minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders were prepared at ... hours
... minutes on the same day and in three (03 ) copies of the same legal value.

The Chairman of the General Meeting declared the closing of the 20235 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders of PETROCONS at ... hour ... minutes on the same
day.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF FOR AND ON BEHALF OF
SECRETARIAT GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS
CHAIRMAN

e
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VIETNAM NATIONAL INDUSTRY - ENERGY GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
No.: /NQ-BHBCH-XLDK Ha Noi, ......day.......month.... 2025
DRAFT
RESOLUTION

OF THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
OF PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK CORFORATION
Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 39%2020/QH14 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020;

Pursuant 1o the Law on Securities No. 342019/0QH14 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on November 26, 2019 and its guiding
documents;

Pursuant to the organizational and operational charter of Petrovietnam
Construction Joint Stock Corporation (the Corporation/PETROCONs);

Pursuant to the Minutes of meeting of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Sharcholders of Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation No.
crensnnnse s BB=DHDCD-XLDK dated ....... e J202%;

DECIDES:

Article 1. To approve the report No. ....../[BC-XLDK dated ......on The 2024
Operation of the Board of Directors and the 2025 Operation Plan; Report on The
Operation of the Board of Directors by the Independent Member of the Board of

Directors.

Content: According to the Report No. ........../BC-XLDK dated ............. and the
attached Report of the Independent Member of the Board of Directors.

The meeting wunanimously approves these reports with ...................... voling
shares, accounting for ...... ... % of the total number of voting shares of artendees.

Article 2: To approve the report No. ........./BC-XLDK dated ....... on The

2024 production and business results and the 2025 production and business plan.

% Performance results of economic targets in 2024
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Year 2024 Flan
Implemen ' complet
No _ tation in | Implem | fom | 20242
ltems Unit 1023 Approved | emtation prrm:nl 013
i in2023 | agein | (%)
2024
: (%)
[ Production and " Billion =
I b ki dong 212.38 1.532.00 95188 4% 108%
- Parent company Eﬁ:"g“ 44136 28400 | 26184 |  30% | s9m
| 2 | Total revenues Ej:;“ | 1,237.96 1,704.00 | 1317.87|  77% | 106%
Parent company [:::;Z“ 765.74 1L055.00 | 609.04 58% | 80%
Billion " - .
3 | Pre-tax profits dong [267.12) 3.70 ; 4.51 13084
Billion | %
Parent comparn dong (162.65) 9.48 | 4.12 43%
4 | ARertax profits Bd"':;‘“' (265.22) 3.70 61| 7%
Parent company B;:J';:‘ (162.63) 9.48 1.12 43%
5 | State budget payable B&:;:‘ 41.05 az00 |  49.a4| 105% | 120%
Parent company B:;E;? 10.67 14.00 3.81 2% | 36%
6 | Average income dHﬂfiﬂﬂ 10.58 10.84 1142  105% | 108%
O T
Parent compeany nth 1325 13.25 13.25 1005 1005
% The 2025 plan with key economic targets
024
No. Items Plan ‘:"h’: iﬁ:ﬂﬂ:ﬂﬁ
Plan | Implementation | completion
percent
Production and
1 e R 1,532.00 082 88 B4% | 1,345.00 137%
Parent company 884,00 261.84 0% | 33200 127%
2 | Total revenues 1,704.00 1,.317.87 T% | 1,707.00 130%%
Parent company 1,055.00 609,04 J8% | 7600 131'%
3 | Pre-tax profits 3.70 4,81 130%4% 4.56 05%
Parent company 245 412 435 372 8%
4 | After-tax profits 370 1.61 T1% 4.56 I 75%
Parent company 948 412 43% 172 Ll
State budget
3 payable 47.00 49.14 105% 38,00 118%
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2024

No. ltems Plan :f::f iI"l: :i::::i:ﬂ
Plan Implementation | completion

percent |

FPrrrent conpyy 1400 LEI iy g, 2368

Average income

6 | {million 10.84 11.42 105% 11.80 104%
dong/person month ) '
Parent company 13,25 1325 fo0eg 410 106G |

The meeting wmanimously approved the Report with ... vOling
shares, accounting for ... ... ... % of the total number of voting shares of attendees.

Article 3. To approve The 2024 Operation Report of the Board of Supervisors
and the 2025 Operation Plan No. ......../XLDK-BKS dated...........

Content; According 1o the attached the Report No. ........../XLDK-BKS
dated......

The meeting wnanimously approved the report with ...................... valing
shares, accounting for .......... %a of the total number af voting shares of attendees.

Article 4. To approve the 2024 Audited Financial Statement and the 2024
Profit Distribution Plan

Contents: According to the anached Proposal WNo....../TTr-XLDK
dated............

No. Items Parent company Notes
1 Total after-tax profits (2024) 4,120,891, 160
T zﬂuc;:muiniad loss as of December 31, (3.765.932.031.020)
11 | Provisions for funds 0
1 | Reward and welfare fund 0|
2 | Financial reserve fund 0|
3 | Development investment fund 0]
IV | Dividend payment (2024) 0!
Approval of not setting aside funds and paying dividends in 2024,
The meeling wnanimously approved with .............co.... Voling shares,
accounting for ... ........ % of the total number of voting shares of attendees.
Article 5. Approval of the Proposal No. ......... TTr-XLDK dated....... on

selecting the Auditing Firm for 2025 Financial Statements
Content: According to the attached Proposal No. ........ MTTr-XLDK dated.....
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The meeting wnanimously approved with .................. voting shares,
accounting for ... .......% of the total number of voting shares of attendees.

Article 6. To approve the Proposal No. ......../TTr-XLDK dated.... on settling
the 2024 salary and remuneration and the 2023 salarv and remuneration plan of the
Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors

Content: According to the attached Proposal No. ._..../TTr-XLDK dated......

1. Salary and remuneration of the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors
in 2024: Settlement of salary and remuneration of the Board of Directors and the
Board of Supervisors in 2024 (according to the Resolution No. 70/NQ-DHDCP-
XLDK by the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders dated May 23, 2024),
specifically:

Salarv/remuneration (2024)

No. Contents .
_ Plan - Implementation Percentage |
i) (B) il - (2 | (3)=(2)(])
1 Board of Directors ' 2.496,600,000 | 2.178,200,018 87% |
2 | Board of Supervisors 593,450,000 501,819,999 85% |
Total 3,090,050,000 2,680,020,817 7%

2. The 2025 salary and remuneration plan of the Board of Directors and Board of
Supervisors:

- Salary and remuneration of full-time members of the Board of Directors and

Board of Supervisors: Implemented according to the Salary Regulations of

PETROCONs in accordance with regulations and the actual production and
business results of PETROCONSs.

- Salary and remuneration of independent members of the Board of Directors: i) In
case a member works regularly under the working regime at the Corporation’s
Office, he/she will be paid salary and other benefits like the full-time members of
the Board of Directors; ii) In case a member works irregularly at the
Corporation’s Office (part-time), he/she will be paid remuneration equal to 70%
of the salary of the full-time member of the Board of Directors.

- Remuneration of part-time members of the Board of Directors and the Board of
Supervisors: no more than VND 5,000,000/person/month.
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The meeting unanimously approved the above content with ..................... valing

shares, accounting for ... ..... % of the total number of voting shares of atiendees.

Article 7. Approval of the Proposal No. .........TIr-XLDK dated.... on
Regarding the dismissal of the member of the Supervisory Board of Petrovietnam
Construction Joint Stock Corporation.

Content: According to the attached Proposal No. ........ MTr-XLDK dated.....

The meeting unanimously approved the above Proposal with

voting shares, accounting for ... ....% of the tetal number af voiing shares of

atiendees.

Article B. The General Meeting of Sharcholders elected members of the Board
of Directors and the Board of Supervisors for the 2025-2030 term with the following
results:

No. FULL NAME VOTES

List of clected members of the Board of Directors

List of elected independent members of the Board of Directors

I (A S S SR RERRELELL LI IR RRERERRRRRAREERLLLER LN,
|

List of elected members of the Board of Supervisors

2 .............................................

...........................

Article 9. Execulive provisions
This Resolution takes effect from May 29, 2025,

The General Meeting of Shareholders assigns the Board of Directors, the Board
of Supervisors and the Board of Management to organize the implementation of the
contents approved at the General Meeting on the basis of ensuring the interests of
PETROCONSs and the interests of shareholders in accordance with the organizational
and operational Charter of PETROCONS and the current legal regulations.
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This Resolution was approved fully by the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders of Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation at the meeting on
May 29, 2025 with the affirmation vote rate of 100% of the total number of voting
shares of anendees.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF GENERAL
MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
Sent ro: CHAIRMAN
= As per Article 9 (for implementation);
= State Securities Commission. Hanoi Stock
Exchange {for repori).
- Information publisher (for informarion
disclosure);
= PETROCONs wehsite (instead of sending
notices to sharcholders);
= Kept at: Board of Directors. Archives Nghiem Quang Huy
Depariment. Legal Department.
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VIETNAM OIL AND GAS GROUP THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION.JSC Independence - Freedom — Happiness

No: (/4 /BC-XLDK

Hﬂ'ﬂﬂl-,/gjﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂr. 2025

REFORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (ABRIDGED VERSION)
2024

To:

- The State Securities Commission;
- The Hanoi Stock Exchange

- Name of Company: PetroVieinam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
{PetroCons).

- Address of headoffice: 14th floor, VPI tower, 167 Trung Kinh street, Yen Hoa
ward, Cau Giay district, Hanoi city, Vietnam.

- Telephone: 024.37689291 Fax: 024.37689290 Email: infof@pve.vn

= Charter capital: 4.000.000.000.000 Vietnamese Dong (Four thousand billion
Vietnamese Dong)

- Stock symbol: PVX

- Governance model: General Meeting of Shareholders, Board of Directors, Board
of Supervisors, General Director and Director.

- The implementation of internal audit: has Internal audit division directly under
Financial-Accountant and Audit Department.

L. Aectivities of the General Meeting of Shareholders

Information on meetings, resolutions and decisions of the General Meeting of

Shareholders (including the resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders approved in the
Jorm of written comments)

No. Rﬁnlnﬂ:;:ﬂ!:him Date Coistesit
I TONQ-DHPCD - 25052024 i Resolutions of the 2024 Annual General Meeting
XLDK ' of Shareholders of PetroCons

II. Board of Directors
1. Information about the members of the Board of Directors:

The date becoming/ceasing
to be the member of the
Board of Directors’ . :
No. e Position Board of Directors
Date of Date of

appointment dismissal

| | Mr. Nghiem Quang Huy | Chairman 04/11/2021

: Members of the Board of
2 | Mr. Chu Thanh Hai Direct 30/06/2021
3 | Mr. Tran Hai Bang Members of the Board of | 30/06/2021




The date becoming/ceasing
to be the member of the

No. Spand of Hreckars Position Board of Directors
members
Date of Date of
appoiniment | dismissal
Directors
. Members of the Board of
4 | Mr. Nguyven Hoai Nam Plesciing 20/01/2022
' Independent members of
5 | Mr. Pham Van Khanh | the Board of Directors 24/06/2020
2. Meetings of the Board of Directors
Number of
; - meetings
Na. Bonrd of [::'er:tnrs attended by A“Er“:::n“ Reasons for absence
e Board of
Directors
| | Mr. Nghiem Quang Huy 07/07 100%
2 | Mr. Chu Thanh Hai 07/07 100%
3 | Mr. Tran Hai Bang 07/07 100%
4 | Mr. Nguyen Hoai Nam 07:07 100%%
3 | Mr. Pham Van Khanh 0507 T1% Had reasons for absence

3. Supervising the Board of Management by the Board of Directors:

- The Board of Directors follows and supervises Board of Management in order to
implement Resolutions of the Board of Directors.

- The Board of Directors attends and has opinions in Regular work meetings of
Board of Management.

- The Board of Directors follows and gets information of business management
through Board of Management’s repor/leiter to Board of Directors.

- The Board of Directors coorporates with Board of Supervisors in order to
supervise business execution and management work of PetroCons.

4. Activities of the Board of Directors’ subcommittees: None of subcommittees.

5. Resolutions/Decisions of the Board of Directors in 2024:
Resalution/

No. Decision No. Date Content
Resolution on PetroCons' Capital Representative at
1 05MQ-XLDK 10012024 | DOBC 1o appoint Mr. Pham Van Thu as Company
Director.
Resolution on Approving the short-term credit limit
of the Parent Company - PetroVietnam Construction
2 09/NQ-XLDK 17/01/2024 | Joint Stock Corporation to serving business
activitics in 2023-2024 at BIDV Bank - Ha Dong
Branch.




No.

Resolution/
Decision No,

Date

Content

12/NQ-XLDK

3110172024

Resolution on implementing Business tasks in 2024
of PetroCons.

14/NQ-XLDK

06/02/2024

Resolution on approving the personnel work of
Thanh Hoa Petroleum Construction Joint Stock
Company (PVC-TH).

16MNQ-XLDK

1270372024

Decision on Establishing the Organizing Committee |
of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders of PetroCons.

18/NQ-XLDK

14/03/2024

Resolution on Approval of the policy of liquidating
02 cars of the PetroCons.

19/NQ-XLDK |

20/03/2024

Resolution on approving the organization plan and
contents of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders of PetroCons.

IRNQ-XLDK

190472024

Resolution on approving the contents of the 2024
Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders of PYC-
IC.

3U/NQ-XLDK

22/04/2024

Resolution on approving the contents of the 2024
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of PVC-
Binh Son.

10

34NQ-XLDK

24/04/2024

Resolution on  Approving the policy of
implementing the process of introducing personnel
to hold the position of Director of PVC-TH from the
source of mobilization between PetroCons'
Companies.

11

35MNQ-XLDK

25/04/2024

Resolution on Approval of the introduction of
changing personnel to hold the position of Head of
the Board of Supervisors of PVC Thai Binh.

12

3TMNQ-XLDK

25/04/2024

Resolution on approving the contents of the 2024
Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders of PVC

13

38/NQ-XLDK

25/04/2024

Resolution on approving the contents of the 2024
Annval General Meeting of Shareholders of
PetroCons Dong Do.

14

IWNQ-XLDK

26/0472024

Resolution on approving the appointment of
PetroCons’ capital representative at PVC-Binh Son

15

46/NQ-XLDK

07/05/2024

Resolution on Approval of the nomination of Mr.
Hoang Dac Tuan as Director of PVC-TH.

{4

48/MNQ-XLDK

07/05/2024

Resolution on approving the contents of the 2024
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of DOBC.

17

52/NQ-XLDK

15/05/2024

Resolution on approving the contents of the 2024
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of PVC-
MS.

13

53/NQ-XLDK

15/0572024

Resolution on Voting additional members of the
Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors of
PVC-Binh Son introduced by other sharcholders.




N,

Resolution/
Decision Mo,

Date

Content

19

54/NQ-XLDK

167052024

Resolution on Approval of the completion of the

personelirepresentatives of PetroCons' capital at the
PetroCons member companies.

20

FS9MNQ-XLDK

17/05/2024

Resolution on voting on the dismissal and election
of additional members of the Board of Supervisors
of PVC Duyen Hai introduced by other shareholders
at the 2024 Annual Geperal Meeting of
Shareholders.

21

SO/NQ-XLDK

20/05/2024

| Resolution on Approval of the introduction of
personnel restructuring for the Board of Directors
and Supervisory Board of DOBC.

TOWNQ-XLDK

23/0572024

Resolution of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders of PetroCons Corporation.

T6/NQ-XLDK

31/05/2024

Resolution on Approval of Mr. Vu Manh Quang's
resignation from the position of PetroCons’® Deputy
General Director.

TINQ-XLDK

10/06/2024

Resolution on Approval for the Representative of
PetroCons’ capital share at PetroCons-Dong Do to

re-appoint the Company Director.

25

93/NQ-XLDK

02/772024

Resolution on Approval for the Representative of
PetroCons' capital share at PVC - [C to re-arrange
organizational model.

26

96MNQ-XLDK

10772024

Resolution on Plan for handling PetroCons
equipments.

27

103/ NQ-XLDK

05/9/2024

Resolution on Approval for the Representative of
the Corporation's capital share at PVC-Binh Son to
vote to approve the liquidation of 01 old car and

purchase of 01 new car to serve the management and
operation of FYC-Binh Son

28

106/NQ-XLDK

11/9/2024

Resolution on approving the resignation :ppfmaﬁun
of PetroCons' capital representative, Chairman of
PYC-Metal Board of Directors of Mr. Doan Huu

Trac.

111/NQ-XLDK

18/9/2024

Resolution on the completion of the representative
of the PetroCons’ capital at PVC-TH.

30

127/NQ-XLDK

06/11/2024

Resolution on Approval for the Representative of
the Corporation's capital share at PetroCons Dong
Do to vote to approve the car liquidation and
purchase of 01 new car to serve the management and
operation of PetroCons Dong Do

31

135MNQ-XLDK

05/122024

Resolution on Approving the short-term credit limit

of the Parent Company - PetroVietnam Construction
Joint Stock Corporation to serving business
activities in 2024-2025 at BIDV Bank - Ha Dong
Branch.

32

137TMNQ-XLDK

101272024

Resolution on introducing personnel to hold the
position of Chairman of the Board of Dhirectors of

4




Mo,

Resolution/
Decision No.

Date

Content

Thanh Hoa Petroleum Construction Joint Stock
Company.

1

e —

Decisions

20/QD-XLDK

22032024

Decision on Approving the 2024 management cost
plan of the Parent Company and the 2024
management cost estimate of the PetroCons Head
office.

[

210b-XLDK

26/03/2024

Decision on Issue the Action Program of PetroCons
to implement the Action Program of PVN attached
with Decision No. 1327/QD-DEVN dated March 6,

| 2024

40QD-XLDK

26/04/2024

Decision on contributing PetroCons' capital share to
the Capital Representative at PVC - Binh Son.

44/0D-XLDK

03052024

Decision on PetroCons persons 1o join the Group 1o
visit Truong Sa island and DK plaiform in 2024,

45/QD-XLDK

04/05/2024

Decision on approving sending PetroCons person on
abroad business trips (Korea).

56/QB-XLDK

171052024

Decision on contributing PetroCons' capital share 1o
the Capital Representative at PVC — MS.

61/QD-XLDK

2010572024

Decision on contributing PetroCons' capital share to
the Capital Representative at DOBC.

T4/QD-XLDK

28/05/2024

Decision on Approval of 2023 management cost
settlement of Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant
Project Management Board.

TTIQD-XLDK

31/05/2024

Decision on the dismissal of Mr. Vu Manh Quang

from the position of PetroCons Deputy General
Director.

10

81/0D-XLDK

11/06/2024

Decision on strengthening the Steering Committee
and the Working Group of the Steering Committee
on anti-terrorism  prevention and control of
PetroCons

83/QB-XLDK

11/6/2024

Decision on approving the implementation plan of
Contract No. [1S/HD-NDVT/24&NBSP; dated
March 12, 2024 between Vinh Tan Thermal Power
Company - Branch of Power Generation
Carporation 3 - Joint Stock Company and SAIGON
E.T.C - PETROCONS Joint Venture,

12

84/QD-XLDK

14/06/2024

Decision on issuing the Regulation on Document of
PetroCons Head office.

13

83QD-XLDK

21/0672024

Decision on approving the implementation plan of
Contract No. UBDCS-PS-21082023 dated August
21, 2023 between Thermal Power Project
Management Board 3 - Branch of Power Generation
Corporation 1 One Member Co., Ltd. and VCAP-

3




No.

Resolution/
Decizsion No.

Date

Content

PETROCONS Joint Venture,

14

8R/QB-XLDK

2370672024

Decision on approving the results of the assessment
of the level of completion of duties and
responsibilities of PetroCons' representative at other
Enterprises in 2023,

15

89/0b-XLDK

26/06/2024

Decision on approving and issueing the Regulations
on recruitment, management and use of labor of the
PetroCons Head office.

16

92/Qb-XLDK

02/7/2024

Decision on Approval of selection of auditing unit |
for the Parent Company's Financial Statements and
the PetroCons’ Consolidated Financial Statements in
2024,

17

101/0B-XLDK

26/82024

Decision on Approval of 2023 impimmtnl:i-unf
management costs of PVC's Project Management |
Board at South.

18

104/0B-XLDK

05/9/2024

Decision on Approval of the implementation plan of |
Contract No. 150/ HDKT/2024WNMNDSHI-
PETROCONs dated August 24, 2024 between the
01l and Gas Power Generation Branch - Vietnam Qil
and Gas Group and PetroCons on Renovation and
repair of the housing area for employees operating
Song Heu 1 Thermal Power Plant.

19

105/QB-XLDK

05/9/2024

Decision on Approval of the implementation plan of
Contract  No. 151/HDKT/2024/NMNDSH1-
PETROCONs dated August 24, 2024 between the
0il and Gas Power Generation Branch - Vietnam Qil
and Gas Group and PetroCons on the renovation of
equipment washing area, boiler slag discharge area
of Units 01 and 02 of Song Hau 1 Thermal Power
Plant Project.

107/QD-XLDK

11/9/2024

Decision on the termination of the appointment of
PetroCons' capital representative at PVC-Metal.

21

109/QB-XLDK

13/972024

Decision on Approval of the implementation plan of
contract No. 23/ 2024/HDXD-EVNPMN2 dated July
29, 2024 between Power Project Management Board
2 and Geovietnam Joint Stock Company and
PetroCons Joint Venture on the construction of slag
dump, water collection tower, retumn water pipeline

of Quang Trach | Thermal Power Plant Project.

112/QB-XLDK

18/9/2024

Decision on contributing PetroCons' capital share to
the Capital Representative at PVC-TH.

125/QB-XLDK

30/10:2024

Decision on Approval and issue PetroCons' Contract
Management Regulations

128/QD-XLDK

0811172024

Decision on approving the abolition of the Citizen
Reception Regulations of PetroCons.

130/0D-XLDK

15/11/2024

Decision on Approval of the implementation plan of
Contract No. 214/2024/HD/CNPC-PETROCONS

dated October 18, 2024 between Cao Ngan Thermal
6



Resalution/

Decision Na. Date Content

Nao.

Power Company - TRV and PetroCons.

Decision on contributing PetroCons' capital share to
i | AIOeDERLDE. | M0 the Capital Representative at PVC-TH.

I1L. Board of supervisors:
1. Information about members of Board of Supervisors:

——

i The date
becoming/ceasing
No, M'm;: n;ﬂf:nnr:rd of Position to be the member Qualification
P of the Board of ,
Supervisors f
! Head of the - Master of Business
I i Mr. Hua Xuan Nam Board of 00772021 Administration .
L Supervisars | - Bachelor of Economics
le:i:‘r: ; ' Engineer in Control and |
2 | Mr. Phug Van Sy heBowd | OU07m0z | Avtomationof
| of Pﬁtm:hl:mj_.r;a! Refinery
Supervisors Technologies .
Partime : -
Lo min'f:m in Thermal
3 | Mr. Nguyen Mgoc Cuon the Board 01/07/2 ;
s g & of e - Em:h:l_ur of Invelsing
Supervisars 1 Economics

1. Meetings of Board of Supervisors: In 2024, Board of Supervisors organized
02 meetings with full members of Meetings of Board of Supervisors.

3. Supervising Board of Directors, Board of Management and shareholders by

Board of Supervisors
3.1. Result of Supervising Board of Directors

In 2024, Board of Supervisors attended all meetings of Board of Directors/Board of
Management.

The Board of Directors of PetroCons has strictly implemented the Resolution of the
2024 General Meeting of Sharcholders. The Board of Directors of PetroCons has issued
Directives and Resolutions directing the Management Board; the functional Departments
at the Parent Company and the Capital Representatives at the Subsidiaries, Affiliates, and
Financial Investment Companies to implement the directives and resolutions of the
Vietnam Oil and Gas Group, the Resolution of the General Meeting of Sharcholders, to
organize production and business in the direction of maximizing PetroCons' resources to
ensure compliance with the provisions of law and has issued a number of documents and
resolutions. The Board of Directors has performed the leading role, supervising the
management of the Board of Directors in the operation of production and business to
remove difficulties, problems, limitations, prevent potential risks, maintain a stable
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production and business operation apparatus, organize regular and ad hoc meetings in the
form of a centralized meeting or through written opinions to issue Resolutions and
decisions to resolve issues under the authority according to the operating regulations of
the Board of Directors and the Charter of the Corporation.

- The Board of Directors has performed the role of directing, supervising and
supporting the Board of Management in operating the business activities of PetroCons.

- The Board of Directors restructures and rearranges PetroCons' business activities
to stabilize PetroCons' production and business activities

3.2. Result of Supervising Board of Management:

In the context of many difficultics and challenges, the PetroCons Board of
Management has managed and operated production and business activities in accordance
with the decentralization between the Board of Directors and the Board of Management.
The Board of Management has properly performed its role and responsibilities in
managing production and business activities, strictly and fully complying with the
regulations and provisions of the law, PVN and PetroCons.

The Board of Management has strengthened the implementation of cost
reduction measures, strictly controlled expenses and cash flow to maintain production
and business activities; implemented measures 1o strengthen internal resources and
continue to promote marketing, bidding, and search for new jobs; actively deployed the
search for investors interested in receiving capital transfers at units as well as promoting
work related to PetroCons restructuring.

The payment of salaries to employees of the Corporation and the Project
Management Boards is carried out on the principle of linking salaries to the assigned job
position, quality and efficiency of work, ensuring the life of employees working at the
PetroCons Headoffice, with stable income. However, there are still some units that have
not had a source of work for many years, so they still owe salaries and social insurance.

3.3, With Shareholders:

- The Board of Supervisors has submitted a report to the 2024 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders approving the Board of Supervisors' performance repor, the
Board of Supervisors' remuneration in 2024 and the Board of Supervisors' performance
plan in 2025,

-For the largest shareholder, the Vietnam Oil and Gas Group, the Board of
Supervisors fully implements periodic monitoring reports every quarter/year and ad hoc
reports when requested by the Group. The Board of Supervisors has submitted them in
accordance with the prescribed content and deadline

4. The coordination among the Board of Supervisors, the Board of
Management, Board of Directors and other managers:

- The coordination among the Board of Supervisors, the Board of Directors and the
Board of Management is carried out on the principle of stability and sustainable

development of PetroCons and ensuring the rights of Shareholders according to the
provisions of the Laws and PetroCons’ Charter.
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- In 2024, the Board of Supervisors closely coordinated with the Board of Directors
and the Board of Management in performing assigned tasks, coordinating in inspection
and supervision activities according to regulations.

- The Board of Directors and the Board of Management have cooperated and
created favorable conditions for the Board of Supervisors to perform their duties, such as
providing information and documents, assigning staff to coordinate with the Board of
Supervisors when requested; participating in meetings of the Board of Directors and
meetings of PetroCons.

- The Board of Supervisors has informed the Board of Directors and the Board of
Management about the inspection and control plan of the year. The Board of Supervisors
has coordinated with the functional departments of PetroCons in inspecting and
controlling the activities of member units and reported the results to the Board of
Directors.

= Quarterly, the Board of Supervisors prepares quarterly and annual inspection and
supervision reports and sends them to the Vietnam OQil and Gas Group and to the Board
of Directors and the Board of Management of PetroCons.

IV. Ban diéu hanh

Date of appointment/
dismissal of members of
Members of Board of |  Date of the Board of
No. Management birth Unaliiication Management
Date of Date of
appointment | dismissal
1 | Mr. Phan Tu Giang 07/06/1972 E‘;‘;‘;"‘ equipenent 01/01/2024
Construction
2 | Mr.Tran Quoc Hoan 10/12/1973 Enginesr 01/01/2024
Bachelor of
, v :
3 | Mr. Nguyen Van Bong | 30/04/1965 E il 080772011
- Master of
Business
4 | Mr. Bui Son Truong 24/03/1970 | Administration 29/1072018
- Mechanical
engineering
Thermal power
5 | Mr. Vu Manh 1270171979 4
Quang Engi 30005202
Petroleum Chemical
7 | Mr. Pham Trung Kien | 26/06/1978 | Equipment and 02/10/2023
Machinery Engineer




V. Chief Accountant

Date of appointment/
te of dismissal
Name I::r::: Qualification
Date of Date of

appointment | dismissal

Mr. Vu Minh Cong 30/01/1979 | Bachelor of Economics 04/01/2022

¥1. Training courses on corporate governance

In 2024, PetroCons sent management staffs to attend training courses and scminars
organized by PVN, as follows:

= Training Program on the Government's salary reform policy in 2024 and its

impacts on businesses according to Decision 1652/QD-DKVN dated March 18, 2024 of
the Vietnam Qil and Gas Group.

- Workshop on Building human resources for sustainable energy development
according to Document No. 1119DKVN-QTNL dated February 28, 2024 of Vietnam
Oil and Gas Group.

- Workshop on handling petitions and letters in the PVN according to Official
Dispatch No. 1365/DKVN-PCTTr dated March 7, 2024 of PYN.

- Training program on Instructions for implementing the Regulations on
management of title holders, positions and representatives of PVN's capital at other
enterprises according to Official Dispatch Mo. 3951/QD-DKVN dated June 7, 2024

- Macroeconomic and financial seminar - Quarter II, 2024 according to Official
Dispatch No. 3982/DKVN-KTDT dated June 7, 2024

= Investment - Finance Conference 2024 according to Official Dispaich No.
S003/DEVN-KTKT dated June 10, 2024 of Vietnam Oil and Gas Group

- Professional workshop on control work at units in 2024 according to Official
Dispaich No. 5362/DEKVN-HDTV dated July 27, 2024

- Seminar on the drafi Law on State Capital Management and Investment in
Enterprises according to Official Dispatch No. 5979/DKVN-TCKT dated August 20,
2024

VII. The list of affiliated persons of the public company 2024 and transactions of
affiliated persons of the Company
1. The list of affiliated persons of the Company: as attached APPENDIX 1.

2, Transactions between the Company and its affiliated persons or between the
Company and its major shareholders, internal persons and affiliated persons: none.

3. Transaction between internal persons of the Company, affiliated persons of
internal persons and the Company's subsidiaries in which the Company takes controlling

power: None,
4. Transactions between the Company and other objects:

4.1. Transactions between the PetroCons and the company that its members of
Board of Management, the Board of Supervisors, General Director have been founding
members or members of Board of Directors, or CEOs in three (03) latest years
(calculated at the time of reporting): None.
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4.2. Transactions between PetroCons and the company that its affiliated persons
with members of Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors, General Director and other
managers as a member of Board of Directors, Director (General Director or CEQ): None,

4.3. Other transactions of PetroCons (if any) may bring material or non- material
benefits for members of Board of Directors, members of the Board of Supervisors,
Director (General Director) and other managers: None.

VIIL Share transactions of internal persons and their affiliated persons in 2024

1. Transactions of internal persons and affiliated persons with shares of PetroCons:
as attached APPENDIX 2.

2. Transactions of internal persons and affiliated persons with shares of the
company: None,

IX. Other significant issues: None.

RMJ,'EJ._fen#.- CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- AsTo; Fa =0
- PetroCons Board of Directors; A £ T ':H'. k)
PetroCons Board of Supervisors; fle {CONG T
PetroCons Board of Management: i
- PetroCons  Financial and  Accouting
Deparment;
PetroCons Personel and Administration =
Deparment: T Nohi

Nghiem Quang Huy

- PetroCons Information publisher:
- Archied VT, PetroCons Board of Directors,

Ameis”
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PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
14th Floor, VPl Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanci, Vietnam

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

The Board of Management of PefroVietnam Construction. Joint Stock Corporation (“the Corporation”)
m&u report and the Corporation’s Separate Financial Staternents for the fiscal year ended as at 31
r 20,

THE CORPORATION

PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation (the “Corporation”), an enty under management of
Vietnam (il and Gas Group (PVN), formerty known as PefroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Company,
was established in Vietnam by privatizing Petroleum Design and Construction Company under Decision
No. S327Q0-TCCB dated 26 March 2004 of the Minister of Industry (cumently known as the Ministry of
Industry and Trade). PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Company operates under Business
Regisiration Certificate for Joinl Stock Company MNo. 4903000232 dated 13 March 2008 issued by
Department of Planning and Invesiment of Ba Ria - Vung Tau

As per Resolution No. 3604/NQ-DKVN dated 26 October 2007, the Board of Members of Vietnam il and
Gas Group ("PetroVietnam”) approved the proposal on transfer of Petro Construction Joint Stock
Company into PetroVietnam Constructon Joinl Stock Corporation, operating under the madel of halding -
subsidiary company. The Corporation operates under Business Regsiration Certficale for Joint Stock
Company No. 3500102365 dated 20 December 2007 and the 225t change on 18 January 2024, issued by
Hanol Authority for Planning and Investment.

The Corporation’s head office is located at 14th floor, Vietnam Petroleum Institute building, 167 Trung
Kinh Street, Yen Hoa YWard, Cau Giay Districl, Hanoi.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND BOARD OF SUPERVISION
Members of the Board of Directors during the fiscal year and to the reporting date are

Mr. Nghiem Quang Huy Chairman

Mr. Pham Yan Khanh Independent Member
Mr. Tran Hai Bang Member

Mr. Chu Thanh Hai Member

Mr. Mguyen Hoal Mam Member

Members of the Board of Management during the fiscal year and 1o the reporting date are:

Mr Tran Quoc Hoan General Director {Appainted on 01 January 2024)
Mr. Phan Tu Giang General Director {Resigned on 01 January 2024)
Mr. Nguyen Van Dong Deputy General Director

Mr. Bui Son Truong Deputy General Direcior

Mr. Pham Trung Kien Deputy General Direclor

Mr. Vu Manh Cluang Deputy General Director (Resigned on 30 May 2024)

The legal represantative of the Corporation during the year and until the preparation of these Separate
Financial Stalemants is Mr. Tran Quoc Haan (Ganeral Dinscior).

Members of the Board of Supervision are:

Mr. Hua Xuan Nam Head of the Board
Mr. Mguyen Mgos Cuong Membar

Mr. Phung Van Sy Member
AUDITORS

The auditors of AASC Auditing Firm Company Limited have taken the audit of Separale Financial
Statements for the Corporation,




PETROVIETMAM CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
14th Fioor, VPI Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street. Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanci, Vietnam
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STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPOMSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Managemen! is responsibla for the Separale Financial Statements which give a true and fair

view of the financial position of the Corporation, its oparating results and Ms cash Tows for the year. In
preparing thosa Separate Financial Statements, the Board of Management is required fo:

= Estabish and maintain an internal conirol system which is delermined necessary by the Board of
Directors and Board of Management to ensure the preparation and presentalion of Separate Financial
Staternents do nof contain any maleral missiatement caused by emors or frauds;

- Selact suilable accounting policies and than apply them consistently;

- Make judgments and estimates that are reascnable and prudent;

Siate whether apphcable accounting standards hawve been followed, subject o any material departures
disciosed and explained in the Separate Financial Statements;

- Prepare the Separate Financial Statements on the basis of complance with Vietnamese Accounting
Siandards, Vietnamesa Corporate Accounting Systermn and the statutory requirements relevant to the
preparation and presentation of Financial Stalements:

- Prepare the Separale Financial Stalements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate fo
prasumse that the Corporation will confinue in buginess.

The Board of Management is responsible for ensuring that accounting records are kept to reflect the
financial position of the Corporation, with reasonable accuracy al any time and to ensure that the
Separale Financial Statements comply with the cument Siate’s regulstions. It s responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Corporation and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
defection of fraud and other irregularties.

The Board of Managemant confirms that the Separate Financial Statements give a trua and fair view of
the financial position at 31 December 2024, its operation results and cash flows in the year 2024 of the
Corporation in accordance with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporaie
Accounting System and the statutory requirements relevant 1o the preparation and presentation of
Financial Statements.

Cther commitments

The Board of Management pledges that the Corporation complies with Decree No. 1552020/ND-CP
dated 31 December 2020 on detailing and guiding the implemantation of a number of anticles of the Law
on Securities and the Corporation does not violate the obligations of information disciosure in accordance
with the regulations of the Cincular No, S82020/TT-BTC dated 16 Movember 2020 issued by the Ministry
of Finance guiding the disclosure of information on Securities Market and the Gircular Mo. S8/2024/TT-
BTC dated 18 September 2024 issued by Ministry of Finance amending and supplementing some articles
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To: Shareholders, Board of Directors and Board of Management
PotroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

We have audied the accompanying Separate financial statemants of PelroVielnam Construction
Joinl Stock Corporation (the "Corporation”), prepared on 31 March 2025, as sel out on pages 06 o
47, including: Separate Statement of Financial position as at 31 December 2024, Separate
Statement of Income. Separale Stalement of Cash flows and Noles lo Separate Financial
Statemants for the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024,

Board of Management's Responsibility

The Board of Management of PetroVieinam Construction Joint Stock Corporation is responsible for
fhe preparation and presentation of Separata Financial Statements that give a true and Tair view in
accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting Sysiem and
the statutory requirements relevant to the preparation and presentation of Financial Statements and
for such internal control as management determines s necessary lo enable the preparation and
preseniation of Separate Financial Statements that are frea from material misstatement, whether
due 1o fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur respongibility is to express an opinion on these Separate Financial Statements based on our
sudil. We have conducled our audt in acoordance with Vielnamesa Standards on Auditing.
Howewer, due o the matier described in the paragraph “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion”, we wen
unable to oblain sufficient appropriate audil evidence to provide a basis for the audst oginicn.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

We were unable to assess the effect of the following matiers on the Corporation’s Separate Financial
Statements for tha fiscal year ended 31 December 2024 (attached):

1. As at 31 December 2024, the Separate Financial Statements reflect an accumulaied (oss (code
421) of VND 3,785.93 bilion (compared to 3,770.05 bilion as at 01 January 2024); current
kabilities (code 310) of VND 3,874.35 bilion, exceeding current asseis (code 100) by YND
£35.42 billion (as a1 01 January 2024, curmant liabilities was 4,032.86 billion, exceading curmant
assets by VMD 299.09 billion); overdus debis of VWD 575.67 billian (which remained unchangead
as at 01 January 2024). These factors, along with the disclosures in Nole 1 lead to doubls about
the Corporation’s ability to conlinue 83 8 going concann, The Conporation's continuing operations
depend on plans o recover debls, restructure investments, complete and finalize works in
progreas to recover funds, and obtain financial support from shareholders and creditors. ¥Within
the scopa of our audd, we do ot have suffickent information to evaluate the approprialeness and
effectivaness of these plans.

2. As at 31 December 2024, the Corporation recorded a loan receivable of VND 200 bilion lent to
Lam Kinh Hotel Joint Stock Company (o support its operations (the same amount was recorded
as al 01 January 2024), for which a provision of VND 124.4 bilion had baen made (unchanged
from 01 January 2024) (sea Note 7). We were unable to obtain sufficient awdil evidence
regarding the recoverable amount of this receivable as at both 31 December 2024 and 01
January 2024. Consequently, we could not determine whether any adjustments to these
amounis ang Necessany.

3. As at 31 December 2024, the cost of work in progress for the Vung Ang 1 Thermal Power Plant
Project (see Note 10) and the Quang Trach 1 Thermal Power Plant Project (see Note 14)
amounted 1o approximately VMD 2451 billion and VND 25.8 bilion, respectively (the same
amounts were reported as at 01 January 2024). At the reporfing date, the Corporation was stll
working with the relevant authorities on (1) approval for adjustmaents relating o unexpected

T:(84) 34 3A24 1950 1 F-(84) 24 825 3073 1 1 Le Phung Hiew, Hanoi, Vietnam (M8) .
AMSC AUDITING FIRM 4

.




expenses incurred in the Vung Ang 1 Tharmal Power Plant Project and (2) the acceptance and
finakzation of the Corporation’s incurred expenses for the Quang Trach 1 Thermal Power Plant
Project. We were unable to oblain sufficient evidence regarding the net realizable value of these
works in progress as at beth 31 December 2024 and 01 January 2024. Consequently, we could
not determine whether any adjustments to these amounts are necagsary.

4. Note 14 of the Notes to Separate Financial Statements presents a balance of construction in
progress as at 31 December 2024 for projects (in which the Corporation is the investor) that
have been suspended in previous years, namely (1) the Petroleumn University Urban Areas
Project and (2) the Tien Giang Patroleum Industrial Zone Project, with a iotal amount of
approximately WVND 572 billion (the same as at 01 January 2024). We were unable to obtzin
adequate documentation regarding the potential future economic benefils of these projecis.
Consequently, we could nol determine whether sny adjustments to these amounis are
necessary

5. As al 31 December 2024, the Corporalion held investments in subsidiaries, associates and other
entities with a tofal book value of VIND 932 58 billion and an impairment provision of VMND BSB. 76
bilson. These investmenis were provisioned for impairment based on the latest financial
slatements available o the Corporation (see Mote 4) We were unable to oblain adequate
documentation regarding the impairment ksses on these investments and to perform alternative
audit procedures 10 assess tha adequacy of the impairment provision as 2t 31 December 2024
therefore. we could not determine whether adjustments lo these figures are necessary.

Disclaimer of Opinion

Because of the significance of the matter described in the "Basts for Disclaimer of Opinion”
paragraph, we have nol been able 1o oblain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis
for an audit opinion. Accoedingly, we were unable o express our opinion on the attached Separate
Financial Stalemants.

Emphasis of Matter

As presented in Note 33 of the Notes 1o the Separate Financial Statements, as st 31 Decamber
2024, the Corporation had some contingent liabilities. related to which the final result of the
Corporation’s obligations have not been determined.

Our disclaimer of opinion is not further modified with respect to this matter,

Company Lirmited

L : Nguyen Duy Quang
Registered Auditor No: 0777-2023-002-1 Registered Auditor No: 3363-2025-002-1
Hanei, 31 March 2025
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Separate Financial Statements

14th floor. VPI Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanot  For the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

SEFPARATE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Az at 371 December 3024

Code ASSETS Note J1M2r2024

VHD
100 A. CURRENT ASSETS 31,638,934 763,900
110 1. Cash and cash equivalents 3 354,571.200,087
111 1. Cash 188, 571,200,087
112 2 Cash equwalents 156 000,000,000
120 1. Short-term financial investmeants 4 154,508,326,478
121 1. Trading securibes 14.600.000,000
122 2. Provision for diminution in value of trading (13.885,000,000)

securities

123 3 Hedd-to-matunty nvestrments 153, 754 326478
130 (. Short-term receivables 1,632,822 337,621
131 1. Short-term trade recanables 5 1,308, 321,214 277
132 2. Shert-term prepayments lo suppliers & 558, 689 562 551
135 3. Short-term loan receivable 7 355,676,953.493
136 4. Other shor-term recaivablas B 285 750 465,332
137 & Provision for shor-term doubtful debls (B78 240,846 048)
138 & Shoriage of assels awailing resolution T24 5838 026
140  I¥. Inventories 10 1,383,604 585419
141 1. Inveniones 1,385,015 419,627
148 2. Provision for devaluation of inventories (11,410,834 208)
150 V. Dther shori-term assets 113,327,314,375
151 1. Short-term prepaid expenses 11 217,786,265
152 2. Deductbla VAT 91,752 277,880
153 3. Taxes and other receivables from State 17 21,357 240,230

budget

01/01/2024
VHD

3,733,573,007,802

250,481,504,058
210,481,504 058
40,000,0:00,000

206,237 950,000
14,800 000,000
{13.885.000.000)

205,532 860,000

1,719,777,240, 475
1,438,645,450,279
576,070,790,736
3558,676,953,493
273,544 789,764
(925,885,731,623)
724,888,025

1.437.002,007,370
1,452,198 633,493
(15,196,626.123)

120,074,385,893
187,369,948
98,532,775,720
21,354,240.230

VL I
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stack Corporation Separale Financial Statements
14th Boor, VPI Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanol  For the fiscal year ended as al 31 December 2024

SEPARATE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 37 Decernber 2024
{Continuod)

Code ASSETS MHate JTMAr2024 0012024

VND VND
200 B. NON-CURRENT ASSETS 713,088,707,024 728,650, 313,157
210 L Leng-term receivables 22,893,210,988 22,893 210,988
218 1. Othar long-tarm recenvables a 22.893,210.988 22,853 210,988
220 . Fixed assets 10,457,124 460 12,227 372,972
221 1. Tangitle fixed assels 12 10,152,124 454 11,782.372.970
222 - Historical cost 50,296 574 592 76,547,420 220
223 - Accumulaied deprecialan (40, 144,750 138) (64, 765 047, 250)
227 2. Intangibie fioed assels 13 345,000,005 445,000,002
228 - Hisfancal cosl 5,505 180,340 5,805,180, 340
229 - Accumulaled amartizalion (5,160, 180.334) {5.060,780,338)
240 I, Long-term assets in progress 14 158,163,600,046 158,163,600,048
241 1. Long-term wark in progress 24,471,433, 315 24,471 433,315
242 2. Construction in progress 133,682,166,731 133,882,186, 731
250 V. Long-term investments 4 515,7T12,1E8,687 E2B ATS,TTT, 109
251 1. Imvesiments in subsidiaries 1,384, 508, 968,358 1,384 509 968 3858
252 2. Investments in joint ventures and 735,449 467,055 735448 467 055

essociales
253 3. Equity mvestments in other enlities 181,555,000,000 191,685,000,000
254 4. Provision for devaluation of long-lerm (1,796,242 246,765) (1,783 478,658, 344)
imvesiments

260 V. Other long-term assets 5,822.582,843 7,850,352 042
281 1. Long-term prepaid expanses 11 £,822,582,843 7.890,352,042
20 TOTAL ASSETS 4352023471018 __ 4483223410959




Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
14th fliogr, VP Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi Fufﬂmﬁscay&arendad as at 31 December 2024

Separate Financlal Statemenis

{Continuad)

Code CAPITAL Mota
00 C.LIABILITIES
310 1. Current labilities
311 1. Short-term trade payables 15
312 2. Shor-term prepayments from customers 16
313 3 Taxes and other payables to State budget 17
314 4, Payabies to employses
315 5 Shor-term Bccrued expenses 18
318 6. Shorn-term uneamed revenue 19
35 7. Other shori-lerm payables 20
320 8. Shortderm borrowings and finance leasa 21

ligbiltias
322 9. Bonus and welfare fund
330 1L Non-current liabilities
333 1. Long-term accrued expenses 18
336 2. Long-term unearned revenue 19
337 3. Other long-term payables 20
400 D. OWHER'S EQUITY
410 | Owner's equity .
411 1. Conbributed capital
d411a - Orchinary shares with voling nghts
415 2. Treasury shares

SEPARATE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2024

418 3. Development and invesiment funds

20
421
421a

4. Dther reserves
§. Retained eamings

- Retained eamings sccumulated til the

and of the previous yesar

421b - Refained eamings of the current year

440

(o

TOTAL ﬂmﬂ
ur-*"'l:;;

3122024 01/01/2024

VND YND

4,040, 498,219,300  4,155,619,050,405
3,874,354 502 480 4,032 660,730,737
2 564 563 834, 007 2.678.520,818,552
178,580,304,121 168,355,667.015
2441499 047 3.047.520.226
15,062 073 634 16,533,484 203
84,851,379,122 118,341, 799.657
1,447 B41 545 1.511.477.508
419,872,124,755 408 654,709,563
585,008.557,122 642 936,064,686
{7.281.211,073) (7.281,211,073)
166,143, 716,820 123,158,319,668
115,497 508,588 71,064, 3609 B84
50,632.252.045 52 080,083,587
13,858,187 13 856 187
311,525,251,714 307,404,360,554
311,525,251,714 307 404,360,554
4,000,000,000,000  4,000,000,000,000
+, 000,000, 000, 000 4,000,000,000,000
{29,710,000) (29,710,000}
TE,086 982,724 76,080 502 734
500, D00, 30 500,000,000
(3,766.932,031,020) (3.770,052 522.180)
{3.770,052,922,160) (3,607 400, 160.442)
4,120,681, 160 (182 652, T61,738)

Vu Thi Cham
Preparer

Vu Minh Cong
Chilef Accountani
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

14th floor, VPI Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi

Separate Financial Statements
For the fiscal vear ended as at 31 December 2024

SEPARATE STATEMENT OF INCOME

Year 2024
Code ITEMS Note
01 1. Revenue from sales of goods and 24

10

11

21
22
23
£
30

31

51
60

rendering of services

2. Net revenul from sales of goods and
rendering of services

3. Cost of goods sold

4. Gross profit from sales of goods and
rendering of services

5. Financial incame
6. Financigl expense
In which: fnlerast expense
7. General and adménistralve expange
B. Net profit from operating activities

9. Othes Incomse
10. Other expensea

11. Other profit
12. Total net profit before tax
13, Current corporate income tax expense

14, Profit after corporate income tax

s
b ;

26
27

28

29
a0

.3 |

Yiear 2024 Yoar 2023
VND VND
£30,359,037,999 734,970,173,830
5£30,355,017,999 731,970,173,839
541 850 BSS 843 700,964,919,513
(11,500,817 B4d) 31,005,254,328
37.971 144 758 31,877 257 307
57,178 961 923 172 BH268 832 385
8,446,758, 758 12,021,998 667
5,153,920 247 50518 423, TES
(35,862,555,256) (160,362,844 517)
40,714,076,908 1,789,186,007
T30 630 452 4 078 103 318
39,083,446 416 (2,289,817,221)
4120,891,160  (162,652,761,738)
£,120,891,160 162,652,761

Ll co
a 'II.,-.I:.:E-r LAP DAL KR A
Wa\ i TOWA
Vu Thi Cham Vu Minh Cong H\:___E:If Hoan
Preparer Chiel Accountant - Director
- 31 March 2025
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Patrovietnam Construction Joint Stock

14th floor, VP Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanci

Separate Financial Staterments

For the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

Year 2024
{indirect methad)
Code ITEMS Note Year 2034 Year 2023
VHND VND
I. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
) 1. Profit before tax 4 120 881,160 (162,652 T61,738)
L Adjustment for:
02 -Depreciation and amortization of fced 1,083 546 962 1,476 015,508
assets and mvesimeant properties
03 - Provisions (38,667, 0ED, 268) 123,558 018 449
04 - Exchange gains / losses from retransiation (4.275,931,351) (740,448 685)
of monelary items denominated in foreign
CUTency
05  -Gains ! losses from mvesiment (8,233 574 BGE) (14,150,624, 065)
06 - Interest expanse 8,446, 758,758 12,021,998, 687
08 3. Operating profit before changes in {38,515,398,405) {40,085,201,656)
warking capital
09  -Increass or decrease in receivables 142, 798 544 116 181,545 861,058
10 - Increase of decrease in inventories 57,183,213 866  (162,686,354,535)
11 - Increase or decrease in payables (51,682, 700,351) {106,342, 263,013}
12 -lner of decrease in prepaid expenses 2,037 342 883 1,811,346,425
14 - Interest paid (4,130,381.918) (7.690,312,074)
16 - Cther receipts from operating activities 1,215,000,000 4,270,000,000
17 - Other payments on operating aclivities {1,240, 000,000) (4,068,336 810)
20  Net cash flow from operating activities 97,665 620,161 (133,145 265,001)
Il. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
21 1. Purchase or construction of fixed assets - (538,890,000)
and other long-term assets
22 2. Procseds from disposals of fived assels 2,523171,380 64,545 448
and othar long-term assets
23 3 Loans and purchase of debt instruments (148 000,000,000} (282, 960,0:00)
from other enlities
24 4, Collecton of lbans and resale of debt 200,000,000,000 BO0B23,176
instrument of other entities
27 5 Interest and dividend received 5,554 480,701 15,833,127, 7059
30  Net cash flow from investing sctivities 60,077,652,081 15,476,346 424
Il CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
33 1. Procesds from borfowings 56 6875477 205 127,280,500,855
34 2 Repsyment of principal (114 804 084 TED) (172,877,308 61B)
40  Met cash flow from financing activities {57,026,507,564) (46,696,807,761)
B0  Met cash flows in the year 98,813,764 678 [(184,365,726,338)
B0  Cash and cash equivalents at the 250,481,504,058 415,096,736,295
beginning of the year
B1  Effect of axchange rale fluctuations 4 275,831,351 {249,505 809}
70 u[:::h and cash equivalents at the end of 1 571,200,087 250,481,504,058
your - =
i
Vu Thi Cham Vi Minh Coang
Preparer Chief Accountant

SEPARATE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

.
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Separate Financial Statements
14th floor, VP Tower 167 Trung Kinh Streat, Hanoi  For the fiscal year ended a3 at 31 December 2024

NOTES TO SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year 2024

GENERAL INFORMATION

PetrcVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation (the “Corporglion’), an enfify under
managemant of Vietnam Oi and Gas Group (PVN), formerly known as Petro Construction Jaoint
Stock Company, was established in Vietnam by prvalizing Petroleum Design and Construction
Company under Decision No. 532/Q0-TCCB dated 26 March 2004 of the Minster of Industry
{currently known as the Ministry of Industry and Trade). Petro Construction Joint Stock Company
operates under Business Registration Certificate for Joint Stock Company Mo. 4503000232 dated
13 March 2008 issued by Ba Ria - Vung Tau Depariment of Planning and Investment.

Az per Regolution Mo, 3804/MO-DEVN dated 26 October 2007, the Board of Members of Vietnam
Oil and Gas Group ("PetroVieinam™) approved the proposal on ransfer of Petro Construction Joint
Stock Company into PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation, operating under the
model of holding as parent company - subsidary company. The Corporalion opéraies uncer
Business Registration Certificate for Joint Slock Company Mo, 3500102365 dated 20 December
2007, amended for the 22st tsme on 18 Jenuery 2024 by Hanol Authorly for Planning and
Invastment

The Corporation's head office is located 2t 14th floor, Vietnam Pefroleum Institute building, 167
Trung Kinh Street, Yen Hoa ward, Cau Giay district, Hanol, Viet Nam.

The total charter capital of the Corporation i WND 4,000,000,000,000,

The number of employees of the Corporation as al 31 December 2024 is 154 people (as at 01
January 2024 was 161 employees).

Business fleld: Construction
Business activities

Main business activibes of the Corporation include: construction and installation of indusiral and
chil works.

The Corporation’s eperation in the year thal affects the Separate Financial Statements

During the year, the Corporation continued to implement the Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant
project with an expected gross ioss rale of 067% according to the decision of the Board of
Directors of the Corporation on a provisional basis for the EPC Contract implementation of the Thai
Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant Project. However, the recognized output volume has decreased
significantly as the project has enfered its final stage, leading o a sharp decling in revenue and
cost of goods sold items compared fo the previous year. Meanwhile, financial expenses decreased
significantly, primarily due lo the fact that subsidiaries and associates’ operaling resulls remained
mare stable than in the previous vear, Additionally, general and administrative expenses decreased
significantly as the Corporation reversed the provision for doubtful debts accumulated from the
reassessment of receivables’ recoverability. These faciors were the primary drivers behind the
gignificant fluctuations in the statement of income.

Applying going concern assumgption:

As at 31 December 2024, the Separate Financial Statements reflect an accumulated loss (code
421) of VND 3,765.93 billion (compared to VND 2,770.05 billion as at 01 January 2024); current
liabilities (code 310) of VND 3,874.35 bilion, exceeding current assets (code 100) by VND 23542
billicn (compared to a difference of WND 289.09 bilion as at 01 January 2024, whan current
liabilities amounted lo VND 4,032.68 bilion); and overdue debts of WND 575.67 billion (unchanged
from 01 January 2024). These factors lead o doubts aboul the Corporation’s ability fo confinue
operating. The Corporation's abiliy fo continue as a going concern depends an its plan to recover
debts, restructure investments, complete and finalize works in progress to recover funds, and
secure financial support from shareholders and creditors.

11
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Separate Financial Statements

14th floor, VPl Tower 187 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi  For the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

2

2.2

Corporate structure

The Corparation’s member entities are as follows:

Hame o Address Main business activities

Thai Bink 2 Thermal Power Plant Project Thai Binh Managing Thal Binh 2 Thermal
Management Linit Power Plant Project

Vung Ang - Quang Trach Project Ha Tinh Managing Vung Ang - Quang
Management Unit Trach Project

Southem Projects Managemeni Linit Ho Chi Minh City  Project management

Polyester Plant Project Menagement Uinit Hai Phong Project management

Ethanol Phu Tho Plant Project Fhu Tho Froject management
Management Unit

Horthern Branch Hanoi Consiruction

Information of Subsuiaries, Associales and Joint ventures of the Corporation is provided in Note
No. 04,

Comparability of information on Separate Financial Statements

The information in the separale fhnancial stalements has been consistenily presented by the
Carparation and is comparable between accounting pericds.

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND ACCOUNTING POLICY

Accounting period and accounting currency

Annual accounting pariod commences from 07 January and ends as at 31 December.

The Corporation maintains its accounting records in Vietnam Dong (VD).

Standards and Applicable Accounting Policies

Applicable Accounting Policies

The Corporation applies Corporate Accounting System issued under the Circular No. 2002014/TT-
ETC dated 22 December 2014 by the Ministry of Finance and the Circular No. 532016 T-BTC
dated 21 March 2016 fssued by Ministry of Finance amending and supplementing soma articles of
the Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC.

Declaration of compliance with Accounting Standards and Accounting Sysfem

The Corporation applies Vielnamese Accounting Standards and supplementary documants issued
by the State. Financial Stalements are prepared and presented in accordance with regulations of
each standard and supplementary document as well 35 with current Accounting Standards and
Accounting System.

Basis for preparation of the Separate Financial Statements

The Separate Financial Statements are presented based on historical cost principle.

The Separate Financial Statements of the Corporaticn are prépared based on summarization of the
financial stabtermanis of the independent accounting entities and the head office of the Corporation.

Separate Financial Statements of the Corporation, are prepared based on summarization of
fransactions incurred of dependeant accounting entities and the head office of the Corporation.

The Users of this Separate Financial Statements should study the Separate Financial Statements
combined with the Consolidated Financial Stalements of the Corporation and its subsidiaries for

12
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Separate Financial Statements

14th fioor, VPl Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi  For the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

2.4

2.5

26

T

the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024 in crder to gain enough information regarding the
financial position, operating results and cash flows of the Corporation.

Accounting estimates

The preparation of Separate Financial Statements in conformity with Vielnamese Accounting
Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and legal reguiations relating to financial
reporting requires the Board of Management to make estimales and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of liabiities, assets and disclosures of contingent [Eabilites and assels at the dale
of the Separate Financial Stalements and the reporied amounts of revenues and expenses during
the fiscal year.

Thea estimates and assumpbons that hava a matarial meant i the Separat-a Financial Siatemants
includa:

Prowision for bad debis;
Frovision for devaluation of inveniony
Provision for payables;
Estimated afiocation of prepaid expenses;
Estimated useful Ble of fxed aszels;
- Classification and provision of financial nvestmanis;
- Estimated incoma &

Such estimates and assumplions are continually evaluated. They are based on historical
experence and cther factors, including expectations of future evenis that may have a material
impact on the Corporation’s Separate Financial Statements and thal are assessed by the Board of
Managarrant to e raasonable under the circumslances.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Vietnam Dong using the actual
rate gt transaction date,

Aclual exchange rate when revaluating monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the
reporing date of Separate Financial Statements is determined under the following principles:

- For asset accounts, applying the bid rate of the commercial bank where the Corporation
regularly conducts transaction;

- For cash depasited in bank, applying the bid rate of the commercial bank where the Corporation
OpEns s foréign currency accounts;

- For Babilty accounts, applying the offer rate of the commercial bank wherne the Corporation
regularly conducts ransactions.

Al exchange differences ansing as a resull of transactions or revaluation at the balance sheet date
shall be recorded into the financial income or expense in the year,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand, demand deposits,

Cash equivalents are shor-lerm investments with the maturity of not over than 3 menths from the
daite of investment, that are highly liquid and readily convertible into known amount of cash and
that are subject lo an nsignificant nsk of conversion into cash.

Financial investments

Trading secunties are nitially recognized ai original cosl which includes purchase prices plus any
direclly aliributable fransaction costs such as brokerage, bransaction fee, cost of information
provision, taxes, bank's fees and charges, Afler initial recognition, trading securities are measured

at original cost less provision for diminution in value of trading securities. Upon Bquidation or
transfer, cost of trading secunties is determined using waighted average mathod.

13
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Separate Financial Statements

14th fleor, VPI Tower 167 Trung Kinh Streel, Hanol  For the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

2.8

29

Invesiments held o matunty comprisa lerm deposits held to maturity fo eam profits periodically,

investments in subsidiaries, joinl venfures or associales are initially recognized at original cost
After initial recognition, value of these investments is measured at original cost less provision for
devaluation of investments.

investmenis i other entilies comprise investiments in equity instruments of oither entities without
having control, joint control, or significant influence on the investee. These invesiments ane mitially
staled at original cost.  Afer initial recognition, thesa investments are maasured at original cost
less provigion for devaluation of investments.

For dividends received in the form of shares, only the number of shares received is recorded
withoul any increase in the investiment value and financial incorme

Provision for devaluation of investments is made a1 the end of the year as follows:

- Investments in rading securities. provision shall be made on the basis of the excess of original

cost of the investmenis recorded in the accounting book over their markeat valse al the provision
date.
Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates: a provision for investment impairment
shall be made when the invesies incurs loszes based on the investee’'s Separate Financial
Statemenis/iConsolidated Financial Statements (if the investee 5 a parent company) as of the
provision date,

= Long-lerm invesiments (other than trading securities) withoul significant influence on the
invesiea: If the imvestment in listed shares or the fair value of the investment is delermined
rediably, provisions shall ba made on the basis of the market value of the shares; if the fair value
of the investment is not detarmined at the reporting dale, provision shall be made based on the
Financial Statements at the provision date of the investee.

- Investments held 1o maturity: provision for doubtful debis shall be made based on the racovey
capacity in accordance with statutory regulations.

Receivables

The receivables shall be recorded in details in lerms of due date, entities receivable, types of
curmency and other factors according to requirements for management of the Carporation. The
recaivables ghall ba claseifisd inlo shor-tenm recehvables or long-term recenables on the separate
financial statemants according 1o thelr remaining terms st the reporting date.

Tha provision for doubtful debts is made for receivables that are overdus under an economic
contract, a loan agreemant, a contractual commitment or @ promissary note and for receivables
that are not due but dffcult to be recovered, Accordingly, the provisions for overdue debls shall be
based on the due date stipulated in the inffial sale contract, exclusive of the debt rescheduling
between contracting parties and the casa whers the debis are not due but the dabtor i in
bankruphcy, in dissolution, or missing and making flasing or estimating the possibla losses.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognized at original cost including purchase price, processing cost and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories fo their location and condition at the time of initial
recognition. ARer initial recognition, at the reporting date, inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realizable vake.

Met realizable valua is estimated based on the seling price of the inventory minus the estimated
costs for complating the products and the estimated costs needed for their consumption.

Thig cost of imvenlony is calculaled using weighted average method.
Inveniory is recorded by perpetual method.
Mathod for valuation of work in process at the end of the year: The value of work in progress s

recorded for each construction project which is incomplete or revenue s unrecognised,
comesponding to the amount of work in progress at the end of the year.

14

(o -




Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Separate Financial Statements

14th Roor, VPI Tower 167 Trung Kinh Sireet, Hanoi  For the fiscal year ended as at 31 Decamber 2024

210

2.11

2.12

213

Provision for devaluation of inventories made at the end of the period = based on the excess of
ariginal cost of inventory over their net realizable value.

Fixed assets

Fixed assels (tangible and intangible) are initially slated at the historical cost During the using
time, fived asseis (tangible and intangible) are recorded at cost, accumulated depreciation and
canying amount.

Subsequent measuremant after inftial recognition

If these costs aument future economic benefils obtained from the use of tangible fixed assets are
extended to their initial standards conditions, these cosis are capitalized as an incremantal in ther
hestorical cost

Other costs incurred afler tangible fixed assets have been put into operation such as repair,
mainienance and cverhaul cosls are recognized in the Separate Statement of Income in the yeaar in
which the costs ane incurred

Fixed assels are depreciated using the siraighl-line method over thelr estimated useful life as
fodlows:

- Buildings, structures 05 - 25 years
- Machinery, equipment 0% - 10 years
- Wehicles, Transporation equipment 06 - 10 years
= Office equipmient 03 - 07 years
- Managemen! softwarns 03 years

Canstruction in progress

Canstruction in progress Includes fixed assets which is being purchased and constructed as at the
balance sheet date and is recognised in historical cost. This includes costs of construction,
instailation of equipment and cther direct costs,

Operating lease

Cperating leases is ficed asset leasing in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor. Payments made under operating leases are changed to
Staternent of Income on a straighl-line basis over the period of the leasa,

Prepaid expenses

The expenses incurred but retated to operating results of several accounting pericds are reconded
as prepaid expenses and are allocated to the operating resuits in the following accownting pericds.

The calculation and allocation of long-term prepaid expenses to operating expenses in each
accounting period should be based on the nature of those expenses fo select a reasonable
allecation method and criteria,

Types of prepaid expenses of the Corporation include:

- Tools and supplies include assels which are possessed by the Corporation in an ordinary
course of business. with hislorical cost of each asset less than 20 million dongs and therefore
net eligible for recording 2s fived asset under current legal regulations. The hisiorical cost of
tools and suppbes are allocated on the straight-line basis from 01 1o 03 years;

- Other prepaid expenses are recorded a1 their historical costs and aliocated on the straight-line
basis from 01 to 03 years;

- Prepaid office rental expenses are recognized al cost and amortized on a straight-line basis
over the lease term specified in the contract.
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Payables

The payables shall be recorded in details in terms of due date, enities payable, types of currency
and cther factors according to the requirements for management of the Corporation, The payables
shall be classified into short-term payables or long-lerm payables on the separate financial
statemenis according 1o their remgining terms at the reporting dats

Borrowings

Borrowings shall be recorded in details in terms of lending entities, loan agreemeant and terms of
borrowings and finance lease liabilites

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as operating expansas in the yeas, in which it is mcurred excepting
Ihose which are directly attribulable to the constrection or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalized as pan of the cost of that asset in accordance with VAS No. 18 “Bofrowing cosls™
Besides, regarding borrowings serving the construction of fixed assets and investmant properties.,
ihe interests shall be capitalized even when the construction duralion is undar 12 months.

Accrued expenses

Apcrued expenses include payables 10 goods of services received from the supphers or provided
for the customers dufing the reporing period, but the payments for such goods or services have
not been made and other payables which are recorded as operating expenses of the reporting
year.

The recording of accrued expenses &3 operaling expenses during the year shall be carmed out
under the matching principle bebween revenues and expenses during the year. Accrueed expenses
are seftled with actual expenses incurred. The difference betwesn accrued and actual expenses is
reveried,

Unearned revenues

Uneamed revenues include prepayments from customers for one or many accounting periods
relating o assel leasing.

Uneamed revenues ane transfamed 1o revenue from sale of goods and rendering of services with
the amount cormesponding to each accounting pericd,

Dwner's equity
Owner's equily is stated at actually contribuled capital of owners.

Treasury shares bought before the effective date of the Securities Law 2019 (January 1, 2021) are
shares issued by the Corporation and bowght-back by itself, but thesa are not cancelled and may
be re-issued subsequently in accondance with the Law on Securities. Treasury shares bought after
January 1, 2021 will be cancelled and adjusted 1o reduce equity.

Relained eamings are used to present the Corporation's operating results (peoft, loss) after
corporate income tax and profits appropriation or loss handling of the Corporation.

The Corporgtion’s net profit afler lax is distributed to the following funds according to
recommendation of the Board of Direciors and approval of shareholders at annual General Meeting
of Shareholders:

= Development and investment funds: The fund is reserved for the purpose of business
axpansion or in-depth investment of the Corporabon.

- Bonus and welfare fund and bonus for the Board of Managemenl The fund is reserved for the
purpose of bonus, material incentives, commaon benefit and increasing wetfare for employees
and presanted as a liability on the Separale Stalement of Financial Positian.
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2.20

2.

2.22

Revenue

Fevenue is recognized 1o the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Corparation and the revenue can be reliably mezsured regardiess of when payment is being made.
Fevenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received, excluding discounts, rebates,
and sales refurns,

Construction confract revenug

= Incase the constrection contract stipulates thal the contractor iz pakd according (o the value of
the volume performed, when the results of consiruction confract performance are rekably
detarmined and confirmed by the customer, then revenue, contract-related costs are recorded
in proportion o the completed work confirmed by the customer in the year reflected on the
invoice

Revenue from rendenng of senices

- The percentage of completion of the transaction at the Balance sheet dale can be measured
redkably.

Financral incoma

Financial incomes include income from interest, royalties, dividends and other financsal gains by
the Corporation shall be recognised when the two conditions are satisfied:

- It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will fiow to tha
Corporation;
= The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Cividend income will be recognised when the Corporation's right to recenve dividend is established
Cost of goods sold and services rendered

Ceost of goods scld and services rendered are cost of finished geods, merchandises, materials sold
or services rendered during the year, and recorded on the basis of matching with revenue and on a
prudence basis, Cases of loss of materials and goods excesded the norm, labour cost and fiooed
manufacturing overheads not allocated to the wvalue of inventory, provision for devaluation of
inventory, abnormal expenses and losses of inventones afler deducting the responsibelity of
collective and individuals concerned, elc. is recognized fully and promptly into cost of goods sold in
the year even when products and goods have not been delermined as sold,

Financial expenses
ltems reconded nto financial expenses comprise:

-  Expenses or kbsses relating to financial imestment activities,

- Borrowing costs,

- Losses from the disposal and transfer of short-term securities, transaction cost of seling
spcurities;

= Provision for diminution in valee of trading securites price; provision for losses from investmeant
in other entities, losses from sake of foreign currency, exchange loss, etc.

The above items are recorded by the total amount arising in the year withoul offsetting against
financial income.
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223 Corporate income fax

2.24

2.25

Curreni corporale income lax expenses

Current corporate income tax expenses are determined based on taxable income during the period
and cumrent corporate income tax rate.

Current corporate income fax rate

The fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024, the Corporation applies the corporate income tax
rate of 2% for the operating activities which has taxable income.

Related Parties

The parties are regarded as related parlies if that party has the abdity to control or significantly
influence the other party in making decisions about the financial policies and activities, The
Corporation’s related parties include:

Companies, directly or indirectly through one or more intermedianies, having control over the
Corporation or being under the control of the Corperation, or being under comman control with
the Corporation, ingluding the Corporation's parent, subsidiaries and associales

= Individuals, directly or indirectly, holding voting power of the Corporation that have a significant
influence on the Corporation, key management personnel including directors and employees of
the Corporation, the close family members of these individuals,

- Enterprises that the above-mentioned individuals directly or indirectly hold an important part of
the voling power or have signiicant influance on thesa enterprises.

In considenng the ralationship of related paries (o serve for the preparation and presentation of
Separate Financial Statements, the Corporation should consider the nature of the relationship
rather than the legal form of the retationship.

Details of related parties’ transactions are presenied in the Consolidaled Financial Staternents for
the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024 of the Corporation publizhed concurrently by the
Coaporation in its Consolidated Financial Statemenis and Separate Financial Statemeants for the
fiscal vear endad 31 Decembaer 2024,

Segment information

The company prmarily engages in construction and installation activites, mainly within the mrntur'_.l
of Vieinam, the Corporation does not prepare segment reports by business segment and
geographical segment.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

— 3122024 OWDR024

WD VD

Cash an hand 409 150,412 1,118,593, 740
Demand deposits 168,162, 045,675 209,362 910,318
Cash equivalents (i) 156,000,000,000 40,000,000,000

254,571 0ar 250, 481,504,058

(i} At 31 December 2024, the cash equivalents are deposits with term of from 01 to 03 months with
tha amount of YVHND 156 000 600 000 at Joinl Stock Commencal Bank for Invesiment and
Development of Vist Nam - Ha Dong Branch at the interest rate from 1.6%/year to 2.2%/year.
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4

a)

b)

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Held to maturity investments

31N 252024 010172024
Qriginal Cost Provision Original Cost Provision
VHD WHD VND VND
Short-term Investments
Term deposits (i) 153,704 326 478 - 205522 950,000 -

153 326478 = :mggm&n =

{i) At 31 December 2024, the short-term investmeants are depasits with terms from aver 3 months to
less than 12 months with the amount of VND 153,784 326,478 at Joint Stock Commarcial Bank
for Investment and Development of Viet Nam - Ha Dong Branch at the inferest rate from
2.9%/year 1 4. 2%lyear which are being pledged for ioans at this Bank (Detailed in Nate 21),

Trading securities

~ INNM22024 01/01/2024
Oraginal cost Provision Original cost FProvision
VND WHD YHND VD
Shares
Petroleurm Intermal and 14,600,000,000 (13,885,000,000) 14.600.000,000 (13,885,000,000)
External Equipment
14,600,000.000 (13,885,000,000) _ 14,600,000,000 (13,885.000,000)
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
141h Boor, VPl Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanol

Separate Financial Statements

For the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

Provision for devaluation of investments in subsidiaries:

The Corporation has made provision for devaluation of imvestment in Petrovietnam Urban
Development Joint Stock Company with the value of VND 1535 billion based on the unaudited

financial staterments for the quarer |1 of 2024 of that company.

Provision for devaluetion of investments in associates and other investments:

As at 31 December 2024 the Corporation has made provision for the above financial investments on

the following:
Entifty Base for provisions Driginal cost Provision
VND VND
lavestments with avdited Financial Statemants for 148.000,000,000  (148,000,000,000)
2024
= Thanh Hea Petroleum Audited Financial T46,600,000,000 (75,600,000,000)
Construction JSC Siaterments a= 3t
SNER2024
= INen Trung Petroleum Audiled Financial 72,400,000 000 (72,400,000, 000)
Construction JSC Statements az
Jin2raiza
investments without audited Financial Statements for 779,044, 467,055  (705,230,121,166)
2024
- Saigon Petrolewm Audiled Financlal 83,271 467 055 (83,271,467 055)
Consinsction and Statements as af
Investment JSC 322021
- Duyen Hal PetroVetnam  Audited Financial 58.050,000.000 (26,632,401 788)
Imeestment and Statements as at
Consfruchion JSC 322023
- Halong Cement JSC Audited Financial 147.300,000,000  ({147,300,000,000)
Statements as at
322023
= Other entities () Latest Fimancial 490,423.000,000 (448,028 252 323)
Statements (i)

(i) The Corperation has not yet collacted the financial statements for the fiscal year ended as al 31
December 2024 of thess companies.,

(") The value of the investment in Kinh Bac Peireleum Invesiment and Construction Joint Stock
Company (‘PVC Kinh Bac”) is VND 23.5 billion including 2 parts:

=

An armount of VND 2.5 billion in capital contribulions incurmed before 2010, accounting for 5%
of PYC Kinh Bac's charter capital at that time of VND 50 bilion; and

An amount of VWD 21 billion ariging in 2010 from a debt offsett amangement with the amount
advanced by the Corporation 1o PVC Kinh Bac to support a construction contract, when PVC
Kinh Bac's charter capital was VND 150 billion. This amount was determined to be used by
PVC Kinh Bac lo purchase 3,400 m? of land at Plot Mo, 06, Map sheet No. 20, Hamiet 1,
Tam Dao town, Tam Dao district, Vinh Phuc province (“the Tam Dao land lof™), which was
then transfer to Mai Phuong Investment Company Limited ("Mai Phuong®), currently also the
entity named on the certificate of land use rights for the aformentioned lot.

-ﬁrnﬁ:rrdlng io Judgment No.412/2021/HSPT daled 26 Seplember 2021, it was concluded that:

The case of adv construction funds to PVC Kinh Bac Company was in violation of
regqulations, and the Tam Dao land lot should be returned to the Corporation;

The Corporation's capital contribution ratio in Kinh Bac Petroleum Investment and
Construction Joint Stock Company will be resolved by the relaled parties themsedves, and if
necassary, will be handled in a separate civil lzwsuit,

On 01 June 2022, the Director of the Hanol Civil Judgment Enforcement Department issued
Enforcemant Decision Mo. 805/0D-CTHSDS based on the above judgment.
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
14th floor, VP Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanot  For the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

Separate Financial Statements

2n 25 September 2024, the Corporation received the transfer of the land use rights for 3,400 m*
of land at Plot No. 08, Map Sheet No. 20, Hamlet 1, Tam Dao Town, Tam Dao District, Vinh
Phuc Province, from Mai Phuong Investiment Company Limited,

As al the date of these Separale Financial Staternent, the Corporation i in the process of
completing the procedures 1o transfer the ownership of the Tam Dao land lot to itself and is
working with PVC Kinh Bac 1o reassess the capital contribution ratio. Given the avents that
occurred in 2024, the Corporation has determined that the WND 21 ballion capital contribution to
PVC Kinh Bac no longer shows signs of impairment and has therefore fully reversed the

pravision for this investment

Datailed information on the Company's subsidianes as at 31 December 2024 as follows:

Investments in subsidiarias

Mame of subsidiaries Place of Fale of Retzof  Principal activitias
egtablishment interest wvoling rights
and oparation
Thal Binh Petroleum Trading  Thai Binh T2 22%  7222%  Constructon, real estate
and Investment JSC business and services
Petroleurn Equipment Assembly Ba Ria-Vung 50.97% §0.97%  Construction, real estale
and Metal Structure JSC Tau busness
Binh Son Petroleum Cuang Ngai  48.51% 52.56%  Real estate b-.r:r-lnﬂ.:.,
Construction JSC consiruction materials
Fetroleum Dong Do JSC (i) Ha Moi 34.87% 34.87%  Reaal estale business
and senices
Petro Vietnam Lrban Ca Mau 53.44% 53.44%  Conslruclion, real estate
Development JSC business - _
Petroleum Industrial and Civil Ba Ria-Vung 51.00% 51.00%  Construction, industrial
Construction JSC Tau manufaciuring, real
estale business
Petroleum Pipeline and Tank Ba Ria-Vung 51.00% 51.00%  Construction, real estate

iCongtruction JSC Tau

business

{ii) Acconding to the assessment of the Board of Management, although the Corporation’s voling

rights in Dong Do Petroleum Joint Stock Company are less than S0%, the Corporation sl
execises control over this company by directing its financial and operating policies, as well as
assigning and evalsating the implementation of s annual production and business plan,
operational support. construction and installation contracts, market strategies, and financial
matiers. Accordingly, Dong Do Patreleum Jeint Stock Company is deemed a subsidiary of the
Corporation.
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Separate Financial Statements
14th fioor, VPl Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street. Hanoi  For the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

Imvestmenis in associates
Detailed information on the Company's associates as at 31 December 2024 as follows:

MName of agsociates Place of Rate of Rateof  Principal activifies
establishment  interest voling rights
and operation
Petroleum Mechanical Ha Noi 4000%  40.00% Construction, real estate
Executing and Assembly JSC business
Hanai Patroieurn Construction Ha Med 35.83% 35.83%  Construction, real estate
JSC business
Saigon Petroleum Construction  HoChiMinh  24.72%  2472%  Construction, real estate
and Invesimeant J5C City business
Duyen Hai PetroVietnam Hai Phong  42.46%  42.46%  Industrial investment,
Invesirnant and Canstruction fuel, and construction
JEC materials
Thanh Hoa Palroleum Thanh Hoa  35.00% 36.00%  Construction, real estale
Consiruction JSC business
Mizn Trung Petroleum Ca Mang 48 2T% 48.27%  Construction, real estale
Construction JEC business
Lam Kinh Holel JSC ThanhHoa  3501% 43.18%  Holel service business
Petrovietnam - Nghe An Nghe An 22 Ba'% 2264%  Construction, real estate
Construction Joint Slock businass
Corporation
Pefrcleumn Interor Decoration Ha Moi 49, 98% 48.98%  Designand construction
JEC of construction works
Heerim-FPVC Internaticnal Ha Noi 44.00%  44.00%  Site Planning and
Design JSC Design, architectural
design works
Petroleum Link Communication Ha Moi B7T.22% 35.05% Communications and
and Trading JSC (iil) Trade

(ii) The Corporation's ownership rate in the Pefroleum Union Communication and Trading Joint
Stock Company (Petro - link) s at 31 December 2023 is §7.22%. However, this cwnership rale
is only temporary because the remaining members have not contributed encugh capital. The
cwnership rate (contributing capital) of the Corporation according to the Cerfificate of Business
Registration is 35%, the Corporation does nol have control over this company. Therefore, the
Beard of Management of the Corporation determines and presents the investment in Petro - link
35 an investment in an associale.

Investments in other entities:
Name of invesies Place of Rate of Rate of  Principal activities
establishment inlerest waoting rights
and :
Ha Long Cement JSC Quang Ninh  758%  758%  Production and sales of
cemeni products
Kinh Bac Petroleurm Bac Ninh 15.67% 1567%  Construction of chvil
Caonstruction and Investmant engineering works
Vietnam Port end Infrastructune Hanaol 2.50% 250%  ‘Wholesale of machinery
Construction Imestment JSC and equipment
Truong Son Investment Group Quang Binh  3.58% 3.88%  Chvil construction,
JSC invesiment, real estate
business, resor
Petraleurn Construction JSC 2 Marr Dink 5.00% 5.00%  Construction consulting
Petro Vietnam Building Materials Hanai 10.00% 10.00%  Construction consulfing
and Construction JSC 4
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Separate Financial Statements
14th ficor, VPI Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi

For the rmrﬂar ended as at 31 December 2024

§ SHORT-TERM TRADE RECEIVABLES

J1M122024 010172024
Value Provision Value Provision

WHD VWD VD WHD
Thai Binh 2 876,668 599, 102 - 1,080,512 879,774 =
Petroleumn Power
Project
Management
Vietnam Pabroléusm 35,963,772 950 {747 531 048] 42 BBG I3 654 (747 531,048)
Instiduta
Hanad Petrolaum B1.468. 710445 (91,469,710 445) 51,460,710,445 (91,451,422.013)
Construction JSC
Pafrovietnam - 41,635,737.524  (23,330,868.807) 41635 737.524 (14848480,719)
Mghe An
Construckon Joint
Stock Corporation
Oihers 262,552,384 246 (61315, 711.317) 2133407383872  (91,055.637.01%)

'lél:lﬂlﬂi'lé'ld.'lﬂ !ﬂ'!.ﬂﬁilﬂ'ﬁiﬁi!l 1|d!ﬂ|545£!??9 (197,503,070,793]

€& PREPAYMENTS TO SUPPLIERS

J1ME2024 Q1oirat2d

Value Frovision alua Provision

VKD WD WMDY VHD
Vietnam Port and 113,386,879.741 {17 858 ,1567,637T) 113,388 870,741 (17,858,157 637T)
Infrastructure
Construchian
Irvesiment JSC
Hanol Pebtroleum 108,664 818,776 (108,864 318,776) 108,884 918,776 (108,884 918,776)
Construction J5C
Others 336437764034 (179410144 085) 353815902 210 (202,542 234 602)

550,609, 562,551 _(306,131,220,99%) _ST60T0.T50.136, (22263310161
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
14th floor, VP1 Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi

Separate Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

T  SHORT-TERM LOAN RECEIVABLES

0112024 Daming the year 322024
Value Provision Incraass Decrease Value Provision
VHD VND VND VND VD

Lam Kinh Hotel JSC (i)
Saigon Petroleum Construction and

200,000,000,000 (124,355, 150,003)
128,357,282 632 (128,357,292 532)

WMD
- 200,000,000,000 (124,356,150,003)
128,357,292,532 (128,357,292 532)

Imvestment JSG (i}

Petrovietnam - Nghe An Canstruction 16,321,991,226  (5461,481,782) = = 16321991226  (5,461,481,782)
Joint Stock Corporation {fi)

Petroleum internal and External 10,897 688,735 (10,997 869,735) - 10807 660,735 (10,997 669,T735)
Equipment JSC

355,676,953.493 (269,172,594,052) - - _3555676,953,493 (269,172,594,052)

(i) The Corporation used the loan from Credit Contract No. 603/2011/110TD-OCEANBANK-PVC dated 30 June 2011 signed with OceanBank (row Modern

Bank of Vietnam - MBV) to provide a loan to Lam Kinh Hotel Joint Slock Company ("Lam Kinh Hotel”) for the purpose of supporting ils business
operations.

(ii) The Corporation used the Ipan from the Credit Contract No, 10/2010/HDTD-OCEANBANK-PVC dated 20 October 2010 between Ocean Commercial Joint

Stock Bank (new Modern Bank of Vietnam - MBVY) and the Corporation to make payments on behalf of Sal Gon Petraleun Construction and Investment
Joint stock Company and Nghe An Petroleumn Construction Corporation Jeint Stock Company for the transfer of shares,

According o Official Letler No.7697/2014/CV - Oceanbank dated 9 December 2014, issued by Oceanbank {now Modern Bank of Vietnam - MBV), the
exiended repayment deadline for the above loans was 31 December 2017, As al the dale of these Separate Financial Statemants, the Corporation s working
with the relaled parties to further extend the repayment period for the loans at Modern Bank of Vietnam - MBV Additionally, the Corparation is engaging with
the aforementioned companies to recover the amounts efther loaned to or paid on their behalf in order to secure funds for repaying the loans at Modern Barnk
of Vietnam - MBV, thereby enhancing its liquidity an ensuring compliance with regulalions on corporate governance apgiicable to public companies.
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Separate Financial Statements

14th fioor, VPI Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi  For the fiscal year anded as at 31 December 2024

a)

b)

OTHER RECEIVABLES
3111272024 01/01/2024
Value Provision Value  Provision
VND VND VND VND
Short-term
Receivables from 2,752 845 587 - £00,105,589 &
deposit nlenest
Dividends and profits  B.B44 483 057 (B B44 483 .067) 9.575.961,408 (9,575,581,408)
receivable
Advance 8,318,700 625 (980,806 391) 8.1168,121,205 (880,808 381)
Maorgages 409,275 926 - 409,275,026 -
Recelvables relating 42770314825 (42 328.B48,575) 42770314825 (42,328.8489075)
1o gquaranbies
abhgatons ()

Recelvables from 108.513.848,523 (27.723.568,215) 103.642.031,545 (27.733.568,215)
isan inlerest, capital

suppodt, lale

payment panaky

imterest, late payment

Infernaticnal 4 BED ETS 320 - - -

arbitration fees

without a ruling (i)

Others 108,251,121,459  (44,185,503,233) 107530975266 (48927 570,958)
-SRI 0A05 302 [124072.200.501) ZT3.084.700.764 (23546.TS505T)

Long term

Martgages Z2 893,210,988 - 22893210988 -
et Sl LR —

(i} Recawables from guaraniee obligations i the amount deducied by the bank from the
Corporabion's account fo fullfil guarantes obligations for the credil contracts that the Ceosporation
has guaranteed (Detailad in Note 33).

(i) This arbitration fee was paid to the Vietnam Infernational Arbitration Center (VIAC) o facilitate
the submission of a counterclaim against DL E&C Co., Lid, relaled fo Arbitration Case No. 05/24
VIAC between the Corporation and DL EAC Co,, Lid (Note 15). On 31 May 2024, the Corporation
submitted the counlerclaim against DL EAC Co, Lid to VIAC and paid the arbiiration fee as per
VIAC's notice, requesting the Arbitral Tribunal to resolve the Corporation's claims regarding DL
EAC Co. Lid's breaches during the execution of the EPS Contract This arbitration fee will be
alliocated by the Arbitral Tribunal upon the issuance of the arbitration awsard.
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
14th fioor, VPI Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanol

Saparate Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended as al 31 December 2024

9 DOUBTFUL DEBTS

Total value of receivables and debis that are overdue or nat due but difficult o be recovered:

32z 01/01/2024

Original cost  Recoverable value Original cosl  Recoverable value
WML YHD WD WD
a) Customer receivables 2131.968.742.287 35.004 920.650 206.356.515.6588 B.453 484 85T
Ha Noi Petroleum Construction JSC 01,469, 710.445 - 01,460, 710,445 -
Petrobeum Mechanical Executing and Assembly JSC 23.091.722 381 23.081.722.361 23,081, T22 361 =
Petro Vielnam Mghe An Construction JSC 25.401.643.107 2070774300 17.181.317.789 2 532 R37.0M0
Viet Nam Port and Infrastructure Construchon Investment JSC 19243 187 464 - 19,243 197 464 -
Vinaconex 39 JSC . 130 521.000 -

Truong 3on Investment Group JSC 572 218,050 672218050

Petrovietnam Senlor Oil and Gas Service JSC 18.000,000.000 18 000000000
Pelroleumn internal and External Equipment JSC 97.326.1%5 - 97.326.195 =
Cithars J6.082.923.645 9932 4239659 36.370.521.352 5.920.627.787
b} Prepaymenis to suppliers 40.933.569.626 34.802.349.128 142.156.795.831 13.093.484.516
Viet Mam Port and Infrastreciure Construction Investment JSC 24.570,776.980 6,714 610343 24.570.776.980 B.714.619.343
Hanoi Petroleumn Construchion JSGC 108.6864.918.776 1086 864 818776 -
Petro Vietnam Nghe An Construction JSC 11263, 563 283 = 11.263.563.283 -
Patrolaum Mechanical Executing and Assembly JSC 47.905.726.732 21.708.854_306 47.905.728.732 -
Mien Trung Petroleumn Construction JSC 26744 518305 - 20, 744 518,395 =
Vinaconeax 38 JSC 440609058 088 1.057 859.818 35,402 285189 1.057.950.818
Truong Son Imvestment Group JSC 29823230 048 100965 000 29,923 230.049 100.965.000
Petroleum Construction JSC 2 26.176.673.819 - 26 176.6T3.818 -
Cthers 31.415.100.604 5218 %40 661 31.415.100.508 5219 940 655




Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
14th fioer, VPI Tewer 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanol

Separate Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

c] Loan receivables
Lam Kinh Holel J5C
Saigon Petroleum Construction and Investment JSC
Petro Vietnam Nghe An Construction JSC
Potroleum internal and External Equipment JSC

d] Other short-term receivables
LLam Kinh Hotal JSC
Mien Trueng Petroleun Construction JSC
Wiet Mam Port and Infrastructune Constructon Investment JSC
Ha Maoi Petroleum Constructon JSG
Petroleum Mechanical Executing and Assembly JSC
Vinaconex 39 JSC
Modern Bank of Vietnam Limited
Petrovieinam Senior Oil and Gas Service J5C
Petroleum internal and External Equipment JSC
iOithers

122024 D10 1/2024

Original cost  Recoverable value Onginal cost  Recoverable value
VMD WMD WD VMDD
355.676.953.493 B6.504.359.441 355.676.953.492 86.504.359,441
20:0,000,000.000 75643849997 200.000.000.000 75.643.849.997
128,357 202 532 - 128.3567.292.532 =
16.321.901.226 10,820,600 444 16.321.991. 226 10.860. 509 444
10,987 865,725 - 10,997 869,735 -
130,288,547 589 6.215.337.708 131.007.380.856 1.460.624.899
6. 138.310.280 6.138.210.290 -
28.795.218.993 28.795.218.993 -

163.889.214 - 163.889.314

8.125.138.911 - 8.125138.911
4.742.067.735 4.742 067 735 4.742.067 735 .
103,162,384 103.192.384 £
42 328 848.975 = A2 328.848.975 =
5.575.900.000 5.575.990.000 =
7.170.266.108 - T.170.2686.10% -
27.145.624.878 1471265973 27 854 458,145 1.460.624.890

—L040857.812.975 __162,618,966927 _1.035997.666.836 __ 109.511.934.013



Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Separate Financial Statements

14th flocr, VPI Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanol  For the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

10

1

a)

b)

INVENTORIES
1122024 010172024
Orignal cost Provision Original cost Provision
VND VND VND VND
Raw matenals 1,825,344.123 - 1,825,344 123 -
Tools, supplies 431,700,000 - 431,700,000 oy
Work in prograss 1,379,564,112,312 - 1.426,114,048 541 .
Goods 13,184,263,182 (11,410,834,208) 23827540819 (15,195,825,123)
1.395.01 E&‘I BIEE‘." |11i41u|534|!ﬁ| M {15,196 Ezﬁii Eil
Details of work in progress, as follows
A1 212024 D10 E024
VND WND
Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant (i) 1,110,252,583.759 1.158,830,163.123
Vung Ang 1 Thermal Power Plant (i) 245,057 858,458 245,057 668 458
Song Havu 1 Thermal Power Plant (il) 12,888,703,081 12 BB3,135.080
Others 11,363 676,964 9,342 BB1.870

1,375 112,312 1,426,114 541

(i} The Corporation is a sub-contracter of tha EPC general contractor of these projects. As
presenied in Note 34 of the Noles to the Separate Financial Statements, due fo changes in
design and unit prices, the Corporation is requesting the Owner, General Confractor and
compelent authorties to consider an adjusiment for unforeseen additional costs of the Vung
Ang 1 Thermal Power Plant Project The Separate Financial Statements do not include any
adjustments that may be related to this matter,

(i) Song Hau 1 Thermal Power Plant

- Location: Phu Xuan ward, Mai Dam fown, Chau Thanh districl, Hau Giang province;

= Investor: The Vietnam Oil and Gas Group, which signed Contract No. 2248/HD-DIKVN on 10
Apnl 2015 with Vietnam Machinery Erection Corporation:

- The Corporation is a subcontractor for the General Contractor under Contract No. C15/SH1-
LLM-PVEC for the construction ;

- Total contract value: VND 2,555,445 761,034 (after tax);

- Construction timeling: Construction staned in 2015 and was expected fo be completed in
2018

- Current status: The project has now been completed and is awailing final setflement.

PREPAID EXPENSES

3111212024 01/01/2024
VD WHD

Short-berm
CHhevs 217,798 285 187,350,049
e 211,796,265 187,368,943

Long - term
Prepaid expenses of office lease (i) 5,472,381 608 8, 777,404,280
Others 350,201 235 1,112,047 752
e 5822582843 7890352042

(I} Prepaid axpenses for office rent are amortized according to the office lease contract for the San
Nam building No. 0017/2008/5N-PVC dated § January 2008 between the Corporation and San
MNam Co. Ltd
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corpaoration Separate Financlal Statemonts
14th Boor, VPI Towar 167 Trung Kinh Strest, Hanoi Far the fiscal year ended as al 31 December 2024

12 TANGIELE FIXED ASSETS

Buidings, Machinery, Vehicles, Office equipment Total
structures equipment transporiation .
WHND VND VND VND VND

Historical cost
Beginning balance 18,5688, 727,102 20,085 886 856 2751 384 270 10,310,421,982 TG, 547 420,220
= Liquidation, disposal (1,736,726.085) _ (15551431,819) _ (8,062 387 T14) (26,250,545 628)
Ending balance of the year —_18,833,001,007 ___4,544,455037 __ 18,608,996,55 __ 10310421997 __50.296,674,592
Accumulated depreciation
Beginning balance 7.751,841,343 18,288,133,723 27.571,384.270 10,142 687,914 B4, 765,047,250
= Depreciation in the year 738,220,898 160,051,583 - 05,274,485 903 5456 966
= Liquidation, disposal (1,736,726.005) _ (14,914,730, 269) _ (8,962 347 714) = __ (256,613 844 078)
Ending balance of the year 6,753,336, 146 4,544,455,037 18,608, 996,556 10,237,962,399 40,144,750,138
Net carrying amount
Beginning balance 10,817,885, 759 796,753 133 - 167,734,078 _ 11,782.372.970
Ending balance of the year 10,079 861 - = 72,459,593 1n!"IEI1ﬁlﬂ

Cost of fully depreciated tangible fued assets but still in use at 31 December 2024 was VND 36,365,987,840 (as at 01/01/2024 was VND 58,714 858 836}
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

14th fioor. VPI Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street. Hanoi

Separate Financial Statements

For the fiscal vear ended as at 31 December 2024

13

14

b)

INTANGIELE FIXED ASSETS

Historical cost
Beginning balance
Ending balance of the year

Accumulated depreciation
Beginning balance

= [Depreciation in the year
Ending balance of the year

et carrying amount
Beginning balanca
Ending balance of the year

Manager software Total

VHD YND

5,505,180, 340 E 180 340

Elﬁiiiﬁﬂ 5,505,180 340

5.050,180,338 5,050,180,338
©9.990.905 808 090 006

———— L T N
5,160,180.334 5.160,180,334

45 000 002

| 445 000,002

345,000,006 345,000,006

Cost of fully depreciated intangible ficed assets but still in use at 31 December 2024 was VND
5,005,1680,340 (as at 01/01/2024 was VND 5005, 180,340,

LONG-TERM ASSET IN PROGRESS

311212024 01/01/2024
Oniginal cost Recoverable Original cost Recoverable
yalue value
WHND VD VND VKD
Long-term works in progress
- Quang Trach 1 Thermal  25781,820,546 12,890,910.273 25781820546 12890910273

Power Plant Project (i)

- Yam Factory Propect 25,759.325,212

- Long Phu Thermal Power 12,180,083 636
Operation Center

- Others 7,328,825,521

1.618,216,162 7,328,825 511

9,162 306,680 25759325212 9,162,308,880
800,000,000 12,180,083,636

BOO, 000,000
1,618,216, 162

1051064815 24471433315 _T1,051,054915 2447143335

(i} According lo Official Letter Mo, 1828/TTg - KTN dated 15 Oclober 2016 of the Prime Minister
regarding adjustments o certain thermal power projects within the Quang Trach and Quynh Lap
Power Cenlres, Vietnam Electricity will replace Vietnam Oil and Gas Group as the investor of
the Quang Trach 1 Thermal Power Plant Project. As of the dale of these Separate Financial
Statements, the Corperation is still working with relevant parties to finalize and settle its incurred

expenses relaled to this project

Construction in progress

- Soai Rap Pefroleum Sarvice Industrial Zone Project

in Tien Giang (i}
= Petro Vietnam University Urban Anea {iii)

- Tien Giang Petroleum Industrial Zone Project (iii)

31

311272024 01/01/2024
WD VMDD
127.973.080.823 127 873,080,823
3,883,084,085 3,883.584.685
1,835,100,923 1,835,100,823
‘.IE;E!!I‘IHIHT 133,652,166, 731
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Separate Financial Statements
14th floor, VPI Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanol  For the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

(i) Construction in progress of Scal Rap - Tien Giang Petroleum Service Industrial Park Project

("Project’). The Project was received by the Corporation and designated as an investor by
Vietnam Qil and Gas Group (PVN) according to Decision No. T089/QD-DKVN dated 12 August
2010 of the Board of Members of PYN,

On 22 August 2016, the Ministry of Finance issued Official Letter No, 11704/BTC-TCDN 1o the
Pecple's Committee of Tien Giang Province and PWN for specific instructions on the transfar of
the Project

According to Minute No. 1421/BB-SKH & DT dated 31 July 2017 from the Project Transfer Task
Forca of the People’s Committes of Tien Giang province, the paries agreed to recognize the
value of the project during the Corporation’s implementation period at VND 143 bilion

On 01 Oclober 2018, the Corporation signed a land lease termination agreement with the
Department of Natural Resources and Environment of Tien Gang province, returning the land
and its attached assels to this authority

On 28 February 2010, the Governmenl Office issued Official Letter Mo, 18300VPCP-CN,
directing the Mmnisiry of Flanning and Investment, the Ministry of Justice, the Ministry of Natural
Resources gnd Envirgnment, the Ministry of Indusiry and Trade, and the Commission for the
Management of Siate Capital at Enterprises to guide the Peopla’s Commitiee of Tien Giang
province and the project invesior in reimbursing the invested expenses. This process must
comply with legal regulations to prevent state assels loss and ensure the investor's nghits.

Despife mulliple directives from the Government, the Ministries have not yet to develop an
official plan to soive and guide the refund of the Corporation’s invested expensas in the Soai
Rap - Tien Giang Pelrolaum Service Indusinial Park Project

On 26 March 2021, the Corporation issued Official Letter No. 426/XLDK-KHOTATCC on
requesting to continug assignment as he investor of the Project

On D6 August 2021, the Minisiry of Planning and Investment issued Official Letier Mo.
S51B3/BKHET-QLEKT, proposing the Prime Ministér 1o assign the People's Committee of Tien
Giang Province to resolve all outstanding issues relaled to the Project within 2021, in
accordance with s authority and the relevant legal regulations.

On 15 February 2022, the Governmenl Office issued Official Letter No. S64VPCP-CN
announcing the directive of Deputy Prime Minister Le Vian Thanh, assigning the Ministry of
Matural Resources and Environment to provide specific guidance on the legal compliance of
the land acquisition process conducled by the People’'s Commitiee of Tien Giang province. This
guidance would serve as the basis for determining whether the Corporation i entitled 1o
compensation for assets on the project land,

As al the date of these Separate Financial Statements, the project handover remains
incompilete. The Board of Management befieves that the Corporation will either fully recover the
expenses incumed in implementing the project or be reassigned the project for continuing
development.

(ili) The Projects have been suspended for years. The Corporation’s Board of General Directors

could nol assess the abilty to bring for future economic benefit of these projects.
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

14th flocr, VP Tower 167 Trung Kinh Streat, Hanoi

Separate Financial Statements

For the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

15

SHORT-TERM TRADE PAYABLES
31112/2024 D1D1/2024
Oudsianding Amoun] can be Dutstanding Amount can be
balance pad balance paid
VHD WHD WMND WD
Deaiim Indudrial Co., 1,044 416642 304 1,044, 419,642,304 1,021,927,357,860 1,021,027,357.960
Lad {3
Viat Nam Machingry 208,781,647.084 205,781 647084 200652562403 200,852 562403
Installation
Corporation - J5C
Vietnam il and Gas V77207 065,265 17T 207085285 177207085265  177.207.085 265
Group
Fetrolewm Industrisl 70,514,325,748 TD.514 325 748 73,008,041,438 73,008 041,438
and Crall Congiruction
J5C
Sojitz Corporation 111,744 046,842 111744 046842  139.552763,2585 139,552, 763258
Vietnam Eleciricity 165,865.601.507 168 BE5 601 507 1383840044354 138 384 054424
Felroleum Mechanical 5T 624,311,377 BT &24 311,377 57.524,311,377 57024311377
Executing and
Assembly J50
Others 748,307, 204,080 _ 749.307.204.080 780768622422 7BO, 76622422
_2584.563 934,007 _2584,563,934,007 2678,520,818,52 _3679,520818.552

{f) On 25 January 2024, DL EAC Co. Lld submitted a Stztement of Claim to the Vietnam

International Arbitration Center (VIAC), initiating a dispute related 19 EPS Contract No.
JWHDKT/2012/PVC-SDC dated 22 May 2012, between the Corporation (the main contracior) and
DL E&C Co., Ltd (the subcontractor).

The subconiractor has requested the Arbitral Tribunal to review and decide cn the following
matiers: the conditions for granting the Operational Acceplance Certificate (completion certificate)
for the work performed under the conbract have been satisfied; the wamanty period for the
equipment and services provided by the subcontractor has ended; the Corporation is requestad
io seftle the overdue debts amounting to USD 7.67 million and WYND 287.3 milllon: refund the
performance deposit for the EPS Contract, Iotafing USD 13.4 milion and VND 532.9 million:
return the retainéd amount for warranty obligations, fotaling USD 20.05 million and VND 798.3
million; compensale for costs incurred due 1o project delays amounting to USD 11.85 million:
other related claims amounting to USD €23 million; and the estimated late payment panalty
amounting to USD 17.81 millon.

On 31 May 2024, the Corporation submitted a Statement of Defense in response fo DL E&C Co.,
Lid's Statement of Claim to VIAC, with the following key arguments: the Corporation does not
recognize DL EAC Co., Ltd's legal standing to initiate the claim, disputes the Arbitral Tribunal's
jurisdiction over the case, and rajects all claims made by DL EAC Co., Lid.

On the same day, the Corporation aiso filed a Counterclaim with VIAC, requesting DL E&C Co.,
Lid to compensate for damages resulting from breaches in the exacution of the EPS Contract,
with & total counterciaim value of WND 17 95547 million and USD 38.64 millian.

On 13 June 2024, VIAC issued Notice No. 1722VIAC, informing that the Arbitral Tribunal had
decided to hold a case management conferance, scheduled for early August 2024,

On 14 September 2024, VIAC issued Procadural Order No. 1 (PO No. 17) under Molice No.
274TNVIAC on behalf of the Tribunal,

On 12 Decemnber 2024, VIAC conducted an online hearing attended by representatives of both
the claimant and the respondant.

Paraliel to the arbitration proceedings at VIAC, PetroCons continues to engage in negotiations

and mediation efforts with Daelim E&C to resolve the disputes amicably and urges the contractor
Io withdraw the aforementioned claims.
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Petrovietnam Construction Jolnk Stock Corporation
14th figor, VPI Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanol

16 SHORT -TERM PREPAYMENTS FROM CUSTOMERS

22024 010172024
VD WMD
WVung Ang - Quang Trach Pelroleum Power Project Management Board 82,778 475,899 B2, 778,475 850
Viet Nam Machinery Installation Corporation - JSC 55,807 285, 149 55,897 285,149
Othars 39,904,543,073 20,679,905,967
—118,580,304,121 __168,355667.015
17 TAX AND OTHER PAYABLES TO THE STATE BUDGET
Tax recaivable at Tax payable at Tax payable in Tax paid in the Tax receivable at Tax payable at
the beginning of  the beginning of ihe year VEEr the end of the the end of the
year year year year
WND VND YND YND WD VMD
Value-added tax 26,600,011 500,250 244,308,837 83,167,509 26,600,011 161,641,578
Export, import duties 19,254, 703 = AT 117031 ArF 117,031 19,254,703 -
Corporala income lax 21,256,656 285 - - - 21,256 5585 285 -
Personal income tao 51,045,511 1,246,057 752 1.306,756.184 1,301.611,138 51.045.611 1,251,202, 808
Land tax and land rental - 906,003,174  1,400,028.06% 1,367,277 482 - 1,028,654,661
Othar taxes - 658,597 645 680,062,738 1,380,660,383 3,000,000 -
Fees, charges and other payables 783,720 146,761,405 128 568 665 273320070 783,720

21354240230 3047930325 3813832434 _ 4423263613 _ 21.357,040.0%0 __ 2,441 459,047

The Corporation's tax settlomants ane subject 1o exarminaton by the ax suthorites. Because e application of lax laws and regulations on many Iypes ol
transactions is susceplible to varying inlerpretations, amounts reporied in the Separate Financial Statements could be changed at a later date upon final
determination by the tax authorities.
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Separate Financial Statements

14th flioor. VPI Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street. Hanoi  For the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

18 ACCRUED EXPEMSES

b}

18

b)

31122024 01012024
VND WD

Short - term
Accrual of constreckion works B2.8532,004 281 113,229 848 569
Oither acorued expenses 5,008, 264 B4 5,111,951.088
glﬁillﬁli 22 Iiimlimlﬂﬂ'

Long - term
Accreal of construction works 115,497 B0OB, SE8 71,064 369 884
—115.497,608,58% _71.064.389.88¢

UNEARNED REVENUES

3122024 01/01/2024
WHD WND

Short = term
Revenues from property leasing 1,447 841,545 1,511,477, 208
1%;&“& 1I§“ éﬂﬂl

Long - term
Revenues from propery leasing (i) 50,632.252.045 £2,080,083,597

EHIEEIBH Eiﬂlmm

(i} Including: WND 42 996,288 428 is the balance of land rent received in advance by PetreVietnam
Steal Pipe Froduction Joint Stock Company under Contract No. 01HDDIPVRIPE-PYEC dated 01
Nowvember 2012 with the lease period of 588 months and a contract value of VND 46,818, 181,818
al Scai Rap Industrial Park - Teen Giang, The Corporation has allocated this rental amount to
revenue up to December 2014 with the amount of VND 3,821,882 383, After December 2014, the
project was planned 1o be handed over to the Pecple's Committee of Tien Glang province, but the
handever process has not been completed yed (detailed in Note 14). Therefore, the Corporation
has not yet worked with customers on the remaining balance of land rent mentioned above.
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20 OTHER PAYABLES

a)

b}

311272024 0150112024
WHND WND

Short - term
Trade unish fee 1,779,814 042 1.356 218,582
Social insurance 50,950,975 173,593,017
Health Insurance 83,080,851 106,448,512
Unemployment insurance 17,551,681 54 110,B89
Shori-lerm deposits, collateral receved 2,000,000 3,000,000
Prowision for guarantes oblgatons {i) 137,942 779,492 137,942,770,402
Modern Bank of Vietnam Limited (i) 172,784,334 551 162,596,140,733
vigtnam Oil and Gas Group {iii) 54 088 454,510 54,058 464,510
Cthers 52 902,125,753 53 363953678
I15IET3|1EJ‘T£5 MEEEH-ITI]EEES

Long - term
Long-term deposits, coliateral received 13,856,187 13,856,187

13,856,187 —-M

(i} As at 31 December 2024, the provision for guarantea cbiigations was as presented in Mote 33

{5} Interest payable to Modern Bank of Vietnam - MBV (formerly Ocean Commarcial Bank Limited -
OceanBank) includes the Corporation’s interast expense and interest expense that the Corporation
will collect from companies that the Corporation has paid or lent under capial suppon contracls
{detafled in Mote 8) lo pay OceanBank. According to Resolution Mo, T548/NQ-DKVN dated 29
October, 2014 of tha Board of Members of Vietnam Qil and Gas Group and Official Letter Mo,
TEET2014/CV-OceanBank dated 9 December 2014 of OceanBank, the payment deadiine for these
gmounts was extended to 31 December 2017 and the lcan interest rate was reduced lo 1% per
annum from 01 January 2015 as presented in Nole 21. From 01 January 2018, the loan was
subject o an overdue interest rate equal o 150% of the cument interest rate. As at the date of
thesa Separate Financial Statements, the Corporation is seeking solutions to seftle the overdue
loan interest payable.

(i} Including WVHD 42 22 bilion payvable o Vietnam Oil and Gas Group, which is the amaunt that
Vietnam Oil and Gas Group supported the Corporation to pay contraciors of the Soal Rap - Tien
Giang Petroleum Service Industrial Park Project
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21 BORROWINGS

01012024 During the year IMM2/2024
Outstanding Amount can be Increase Decrease Outstanding Amount can be
balance paid balance paid
VND YD VD WHD VHD WD
a)  Short-term borrowings
Short-term debts (f) 67.265007564  67,265907.564 SBET5477205 1 14,604,984 780 8,236,400,000 8,336,400,000
Current porton of long-term dabis 575,670,157,122 575,670,157.122 - - 578670,157,122 575,870,157,122

=42,936,064 606 _642936,064,686 _ 56,675,477,205 114,604,984 769 ms,mlﬂ?lzgﬁ 585,006,557,122
b) Long-term borrowings

Long-term debis (i) STE6T0, 157 122 575,670,157, 122 - = GF5ET0157.122 575670,157,122
Efﬁlﬂﬂ|1ﬂ|112 ﬂilﬁggﬁ ii:EE - - 5?5!5?1:!! g?ﬂﬂ TOA57.12

Amaunt dus for setilement within 12 (575,670.157,122) (575,670,157,122) (575,670,167, 122) (575670,157.122)

months

Amount due for settlement z - - -

after 12 months = ' = —

(i} Detailed information on Short-term borrowings:

Curr Interest Duration Loan purpose Guaraniea 3112:2024 01/01/2024
ancy  Rale
WHD WML
Juint Stock Commercial Bank for Investmentand  VND Floating 11 months Supplement Secured () 9.336,400,000 67,265,907,564
Developmeant of Vietnam (Ha Dang Branch) working capital,
guarantes lo open
LC

— 533400000 __67,265,907,564

(") Pledged by term deposits (Nate 04),




e
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14th figor, VPl Tower 167 Trung Kinh Sireet, Hanol For the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024
(i) Detaied information on Long-term barrowings:
Currency  Interest Yearof Loan pupose Guaranies JM2024 01/01/2024
— . fate _ mabmity
WND WHD
Long-term borrowings
Modern Bank of Vietnam Limited 675,670,157,122  575B870,157.122
= Conirac! No. 6032011HDTD- YND 4.90% JV122017 Invesl capifal in Lam Kinh LUnsecured 200,000,000.000 200,000, 000, A0
Coaanbank-PVC dated 20 October Hiolel JEC
20
= Conlract Mo. 6022011/HOTD- VIND 4.90% ITA22017  Invesimen! lean n Tha Bl Unsecorad G5, 000 000,000 G5, 000, D, 000
Ceeanbank-PYC daled Palroleurn  Invasimend  and
JOOE20T 1 Tradirg JSC
~ Contraci No. T02010HDTD- VD a.50% J1A2201F Making payments and Unsecwred 310,670,157,122 310670157 122
Dcegnbank-PVC daled Jung 30 affsaliing wvesimeni
2011 payments  recefved  from
PVYFC uader the Purchase
and Sale ContractTransfor
Contract
ﬂﬁlﬂﬂ-ﬂﬂ.ﬂ! E?EIETDIJ “I!E
Amount due for settlement within 12 months [5TH.E70,157.122) (575.670,157.122)
Amount due for sattlement within 12 months L - "

Accordng to Resolution No. 7648/NQ-DKVN dated 29 October 2014 issued by PYN's Board of Members and Official Letler No. T607/2014/CV-OceanBank
dated 09 December 2014 issued by OceanBank (now Modern Bank of Vietnam — MBV), the payment lerms of these credit contracts were extended 1o 31
Decembwer 2017 and the applicable interest rates were 2. 4% per year from the date the Corporation faded 1o pay interest until 31 Decemnber 2014 and 1% per
year from 01 January 2015. From 01 January 2018, the loan has been subject o a penalty interest rate equal to 150% of the regular interest rate. At the date
of these Separate financial stalements, the loans have become overdue, the Corporation is seeking salutions 1o repay the principal.

¢}  Unpaid overdue loan amount

311212024 01/01/2024
Value Interest Value Ivter
WMD VHD VND VND
Modern Bank of Vietnam Limited 975,670,157,122  172,7B4,334.851  575670,157,122  162.506,140.733
575,670,157,122 _ 172.784,334,551 _ 675670,157,122 _ 162,506,140,733
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Fetrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

14ih Boor, VP Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi Soparate Financial Statements

For the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

il OWHNER'S EQUITY

a) Changes in owner's equity

Contribuled capital Treasury Investment  Other reserves  Relained earnings Total
shares development
VYHD WHD VHD VHD WND VND

Beginning balance of provious year  4,000,000,000,000 (29,710,000) 75,986,992,734 500,000,000 (3,607,400,160,442)  470,057,122,292
Loss for the previous year . B ; (162,652, 761,738) (162,652,761.7348)

Ending balance of previous year  _4,000,000,000,000 _ (29.710,000] _76,986,992,734 ___ 500,000,000 _(3,770,052,022,180) _ 307,404,360,554

Beginning balance of this year 4,000,000,000,000 (20,710,000) 76,986,902,734 500,000,000 (3,770,052,922,180) 307 404,360,554
Profit for this year b - ’ 4.120,891,160 4_120.891,160
Ending balance of this year —4.000,000,000,000 _(20,710,000) _76,966,992.734 __500,000,000 _(3.765.932,031,020) _311.826261.714
b} Details of Contributed capital
— 31Pn024 Rate 01012024 Rate
YHD WD

Vietnam Qil and Gas Group 2,178,733,330,000 54.4T% 2,178,733,330,000 54.47%
Others 1,621,266,670,000 45 53% 1,821,266,670,000 45.53%

——— 200000000000 ____100% _4,000,000,000,008 ____100%

- AT 'l; . N = - f i
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¢) Capital transactions with owners and distribution of dividends and profits
l Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
l Cwnar's contributed capital
- Al the beginning of tha year 4,000,000,000,000 4 000,000,000,000
- At the end of the year 4,000,000,000.000  4.000,000,000,000
l d} Share
I J1H2r2024 Q10172024
Quantity of Authorized issuing shares 400,000,000 400,000, 000
Cruantity of issued shares 400,000,000 40:0,000,000
l - Commaon shares 400,000,000 400,000,000
Quantity of shares repurchased 28™ 2,871
- Comman slocks 2,871 2871
Quantity of outstanding shares in circulation 300,897,028 359,597,029
I - Common stocks 299,997,029 399,997,029
Par value per share: 10,000 WVHD
l e} Company's reserves
111272024 012024
l VND VND
Development and investment funds 75,986,992,734 76,986,992,734
' Other resarves §00,000,000 500,000,000
I 23 OFF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION ITEMS AND OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT
a) Foreign currencies
I 3122024 01012024
usp 7,364,593.80 8.459 296 B0
I b) Doubtful debts written-off
311272024 01/01/2024
I VND VND
Doubtful debts writlen-off 8,716,217,233 8,716,217,233
l 24 TOTAL REVENUE FROM SALES OF GOODS AND RENDERING OF SERVICES
Year 2024 Year 2023
I VND VND
Rewvenue from construcion contracts 519,557 804,974 707 462 488 841
Revenue from real estate business B,232 920 488 21,578,118.707
I Revenue from rendering of services 2 558,303,537 2,920,665 201
l M M’ 970,173 833
l "
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25 COST OF GOODS S0LD

Cost of construction contracts

Cost of goods sold

Cost of senvices renderad

Reversal of provisions for inventony devaluation

26 FINANCIAL INCOME

Interest income
Gain on exchange difference in the year
Gain on exchange diflerence af the year - end

27 FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Interest expenses
Loss on exchange difference in the year

Loss on exchange difference at the year - end

impairment koss from invesiment
Othars

28 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE

Labour expenses

Tools, supples office expenses
Depreciation expensas

Tax, Charge, Fea

Reversal of provision expenses
Expenses of outsourcing services
Other expenses in cash

— ey e mas S I S D I D O D N D G G D N oE . .

Sales interast on defarred payments, payment discownts

Provision for diminution in value of trading securities and

41

Year 2024 Year 2023

WND VND

£23 5684 760,540 673,229,330,607
18,614,679,798 30,821,750,597
3,586,307.420 3.621,648.914
(3.785,791.915) (6,707,810,605)

__SH1859BSERe3 __ 700964919513

Year 2024 YWaar 2023
WMND WD

7.347 104 835 14,085 370, 518
25.951.349.51 13,908 205,395
4 275931351 580 254 564
396,750,060 2,583,017,832
JT,IT‘.I,H-LT.E_E 1‘:9"|“"'|’“7
‘Year 2024 ear 2023

[ a] WND

8,448 758,758 12,021 888,667
J0.B4T. 078 487 22 312 487 585
245 505,899

12,763 588 422 131,845,831 243
5,121,536, 245 6,397, 108,011

5?.1?"!'“1'9-!3 ‘I?alilﬂ_.lﬂ-!&

Year 2024 Year 2023
WND WND
45,656,493,265 36,922 ,840,500
305,823,373 344, 723,781
458,304 860 769,344,600
B35,420, 797 1,129,076,878

(47 B44,885,775) {1,163,001,189)
9,957,002, 762 5611416 657
5467, 687,610 8,610,022, 538
5,153,920,247 50,518,423,765

—
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29

k.3 |

32

OTHER INCOME

Year 2024 Year 2023
WHD WHD
Gain from liquidation, disposal of fixed assets 1.886.469,830 64,545 445
Collected fines 445,109, 1687 1,720,549.012
Liabilities written off by agreement 38,380,782 870 -
Others 714,821 4,081 636
—40,714,076,908 789,186,057

OTHER EXPENSES
Year 2024 Year 2023
VMND WND
Late paymeant panaklies on tax and insuranca 256001 543 174 859 081
Others 474 B28 549 3,504 244 237

T30EI0452 ___£078,103318
CURRENT CORPORATE INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Yaar 2024 Year 2023

WYMD WHND

Total profit before tax 4.120,801,160 (162.652.761,738)
Increase 501,735,485 2. 854 983 415
- Ineligible expenses 501,735,485 2.994.909.415
Taxable income 4622626645 (158,657,762,323)
Carry forward losses from previous years (4,622 626, 645) -
Current corporate income tax expense (20%) - -
Tax payable at the beginning of the year (21,258,556,285) (21,256,556,285)

Corporate income tax payable atthe end of (21256 556.285) __(21,266,556,2051
the year

BUSINESS AMD PRODUCTIONS COST BY ITEMS

Year2024  Year2023

WD WHD
Raw materiaks 6,180,455,070 26,609,770,586
Labour expenses 48 545 852 050 58 557 QA8 333
Tools, supplies office expenses 305 823,373 2,534,043 350
Depreciation expanses 1,093,546 952 1.476.915,5096
Tax, fee and charge 1,771,138,000 1,410,022 564
Provisions (47 B44 BBS TTS) (1.168,001,189)
Expenses of outsourcing services ATE A58 837334 833,595,119 472
Dther expanses in cash 6,593 764,161 8,338,198,006

492 1,284 §31,350,954, 727

Ll 8 N,
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33 CONTINGENCIES

a] Guaranies for borrowlngs
As ak 3111272024, the Corporation has overdue guarantees for other companies’ borrowings at credil ingtitutions, specifically as follows:

Guarantead unit Organization recelved Guarantee period Guaraniee balanca Overdue loan  Provision for end-
guarantoes at the end of the balance at the end af-term llabilitlos
LT of the year
VND VHND VHD
Hanol Petrolaum Construction  Vietnam |nternational Bank - From 31122011 to 73,668 464,073 73,668 464,073 73,666 464,073
JSC Headguarters S04 012
Petrodeum Mechanical Lian Viet Post Joint Siock From 010012012 to 49 961,348,093 44 961,348,093 45 861 348,083
Executing and Assembly JSC  Commercial Bank - Dong Do 30/06/2012
Branch
Petrobeum Mechanical Vietnam Public Joint Stock From 26072011 to 14,312.967,325 14,312,067, 325 14,312 867,325
Exacuting and Assembly JSC  Commercial Bank - 26/07/2012
Headquariers
Sagon Petroleum Construction  Modern Bank of Visnam Limidted  From 31122011 to 17, 103,570,845 17,103,570, 845 -
and Investmant JSC () = 54l Gon Branch J0M0AM0 2 ia
___155,046,350,336 155,046,350,318 137 942 778 4581

The Corporation, as a guarantor, has committed to pay credit institutions the amounts equal o the value of the relevant latters of guaranioe plus any accrued
interest, penalties and other financial obligations (if any), immediately upon receipt of the first writien request demand accompanied by supporiing
documentation proving that the guaranteed entities have failed 1o fulfil or have inadequately fulfil their repayment obligations (if any). As of 31 December 2024:

- Credit institutions have dabiled approximately VND 81 billion from the Corporation’s deposit accounts to fullil its guarantes obligations;
- Guaranieed entities have repaid the Corporation approximately VND 49 billion out of the amoun! debited
Thus, the cutstanding balance of recaivables relating to guaranies obligations as al 31 December 2024 is approximately VND 42,8 bilhon (see Note 08)

Following the recommendations of the State Audit Office staled in the Audit Report for the year 2014 dated 10 March 2016, the Corporalion made provision
for all payable liabdities in respect of these guaraniess in the Separate Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2014, At the reporting date of
these Separate Financial Statements, the guaranteed enlities were still working with credil institulions regarding (he extension of the repayment ferms. The
Corporation is also working wilh these enlities and credit insfilutions fo release ils guarantes obligations in order 1o enhance its Bquidity.

("} In 2015, the Corporation reviewed all of ils lefiers of guarantes and assessed that ils obligation under the guaraniee provided for Salgon Pelroleum
Construction and Investment Joint Stock Company (PVC-5G) in relation to a loan from Ocean Commercial Joint Siock Bank (OceanBank) - Saigon Branch
(now Modern Bank of Vietnam = MBV - Saigon Branch), Following the assessment, the Provision Appraisal Council of the Corporalion determined that its
obligation under this guaraniee had changed and decided lo reverse the provision previously made for the Corporation’s liabiliies under the letler of
guarantee for PVC-5G's loan from OceanBank - Sal Gon Branch with the amount of approcemataly VND 99.9 bilkon. This provision reversal reduced the
Corporation’s financial expenses for 2016,
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On 18 August 2018, PVC-SG sent Official Letter No. 58/XLDKSG to the Corporation, reporting
details regarding the collateral for the entrusted loan and its ongoing discussions with Oceanbank.
According to the letter, on 10 August 2016, Oceanbank - Saigon Branch issued Official Letter MNo.
T8472016/CV-CNSG, responding to PVC-8G's proposed dabt satlarnent ptan. In this Official Letler,
Oceanbank - Saigon Branch approved FVC-5G's investment and business plan for the Urban
Devalopment Project of Areas 2 and 3, Ward § Vi Thanh Ciy, Hau Giang Province (M Thanh
Froject) as wall as the partial release of collateral to enable PVC-5G to sell goods/assets and
generate funds for debt repayment Under this plan, PVC-5G commaed to repaying the ful
outstanding principal amount of approximately VWD 148 billion to Ocean Bank.

As at 31 December 2024, PVC-SG has repaid WMD 131 bllion out of VND 148 bilion of the
principal. Additionally, PVC-5G has effectively implemented the debt repayment plan proposed by
Oceanbank - Saigon Branch. Based on this progress, the Board of Management assesses thal the
the Parent Company - the Corpoaration will not incur any lability under the guarantes, as PVC 5G is
financially capable of fulfiling iis repayment oblgations to Oceanbark (now Meodern Bank of
Vietnarn — MEV)

b} Payment guarantee

On 29 December 2010, the Corporation signed Guarantee Agreament No. 0112/2010MHDBL.TT-
PYCTEB with Thai Binh Petrclesm Towrism Company Limited (currenily known as Thai Binhk
Petroleum Trading and Investment Joint Stock Company (PVC Thai Binh) - a subsidiary of the
Corporation) and issued a guantantee payment ketter for PVC Thai Binh, with a guarantead amount
of approximately YWD 111.8 bilion. Under this guarantes, the Corporation undertakes and assures
PetroVielnam Exploration Production Corporation (PVEP) that PVC Thai Binh would fully and
timely fulfil ts payment obiigabons to PVEP in accordance with the Agreement on the transfer of
Thai Binh Petroleum Hotel Construction project, signed on 28 December 2010 between PVEFP and
PYC Thai Binh. The letter of guarantee takes effect from the signing date until PVC Thai Binh has
fully discharged its cbligations io PVEP in accordance with the terms of the transfer agreement.

In 20186, the Corporation received a request from PVEP to fulfil its guarantee chligation. However,
the Board of Managemen! of the Corporation has assessed that no labiities will arise for the
Parent Company under this guarantee, as PVC Thai Binh is able to fulfil is payment obligation to
PWEP.

¢} Conclusion of the Government Inspectorate

The Corporation was the contractor for the Northern Ethanol Biofuel Plant construction preject and
the Dinh Vu Polyester Manufacturing Plant construction project.

On 24 Movember 2018, the Governance Inspeciorate issued Announcement Mo, 3129 TB-TTCP,
concluding its inspection of biofuel projects that were partially funded by Vietnam Oil and Gas
Group and its subsidiaries. Based on the inspection findings, the Govemnment Inspectorate
proposed that the Corporation should be responsible for economic loss incurmed by the project
owner due to breach of the EPC Contract for the construction of the Northern Ethanol Biofuel Flank

On the same day, 24 November 2018, the Government Inspectorate also issued Announcement

No. 3130/TB-TTCP, summarizing the findings of its inspection regarding the construction of the

Dinh Vu Polyester Manulaciuring Plant According 1o the Governmenl Inspectorate, the following

cormective measures were recommended:

= A reduction of approximately WND 46.8 billion in the accepled and paid value of the work
performed by the Corporation due io violations of the Foreign Exchange Ordnance in contract
execution,

- A reduction of approximatety VND 8.1 billion and USD 23,000 in the EPC contract's accepled and
paid value due to duplicate acceptance of work volumes and unauthorized scceptance of
additional work volumes beyond the regulatory framewark.

The Corporation’s Board of Management has assessed thal the conclusions in the above
Government Inspectorale reports were directed al the project owners, with whom the Corporation
had confractual relationships as a related party. As at the reporting date, the Corporation was still
working with the project owners and the Government Inspectorate fo darify and address matters
concerning the Corporation's mvalvement as stated in the inspection reports.
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a)

In 2022, the Corporation received the Govarnment Inspector Conclusion No. 2090/KL-TTCP dated
23 Wovemnber 2022 regarding ds compliance with policies and laws in production and busingss
aclivities during the period 2008-2013. The Corporation has been actively coordinating with
relevant parties to implament the recommandations of the Government Inspecior in accondance
with this conclusion.

Contingent liabilities

As of the reporting date of these Separate Financial Statements, the Corporation and its
subsidiaries were involved in several ongoing Wigation cases related fo receivables, payables and
contingenl habilities relating fo valued added fax obligations and penalties for late payment of tax
on recognized revenue that has not yet been invoiced. The cutcomes of these litigation cases and
other contigent [iabilities remain uncertain at this stage.

OTHER INFORMATION
Unexpected costs at the Corporation’s construction projects

Dus to economic fuciuations, the Corporation's business operations are exposed o risks
associated with changes in market value of construction materials. Significant price fluctuations in
these materials could have a major impact on the Corporaton’s financial obligations and economic
benefits. However, the Board of Management acknowledges that market trends and government
macroeconomic policies are highly unpredictable. Therefore, it is impossible 1o quantify the exact
impact of these faciors on the Corporation’s ongoing construction projects. The final result will only
be determined upon compdetion and handover of the projects to the investors.

Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant Project

The Corporation signed an EPC confract to construct Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant with the
Thai Binh 2 Pelroleum Power Project Management Board [under the Vislnam O and Gas Group)
with approximately of USD 918 milbsn and VND 5874 billon. At the date of these Separate
Financial Staterments, the lotal provisional contract value signed by the Corporation with
subcontractors for the project has exceeded the EPC confract value agreed with the Thai Binh
Petraleum Power Project Management Board. According lo Official Letter Mo, T3T/TTg-KTN dated
23 May 2014 of the Prime Minister, the Thal Binh 2 Thermal Fower Plant has been classified as a
pricrity powaer project for the period 2013-2020.

The project is subject to special mechanisms and policies outined in Dedision No.2414/0D-TTg
dated 11 December 2013 of the Prime Minister.

According 1o a resalution by the Board of Directors of the Corporation, which temporarily approved
the EPC confract implemeniation plan, the expected revenue for the project is USD 5286 million
and VND 11,078.2 billion; while the estimated cost is USD 521.2 million and VND 11,4021 billion;
resulling oin a projected gross loss margin of 0.67%. As of the reporting date, the Corporation and
the Thai Binh 2 Petroleum Power Project Management Board are negoliating and finalizing
appendices to adjust the EPC confract value. Simullaneously, the Corporation is also working with
subcontraciors to re-sign appendices adjusting their contract values. The Board of Management
considers this 1o ba the best estimate avaitable at the tima of preparing these Separate Financial
Statemants and the estimate is continuously reviewed and updated to accurately reflect the actual
financial parformance of the Project Accordingly, the Corporation has recognized revenue and
expenses of this project based on the projected gross loss ratio.

Vurg Ang 1 Thermal Power Piant

On 28 Sepiember 2003, the Corporation signed a construction contract for the Vung Ang 1
Thermal Power Plant with Vietnam Machinery Instaliation Corpocation (LILAMA) under Contract
N, 2E0S0LILAMA-PVE with a iolal value of approximately WND 1,322 bilion. According to
Resclution No. GBE/NC-DKVN dated 27 January 2014, the Vietnam Oil and Gas Group (PVN) has
approved the unforeseeable costs of the entire Vung Ang 1 Thermal Power Plant project, including
internal roads and construction, amounting lo approximately WVND 1,000 biflion. ARfer verification
and appraisal, the estimated value of construction work parformed by the Corporation increased by
approotimately WND 290 billion (exciueding deductibie value-added tax) compared bo the initial lump-
sum contract value signed by the Corporation. The Corporation has formally requesied PVN to
consider adjusting the additional unexpected costs of this project. At the date of these Separate
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b}

Financial Statements, PYN and relevant state authosities have not yet issued a final decision
regarding thes matber. However, the Board of Managemean! belisves that the additional contract
value will be approved and officiadly signed.

Information on the Corporation's restructuring

According to Resolution No. 332/NQ-XLDK-DHDCD dated 11 Oclober 2022 of the Genaral
Meeling of Shareholders of PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation approving the
Corporation's rastructuring plan for the 2021-2025 period:

- The Gorporation will continue to hold at least 51% of its charter capital in the period 2021-2025 in
two subsidiaries: Petroleurn Pipeline and Tank Construction Joint Stock Company (PVC-FT) and
Petroleum Equipment Assembly & Metal Structure JSC (PVC-MS).

- The Corporation will fully divest its investment in all other subsidiaries during the 2021-2025
period.

- The fcliowing companies: Hanol Petroleum Construction JSG (PVG-HN), Petroleum Mechanical
Execuling and Assembly Joint Stock Company (FVC-MEA), Mien trung Pelroleum Construction
JEC (PVC-MT) and PetroVietnam Urban Development JSC (PVC-Mekong) will be dissalved or
deciered bankrupt in casa the Corporation fails to divest its capital,

- The Corporation will divest all other long-term financial investments and trading securities during
the 2021-2025 penod.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There have been no significant events occurring after the reporting period. which would requsne
adjusiments or disclcsures to be made in the Separate financial statements.
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

14th fioor, YPI Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hangi

Separate Financial Statements

For the fiscal year ended as at 31 Decamber 2024

38 REMUNERATION, SALARIES AND OTHER INCOME OF MANAGERS OF THE CORPORATION

Remuneraticn, salaries and other income of members of the Board of Management, Board of
General Direclor, Board of Supenvision and olher managers are as follows:

1)

_{

Board of Directors
Mr Mghiem Cluang Huy
Mr Pham Van Khanh
Mr Tran Hai Bang

Mr Nguyen Hoai Mam
Mr Chu Thanh Hai

Board of Management
Mir Tran Quoc Hoan

Mr Phan Tu Giang

Mr Nguyen Van Dong
Mir Mguyen Trung Tri

Mr Vu Manh Quang
Mr Pham Trung Kien
Mr Hoang Quyel Thang

Mr Bui Son Truong

Board of Supervision
Mr Hua Xuan Nam

Mr Phung Van Sy

Mr Nguyen Ngoc Cucng

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The comparative figures are figures in the Separate quru:hl E“umm-rlts for the fiscal year anded -

as at 31 December 2023, which was audited by AASC Audid g E
. r_"l.- Ll :#

(b

Position Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
2,207,775913 2,258,749,898
Chairman 545,547,303 543,278,735
Indapendant mamber 244 2B5 000 249 555 000
Membet 479,908,106 504,420,370
Membef 468,008,070 495,761,660
Member 471,929,434 455,736,130
2,014.722,753 2.155,452,151
General Direclor (Appainted 448 814 957 -
on 01/01/2024)
General Direcior (Resigned 109,537 217 580,148,335
on 010172024}
Deputy General Difacbor S0O7 748 575 4597 083,200
Deputy General Director - 328,577,304
[Resigned on 01/07/2023)
Deputy General Director B3, 347,000
(Resigned on 30/05/2024)
Deputy General Director 454,890 450 76,673.500
(Appointed on 01/10/2023)
Deputy Ganeral Director =
(Resigned on 01/11/2023)
Deputy General Director 482 731,554
506,218,999
Head of the Board 441,418,959
Member 32,400,000
Member 32,400,000

‘:

Vu Thi Cham
Preparer
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PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK CORPORATION _
14th Floor, VPI Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi, Vietnam

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

The Board of Managemenl of PetroVielnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation (the Corporation®)
presents ils report and the Corporation's Consolidated Financial Staternents for the fiscal year ended as
at 31 December 2024,

THE CORPORATION

PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation (the “Corporation”), an entity under management of
Vietnam Oil and Gas Group (PVN), formery known as PetroVietnam L‘.unstl_'ucl:lnn Joint Stock Empapy,
was established in Vietnam by privatizing Petreleum Design and Construction Company under Decision
Mo, 532/00-TCCE dated 26 March 2004 of the Minister of Industry (curently known as the Ministry of
industry and Trade). PetroVietnam Construction Joinl Siock Company operales under Business
Regieiration Certificate for Joint Stock Company No. 4203000232 dated 13 March 2006 issued by Ba Ria
- Vung Tau Department of Planning and investment

As per Resciution No, 3604/NQ-DKVN dated 26 October 2007, the Board of Members of Vietnam 0il-and
Gas Group ("PetroVietnam®) approved the propesal on transfer of Petro Construction Joint Stock
Company into PetreVietnam Construction Joint Siock Corporation, operating under the moded of holding -
subsidiary company, The Corporation operales under Business Registration Certficate for Joint Etock
Company No. 3500102365 dated 20 December 2007 and the 225t change on 18 January 2024, issued by
Hanai Authorty for Planning and Invesiment

The Corporation's head office is located at 14th floor, Vietnam Pefroleum Institute building, 167 Trung
Kinh Street, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay Dstrict, Hanol.

EOQARD OF DIRECTORS, BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND BOARD OF SUPERVISION
Members of tha Board of Directors dunng the fiscal year and 1o the reporting date are;

Mr. Nghiem Cuang Huy Chairman

kr. Pham Van Khanh Indepandent Mambar
Mr. Tran Hai Bang Member

Mr. Chu Thanh Hai Member

Nir. Nguyen Hoal Nam Member

Members of the Board of Management during the fiscal year and fo the reporting dale are:

hr Tran Quoc Hoan General Director (Appointed on 01 Janwary 2024)
Mr. Phan Tu Giang General Director (Resigned on 01 January 2024)
Mr. Mguwyen Van Dong Deputy General Director

Mr. Bui Son Truang Deputy Genaral Direchar

Mr. Pham Trung Ken Deputy General Director

Mr. Yy Manh Quang Deputy General Director (Resigned on 30 May 2024)

The legal represeniative of the Corporation during the year and until the preparation of this Separate
Financial Statemnents is Mr. Tran Quoc Hoan (General Director)

Members of the Board of Supervision ane:

Mr, Hua Xuan Nam Head of the Board of Supervision
Mr. Mguyen Ngoc Cuong Member

Mr. Prung Van Sy Memiber

AUDITORS

The auditors of AASC Auditing Firm Company Limted have taken the audit of Separate Financial
Statements for the Corporation.
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PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK CORPORATION )
14th Floor, VPI Tawer, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi, Vietnam

STATEMENT OF THE ROARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Management is responsible for the Consolidated Financial Statements which give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Corporation, its operating results and its cash flows for the
year, In preparing those Consclidated Financial Statements, the Board of Management is required lo:

. Establish and maintain an inlernal control system which is determined necessary by the Board of
Directors and Board of Management o ensure the preparation and presentation of Consofidated
Financial Statements do not contain any malerial misstatement caused by errors o frauds,

- Sslect sultable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

State whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any matenal cepariures
disclcsed and axplained in the Consclidated Financial Statements;

Prepare the Consolidated Financizl Statements on the basis of complance with Vietnamese
Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting Syslem and the statulory requirements
relevant to preparation and presentation of Financial Stalements; _

- Prapare the Consclidated Financial Stalements on the going concern basis unless Il 5 inapproprate (o
presume thal the Corporabon will continug in business.

The Board of Management is responsible for ansuring that accounting records are kept fo reflect the
financial position of the Corporation, with reasonable accuracy al any time and fo ensure that the
Consolidaied Financial Statements comply with the cumment Stale’s regulations. Il i responsicle for
safeguarding the assets of the Corporation and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other imegularities

The Board of Management confirms that the Consclidated Financial Statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position at 31 December 2024, its operation results and cash fiows in the year 2024 of the
Corporation in accondance with the Vielnamesa Accounting Standands, Vietnamese Corporale
Accounting System and the statubary requirements relevant to the preparation and presentation ol
Congolidated Financial Stalements.

Other commitments

The Board of Management pledges that the Corporation complies with Decree No, 1552020/ND-CP
dated 31 December 2020 on dedailing and guiding the implemantation of @ number of articles of the Law
on Securities and the Corporation does not violale the obligations of information disclosure in accordance
with the reguiations of the Circular No. S6R020TT-BTC daled 16 Movembar 2020 issued by the Ministry
of Finance guiding the disciosure of information on Securiies Market and the Circular No. BR2024/MT-
BT . daled 16 Sepltember 2024 issued by Ministry of Finance amending and supplementing some aricles

-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To: Shareholders, Board of Directors and Board of Managemant
PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

We have sudited the accompanying Consclidated financial statements of PelroVietnam
Construction Joint Stock Corporation (the “Corporation”), prepared on 31 March 2025, as set out on
pages 08 to 61, including: Consolidated Statement of Financial position as at 31 December 2024,
Consolidated Statement of Income, Consolidated Statement of Cash flows and Notes lo
Consaolidated Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024.

Board of Management's Responsibility

The Board of Management of PefroVietnam Gonsiruction Joint Sieck Corporation is respansible for
the preparation and presentation of Consolidsted Financial Statemants thal give a true and fair view
in actordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamesa Corporate Accounting System
and the statutory requirements relavant to the preparation and presentation of Financial Stalements
and for such internal control as management delarmines is necessary 1o enable the preparation and
preseniation of Consclidated Financial Staterments thet are free from material misstalement,
whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our regponsbility is 1o express an opinion on these Consolidaled Financial Statements based on
our gudit. We have conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing.
Howewer, due to e malter described in the paragraph *Basis for Disclaimer of Opinlon”, we were
unable to oblain sufficient appropriate audit evidence (o provide 8 basis for the audit opinion.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

We were unable io assess the effect of the following matiers on the Corporation's Consalidated
Financial Sialements for tha fiscal year ended 31 December 2024 (attached):;

1. As al 31 December 2024, the Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the following: an
accumulaled loss (code 421) of WND 388841 bilion, current Nabilities (code 310) of VND
5,383.51 billion, which exceeded current assets (code 100) by VND 781.85 bilion, and overdue
debts as at 31 December 2024 amounting to YND 1,200.95 billicn. The Corporation's financial
position as at 01 January 2024 was simllarly challenging. These factors, together with the
disclosures in Note 1, lead to substaintial doubt about the Corporation's ability to continue as a
going concern. The Carporation's ability to maintain operations depends on its plans lo recover
oulstanding receivables, restructure investments, complate and finalize works in progress 1o
recover funds, and secure financial suppert from shareholders and creditors. Within the scope of
an audit of the financial slatements, we did not obtain sufficient appropriate evidence lo assess
the feasibility and effectiveness of these operational plans,

2. As at 31 December 2024, the Corporation recorded a loan receivable of WND 200 billion, lent 1o

Lam Kinh Hetel Joint Stock Company to support its business operations (as at 01 January 2024
VND 200 billien). A proviskon of VND 124.4 billicn had been made for this loan (as at 01 January
2024: VND 124.4 billion) (Nole 7). We were unable to oblain sufficlent appropriate audit
avidence regarding the recoverability of this receivable as at 31 December 2024 and 01 January

2024. Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any adjustments to these amounts
WOre necessary.
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3. As at 31 December 2024, the cost of work in progress refated o Vung Ang 1 Thermal Power

PFlant Project (Note 10) and Quang Trach 1 Thermal Power Plant Project (Note 14) amounted to
approximately YND 245 1 billion and VIND 25.8 billion (as at 01 January 2024: VND 245.1 billion
and VYND 25.8 bilion). As at the reporling date, the Corporation was still engaging with the
relevant authorities on: (1) approval for adjustments relating 1o unexpected expenses incurred in
the Vung Ang 1 Thermal Power Plant Project and (2) acceptence and finakization of the
Corporation’s incurred expenses under the Quang Trach 1 Thermal Power Plant Project. We
were unable to oblain the net realizable value of these work in progreéss as al 31 December 2024
and 01 January 2024, Consaquently, we werg unable 1o determine whether any adjustments to
these amounts were necessary.

. In Naote 15 of the Noles to the Consolidated Financial Statements presents the balance of

construction in progress as at 31 December 2024 including projects (where the Corporation is
the Invesior) that have been suspended in previous years namely (1) the Petroleum University
Urban Areas Project and (2) the Tien Giang Petroleum Indusirial Zone Project with a total
amount of approximately WND 5.72 bilion (as of 01 January 2024 approximately VND 5,72
billian), We were unable to cblain sufficient appropriate evidence regarding the potential future
economic benefils of these projects, Consaguantly. we weare unable to delerming whelher any
edjustments o these amounls were necessary

. The Corporation is consolidating Petrovietnam Urban Development Joint Stock Company (a

subsidiary) into the Corporation’s Consolidaied Financial Stalements based on the unaudied
Financial Staternenis for the second quarter of 2024, A al 30 June 2024, the subsidiary reported
iotal asset of VND 15.16 billion and negative equity of VMND 193.44 biion, with revenus and profit
afier corporate income tax amounting to WMD 0.00 billion and negative YVND 053 billion,
respectively. Regarding associate companies, except for Thanh Hoa Petroleum Construction
Joint Stock Company and Mien Trung Petroleum Construction Joint Stock Company, whose
financial statements have been audited, the value of investmenis in the remaining associates is
presenied using the equity method based on unaudited financial statements for the financial year
ended 31 December 2024 or the most recent Financial Staterments available to the Corporation
[Mabte 04). We were unable o assess the appropriateness of these figures.

. As at 31 December 2024, the Corporalion was unable to cbilain financial stalements from the

invesiee enfities refaled io the "Eguity investments in other enfities” item [(code 253) on the
Consolidated Stalement of Financial position. The total camying amount and total provision for
these investments were VND 151.595 bilion and VND 149.89 bilion, respectively (as at 01
January 2024: WVND 191.585 bilon and WND 180.08 bifion, respectively). Provisions for these
investments were made based on the latest financial statements available 1o the Corporation. We

were unable to oblain sufficient appropriate documeniation to access the impairment of these
investments.

. Thai Binh Petroleun Trading and Investment Joint Stock Company (a subsidiary) has neither

assessed the impairment nor estimated the net realizable value of its real estate inventories,
which had canrying value of VND 36.3 billion as at 01 January 2024 and 31 December 2024

(Mote 10). We were unable to obtain appropriste documentation regarding the net realizable
value of these real estata inventories,

Al Thai Binh Petroleum Trading and Investment Joint Stock Company, we have carried out the
necessary audit procedures. However, we were unable o obtain sufficient audit evidence to
confiern the accuracy and recoverable value of the “Abandaned business production costs® of the
Company as of December 31, 2024, with a total amount of VND 33,647 billion. Therefore, we
have not determined the necessary adjustments related fo the “Abandoned business production
cosis” account and other relaled accounts, as well as any potential impacts (i any) on the
accompanying consolidalad financial statements

. As at 31 December 2024, the balance of inventories presented In the financial statements of

Petroleurn Dong Do Joint Stock Company (a subsidiary) includes construction in progress for
An

Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant, Song Hau 1 Thermal Power Plant, Tran Anh - Long
Apartment Buliding and Mult-purpose Buliding Project in District 1, with a total value of
approximately VND 55,368 bilion (as at 01 January 2024: VND 57.67 billion). We were unable to

assess the nel realzable value of these construction in progress projects as at the respective
dales.




10.At Petroleum Dong Do Joint Stock Company (a subsidiary), the oulstanding balances of
receivables and payables are as follows: as of D1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024,
receivables amounied to VND 14.25 bilkon and VND 25 58 billlon, respectively; payables as of
the same dates amounted to VND 15.51 billion and VND 15.83 bilicen, respectively. As of 31
Dacember 2024, the company had not reviewed or assessed the collectability of the oulstanding
recaivable balance of VND 20.52 bilion for potential allowance for doubtful debls. We are unable
to assess the existence, recoverability, or the necessary provision for these receivables.

11 At Pebroleurn Eguipment Assembly and Metal Structure Joint Stock Company (a subsidiary), we
wese unable to cbtain the necessary documentation related to the Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power
Plant and Song Hau | Thermal Power Plant projects. Consequently, we were unable o express
an opinion on the appropristeness of the cumulative revenue and cost of goods sold recognized
a3 of 31 December 2024, which amounted to VND 892.97 bilion and WYND 221.34 billion,
respectively (including revenue and cost of goods soid recognized in 2024 of WND 4.93 billion
gnd VMD 515 biion, respectively). Additionally, we have not been able to assess the
appropriateness and completeness of the work-in-progress expenses related fo these two
projects a5 of 31 December 2024 and 01 January 2024, with valees of VND 14625 billion and
YHD 148,78 billion, respectively, nor their impact on the accompanying financial stalemants,

12 At Pelroleum Egquipment Assembly & Metal Structure Joant Stock Company (a subsidiary), Nole
13 of the Consolidated Financial Statements states that this subsidiary is monitoring the value of
land use righis related io the land plot at No. 02 Nguyen Huu Canh, Thang MNhat ward, Vung Tau
city, Ba Ria-Vung Tau province with an original cost of VND 15.1688 bilion and accumulated
amortization of VND 6.488 biion as at 31 December 2024, This land plot has been repurposed
for the development of a High-rise Residential and Office Complex project, for which the
subsidiary is the investor. The project was completed and put info use since 2014, On 24 August
2017, the Deparment of Natwral Resouwrces and Environment of Ba Ria - Vung Tau province
revoked the use rights to reaffocate them lo the project owners. Under this arangement, the
subsgidiary refaing land use rights, ownership of residental fioors, and other land-attached assets,
including floors 1 through 5, technical floors, and technical roof fioor of the project However, the
subsgidiary has not accounted for the value of tha kand use righls as part of the projsct's cost.

13.The work-in-progress balance of PetroVieinam Industrial and Civil Construction Joint Stock
Company (a8 subsidiany) includes the unfinished valus of tha Commercial, Servica, Office, and
Apartment Complex project, amounting to VND 32.89 billion (Mote 10). The project was
completed and put into use in 2019, however, as of the preparation date of thesa Consaolidated
Financial Statements, its final seftiement has yet to be approved.

14.Al PetroVielnam Industrial and Cvil Construction Joint Stock Company (a8 subsidiary). The
Company has not assassed the recoverability of the long-lerm receivable for the Long Son
Hnm'!li!m ;I:Iﬂrﬁﬂ!ﬂl Project, amounting to WND 12.89 billion (Mote 158), which was completed
smnce 2018,

15.At PetroVietnam Industrial and Civil Construction Joint Stock Company (a subsidiary), the
cutstanding balances of receivables and payables had not been fully reconciled and confirmed as
al 01 January 2024 and 31 December 2024, Specifically, payables amounted to VND 2928

billion and WMD 21.27 billion, respectively, while receivables amounted to WYND 4.26 bilion and
VHD 4.21 billion, respectively.

16.At Petroleun Tank Pipeline Construction Joint Siock Company (a subsidiary), the outstanding
balances of receivables and payables had not been fully reconciled and confimed as al 01
January 2024 and 31 December 2024, Specifically, payables amountad lo VND 11.67 billion and
‘I.I'fHD 15.55 billion, respectively; receivables amounted lo VND 11.48 billon and VND 10.31
bilion, respectively. Meanwhile, the outstanding receivables amounted to VND 106.22 billion and
;‘ﬂ:.ﬂﬂhﬁmasuhhampe:ﬂm-datuhdnﬂbmrnhﬂmdmmmﬂﬁmw
company.




Disclaimer of Opinion

Because of the significance of the matiers described in the “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion”
paragraph, we have not been able 1o oblain sufficient appropriate evidence lo provide a basis for an
audit opinion for Consolidated Financial Statement. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion an
the Consolidated Financial Statemeants,

Emphasis of Matter

As presented in Note 38 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, as at 31 December
2024, the Corporation has certain contingent Babilities, and the final cutcomes regarding its ralated
obligations have not been determined.

;I;'m,ﬁhaq of opinion is nat modified with respect to this matier.

r AASC Jlﬂdill;a “irm Company Limited

Pham'Anh- Nguyen Duy Qua
Dipyty General Cirector MIIIEr y -
Registered Auditor No.: 0777-2023-002-1 Fegistered Auditor No.: 3363-2025-002-1

Hanoi, 31 March 2025




PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

VP Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanol

Consolidated Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2024

Code ITEMS Note IM212024 01/01/2024

VND WVHND
100 A.CURRENT ASSETS 4,611,664988 814  4,715,401,378,B06
110 | Cash and cash equivalenis 3 413,474, 223,994 315,530,103,712
111 1. Cash 255 791,531,076 249 067 218,323
112 2 Cash equivalents 177 682 682 918 B6 462 884 3848
120 1L Short-term Invesiments 4 254 505 326 478 311,127,549,041
121 1. Trading securities 14,800,000 000 14,900,000.000
122 2. Prowsion for diminubion in value of {13 B85 000 000} (13,885, 000,000)

irading securities

123 3. Held-to-maturity investments 253,400.326 478 110,112, 549,041
130 I, Short-term receivables 1,957 524 5TB 173 2,010,762,321,383
131 1. Shori-term trade recenables & 1,663,260 3497 182 1,778,6803,348, 159
132 2. Shod-lerm prepayiments to Supphers [~ §70,160,345.845 SB0, 588,469,744
135 3. Shod-term loan receivable 7 355 676,853 453 355 676,053,403
138 4 Other shorl-berm recebvables B 418 800 BBE TES 304 335071228
137 5. Provision for shor-term doubtful debis (1.052,014,336,142) {1,104,319,218,888)
138 B. Shortage of assels awaiting resalubon 840,332,820 BTT.695.450
140 V. Inventorias 10 1,817,989 197 656 1,928,609,601,351
141 1. |nventories 1,937,818 205 304 2,073 825,706 264
148 2. Prewision for devaluation of inventories (118,829,707 648)  (145216,104,913)
150 V. Other short-term assets 148,171,672,513 149,371,803,319
151 1. Short-term prepaid expenses 11 3,443 165,122 2,138,799,066
152 2. Deductible VAT 110,051 427 581 111,858, 213274
153 3 Taxes and other receivables from Stale 18 34 637,079,800 35 373,780,879

budget




Consolidated Financial Statemants

tio
PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation For the fiscal year ended as at 311 2r2024

WPI Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2024
{Continued)

5 Hote I1M2z2024 0100112024
Code AS3ET e YND
200 B.NON-CURRENT ASSETS 1,514 BBT 611,157 1,498,227 630,963
Ho L Lﬂ“‘ﬂ'tln'n m'.hr.‘hlﬂ !l-,TM.ﬂM .E-HI 31 .?1 E.EH.EE:
212 1. ng_tarm mmmemg o EUW'I“ [ 4 3e2 238 011 12,‘55.3?ﬁ.511
216 2. Other long-term receivables B 28 587,933,837 31,414,368.200
219 3 Provision for long-term doubtful debts (9,085,768 058) (12,185,768, 058)
220 I Fixed assels 1,025,002 575,740 1,041,122,079 780
221 1. Tangrle foed assets 12 TET, 327,663,072 752,911,097 840
F22 = Hisloncal cost 1,626,973, 749 975 1,B48.521,708 443
223 - Accumulated depreciation (B50, 645 880 503) (895 510,610 603)
227 2. Intangibla fixed assels 13 257,674,708 668 258,210,981,940
228 = Historical cost 284,362 878 802 284 292 BTRO02
229 - Accumulated emaortization (26, 7T18,172.234) (26,181,896,862)
230 I Investment properties 14 85,507 988,185 77,985,T80,368
231 - Histoncal cosis 111,067 844 188 101,148,280,217
232 - Accumulated depreciation {25,559.856,003) (23.182.508.848)
240 V. Long-term assats in progress 15 138,515,570,046 136,725481,822
241 1. Long-term work in progress 25,064,213.535 25.064,213,530
242 2 Congimeclion in progress 113,451,357 407 111,661,268 283
250 V. Long-term investments 4 78,900,512,009 69,717,480,211
£52 1. Imrestments in joint ventures and 32,208 528,511 33,113, 367,012

associales
253 2 Equity investments in other entities 206,313,000.000 206.,313,000,000
254 3 Provision for devaluation of long-term (158,821,017 ,502) {168,708 BB6.801)
investments

260 V1. Other long-term assets 158,216,562,687 170,983,081,119
261 1. Long-term prepaid expenses 11 100,284,708, 167 111,621,834 408
262 2. Deferred income tax assets 35 18,801,350,080 18,230,762,273
268 3. Other long-term assets 16 38,130,504 440 40,130,504 440
ZT0 TOTAL ASSETS 6,126 1 13 TES




PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
YP| Tower, 187 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi

Consolidated Financial Statements
For the fiscal year endad as at 3111272024

As at 31 December 2024
(Continued)
Code CAPITAL Thuyét 3111212024 01/01/2024
minh VD VHD

360 C. LIABILITIES 5.597.542.732.987 5.686.992.765.922
30 L Current liabilities §.393.511.932.470 5.503.169.045.305
311 1. Shor-tarm trade payables 17 3.254 938 B39.111 3.340.526.731.717
32 2 Shor-term prepayments from cuslomers 18 232242 450.037 213715212808
313 3. Taxes and other payables o State budget 18 {25 235 476 617 122 243730820
314 4. Payables to employeas 48.701.521.223 HA 835 792162
315 5. Shor-larm accrued expenses 20 453154 875 552 451 822 676.931
318 B Shod-term unearned revenue 21 B.249.109.7211 3.1681.130.462
319 7. Other short-term payables 22 582 456 022 299 58T B54.331.570
320 8. Shor-term borrowings and finance lease 24 E04.791.84T7 282 T20.443.048.817

ligbilities
322 9.Bonus and welfare fund (4.257 818 382) (4.253.618.382)
330 1L Non-current liabilities 204.030.800.517 182.823.720.117
333 1. Long-lerm sccrued expenses 20 115 487.508.588 71.310.452.285
338 2 Long-term unearnad ravanue 21 50.831.503.317 £2.375.6B0.485
337 3. Other long-term payables 22 2.823.169.868 1.645.775.187
338 4. Long-term borrowings and finance leasa 24 24.000.000.000 38.000.0:00.000

lgbilities
342 5. Provisions for long-term payables 23 10.778.488.744 20.487.803.160
400 D.OWNER'S EQUITY 520.009.876.984 526.636.503.847
410 | Ownear's equity 25 529.009.876.984 B26.6365.503 847
411 1. Conlributed capital 4.000.000.000.000  4.000.000.0:00.000
411a - Ordinary shares with voling rights 4.000.000.000.000 4, 000000000 DOO
412 2, Share Premium 6.831.719.482 8.831.719.482
414 3. Other capital 22 681.220.411 22 681.220.411
415 4. Treasury shares (28.720.185) (28.720.185)
418 5. Development and investment funds 150.B59 427 814 150,850 427 814
420 B Other reserves 231 648426 233848 428
421 7. Retained eamings (2.908.411.908.973) (4.005.332.783.992)
#27a - Retained earnings accumulated til the (4.005.7817.884.168) (3845 T10.214.787)

end of the previous year
421b - Retained eamings of the curnent year 7.360,885.195 (158622 569, 205)
429 B Non - Controlling Interests 148845 580.019 351.382.091.901
440 TOTAL CAPITAL 78.95;

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

r

Mguyen Thi Thu Anh
Frepaner

Vu Minh Cong
Chief Aczountant

6.213.629.269.T69




PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Conscfidated Finaneial Gamamart
VPI Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Streel, Hanoi For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024
COMNSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
Year 2024
Code ITEMS Mota Yoar 2024 Year 2023
WYHD VND

01 1. Revenue from sales of goods and 27 1,213,006,106,954  1,189,720,911.616

rendering of services
10 2. Net revenue from sales of goods and 1,213,006,108,554 1,188,720,811,616

rendering of services
11 3. Cost of goods sold 28 1,161,337 416,194  1,284,156,315,702
20 4. Gross profit from sales of goods and §1,668,690,760 [94,435,404,086)

rendering of services
21 & Einancial imcoma 28 42 871,334 402 41,635,334 582
22 B, Financizl expanse 30 B3,779,127,180 71,080,156,881
23 In which: Interast expensa 35,198,593 108 41,707, 144,807
24 7. Share of joint ventures and associates’ (204 837 ,501) (755,595, 765)

profit or loss
25 8. Selling expense 2,074,093 980 427 626,451
28 5. General and administrative expense a1 74,129,955,136 126,121,618 228
30 10. Net profit from operating activities (#6, 347 988 645) [251,1095.466,729)
3 11, Other income az 62,809,113 840 7357200 444
32 12, Other expense 33 11,743,521,972 23 2FT 4598 839
40 13, Other profit 51,155,591, 868 (15,920,287 ,395)
E0  14. Total net profit befora tax 4,807,603,223 (267,115,754, 124)
51 15 Current corporate income tax axpenss 34 2077 818,123 .
§2 16 Deferred corporate income lax expense 35 116,862,081 {1.885,066,065)
60  17. Profit after corporate income tax 2,613,023.019 (265,220 688,059)
€1 18, Profit after tax attributable to owners 7,368,885,195 (158,622,669,205)
62 19. Profit after tax attributable to non- (4,756,862,176)  (105,588,118,854)

controlling interest
70  20. Basic earnings per share 36 ,.;-.-i'." rlli: 75 18 {399)

e IoNG
- -'.“:fﬁ'-z T o8 uin
/ iy L

i_._-—-—-_'__-' l:'._ ‘:.DE'I.H.'“.

’-'"‘\'i-'l't__:T NAM

Hguyen Thi Thu Anh Vu Minh Cong uoc Hoan
Preparer Chief Accountant General Director
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PetroVietnam Construction Jaint Stock Corporation
VP| Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Streef, Hanoi

Consolidated Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended a3 st 31/1272024

Year 2024
{Indirect mathod)
Code ITEMS Hote:
I. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
a1 1. Profit before tax
2. Adfustment for:
02 - Depreciation and amarization of fixed
assats and investment propertes
02 - Provisions
04 - Exchange gains / losses from retranslation
of monelary items denominated in foneign
05 - Gaing flosses from investment
08 - Inferest expense
08 3. Operating profit before changes in
working capital
02  -lIncrease or decrease in recevables
10 -Increase or decrease in inventories
11 -Increase or decrease in payables
12 - Increasa or decresss in prépaid expenses
14 «Interest paid
15 - Corporate income tax paid
18 - Other receipts from operating activities
17 = Other payments on operating activities
20  Net cash flow from operating activities
Ii. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
21 1. Purchase or construction of fixed assats
and other long-term assals
22 2 Proceeds from disposals of fived assats
and other long-term assels
23 3. Loans and purchase of debt instrumenis
from other entities
24 4. Collecton of loans and resale of debt
instrument of other enlities
27 B Inlerest and dividend received
30 Net cash flow from investing activities

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

12

Year 2024
VHD

4.807,603,223
39,785,216,032

(100.568.459,527)
{4,169 T&T B46)

(15,713 630 582)
36,1688 533,108
{39,680,474,692)

126,676,626,746
125,374,405, 428
(B8,001,830, T45)
10,032,760,183
{1,064 453,316}
(467,538,232)
1,215 000,000
(1,244.200,000)
151,810,298,372

(74,871,289, 2489)
16,703,561,704
(248251, 366 478)

304,873,5889,041

12,160,540.711
10615435729

Year 2023
WD

(267,115,754,124)
43,967,463 802

(17.779,133,085)
254,168,100

(24,2417 047 444)
41,107 144 907
(223,787,156,844)

223,360, 408 04T
24,137,884 628
{160,202 718,176)
(5,348,731 832)
(4,018,012,743)

4,270,000,000

(3,931,180, 581)
(145,518 487,301)

(860,405,861)
(68,208,960,000)
30,116,349,203

23,660,592,035
(16,362,424,623)

l
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Consolidated Financial Slatements

PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
For (he fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

WPI Tower, 167 Trung Hinh Streat, Hanoi

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year 2024
(Indirect method]

{Continued)
Code ITEMS Note Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VHD

fll. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTMVITIES
23 1. Proceeds from bormowings 100,137,532.071 145,549 4032 885
14 2. Repayment of prncipsl (148,788,933,736) (230,774 673.516)
40 Net cash flow from financing activities (48,5651 401,565) (84,225,270,621)

50 Mot cash flows in the year

g0 Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year

B1 Effact of exchange rate luciuatons

70 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
the yoear

f{#ﬂa#

113,774,332,436  (246,106,182,545)

315,530,103,712 561 632,676,583
4 160,787 846 3 805,674 !
1
433 474,223,994 315,530,103,712 '
— ==

C—
Mguyen Thi Thu Anh Vu Minh Cong
Preparer Chief Accountant
Hanol, 31 Manch 2025
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g | Stateme
petroVistnam Cconstruction Jmnt:jm“;_k Corporation nmmm:m

Kinh Streel,

NOTES TO EIJHEGIJD!LTED FINANCIAL 'S-ThTE-H.EHTS
Year 2024

furvorini 85
pperales under Busingss Registration Cerficate for Joint Stock Company MO 4903000232 dated
13 March 2006 wsued by B3 Ria - Yung Tau Departmeant of planning and Investment

pg par ReshUtion - 3A04NC-DIVH dated 28 October 2007, ihe poard of Members gt Wietnam
O and Gas Group L'Pauo'-.l'fa'l.nam'a approved ihe proposal an ransfer of PElro Constrechion Josnl
gipck Company inta Petroiatnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation, pperatmd yndes tha
model of hokding as pareml company - gyupsidiary company The Corporation ppesates UnOer
Business Registration Cedificate for Joint Stock Company ko 2500102355 dated 20 Cecember
2007, amended for the aagt Hme on 18 Januady 2024 by Hanol Buthority for plannmg and
(nyvestment.

The Corporation's head office s |gcated a1 14th foce, Vietnam petrobeum Instiie puilding, 167
Trurg Kinh Street, wen Hoa ward, Cau Gay distrct, Handl, Wit Mam.

pceording 10 the 22nd smended Business Ragistration canificate dated January 18. 20724, the otal
charter capital of the Corporatian is WND 4,000,000 000,000 (divided inie 400,000,000 shanes. par

The total pumber of empkyees of the Corporation a8 at 34 December 2024 is 154 pecpie {as at 01
January 2024 was 161 peoplg).

The Corporation's operation in the year that affects the Consolidated Financial Siatements

During I_hamyuu. the Corporation continued implement she Thai Binh 2 Thermal Powel Plant
W{:ﬂwd a:uﬂqwamﬂgmsm_lm&_ul 067" mdh'qtnrﬂdumiun of the Board of
P HHWWMMMWWMHEWWMLQTM

pl:unu:llrr:qﬂﬂﬂﬁni mmmmﬂmhimmmmnwmmm
o R St e T i s
(@ subsidary
approximately WND 254 bileon At the same Ume, thes company's Qross profit hum::
W@Mﬂ memwpwmsyw{mumm:yﬁwam joss due to the
a2 Storage Tanks and Associated Pipelines of the Long SO
jex). Meanwhie, the financial sharply due

pilliom,
lighilities was 5,503.17 billkon gxceading curmant ;
Decembar 2024 were VND shmela
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PatroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Consolidated Financial Statements

WPl Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi

For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

Thesa factars kead 1o doubls gbout the Corporation’s ability to continue operating, Some financial
staternants of the Corporation’s subsidiaries also have malterial uncertainties that cast doubt on the
ability lo continue 3& a going concern, such as: Petrovietnam Urban Development Joint Stock
Company, Petroleum Pipeline and Tank Construction Joinl Slock Company, PetroVietnam
Industrial and Civil Construction Joint Stock Gompany Thai Binh Petroleurn Trading and Investment
Joint Stock Company. The going concerns of the Corporation and its subsidiaries depends on the
plan to recover debts, restructure investments, complele and finalize works in progress to recover
funids, financial supgort from shareholders and creditors,

Up to now, the Corporation has had its investment restricting plan approved by Vietnam Oil and
Gas Group. The Corporation is alss developing a S-year plan for the period of 2021-2025 and
presenting the development strategy of the Corparation to the Group for approval, Additionally, the
Board of General Direclors of the Corporation i aggressively implementing cther solutions and
balieves thet these solutions will be successful, enabling the Corporabicn to continue its normal
business oparation. Therefore, the Consalidated Financial Statements are still prepared based on
the going concern assumplion

Corporate structung

Tha Enfp-:-rar.inn has subsidiares that kave consalidated financial sfalemants as at 21 Decamber
2024, inchuding:

MHamsa of member enlities Address Proportion Propodtion  Principal actvities
of of voting
u e ownership _ rights
Thai Binh Petroleum Trading That Benh T2.22% T2.22% Construction, real
and Investment Joinl Stock estale business and
Company senvices
Petroleum Equipmeant Ea Ria - Vung Construction, real
Aszsembly and Melal Tau egiate business
Structure Joint Stock IT% ST
Binh 5 nym
h Saon L Quang Ngal Trading real estate,
Construction JSC dbozh  S2.50% mmﬂ materials
Petroleum Dong Do Joint Hangi 34.879% 34.87% Real estate business
Stock Compary : and services
Patrovietnam Lirban Ca Mau Construction, real
Development Joint Stock 53.44% 53.44% estate business
Company
Petroleurn Industrial and Civii  Ba Ria - Vung Construction, industrial
Construction Joint Stock Tau 51% 51% production, real estate
Company business
Petroleum Pipeline and Tank  Ba Ria - Vung Construction, real
Construction Joint Stock Tau §1% 51% estate business
Company

According to the assessment of the Board of Management of the Corporation, although the voting
staka of the Corporation is less than 50% in Petroleum Dong Do Joint Stock Company, the
Corporation still has the right to control this company through the right o dictate financial policies
and activities, as well as assign and evaluale the implementation of the annual business plans,
provide support in ferms of work, construction and installation contracts, markels, and finance.
Amu-rdlnﬂ, Petroleum Dong Do Joint Stock Company is identified as a subsidiary of the

2 ACCOUNTING S5YSTEM AND ACCOUNTING POLICY

24

Accounting period and accounting currency
Annual accounting period commences from 1 January and ends as at 31 December.
The Corporation maintains s accounting records in Vietnam Dong (VND).
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PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Consolidated Financial Statements

VPI Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi

For the fiscal yaar ended as at 311272024

2.2

23

24

Siandards and Applicable Accounting Policies
Applicatle Accounting Policies

The Corporation applies Corporate Accounting System isswed under the Circular Mo, 20002014MT-
BTC dated 22 December 2014 by the Ministry of Finance, the Circular Mo, 532016/ T-8TC dated
21 March 2016 issued by Ministry of Finance amending and supplementing some articles of the
Circular Ho, 20002014TT-BTC and the Circular No, 202R2014/TT-BTC dated 22 Deacambar 2014 by
the Menmstry of Finance guiding the preparation and presentation of Consohdated Financial
Slalements.

Declaration of comphance with Accounting Standards and Accounfing Sysfem

The Caorporation apphes Vietnamese Accounting Standards and supplemantary documents issued
by the State. Financial Stalements are prepared and presented in accordance with regulations of
each standard and supplementary document as well as with current Accounting Standards and
Accounting System.

Basis for the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared based on consolidating Separale Financial
Statements of the Corporation and Financial Statements of its subsidiaries under its confrol (the
subsidiaries) as at 31 December annually.

Consistent accounting policies are applied in Financial Statements of subsidiaries and the
Corporation. If necessary, adjustiments are made to the Financial Statements of subsidiaries 1o
ensure the consistency of application of accounting policies among the Corporation and its
subsidiaries.

The operating results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed during the year are included in the
Consolidated financial staterments from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal.

Balance, main incomes and expenses, including unrealized profits from intra-group transactions
are aliminated in full from Consclidated financial statements.

Hon - controlling interesis rapresanis tha portion of profit or loss and net assets not held by owners,
Accounting estimates

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and legal regulations relating to financial
rsporting reguires the Board of Management 10 make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of labilities, assets and disclosures of contingent liabilities and asseis at the date
of the Consolidaled Financial Statements and the reported amounis of revenues and expenses
during the accounting year.

The estimates and assumptions that have a material impact in the Consolidated Financial
Statemnents include:

- Provigion for bad debts;

= Provision for devaluation of imventony;

- Provigion for payables;

- Allocation of prepaid expenses,

- Estimated usaful life of fixed assats;

- Classification and provigion of financial investments,
- Estimated incoma ax.

16




PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Consolidated Financial Statements

VPI Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi

For the figcal year ended as at 3112/2024

2.5

2.8

7

Such estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated. They are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial
impact on the Corporations Consolidaled Financial Statements and that are assessed by the
Board of Managemen! to be reasonable under the circumsiances.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions during the year are transiated into Vietnam Dong using the actual
rate at transaction date.

Actual exchange rale when revaluating monetary fems denominated in foreign currencies at the
reporting date of Consolidated Financial Siatements is delermined under the Tollowing principbes:

For assel accounts, applying the bed rate of the comemercial bank where the Corporation
regularly conducts ransachon;

For cash deposited in bank, applying the bid rate of the commercial bank whers the Corporation
opens its foreign currency accounts;

For hability accounts, applying the offer rate of the commercial bank where the Corporation
reguiarly conducts fransactions.

All sxchange difarences arsing as a result of fransactions or revaluation at the balance sheet date
shall be recorded into the financial income or axpensea in the year

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand, demand deposits.

Cash equivalents are short-term invesiments with the maturity of not over than 3 months from the
dale of investment, that are highly liquid and readily convertible into known amount of cash and
that are subject io an insignificant risk of conversion inio cash

Business combination and goodwill

All business combinations shall be accounted for by applying the purchaza method. The cost of a
business combination includes the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets
given, labilties incurmed or assumed, and equity instrumants issued by the acquires, in axchange
for control of the acquiree plus any costs directly aftributable to the business combination. The
scquiree’s identfiable assets, liabiktes and contingent labilfies in business combination are
measured at their fair values at the at the acquisition date.

The goadwill or interest from a cheap purchase is defined as the difference between the cost of the
business combination and acquirer's interest in the nel fair value of the identifiable subsidiable
assets at the acquisition date held by Parent. Cheap purchase interest (if any) will be recognized in
the consolidated income staterment. Goodwill is allocated to costs by the siraighl-Ene method for an
estimaled useful period of 10 years. Periodically the Corporation will assess goodwill losses at the
subsidiary, if there 5 evidence that the loss of goodwill is greater than the annual aliocation, the
allocation shall be based on the loss of goodwill in the year of arising.

Financtal investmants

Trading securifies are initially recognized at original cost which includes purchase prices plus any
directly atbibulabde ransaclion costs such as brokerage, transaction fee, cost of nformation
provigion, taxes, bank's fees and charges. After inftial recognition, trading securities are measured
at original cost less provision for diminution in value of trading securities. Upon Bguidation or
transfer, cost of trading securities is determined using weighted average mathod.

Invastrmants haid to maltuwily comprise term deposits held to maturity o eam profits pericdically and
other held to maturity investments.

Imvastrnents in joint venlures and associates: During the year, the buyer determines the date of
purchase and the cost of investmanis and implements accowenting procadures in accondance wilh
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PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Consolidated Financial Stalements

VPI Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi

For the fiscal year ended as at 31122024

29

the Accounting Standards on “Financial reporting of inlerest in joint ventures” and “Accounting far
investments in associates”.

In the Consolidated Financial Statements, investmenis in joint ventures and associates are
accounted for using equity mathod. Under this method, the investments are initially recognised at
cost and adpjusled thereafter for the post acquisition change in the Group's share in net assets of
the associate after acquision date. Goodwill incurred from the investment in the associales is
refiected in the carrying amount of the investment in the associate, The Group will not alfocate such
goodwill bul assess annually to determine whather the goodwill is under impaired loss or not.

For the adjusiment of the value of investments in joinl ventures and associates from the date of
investment to the beginning of the reporting year, the Corporation shall:

For the adjustment to the income sislement of previous years: make an adjustment to the
undistributed profit after lax according to net adjusied accumulated amount to the beginning of
the reporting year.

= For the adjustment due (o the difference in revaluation of essets and the difference in fonelgn
exchange rates, recorded in the balance shest of the previous years: determing the adjustment
to the comesponding items on the Statement of Financial Position according 1o mnel accumulaled
adjusted amount.

For the adjustment of the value of investments in joint ventures and associalas arising in the year,
the Corporation shall exclude the preferred dividends of other shareholders (if preferred shares are
classified as Owner's capital), expected number of deductions for bonus and welfare funds of joint
ventures and associabes. share of profits related to transactions of joint weniures, associates
contributing capéal or seling assets 1o the Corporation before determining the Corporation's share
in the profit or loss of the joint venture or associated Corporation during the reparting year. The
Corporation then adjusts the valee of the investment in proportion 1o s share in profits and losses
of joint ventures and associates and immedialely recognizes i in the Consolidated Income
Statement.

Equity investments in other enlilies comprise investments in eguity instruments of other énlities
without having control, joint contral, or significant influence on the investee. These investiments are
initially staled at onginal cost. After initial recognition, these invesiments are measured at original
Ccost less provision for devaluation of investments.

For dividends recsived in the form of shares, only the number of shares received i3 necorded
without any increase in the investiment valua and financial income.

Provision for devaluation of investments is made al the end of the year as follows:

= Investments i trading securibies: provision shall be made on the basis of the excess of original
cost of the investments recorded in the accounting book over their market value at the provision
date.

= Long-term invesiments (other than frading securities) without significant influence on the
investes: If the investment in listed shares or the fair value of the investment is delarmined
refiably, provisions shall be made on the basis of the market value of the shares; if the fair value
of the investment is not determined at the reporting date, provision shall be made based on the
Financial Staternents at the provision date of the investes,
Imeestments held to maturity. provigion for doubtful debts shall be made based on the recovery
capacity in accordance with statulory regulations.

Receivables

The recevables shall be recorded in details in terms of due date, entibies receivable, types of
mmmﬂﬂmhﬁu:mﬂqﬁmumuhmﬂmlﬁﬂmcﬂmm The
receivables shall be classified into shori-term receivables or long-term receivables on the
consolidated financial slatements according o their remaining terms at the reporting date.

The provision for doubtful debls s made for recevables that are overdee under an economic
contract, a loan agreemeni, a contractual commitment or a promissory note and for receivables

18
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PetroVieinam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Consolidated Financial Statements

VPI Tower, 167 Tn.lng Kinh Strest, Hanod

For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

2.10

2.1

212

that are nof due but difficult 1o be recovered. Accordingly, the provisions for overdue debis shall ba
based on the due date stipulated in the initigl sale confract, exciusive of the debt rescheduling
betwean confracting partees and the case where the debts are nol cue but the deblor is i
bankruptcy, in dissolution, or missing and making fleeing or éstimating possible lossas,

Inventories

Inventories are Initially recognized al onginal cost including purchase price, processing cost and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their location and conditson at the ime of initial
recognition. Afer initial recognition, at the reporting date, inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realizable value.

Met realizable valus is estmated basad on the selling prce of the inventory minus the estimated
costs for completing the products and the estimated costs needed for their consumplion

The cost of inventony is calculated using wesghted average melhod.

Imventory is recorded by perpeiual method

Method for valuation of work in process at the end of the year: the value of work in progress is
recorded for each constructon project which is incomplele or revenus is unrecognised,
carresponding 1o the amount of work in progress at the end of the year

Provision for devaluation of ewentories made 8l the end of the year is based on the excess of
original cost of inventory over their net realizable value.

Fixed asseis

Fixed assets (tangible and inlangible) are initially stated at the historical cost. During the using
time, fixed assels (langble and infangible) are recorded al cost, accumulated depreciation and
carrying amounL

Subsaquend measurement after initial recogniion

If these costs aument future economic benefits cbtained from the use of tangible fixed assets are
exianded fo their initial standards conditions, these costs are capilalized as an incremental in their
historical cost

Other costs incurred after tangible fixed assets have been pul Into operation such as repair,
maintenance and overhaul cosis are recognized in the (Separate) Statement of income in the
pericd in which the cosls are incumed,

Fied astets are depreciated using the siraight-ine method over their estimaled useful lives as
foliows:

-  Buildings and structures 5 - 48 years

- Machinery, equipment 3 - 15 years

= Mehicles, transportation equipment 4 - 10 years

- Dffice equipment 3-10vyears

= Land use righis According to the land lease term

= Compuler software 3-Syears
investment properties

Investment properties are indially recognised at hislorical cost

Investment properlies held Tor capital appreciabion poor to 01 January 2015 are depreciated on a
straight-ne basis similar o other fixed assets, but from 01 January 2015 are not depreciated.
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PetroVielnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Consolidated Financial Statements

VP Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi

For the fiscal year endad as at 31/12/2024

2.3

2.14

2.16

Investment properties held for operating lease are recorded at cost, accumulated depreciation and
amount Investment properties are depreciated using the straightdline method with
expicted useful life as follows:

- Buildings, structures 25-38 years

An item of owner-occupied property or invenlories only becomes an investmeant property when its
using purposed has been changed, evidenced by commencement of stopping using that item and
starting to operate leasing for the third party or completing the construction period. The investmant
property s transferred 1o owner-occupied property or inventories only where it undergoes a change
in vse, evidenced by commencemeni of starting using the assets by owner or development with a
wview [0 sale. The transferring from investment property to owner-occupied property or invendories
will mot change the cnginal cost and camying amount of asset a5 at the date of transler,

Construction in progress

Construction in progress includes fixed asseis which is being purchased and constructed as at the
baiance sheat date and is recognised in historical cost This includes costs of constructon,
installabon of equipment and other direct costs

DOperating lease

Operating leases is fixed assel leasing in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor. Paymenis made under operating leases are charged to
Staternent of Income on a straight-Ene basis over the pariod of the lease.

Business Cooperation Contract (BGG)

Business Cooperation Conbract (BCC) is a contractual agreement between fwo or maore venturers
with the objectives of cooperaling to carry out specific business activities without constitution of a
new legal entity. This operation may be jointly confrofled by venturers under BCC or controfled by
one of them.

In case of receiving money or assets from other entifies in the BCC, they should be recorded as
payables. In case of contributing money or assets to BCC, they should be recorded as receivables.
During the process of operating BCC, BCC in the form of jointly controlled operations, the
accounting methods are adopled as follows:

All parties In the joint venture shall simultaneously do the bookkeeping in their own accounting
system and present in its Financial Statements with the following ibems:

- Assels contnbuwled by it and controlied by the joint venture;
= lts share of liabilities incurmed,

- Its share of incoma from the sale of goods or rendering of services by the joint venture;
Its share of expenses incurred,

Al parties shall share revenue from the sale of goods or rendering of services and share joint
expenses according to the BCC's agreements.

Prepaid sxpenses

The expenses incurred but related io operating resulls of several accounting periods are recorded
as prepaid expenses and are allocated to the operating results in the following accounting periods.

The calculation and allocation of long-term prepaid expenses to operating expenses in each
sccounking period should be based on the nature of those espenses 1o select 8 reasonable
Types of prepaid expensas include;

Prepaid land expenses include prepaid land rental, including those related o keased land for which
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the Company has received cenificate of land use right but not eligible for recording as intangible
fixed assel in accordance with the Circular No. 453201 3TT-BTC dated 25 April 2013 issued by the
Ministry of Finance guiding regulation on management, use and depreciation of fed assels and
other expenses related to ensure for the use of leased land. These expenses are recognized in the
consolidaled stalement of income on a straighi-line basis according to the lease berm of the
contract

Tools and supplies include assais which are possessed by the Company i an ordinary coursa of
business, with hislorical cost of each assel less than 30 million dongs and therefore not edigible for
recording as fixed assel under current legal regulations. The historical cost of loods and supplies
are aliccated on the straight-line basis from 01 to 03 years.

Office rent represents the amount of prepsid rent amortized o the consolidated statement of
income on & siraight-line basis over the lease term

Expenses for leasing Sao Mai Ben Dinh por facility are allocated 1o the income stalerment during
the lzgse period (49 years) from 16 September 2010

Payables

The payables shall be recorded in details in ferms of due date, entities payable, types of currancy
and other factors accorging 1o the reguirements for management of the Corporation. The payables
shall be classified into shori-term payables or long-term payables on the consoclidated financial
slatements according to their remaining ferms: 2t the reporiing date

Borrowings and finance lease liabilities

The value of finance kease [abilites is recognized at the payable amount equal to the present value
of minimum lease payments or the fair value of leased assets.

Borrowings and finance lease labilities shall be recorded in details in terms of lending entities, loan
agreement and terms of bomrowings and finance lease lisbilities. In case of borowings or liabilites
denominated in foreign currency, they shall be recorded in details in terms of types of currency.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing cosls are recognized as operating expenses in the year, in which it is incurred excepling
those which are direclly atiributable to the construction or production of a qualifying assei are
capitaized as part of the cost of that asset in accordance with VAS No. 16 “Bomowing cosis”.
Besides, regarding borrowings samnving the construction of fooed assels and investment properties,
thi intenesis shall be capitalized even whan the construction duration is under 12 manths.

Accrued expenses

Accrued expenses include payables to goods or services received from the suppliers or provided
for the customers during the reparting period, but the payments for such goods or services have
not been made and other payables swuch &s ennual leave salary, expenses ansing from seasonal
cessabon of production, interest expenses, elc. which are recorded as operating expenses of the
reporting period.

The recording of accrued expenses as operaling expenses during the period shall be camied out
undar the matching principle between revenues and expenses during the period. Accrued
expenses are settied with actual expenses incurred. The difference between accrued and actual
EXpENsEs IS revened

Provision for payables
Provision for payables s only recognized when meeting all of the foliowing conditions:

The Corporation has a present debt obligation (legal obligation or joint obligation) as a rasult of
past events;
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= I is probable that the decrease in economic benefits may lead to the reguirement for debt
sattiamant
Debl obligation can be estimaled relably.

Value recorded as a provision for payables is the most reasonably estimaled amount required 1o
settie the current debt obligation at the end of the accounting year,

Cinly expenses relaled to the previously recorded provision for payables shall be offset by that
provision for payables.

Provisions for payables are recorded as operaling expenses of the accounting year. In case
provision mada for the previous accounbng year but not used up exceseds the cne made for the
curment accounting year, the difference is recorded 2s a decrease in operating expenses. The
excess of the provigion for payvables refating to consiruction warranty is recorded as other income
in the fiscal year,

Unearned revenues

Unearad revenues include prepayments from customers for one orf many accounting pérods
retsting to asset leasing.

Unearmed revenues are fransfermed to revenue from saie of goods and rendering of senvices with
thie amouni cormesponding 1o each accounting period,

Cwner's equity
Oramer's equity is stated at actually contributed capital of owners.

Share premium is recorded at the difference between the par value with cosis direclly attnbutable
to the issuance of shares and issue price of shares (including the case of re-issuing treasury
shares) and can be a positive premium (if the issue price is higher than par value and costs directly
attributable to the issuance of shares) or negative premium (if the issue price is lower than par
valee and cosis directly aftributable to the issuance of shares).

Other caprial is the operating capital formed from the operating results or from gifts, presents,
financing, assals revaluation (f thesa tems are allowed to be reconded 85 a decreasa or increase
in the ownes's éguity).

Treasury shares bought before the effective date of the Securities Law 2019 (January 1, 2021) are
shares issued by the Company and bought-back by iiself, but these are not cancelled and may be
re-issued subsequently in accordance with the Law on Securtias. Treasury shares bought after
January 1, 2021 will be cancefied and adjusied o reduce equity.

Retained eamings are used to present the Corporation’s operating results (profit, loss) afler
corporate income tax and profit appropriation or loss handling of the Corparation.

Dividends to be paid o shareholders are recognised as a payable in Statement of Financial
position after the announcement of dividend payment from the Board of Management and
announcament of cul-off dale for dividend payment of Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing

Corporaton,
Revenue

Revenue is recognized o extent thal it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Corporation and the revenue can be reliably measures regardiess of when payment is being made.
Revenue & measured at the fair value of the consideration received, excluding discownts, rebates,
and sales returns. The following specific recognition conditions must also be met when recognizing
revenue.
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Revenue from consiuction conlracts

- In caze the conslruction contract stipulates that the contracior is pakd according to the value of
the volume performed, when the results of construction contract performance are reliably
determined and confirmed by the customer, then revenue, Contract-related cosis are recorded
in Pfﬂmlxn to the completed work confirmed by the customer during the year reflected in the
invoices issued.

Fevenus from rendering of services

- The percentage of completion of the transaction at the Balance sheet dale can be measured
reliably.

Financial incame

Finencial incomes include income from assets yielding interest, royalties, dividends and other
financial gains by the Corporation shall be recognised when the twa conditions are satisfied:

It is probable thal the econormic benefits from the transaction will flow to the Corporation:
- The amount of the revenue can be measured raiiably.

Dwidend Incomeé shall be recognised when the Corporation's right to receive dividend is
establighed.

Cost of goods sold and serviced rendered

Cost of goods sold and services rendered are cost of finkshed goods, merchandises, materials sold
or services renderad dunng the year, and recorded on the basis of matching with revenue and on a
prudence basis. Cases of loss of materals and goods exceeded the norm, labour cost and fixed
manufacturing overheads not afocated to the value of inveniory, provision for devaluation of
inventory, abnormal expenses and losses of inveniores afler deducting the responsibilty of
collective and individuals concerned, etc. is recognized fully and promptly into cost of goods sold in
the year even when products and goods have not been determined as soid.

Financial expenses

Items recorded into financial expenses comprise:

- Expenses or losses relating fo financial investment activities;

- Bomowing costs;

- Losses from the dispesal and transfer of short-term securities, transaction cost of selfing
securities,
Provigion for diminution in value of trading securilies price; provision for losses from investment
in other entities, losses from sale of foreign currency, axchange loss, elc

The above items are recorded by the total amount arising in the year without offsetting against
financial income.

Corporate income tax
Current corporale income fax expenses and deferred corporale (ncome fay expansss

Current corporate income tax expenses are detarmined based on taxable incoma during the year
and curment cofporate income tax rate,

Deferred corporale income tax expenses are determined based on deductible temporary
differences, the taxable temporary differences and corporate income tax rate.

Currant corporate income tax expenses and deferned corporate income tax expanses are not offset
against each other.
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Curren! corporate income fax rate

The Cerporation applies the corporate income tax rate of 20% for the operating activities which has
taxable income for the fiscal yvear ended as al 31 Decemiber 2024,

Eamings per share

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing net profit or loss after tax for the year
attributable 1o ordinary shareholders of the Corporation (after adjusting for the bonus and welare
fund and allowance for Board of Management) by the wesghted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year

Related Parties

The partes are regarded &s related parties if that party has the abdlity to contral or significantly
influence the other party in making decisions about the financial policies and aclivites. The
Corparation's relaled parties include:

Comganies, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, having control over the
Corporation or being under the control of the Corporation, or being under common control with
the Corporation, including the Corporation’s parent, subsidianies and associates;
Indivsduals, directly or indirectly, holding voling power of the Corporation that bave a significant
influence on the Corporation, key management personnel including direciors and employees of
the Corporation, the closae family members of these indniduals;

= Enterprises that the above-mentioned individuals directly or indirectly hold an imporiant part af
the voting power or have significant influence on these enlerprises.

In congidering the relationship of relaled partes (o serve for the preparation and presentation of

Congolidated Financial Statements, the Corporation should consider the nature of the relationship
rather than the lagal form of the relatianship.

Segment information
As the Corporation operales mainly in the field of construction and installation in the terrilory of
Vietnam, the Corporafion does nol prepare segment reports by business segment and
geographical segment

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

— 31M2024 01012024
VND VND
Cash on hand 5,238,205,288 4,222 871,623
Demand deposits 250,553 325,788 244 B44,247, 700
- Wietnam Pubiic Joint Stock Commercial Bank 13,978,111,303 236,463, 5T1
- Modarn Bank of Vielnam Limited (formerdy Ocean 2,254, 370,501 2,156,731,548
- Dthers 234,320,843,984 242,451,052, 581
Cash equivalents (i) 177682692918 66,462 884,389
= Vietnam Public Jainl Slock Commearcial Bank 4, 200,000,000 T.500,000,000
- Others 173,482,692918 58 052 684,389
433474223994 _ 315530103712
In which: Balance with related parties
Vietnam Public Joint Stock Commercial Bank 18,178,111, 303 T, 738463571
- Demand deposils 13.978,111,303 236,463,571
- Cash equivalents 4,200,000,000 7.500,000,000
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(i} At 31 December 2024, the cash equivalents are deposits with term of from 01 (o 03 months with
the amount of VND 177 508,842,528 at commercial banks at the interest rate from 3.8%/year to 4.5
Selyear.

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Held to maturity investments

1122024 001302

Original cost Provision Cviginal cost Provisin
WND

WND VND VND

Short-term investments

Term daposis (i) 253.400,3268,478 - 310,112 549041 s

- WVietnam Public Join! Sfock 35, 780,000,000 . 43, 773,580,041 -
Commercial Bank

- Modem Bank of Vislnam Limded 45 316 000 000 - 45,.318,000.000 -
(formeny Deean Commancial
Bank Limied - Oceandank)

= [Ofhers 172 3584 326 478 - 221,022 980 000 -

] L 1 |/ R & | e
In which: Balance with related parties
Vietnam Public Jowt Stack A5, 780,000,000 - 43,773.585,041 =
Commercial Bank

(i) At 31 December 2024, the shot-larm investments are deposits with terms from over 3 months to
less than 12 months with the amount of VWD 253,490,328 478 at commercial banks at the interest
rate from 5.4 YWiyear lo 7.3 Solyear.

I'n wivich:

= Deposits at Bank for Investment and Development of Vietnam (BIDV) - Ha Dong Branch with a
value of VND 153,784,326 478 is being pledged for loans st the bank (Detailed in Nota 24):

- The ierm deposit of VWND 453 bilkion deposted at Ocean Commercial One
Member Limited Liability Bank - Viung Tau Branch is temperarily suspending transactions under
the direction of the State Bank of Vietnam. This amount will be paid when there is direction from
the Govenmenl and the Slate Bank Therefors, the Board of General Diectors of the
Corporation assessas that the above deposits are still recoverable. have no risk of loss and
accordingly, no 105 provision & requinsd.

Trading securities
31/12/2024 010112024
Original cost Provision __ Onginal cost Provision
VKD WD WHD YND
Shares
- Petroleum intarnal and  14,600,000,000 (13,885,000,000) 14,600,000,000 (13,885,000,000)
External Equipmant
Joint Stock Company
- Others 300,000,000 - 300,000,000 -

The Corporation has nol determined the feir value of financial invesiments since Vietnamass

Accounting Standards and Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System have not had any detailed
guidance on the determination of the fair value.
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€}  Equity investments in associates and joint - venlures
J1M2r2024 010152024
Stock  Address Proporiion Proportion  Book value under  Proportion Proportion Book value under
Coda of of vating tha aquity mathod of of vating the egquity method
ownership  rights oumershin rights
WD WD
-  Hesnm-PVC International Design Hanod 44, 00% 44, 00% = 4 00% a4, 0% -
Joint Stock Company
= Petroleum Interior Decoration JSC PID  Hanod 49,98% 49,98% = 49.98%  49.98% -
= PetraViatnam - Nghe An Construction PWA  Nghe An 22 64% 22.64% = 22.64% 22.64% -
Joint Slock Company
- Sai Gon Pefroleum construction and PSG  Ho Chi Minh 24, T2% 24, T 2% = 24T2% 24.T2% -
investment Joint Stock Company ity
- Dwyen Hai Petro Construction Hai Phang A2 45% 42 458% J1.417.858.211 42.46% 42 6% 31.413.604.516
Imvestment Joint Stock Company
= Peinoleun Link Communication and Hanai B7.22% 35,05% T90.931.300 67.22% 35,05% 1.685,T62 456
Trading Joint Stock Company (i)
= Pelroleum Interior Decoration Joint Hanoh 36,83% 35,83% - 35,83% 35.83% -
Stock Company (PVC-HN)
- Petroleum Mechanical Executing And Hanoi 40,00% 40,00% - 40,00%  40,00% -
Assembly Joint Stock Company
- Thanh Hoa Patroleum Investment PYH  Thanh Hoa 36, 00%: 36,00% = 36.00% 36, 00% -
and Construction Joint Stock
- Lam Kinh Hofel Joint Stock Company Thanh Hoa 35.01% 43,16% - 3501% 43 16% -
- Mien Trung Petroleurn Construction PXM  Da Nang 48.27% 48,27% = 4B27%  4B27% .
JSC
42,208 520 511 A1 T

(i} Actording to the assessment of the Board of General Directors of the Corporation, although the ownership stake of the Corporation in Petroleum Link
Communication and Trading Joint Stock Company (Petro-nk) as at 31 December 2024 is 87%, this ownership siake is lemporary because other members
have not yet conlributed sufficient capital, The ownership stake (contribuling capital) of the Corporation according lo the Business Registration Certificale is
35%, the Corporation atso does not have controlling interest in this company. Therefore, the Board of General Directars of the Corporation identified Pedro-link
a5 an associate and presented this invesiment as an investment in an assodiate.

As at 31 December 2024, the value of investments in associales was assessed by the Corporabion using the equity method on the basis of the financial
stalements of the entiies callected at the nearest available reparting date.

Material transactions between the Corporation and joint venturesfassociatles during the year: Detaded in Note 42
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d} Investments in other entities

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Original cost Fair FProvision  Rale of Origginal cost Fair Provision Raie of
_ Vvalue voting value voling
VD NWND VYHD WHD YHD WD
- Ha Long Cement Joint Stock 147 300,000,000 {147,300, 000,000) 7.508% 147, 300, 000,000 (147,200,000, 000) 7.58%
Company (it}
= Pelro Kinh Bac Investing And 23,500 000,000 (1, 200936.821) 1567% (*) 23,500,000,000 {11,288 806 120) 15.67% (%)
Construction JSC (i)
- ‘ieinam Por and Infrastructure  12.500,000,000 (1488 .246.800) 2.50% 12,500,000.000 (1488246 .800) 2.50%
Construction Imvesment JSG (i)
= Truong Son Invesiment Group 3,000,000,000 - 380% 3,000,000,000 - 309%
Joint Stock Company (i)
= Number 2 Petrovietnam 2.785,000,000 - 500% 2,795, 000,000 - 5.00%
Construction JSC ()
- Petro Vietnam Bullding 2,500,000,000 = 100000 2 5060 GO 030 = 10.00%
Materials and Consiruction
Joint Stock Company & (i)
- Petrovistnam mvestment and 5,400,000, 000 (5. 400,000,000) T.25% 5. a0 Q00 000 (5,400,000, 000) T.25%
construction - 3C Join Slock
Company (i)
- Others (i} §,318,000,000 _ (4,231,833 8681) 8 318 000,000 (4,231,833 881)
206,313,000,000 - "{59,621,017,502) 206,313,000,000 - _{169,708,886,801

(i) As at 31 December 2024, the Corporation had investments in various companies with a iotal book value and total provision for these investments of
approximately VMO 206.31 billion and VND 155.61 billion (as at 01 January 2024 were approximalely VND 20631 biflion and VND 168,71 billion). At the dale
of praparing these Consclidated Financial Stalements, the Corporation has nol yel collected the financial statements for the year 2024 and 2023 from these
companies, Therafore, the Corporation has not fully assessed the decling in the value of the above invesiments. These Consolidated Financial Siatemenis do
not include any adjustments that may be refated to this issue.

Az al 31 December 2024, the Corporation could not cobect the Financial Statements of other investmenis, therefore, provision for fnancial investments is
being made according 1o the financial stalements of previous years of these companies.

The Corporation has not determined the fair value of financial investments since Vietnamese Accounting Standards and Vietnamese Corporate Accounting
System have not had any detailed guidance on the determination of the fair value,
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(*} The inrvestment value in Patro Kinh Bac Investing and Construction Joint Stock Company ("PVC

Kinh Bac’} is VND 23.5 bilion, consisting of 2 parts;

= An amount of VND 2.5 kllion, representing contributed capital generated before 2010
accounts for 5% of PVC Kinh Bac's charler capital at that time, which was YND 50 billion;

= An amounl of YND 21 Gilion, generated in 2010 from offsetting dabis against the amount
advanced by the Corporation 1o PVC Kinh Bac for construction contracls, when PVC Kinh
Bac's charer capital was VND 150 bilion, This amount was determined to have been used
by PVC Kinh Bac to purchase 3.400 m? of land at plot Mo. 06, Map sheet Mo. 20, Hamial 1,
Tarn Dao town, Tam Dao district, Vinh Phuc province ("and lot in Tam Dao”), Subseguently,
PVC Kinh Bac transferred the land to Mai Phuong lnvestment Company Limited ("Mai
Phuang™), which currently holds the tille deed for the mentioned land plot.

.
.'l__..

The verdict No. 412/2021/HSPT dated 28 September 2021 concluded:
The incident of advancing funds 1o PVC Kinh Bac was against regulations, therefore, the
land kot in Tam Dao must be returned lo the Corporation;
T Corporation’s capital confribution rafio at PVC Kinh Bac will be rescived by the relevant .
parties themselves. If requined, it will be addressed in separate civil Itigation. =

On 1 June 2022, the Director of the Civl Judgment Enforcement Depariment of Hanoi issued |
Decision Mo, 805/00-CTHSDS (o executs the aforementioned judogmeant. \

On 25 September 2024, the Company received the transter of the land usa rights for 3,400 m? ' \
of land at Piot No. 06, Map Sheet No. 20, Hamilet 1, Tam Dac Town, Tam Dao District, Vinh 1
Phuc Province, from Mai Phuong Investment Company Limitad. |

Al date of this Consolidated financial statement, the Corporation is in the process of completing
the procedures lo lransfer the ownership of the Tam Dao land to the Corporation and is working
with PVC Kinh Bac to reassess the capital contribution ratio. Given the events that occurred in
2024, the Corporation has assessad that the YIND 21 billion capital contribution 1o Kinh Bac no
longar shows signs of impairment and has therefore fully reversed the provision for this
nvestment,

Investments in other entities:
Detailed information of long-term investments in other companies of the Company as of 31

December 2024 is as follows:
Name of investes Place of Rate of Rateof  Principal activities

establishment  inferest  voting rights

and
Ha Long Cement Joint Stock  Quang Ninh 7.58% 7.58% Manufacture of
Company consbruction materials
Pefro Kinh Bac Investing And Bac Ninh 15.67% 1567%  Constructon
Construction Joint Slock
Company
Vietnam Port and Infrastruction Hanod 2.50% 2.50% Construction
Construction Investment Joint
Stoack Company
Truong Son Investment Group  Quang Binh 3.89% 3.69%  Construction
Joint Stock Company
Number 2 Pelrovietnam Mam Diinh 5.00% 5.00% Construction
Construction Joint Stock
Company
Petro Vietnam Building Hanoi 10.00% 10.00%  Construction
Maiarizls and Construction
Joint Stock Company 4
Petrovietnam investmentand  Hanai T.25% 7.25% Construction
construction - 3C Join Stock
Company
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SHORT-TERM TRADE RECEIVABLES

Related parties

Duyen Hai Petro Construction Investmant JSC
Vietnam Ofl and Gas Group (PVN)

Thai Binh 2 Petroleurn Power Project Management Board
Vietnam Petroleum Instifule

Mghi Son Refinery and Petrochemical Complex Projact
Hanol Petroleumn Canstruction JSC

Pefroleum Mechanical Executing and Assembly JSC
Saigon Petroleum Construction and Invesment JSC
Heerim-PVC Inlermational Design JSC

Mien Trung Petroleum Construction JSC

PatroVietnam - Nghe An Construction JSC

Thanh Hoa Petroleurn Investment And Construction JSC
Patro Vietnam Engineering Consultantcy JEC
PatroVielnam Gas Joink Stock Corporation
Petrovietnam Steel Pipe JSC

PetroVietnam Construction Land Corporation

Petra Vietnam Technical Services Corporation (PTSC)
PTSC Mechanical and Construction Limited Company
Vietnam Public Joint Stock Commercial Bank
PetroVietnam Low Pressure Gas Distribution JSC
Petroleum Internal and External Equipment JSC

Others
Wiet Nam Machinery Installation Corporation - JSC
Cither customars

Consolidated Financial Statements

For the fiscal year ended as at 311272024

J1M22024 Q1012024
Wakin Provision Walua Provision
WYHD VYND YD VND
1,262 598 575463 (157,218,976, T26) 1,376, 107,972,842 (175,473,412 T34)
1,250,134 326 = 1,222,552 452 -
5,548 525 269 5,546 942,138 4,.011,7896,202)
BA1, 154 608 BaT - 1,054 867 880 618 -
35,863, 772,960 (747 .531,048) 42 BEG,JE3 B84 {747 531,048)
50,006,385 426 - 50.006,385,46 =
91,619,056 480 (91,619 056 480) 91,451 422,013 191.451,422,013)
23.2091,878,606 (200,156,144 23.281,878,505 (23,291 878,505)
27,858 853,155 (27,158 853,155) 27 858,853,155 [27.158.853,155)
6,097 621,800 (1,518,493, 750) 6,087 621,800 {1.518,493,750)
16,811,985 - 16,811,855 -
41 635 Ta7 524 (23,330, B68,807) 41,635 737,524 {14.648,480,719)
23,115,000 - A0 631,752 -
532 THS, 009 (632, TE5,000) 532,785,009 [532,785,008)
0,518,282 409 (B.518. 282 409) 8,518 282,405 (9.518,282,409)
15,500,000,000 - 15,500,000, 000 -
366,052,500 (386 052 500) 366,052,500 (366,052 ,500)
16,235, 730,268 - 1,139, 905, 404 -
50,742 318,500 = % &
2,000, 000,002 - 2,000, 000,002 =
B2, 166,603 (62.1686,503) 62,168,603 (62, 166,603)
2,165,6T0.821 (2,165,6T0.6821) 2,166 670,821 (2, 165,670,821)
400,667, 881,720 (118,331,077, 583) 4024953765 317 (118,880, 357,304)
69,049 973,534 - 80 555, 700,071 -
331,611.907,795 (118,331,077 .585) 311,939 675,246 (119,980,357 ,304)

_LE6I20397192 __ (2755509543151

1,778,603,348,159 _ (295 453.770,038)
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G PREPAYMENTS TO SUPPLIERS

a) Short - term
Related parties
Pefroleun Mechanical Execuling and Assembly JSC
Heearm-FVC International Design JSC
Hanoi Petroleurn Consirection JSG
PetroVielngm - Nghe An Consiruction JSC
Fetroleumn Interior Dacoration JSC
Mien Trung Petraleum Construction JSG
Southemn Shipbuiding Industry Investment Development Co., Lid
Petro Kinh Bac Investing And Construction JSC
Pelro Vietnam Engineering Consullanicy JSC

Others
Vietnam Paort and Infrastructune Construction Imesment JSC
Oahars

bB) Long-lerm
Vietnam Pert and Infrastructure Construction Investiment J5C
Cihers suppbers

311272024 01/01/2024
Valus Provision Value Provision

VD VHD WHD VND

263,575, 778,518  (176,901,545,306)  263.575,778,518  (198,610,409,612)
54,324,395,257 (26,196,664 426) 54.324,395,257 (47 905,728, 732)
239,674,600 (180,772,360) 229,674 800 (160,772,360)
108,864 818,776 (108,864,918, 776) 108,864 818,776 (108,864, 918,776)
11,617,450,064 (11,617,450 984) 11,617,450,964  (11,617,459,964)
4,418,342 062 2 3,418,342 062 -
28,268,366,080 (26,744,516 395) 26,268, 366,988  (26,744,518,395)
43,215,868, 300 - 42 215,868,300 s
14,556,466 443 (3,236,726 458) 14,556,466 443 (3,238,726, 458)
60,284,027 (80,284,927) B0, 284,927 (80,284,927)

306,584,567, 427  (134,263,221,795)  317.022,691,226 (135 686,448,006)
113,366,879,741 (17,856,157 637) 113,366,679,741 (17,856,157 637)
193,187,687,686 (116,407,064, 158)  203,635,811,485  (117,830,280,368)

6,641,430,501
2,620,805,510

{6,641,430,501)
[2.444 337 557)

6641, 430,501
5843,046,010

570,160,345345 _ (311,164,767,101) __ 580,598,468,744 _ (334,206,857.618)

[6.641.430,501)
(5.544,337 557)

§,262.236,011 (9,085, 768,058) 12,485 376,511 {12,185 768 058)
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7  SHORT-TERM LOAN RECEIVABELES

311212024 During the year 01/01/2024

Walue Provision Increase Decrease Value Proviaion

WVMD WD WD WM WD WD
Related partias
Lam Kinh Hotel JSC (i) 200,000,000,000 (124,356,150,003) - - 200,000,000,000 (124,356, 150.003)
Saigon Petroleum Construction and 128,357,202,532 (128,357,292,532) - - 128,357 282 532 (128,357,282 532)
Invesment JEC (i) ;
Petro‘ietnam - Mghe An Construction 16.321,091.22%6 (5,461,487, 782) - - 16,321,901 226 (5461481, 782)
JEC (i)
Petraleurn Internal and External 10,007.660.735 (10,997,660,735) - - 10,897 660,735 (10967669 735)
Equipment JSC

_356§76,853,49 [269,172594052) . 355570953493 (269,172,594,002)

(i} The Corporation used the kan from Credit Contract Mo, 603/2011/11DTD-OCEANBANK-FPVC dated 30 June 2011 signed with OceanBank (now renamed
as Moderm Bank of Vietnam - MBV) for Lam Kinh Haotel Joint Stock Company ("Hotel Lam Kinh™), the purpose is to support business capital far Lam Kinh
Halel

(i} The Corporation uses the koan from the Credit Contract Mo, 102010HDTD-OCEANBANK-PYC dated 20 Oclober 2010 between Dcean Commercial Joint
Stock Bank {now renamed as Modern Bank of Vietnam - MBY) and the Corporation to pay for the Sai Gon Petroleum Construction and Investmeant Joint
stock Company and Nghe An Petroleum Construction Corporation Joint Stock Company for the ransfer of shares;

According io Official Letier No. TBET/2014/CV - Oceanbank dated 8 December 2014 of Oceanbank (now renamed as Modern Bank of Vietnam - MBY), the
fime to pay the loans after being extended is 31 December 2017. As at the date of these Interim Consolidated Financial Statements, the Corporation is
working wilh related parfies to extend the payment period for loans at Modern Bank of Vietnam - MBV. The Corporation is also working with the above
companies to collect payments on behalf of or lend to have a source of payment for loans at Modemn Bank of Vietnam - MBY, in order o enhance the
Corporation's solvency as well as to match with regulations on corporate governance applicable to public companies

k7]
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b)

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Short-term

Receivables from interast
Dividends and profits recevable
Advance

Mongages

Receivables from loan interest, capital support, lale payment penalty
Recehvables relating o guaraniea obligations (i)

International arbitration fees without a ruling (i)

Petrolewm internal and External Equipment JSC

Recaivables of canstructhion teams

Surplug of bonus and welfare fund

Others

Long-term

Martgages
Hop Thanh Invesiment and Mineral J5C

INM212024 01401/2024
Value Pravision Valug Provision
VND WND VND VND
2.994 975,148 - 2.927,020,063 5
6,750,990,000 {6,750,090,000) 6.750,990,000 (6,750,990,000)
48, 314 587,793 {3.830,344 555} 33,658 335,841 (2,314 B61,215)
4,158 250,243 - 2.877,906,083 t
109,513 848,523 (27,733,568 215) 103,642,031 545 {27,733 588, 215)
42,770,314,825 (42,328,848 975) 42.770,314,825 (42,328,848,975)
4,889 875,320 - - .
26,414 393 577 [26,414,393,577) 26,414,393.577 (28,414 393 577)
18.819,381,673 (16,819,381,673) 16.819.381,873 (16,819,381 673)
4,917 824 844 {4,917 824 B44) 4,017 824 644 {4,917 824 B44)
152,058,045,019  (67,530,631,035) 158,548,872,975  (78,116,126,682)

a2

—S19600,886,785 __(196.125,382,674) __390,323,070,228 __[205,395,394,381)

23,954 471,812 = 24 600,907 484 -
4 613,461,725 . 6,813.461.725 b
7 X A O ¥ R —
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cl

In which: Other receivables from related parties

L 1 L L] L L] L} L] ¥ L] ¥ L] » [ ]

Saigon Pelroleum Construction and Invesment JSC

Larm Kinh Hotel JSC

Petroleum Mechanical Executing And Assembly JSC
Heerdm-PVE Inlernational Design JSG

Petroleum Interior Decoration JSC

Hanod Petroleum Construction JSC

Petro Vietnam Nghe An Construction JSC

Vietnam Oil and Gas Group (PYN)

Thanh Hoa Petroleurn Investment And Construction JSC
Thai Binh 2 Petroleum Power Project Managemen! Board
Viatnam Patraleurn Instituta

Mien Trung Pabtreleum Construction JSC

Pelro Vietnam Technical Services Corporation (PTSC)
‘Wietnam Public Joint Stock Commercial Bank

Consolidabed Financial Statements

 For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

1202024 010172024

Walie Prowisicn Walig Frovision
WHD YD WHD VND
56,694,768, 733 (3.778,366,082) 54,652,022, 125 (3.778,366,082)
48,630, 848,027 (6,138,310, 280) 45,288, 741,083 (6.138,310,290)
6,840,056, 555 (4,742,067, 735) 6,840,056 555 (4,742,067, 735)
9,360,238, 712 (3.880,613,813) 5,380,238 712 (3.896,613,813)
26,414,383,577 (26,414, 383,577T) 26,414,393 577 (26,414,393 ,577)
20,507 ,270,208 (B8,125,138,811) 20,507,270,308 (B.125,138,811}
2,441,887,388 - 2,155,023,952 -
2,008,154,052 {2,008, 154,052) 2,008,154,052 {2.008,154,052)
368,366,166 - 368,366,166 -
274,000,624 274,000,624 -
124,742,000 . 2 5
28,795,218,993 (28,795,218,983) 28,795,218,993 125,?95.115,993}

1,860,212,234 - 1.868,212,234

1,920,077 263 201,367,500

2245334632 (83001203453 __198,594,065891 __ (83 S0T26IASY)

(i} Receivablas from the performance of guaraniee obligations is the amount the bank has deducted from the Corporation’s account o perform the guarantee

obligations for the credit contracts that the Corporalion has guaranieed [Detailed in Mote 30).

(ii} This arbitration fee was paid fo the Vietnam InMernational Arbitration Center (WI1AC) 1o faciiate the submission of a counterclaim against DL E&C Co,, Lid,
refaled to Arbitration Case No. 05724 VIAC between the Parent Company and DL EAC Co., Lid (Note 17). On 31 May 2024, the Corporation submitted the
counterclaim against DL E&C Co., Lid to VIAC and paid the arbitration fee as per VIAC's notice, requesting the Arbitral Tribunal fo resclve the Corporation's
claims regarding DL EAC Co., Ltd's breaches during the execution of the EPS Conlracl This arbitration fee will be aflocated by the Arbitral Tribunal upon the
issuance of the arbitration award.
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9

DOUBTFUL DEBTS

Taotal value of receivables and debis thal are overdue or not due but difficult to be recoverad

Trade receivables

Hanol Petroleumn Construction JSC

Saigon Peiroleurn Construction and Inveament JSC
Petrcleum Mechanical Executing and Assembly JSC
PetroVietnam - Mghe An Construction JSC

Vietnam Port and Infrastructure Construction Invesiment JSC
Vinaconex 38 JEC

Trucng Son Investmen! Group JSC

PetroVietnam Premier Recreaton JSC

Pelroleurn Internal and External Equipment JSC
TID JSC

Others

Prepayments to suppliers

vietnam Port and Infrastructure Construction Investment JSC
Hanoi Petroleum Construction JSC

Petrovietnam - Mghe An Construction Joint Stock Corporation
Petroleumn Mechanical Execuling and Assembly JSC

Mien Trung Petraleurn Construction JSC

Vinaconex 39 JEC

Truong Son Investment Group JSC

Petroleum Consbruction 2 JSC

Cithers

1M 22024 Q10452024

Crriginal cosl  Recoverable valug Criginal cosl | Recoverable value
WMD WM WHD WD
328,178,418 418 52627 424 101 322 011,907 329 26,558 137 201
81,619,056,480 - 81,800,766,048 -
27,158,853,155 - 27,158,853,155 -
23,201 878 505 23,001,722.361 23.291,878,.505 =
25,401 643,107 2,070,774 300 17,181,317, 7840 2532 BaT 070
259,273,530, 882 . 259,273.930.6582 -
1,080,360,052 1,410,881 052 =
572,218,050 572,219,050 -
18,000,000,000 - 18,000,000,000 -
2,165,670,821 = 2,165,570,821 -
10,604,535, 064 17,448 428 851 149,604,536, 064 17 448 4238 851
20,010,370 .500 10,016,408 589 01,751,952, 163 6,576 871,370
355,052 884 287 34,802,349.128 359 576,110,432 13,003 484 816
31,212,207 481 6,714,619 343 31,212 207 481 B, 714,619,343
108,864 918,776 - 108,854 018,776 -
11,617,450 064 - 11,817,458 964 -

47 805 728,732 21,708 Be4 308 47 905, 728,732
28,744 518,395 - 26,744, 518,385 =
34,060,058 588 1,057 9592 818 35,4492 285 159 1.057,950.818
29,925 230,049 100,965,000 29,923,230.049 1060, 865, 00
26,1T6673.818 - 26 1T ETI AID -
38,530,088,083 5,219,940 661 41,630,088.077 5,219,040 655
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)

Loan recalvable

Lam Kinh Hotal J5C
Salgon Petroleum Construction and Invesiment JSC

Petroviatnam - Mghe An Construction Joint Stock Corparation

Petroleum Intermnal and External Equipment JSC

Other short-term receivablos

Lam Kinh Hotal JSGC

Méen Trung Petroleum Construction JSG

Viet Mam Port and Infrastructure Construction Investment J5C
Hanoi Petroleum Construction JSC

Sai Gon Pelroleurn construction and invesiment JSC
Petroleum Mechanical Executing and Assembly JSC
Vinaconax 19 JSC

Maodern Bank of Vietnam Limibed

PatroVielnam Premier Recreation JSC

Petroleum Internal and External Equipment J5C

Hasky JSC

Thien Phuwe Gia Coporation

Dthers

3141212024 0110172024
Original cost  Recoverable value Origingl cost _ Recoverable value
VND VHD VND VND
355,676,953,493 B86,504,350,441 355,676,053 403 86,504,359,441
200,000,000,000 75,643,840,997 200,000,000,000 75,643, 849,997
128,357,262 532 - 128,357,202 532 -
16,321,991.226 10,860,500 444 16,321,991,226 10,860,509 444
10,997 669,735 - 10,997 669,735 -
Z1,087,755,915 24,961,773,241 225,251,149,885 19,856,254.904
6,138,310,280 - 6,138,310,290 -
28,795,218,093 - 28.705,218,993 -
163,860,314 - 163,889,314 -
8,125,138,911 - B,125,138,911 -
21,447,520,000 17,731.272,367 21,447,520,000 17,731,272,367
4,742,087, 735 4,742.067,735 4, 742,067,735 -
103,192,384 5 103,192,384 =
42,328,848,975 - 42,328,848 975 -
5,575,890,000 - 5,575,590,000 -
33 584,650,688 - 33,584 650 686 -
2,196,348 606 8,000,000,000 -
5,000,000,000 - 5,000,000,000 -
62,886.570,831 2,488.433,139 61,247,413,597 2,124,982,537
59,996,012,111 198,895.905911 _ 1,262 517,221,188 146,012,236,452

35
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1"

b

INVENTORIES
31H2/2024 E 01/01/2024
Onginal cost Provision Original cost Provision
VMND WHD WND WHD
Raw materials 6465655338  (3.169,300.408) 6.381458,724  (3.249102.270)
Tools, supplies 4,920 179,637 (641,039,651) 5,316,250,080 (126,922 432)

Work in progress (i) 1,867,032 182,674 (104,607 533,381) 2,000,581,148,008 (126 643 454 088)
Goods (i) 59 400 BET 454 (11,410,634 208) B1,546 B49 442 (15 156 626,123)

w ﬂ“’IEFETEE; !I‘.'IH-!IH!?EEQ i'lal-!é'iﬂ!igﬂﬁt

(i} Detaied information of work in progress is as foliows:

Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant
Yung Ang 1 Thermal Power Plant (*)

Apartment 33A, sireet 3044, Vung Tau city (*°)

Song Hau 1 Thermal Power Plant
Others

311272024 01/01/2024

VND VND
1400422.457 557 1,466 587845156
245,057 856,468 245 057 868 468
32.966.554 500 22 986,594,500
109,132 879,548 108.251,716,656
79432382800  147,887.123228

1&53&3&13%5‘” ,000,581,1 ﬂﬂﬂ

{*} The Corporation is a sub-confractor of the EPC general contracior of these constructions. As
prasented in Note 39 in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, because of changing
in design and unit price, the Corporation is requesting the Owner, General Contractor and
competent authorities to consider this provision adjustment to the unexpired value of the Vung Ang
1 Thermal Power Plant Project The Consclidated Financial Statements does nol include any
adustments that may be related o this matter.

{**) This is the remaining work-in-progress cost of the construction item under the Commercial,
Service, Office. and Apartment Complex project at 334, 3044 Street, Ward 9, Vung Tau City. Ba
Rja - Vung Tau Pravince. The project was completed and put into use in 2019, however, its final
seftliernent has not yel been approved,

{ii) The value of inventory at 01 January 2024 and 31 December 2024 including apartments from
ihe Thai Binh Petroleum Holel Apariment with a value of VND 36,302,881,834 owned by Thai Binh
Petroteumn Trading and Investment Joint Stock Company. The Corporation has not assessed the
decline in value nor estimated the net realizable value of these properties and has decided not 1o
make a provision for the comesponding imventory impairment.

PREPAID EXPENSES
1122024 010172024
WND WHD
Shori-term
Dispatched tocls and supplies 2, 739,278,366 551,587 048
Others 703,888 758 1,546,812,017
wwuﬁ 2 i]ﬁ?ﬂ&
Long - term
Infrastructure rental at Sao Mai Ben Dinh port 77,108, 006,160 80,035, 871,604
Offica rental L472,381. 608 B, 777,404 250
Dispatchad tools and supplias 14, 260,062.911 11,812 380,793
Propety repair costs 5,680,032,353 6,450,156 446
Ohers 34,225,128 6,508,021,273
w M




PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
VPl Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi

Consolidated Financial Statemenis
For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

12 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Buidings, Machinery, Vehiclkes,  Office equipment Total

struciures equipment transporiation

equipment
WMD) WHMD WD WND WHD

Historical cost

Beginning balance 1,964, 275,589,079  334,B00,013,234  121,550.354,049 27.895,762.081  1,648,521,708,443
= Purchasa in the year 45 146 626 503 159,238,587 815,163 6836 154, 280, 000 46,280,008, 726
= Completed construction in progress 6422 148217 . . - 6422 148217
- Qther adjustments {2,350,290,870) . . {2.350,290,870)
- Raclassfication {691.844,837) . - - (581,844 837)
= Liguidabon, disposal {1.882, 550,505} (42078770, 2551 {11,048 255 H-#'u"] {345,750,000] (56,233,330,698)
- Asset dismantlement __{15,074,640,008) - {15,074 540 D06}

Ending balance of the year
Accumulated deprociation

519694502051, _TSLRRAANISRS, A7 A7 TS LSS

Bieginming balance 430 949 420 348 307 304,847 845 120,685,713,2606 27 680,620,124 B95,610,610,603
-  Depreciation in the year 24 919,084 813 0,866,040, 008 270,120,226 150,705,909 35,214,840, 856
- (Other adjustments [921,508,043) - - - (921,509.043)
- Reclassfication (Z28,110,451) - - - (228,110,451)
=  Liguidation, disposal (1,852,558,585) (40,871,244, 'IE'1:| {11,848 255 H-ﬂ-?]l (345,750,000} (55,027 613,633)
- Assel dismantiamant (16,002 237 420) = (15002 237 425}
Ending balance of the year _o46,854,077 543 7690853567 109026573685 __ ZTAGSSTO0N __899,645,890903

Met carrying amount

Beginning balance 724,326, 150,731 _ 27,495 165380 854,640,763 235,131,957 _ 752,911,087,840
Ending balance 749,110,950,848 __ 16.582,876,003 1,394,684173 239,406,048 __767,327,869,072

The carnrying amount of tangible fved assets pladged as collaterals for borrowings as al 31 December 2024 was VND 374,037,138,512 (as at 01 January

2024 was VND 348,305,674 .940);

Cost of fully depreciated fangible fived assels bul sbll in use al 31 December 2024 was VYND 401 187 220 987 (as at 01 Januwary 2024 was VND

429,617 087 ,053).

i
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13 INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

-l - S E En - Ex o mm o aEm ) q) ) o) am e o EA mE = s

Land use rights (I} Manager software Total
VND VND VND

Historcal cost
Beginning balance 2682 931,666 520 21461 212 382 284 382 B7E 802
Ending balance of the year Iﬂlﬂ‘FIEHE 21|-lE| g1z,:.nz IMIHIIETBEEII
Accumulated depreciation
Beginning balance 8,515,034, 707 18 656 B62 255 26,181,896 862
=  Depreciation in the year 413,668,808 563,306,664 875,875,272
= Oiher decrease (440.700.000) - [440.700.000)
Ending balance of the year — 6.488,003,315 20230168919 __ 26.718,172.234
Net carrying amount
Beginning balance 258 416631813 1.784 350 127 EE&EWI'EIETIEHI-I]

Ending balance 2564473 663,208 1,231 463 IE?EETI-IT'DEﬁ%

*
Cost of fully amortized intangible fixed assets bul still in use at 31 December 2024 was VND.

19,571,292 382 (as at 01 January 2024 was WVND 19,571,292 382). b II

i
(i} Including the value of land use rights al land plot No. 04, map sheat No. 10, lecated at No. 0z
Nguyen Huu Canh, Thang Nhat ward, Vung Tau city. Ba Ria-Vung Tau provinca, owned |
Pelroleurn Equipment Assembly & Melal Structure Joint Stock Company. The Peo
Committee of Ba Ria Vung Tau province granted the land use rights certificate on 28 July 2003
with an oniginal cost of VND 15,166 470,000. The carying amount as at 31 December 2024 was
WND 8,678,456 685,

This land plot was invested in the construction of the Mix-use complex high-rise residental and
office buildings which was handed over for use in 2014. On 24 August 2017, this land plat was
reclaimed by the Departmeni of Matural Resources and Environment of Ba Ria - Vung Tau
province to issue a new certificate for the properties on the land, which include the apariment
wnits and offics blocks. According lo the Certificate of Land Use Rights Mo, BX 920280 and the
Certificate of Application No. 000038.TS, the Corporation has the right to use land, own
residental bulldings, and other assels attached 1o the land, including floars 1 through 5, and the
recfiop technical floor of the Mix-use Complex at land plot No. 02 Nguyen Huu Canh street,
Thang Nhat ward, Vung Tau city, Ba Ria - Vung Tau province.

The asset value is the above-mentioned office space area, which is being preseniad by the
Corporation as tangible foced assets with a value of VND 15,166,470,000 and investment real
estate with a value of VND 17 530,350,045,

«
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a)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR LEASE

Historical cost

Beginning balance

- Purchase in the year

- Dther adjustmeants

- Reclassification

- Decregse due to reclassification to imseniony

Buildings Total
VIND VND
101,148,280217  101,148,280,217
20379043182 20,379,043,182
734,293.717 734,293,717
591,844,637 501,844,837

(11,785,626 7635) {11.785 626,765)

Ending balance of the year 11 T 188 111,067,844 188
Accumulated depreciation

Beginning balance 23,182,508 848 23,182 508,548
- Depreciation in the year 2,185 280,762 2,185,280, 782
- Oither adjustmenis 272 831,032 272 831,032
- Oiher reclassification 228,110,451 228,110,451
- Dacrease dus to reclassification Lo msaniory (308,875,000} (308 8BTS 080)
Ending balance of the year —:559.856.003  25.5569.856,003
Met carrying amount

Beginning balance 77 965 TBD 365 77,965 780 369
Ending balance 55,507988,185 __§5.,507.885,185

Carrying amount of investment properties pledged as collalerals for borrowings as at 31 December
2024 was VND 54,555 800,473 (as at 01 January 2024 was VND 55,737 815,518).

Fair value of investment properties has not been appraised and determined exactly as at 31
December 2024, However, basad on leasing activities and markel prices of thesa assets, the
Board of General Directors believes thal the fair value of investment properties is higher than their
carrying amount on the books at the end of fiscal year.

LONG-TERM ASSET IN PROGRESS
31122024 ____no1/z024
Original cost Recoverable Oniginal cost Recoverable
value valug
WHND WND WHD WD

Long-term work in progress

- Cwuang Trach 1 25,781,820,546 12890910273 25781820546 12,890,910.273
Thermal Power
Plant Project (i)

= Dinh Yu Polyesiar
Plant Project

- Long Phu Thermal
Power Operation
Center

= Others

25,769,325.212 0,162,306,880 25759326212  9,162,306,830

12,180,083.636 BOO,000,000 12,180,083.638 800,000,000

2210995386  7,922,805745  2,210,008380

_T1E43835139 25064213538 _T1843835139 _25064.213,539

{i} According to Cfficial Letter No. 1828/TTg-KTN dated 15 October 2016 of the Prime Minisiar on
certain changes relating to thermal power projects under managemant of Quang Trach and Quynh
Lap Power Centres, Vietnam Electricity Group will replace Vietnam Oil and Gas Group as the
investor of the Quang Trach 1 Thermal Power Plant Project As of the date of preparing these
Consolidated Financial Stalements, the Corporation is st in the process of working with involving
parties to finalize and seifle the expenses incurred by the Corporation in the construction of this
project.

7.822.605,745

39
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Construction in progress

31122024 010172024

WHD VND

Purchasa 147,660,832 -
=  Procuremant of fixed assels 147 850 822 =
Construction in progress 113,303,B06,575 111,661, 268,283

- Soai Rap Petroleum Service Industrial Zone Project 103182526261 103,182 526,261
in Tien Giang (i)

- Pairo Vietnam Unhiersity Urban Area (iii) 3 B83.5984 985 4,883 SE4 Q8
- Tien Giang Patroleum Indusirial Zone Project (i) 1.835,100.923 1.835,100,823
- Orhers (jii) 4,402,194 406 2,759,656,114

—113451,257,407 _111,661.288.283

(¥) Thiz is the construction in progress of Soai Rap - Tien Giang Petroleum Service Industrial Park
Project (referred io as "the project’) which the Corporation inherited and became the investor from
Vietnam Qil And Gas Group (PVN) accorging to Decision No, 70B/QD-DKVN dated 12 August
2010 of the Board of Members of PVN.

On 22 August 2016, the Ministry of Finance issved Document No, 11704/BTC-TCON o the
People's Committee of Tien Giang Province and PYN to provide the specific instructions on the
transfer of the above project from PVM 1o the People's Commitiee of Tien Glang Province.

According o the minuies Mo 1421/BB-SKHADT dated 31 July 2017 between the Project
Acceptance Teamn and the People’s Committee of Tien Giang Province, it was agreed 1o recognize
the project value during the period of implementation by the Corporation as WND 143 billion

on 01 October 2018, the Corporation signed a minutes of quidation of 1he land lease contract with
the Department of Matural Resources and Environment of Tien Giang province, handing over the
land and the assets aftached to the land to this agency.

On 28 February 2019, the Govemnment Office issued Document No. 1630/0PCP-CH directing the
Minisiry of Planning and Investment, the Ministry of Justice, the Ministry of Matural Resources and
Environmant, the Ministry of Industry and Trada, the Committes for Management of State Capital at
Enterprises 1o instruct the People's Committes of Tien Giang province and the project investor to
seftie the incurred expenses for the project investor due to the recovery of project land, ensuring
compliance with the provisions of law. preventing the loss of stale assets and safeguarding the
rights and interests of the project invesior.

Through many directives from the Government, the refevant ministries have yet to coma up with an
official plan 1o resola and guide the reimbursamant of the axpenses invested by the Corparation in
the Soai Rap Oil and Gas Industrial Park project in Tien Giang province.

On 20 March 20217, the Corporation issued Document No. 4268XLDK-KHOTATCC requesting to
continue iis role @s the Investor of Soal Rap Petrobeurn Service Industrial Park Project in Tien
Gilang Province,

Cn 06 August 2021, the Ministry of Planning and Investment continued to send Document Mo,
S1BYBKHDT-OLEKT proposing that the Prime Minister instructs the People's Commities of Tien
Giang Province 1o conclusively resolve all issues relaled to the Project in 2021 in accordance with
the law and regulations.

On 15 February 2022, the Government Office issued Document Mo, $64WVPCP-CN announcing the
specific directive of Deputy Prime Minister Le Van Thanh, assigning the Minstry of Natural
Resources and Environment to have specific opinions on the compliance with legal procedures and
provisions of the Law on land recovery process for the project of the People's Committes of Tien
Giang province. This will serve as a basis for considering whether the Corparation is entithed to
compensation for assets on the project and.

As at the preparation date of these Consolidated Financlal Statements, the project transfer process
has not yet been completed. The Board of General Directors of the Corporation believes that the
Corporation will fully recover the expenses incurmed or be enbrusted with the project for further
implementation

(i} The Projects that have been suspended for several years have nol been assessed by the
Board of Managemant for their potential future econamic benefits,
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PetraVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Consclidated Financial Statements
VP| Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Strest, Hanoi For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

16 LONG-TERM OTHER ASSETS

N4 01012024

YND WMD

Centribution 1o the investment of the Dolphin Plaza 26,233, 304,440 27 233,304 440
Project (i)

Contribution 1o Long Son Riverside project (i) 12,897,200,000 12,897,200,000

—130.508,840 ____20,120,504.840

(i} The invesimen! under the Business Cooperation Confract Mo, 2112010MHDHTKD dated 2

Movember 2010 signed between Dong Do Petroleum Joint Stock Company (PYC-Dong Do - a

subsidiary of the Corporation), Joint Stock Company Invesiment and Financial Consulting of Oil

and Gas Vietnam and TID Joant Siock Comparny (TID™)

= Investment purpose; Construction of the Dolphin Piaza project at 28 Tran Binh Street, My Dinh,
Tu Liem, Hanoi;

- Total contract value: VHD 265708 531 405 including a land uze rnighl contributicn of VMD
180,793.800,000 and a cash contribution of VKD 78,033,520,930,

- Capital contrbution structure: As per the contract commitment, PVC-Dong Do was o contribute
VND 51,054,250 967, consmsting of VND 35,080,822 000 from the land use right advantage and
VND 14§83 437 987 in cash, equivaient to 19% of the cash contribution to the project On 18
January 2015, PVC-Dong Do signed Appendix No. 03 to Business Cooperation Contract No
0211/2010/HDHTKD with TID to withdraw a portion of its capilal conlribution, amounting to VND
13,853,720,233, This reduced its remaining cash contribution ratio to 1.5%, leaving a total capital
contribution of VND 37,100.538,734 in the project. PVC-Dong Do is entitled to 1.6% of the
project's business profit;

- Contract paymeant and setiiament.

< PVC-Dong Do acquired 154 m? of the commercial service area valued at VND 3527 BBZETS
from TID under Appendix MNo. 04 of the Commercial Service Area Transfer Contract No.
DPHONTID-PVFC Land, signed on 18 January 2017. This amount was settied through debt
offsetting with the initial business cooperation contract (from the previously mentioned capital
withdrawal of VND 13 853,720,233, with an actual cash receipt of VND 10,426,037 558).

< On 23 December 2022, PVC-Dong Do received three apartments with a fotal value of VND
0,867,235 284 according to the payment obligation setflement agreements No. 5010-
IZ022DD-HP-TID, 5000-32022/D0-HP-TID, and 4950-172022/D0-HP-TID, dated 23
December 2022. Tha value of these three apartments was settied through deb? offsetting with
the initial business cooperation contract

< On 16 January 2024 and 05 February 2024, PVC-Dong Do received VND 500,000,000 per
transaction.

% On 20 January 2025, PVC-Dong Do and TID signed a debt offset agreement regarding an
amount payable to suppliers of VND 7,566,201.080. :

% On 21 January 2025 PVC-Dong Do and TID signed the business coopefation contract
higuidation agreement. Uinder this agreement, TID refunded PVC-Dong Do the remaining funds
contribited to partcipate in the project and the remaining capital contribution for project
implemantation, totaling VND 18,667,103,593, after offsetfting the VND 7,566,201,080 dedt on
20 January 2025 (as mentioned above).

{ii) The capital contribution under Business Cooperation Contract No. 202010WBCC/KT-FIVLS-

PETROLAND-PVFC LAND daled 08 June 20410

- Participants, contribution ratio, form, and schedule: The participating parties include IDICO Long
Son Investment Joint Stock Company (IDICO Long Son), Khang Thong Constructien Trading
Service Joint Stock Company (Khang Thong), and Petroleum Indusirial and Civil Construction
Joint Stock Company (PVC-IC - a subsidiary of the Corporation). with respective capital
contribution ratios of 85%, 5%, and 10%.

- Purpose of business cooperabon: Juhthmihmﬂmmmnfmiuﬂsm
Riverside Apﬂ'tmc ent” project located at 1351 Huynh Tan Phat Street. Phu Thuan VWard, District 7,

. mm dﬂgﬁi;; Business activiies include the sale and leasing of apartment units,
commerdal center spaces, and other assets formed during the investment, operation. and
business process of the

- Profit-sharing method: Tﬁ:ﬁm ghana profits, bear losses, and assume h.:u:'rl'lm risks based
on the business performance of the Operator (IDICO Lang Son) and in propodion to their capital
coniripution ratio.
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PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
VPl Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi

Consolidated Financial Statements

For lhe fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

As of 31 December 2024, the project has been completed, launched for sale, and commeanced commercial operations for both reskdential apartments and
commercial floor areas. However, due 1o ongoing legal procedures for converting the land use purpose to long-term residential land, PVC-IC has not yet

received any business profil distribution from this contracl
17 SHORT-TERM TRADE PAYABLES

3122024 01/01/2024

Dutstanding Amoimi can be Dutstanding Arnount can be

balance paid balance paid

VND WD WHD WHD

Related parties 410,901,334, 378 4710,907.334.378 J73 536,123,490 JI73, 536,123,430
Duyen Hal Petro Construction Investment Jaint Stock Company 7,976, 738,000 7.976,738,009 9.651,322.919 9,651,322.919
Petroleurn Link Communication and Trading Joint Stock Company . . 9,868,980 9,868,980
Mign Trung Petredeum Construction Joint Slock Company 4,042, 851,288 4,042,951,289 11,660,000 11,660,000
Thanh Hoa Petroleum Investment And Construction Joint Steck Company 27.903 667,974 27 903,667 974 7,653 351 367 7853 351 387
Vielnam Cil and Gas Group (PVN) 177,207 065,265 177.,207,065.265  177.207,065,265  177,207,0685,265
Petroveinam Exploration Production Corporation (PVEP) (i) 115,973, 338,811 115,873,338,811 115,873, 338,811 115,973, 338,611
Petroleum Mechanical Executing And Assembbly Joint Stock Company 60,359, 700,035 60,399, 700,035 60,699, 700,035 60,699, 700,035
Hangi Pefrolewm Construction Joint Stock Company 15,291 823 4T4 15,291,823 474 223,766,501 223 Te6, 5091
Petro Vieinam Mghe An Construction Joint Stock Company 2,108,045 522 2,106,049 522 2,106,048 522 2.106,049,522
Others 2,844,037,304,732 2,844,037,304,732 2,966,990,608,227 2,966,990,608,227
Dealim Indutrial Co,, Lid (i) 1,044,419,642,304 1,044,410,642, 304 1,021,827,357,960 1,021,027 257,060
Viat Mam Machinery Installation Corporation - JSC 206,761,847.084  206,781.647,084  200.662,562,403  290,662,562.403
Sojitz Corporation 111,744 046 842 111,744 046 642 139 652, 763,255 138,652, 763,255
Viet Mam Blectricity 166, 865 681,507 166,065 691,507 136,384 084 434 138 384, 084,434
Boiermaster Vietnam Ca, id 05, 708,451 460 95 708 461 469 111,720,842, 747 111,720,842, 747
Ba Son Corporation &0,978 955 814 &0 878 855 914 60,978 955 814 60 878 855,814
S-Tank Enginearing Co.,Lid 68,276,803,542 68,276,803 542 68.212 975,582 68,212 976,582
DHhers 1,080, 162,058,270 1,089.1862,058,270 1,135.542,054,932 1,135,542 054,952
3,254,938,635,111 _3.254,938,639,111 _3,340,526,731,717 _3,340,526,731,717

Unpaid overdue payables
Others 557,350,620,505  557.350,620,505  408,035840,838 408,935 840,838
—SS1.350520,505 _557,350620,505, _408,935,540.838, _405,935,340,838
a2
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PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Consolidated Financial Statements

VPl Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Strest, Hanoi

For the fiscal year ended as at 311202024

(i} The amount thal Thai Binh Petroleumn Trading and Investiment Joint Stock Company (PVC Thai
Binh - a subsidiary of the Corporation) transferred to PVEP regarding PVC Thai Binh's acceplance
of transfer of the Thal Binh Petroleum Hotel Investment from PYEP (Delailed in Nobe 39).

(i} On 25 January 2024, DL EEC Co, Lid submitied a Siatement of Claim 1o the Viebtram
Intarnational Arbetration Center (VIAC), initiating a dispule related lo EPS Coniract No.
JWHDKTR2012/PVC-SDC dated 22 May 2012, between the Corporation (the main contracior) and
DL E&C Co., Ltd {the subcontractor).

The subcontractor has requested the Arbitral Trbunal to review and decide on the Tollowing
matiers: the conditions for granting the Operational Acceptance Certificate (completion certificate)
for the work performed under the confract have been satisfied: the wamanty period for the
equipmen and services provided by the subconiracior has ended, the Corporation must seitle the
pverdue debls amounting to USD T.67 million and VKD 2873 mdlion; the Corporation must rafund
the parfarmance daposi for the EPS Contract, totaling USD 13.£ million and VKD 5329 millan, tha
Corporation must rafurn the retained amount for warranty obgations, totaling USD 20005 mullion
and WND 789.3 millson; the costs incurred dus o project detevs amounting to UISD 171.85 millicn;
other related claims amounting to USD 6.23 million, and the estimated late payment penalty
amounting o USD 17.81 million.

On 31 May 2024, the Corporation submitted a Statement of Defense against DL E&C Co., Lid's
Staterment of Claim io VIAC, with the following key arguments: the Corporation does not recognese
DL E&C Co, Lid's legal standing to intiate the claim, disputes the Arbitral Tribunal's jurisdiction
over the case, and rejects all claims made by DL EAC Co., Ltd

On the same day, the Corporation also filed a Counterclaim with VIAC, requesting DL E&C Co., Lid
o compensate for damages resulting from breaches in the axecution of the EPS Contract. with a
lotal counterclaim value of VIND 17.955.47 millign and USD 36.64 mifion

On 13 June 2024, VIAC issued Motice No. 1722MAC, informing that the Arbitral Tribunal had
decided lo hold a case management conference, scheduled for early August 2024,

On 14 September 2024, VIAC issued Procedural Order No. 1 (PO Mo. 17) under Natice No.
2T47NIAC on behalf of the Tribunal

On 12 December 2024, VIAC conducted an online hearing attended by representatives of both the
claimant and the respondent,

Paralle! io the arbitration proceedings at VIAC, PetroCons continues to engage in negoliations and

mediation efforts with Daelim EAC to resclve the disputes amicably and urges the contractor to
withdraw tha aforementioned claims.

SHORT - TERM PREPAYMENTS FROM CUSTOMERS

311202024 010112024
VND VND
Related parties F2, 778 475 899 108,560,908, 084
Vung Ang - Quang Trach Petroleum Power Project B2 778,475,899 82,778,475,899
Management Board
Petro\Vietnam Technical Services Corporation - 25,782,432, 185
Others 149,4563,983,138 105,154,304, 724
University of Patroleum Project Management Board 17,612,938,300 17,612,839 300
Viet Nam Machinery Installation Carparation - JSC 55 BO7, 285,149 E5 897,285,149
Others 75,053, 758,889 31,644,080,275
—232,242450007 __ 213.715.212.808
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PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
VP Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi

Consolidated Financial Statements

For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

20 ACCRUED EXPENSES

b)

21

al

b)

a)

AN 202024 Q110172024
WD WND

Shart - tarm
Interest expense 200,381,248 911 172,784 276,659
Accrual of construction work 245 186,568,775 255 448 230,095
Dther accrued expenses 6,587,058 808 X2 B2 ATOATT
453154875507 451822676331

Long - term
Accrual of construction work 115497 608,588 71.310,452 285

115,497,€08,588 71,210,452 285

UNMEARMED REVEMNUES
J1M1272024 01012024
WD WKD
Short - term
Fevenues from propery leasng o249, 100,721 3,181,130 462

Long - tarm
Revenues from property leasing (i) 50632 252 045 52,080,003 .587
Gains from sale of assels and sublease of financial 188,251 272 295 E05 888
leases

1. 503 317 SE‘IJHM

{i) This mcludes WND 42096280426, the balance of land rent received in advance from
PetroVietram Steel Pipe Joint Stock Company under Contract 01/HDTD/PYPIPE-FVC dated 01
Movember 2012 for a lease term of 588 months with a contract value of WND 45818181818 at
Soai Rap Industrial Park - Tien Glang province. The Cosporation has allocaled the lease payments
up to December 2014 fo revenue in the amount of VND 3,821,852 383 After December 2014, the
project has been palnned for handover to the People’s Committee of Tien Giang province, which
has not been completed yet (Detailed in nate 15). Therefore, the Corporation has not yet resumed

negoliations with the customer regarding the remaining batance of land lease payment

OTHER PAYABLES

Short - tarm

Surphus of assets awaiting resclution
Trade union fes

Social insuranca

Health imsurance

Unamployment insurancs

Shorn-term deposits, collateral received
Dividends or profits payatble

Interest expenses

Prowision for guaranies obligations (i)
OceanBank (i)

Vietnam Od and Gas Group (jii)
PatraVistnarm Gas Joint Stock Comaration {iv)
Payabls for condominium mainienance fes
Aid Funds

Others

45

31272024 01/01/2024

~ WND VND
17,130,137 17,130,137
B,500,345,771 10,545 587 233
7,137.502,411 0 748,256,579
732541283 1,558 840 846
485 B28B 275 B40 843,598

4,128 8BS0 568 2.736 317,506
40,384 150,617 41,548 662,078
1.246 252,165 3927276443
137,042 770 402 137,942,779, 452
172,784,334 551 162,506 140,732
£4 008 454 510 54 008 464 510
58,212 500,000 58,212, 500,000
10,249.210,378 10,727,7687.830
3 876,564 T4 3,814,284, T84
84 559 547,037 81,242 670,601
582456022299 587654331570




PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Consolidated Financial Statements

VP| Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi

For the fiscal year endad as at 31/112/2024

b}

(4]

di

23

31122024 010172024
WHD WND
Long - term

Long-term deposits, collateral received 2,873,189,858 1,509.775.187
Others 50,000,000 50,000,000
. 2923,199.868 1648775187

Unpaid overdue payables
- Payables fo the msurance agency 12,378,319,651 10,036 679,284
- Dividends or profils payable 42 451,440,707 44 335 430,205
=  Payables for assistance funds 1,334,818,785 1,334,818, 765

56,164,573,143 55,696,928,478
In which: Other payables from related parties

- Vietnam Ol and Gas Group 54 (198464 510 54,088,454,510
- PelroVietnem Gas Joint Stock Corporation 56,212,500.000 56.212,600,000
= Vietnam Petroleum Instiule 2508 186,687 -
- Camau Gas Power Fertlizer Project Management 8,687 6BE 626 B.697 BBE.628
Board

- Maen Trung Petraleum Construction JSC BET 875,776 66T 875,776
= Hanoi Pefrodeum Construction JSC 14,715,555 14,715,555

IIEE!E?‘JH 19,691, 34 T

(i} A= at 31 December 2024, the provision for guaraniee obligations was as presanted in Note 39,

(i) Interest payable fo Modern Bank of Vietnam - MBY [okd name was Ocean Commercial Bank
Limited (OceanBank) includes interest expense of the Corporation and interest expense that the
Carporation will coliect from companies that the Corporation has paid or lent under capital support
contracts (detailed in Mote 07) to pay OceanBank According to Resolubon No. 754B/NQ-DKVN
dated 29 October, 2014 of the Members' Council of Vietnam Qil and Gas Group and according to
Official Letter Mo. TES7/2014/CV-OceanBank dated 9 December 2014 of OceanBank, the time of
payment The payment of these amounts has been extended to 31 Decamber 2017 and the loan
inberest rate has been reduced fo 1%/year from 01 January 2015 as presented in Nole 24. From 01
January 2018, the loan was applied an overdue interest rate equal to 150% of the current interest
rate. As al the date of these Consolidaled Financial Statements, 1he Corporation = looking for
solutions io pay the overdue loan interest payable.

{(¥) The payable o Vietnam Cil and Gas Group is the amount that Vietnam Oi and Gas Group
supported the Corporation to pay for contractors of the Soai Rap - Tien Giang Petroleum Service
Industrial Zone Project

(W) The payable to PetroVietnam Gas Joint Stock Corporation is related to the transfer of investor
to PetroVietnam Urban Development Joint Stock Company (a subsidiary of the Corporation) in the
Bac Lieu Tower project. Petro\ietnam Urban Development Joint Stock Company is obligated to
pay this amount lo PetroVietnam Gas Joint Stock Corporation according to the contract signed on
12 August 2010,

LONG-TERM PROVISIONS FOR PAYABLES

3111272024 01/01/2024

WND WND

Provesion for construction wamanty 10,778 488 744 20,487 803,180
1ﬂim|iﬂ|?'“ 20 160

Pt




PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
VPI Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanol

24 BORROWINGS

b)

Short-term barrowings (1)
Shorl-term debls

Currant portion of long-lerm debis

Long-term borrowings
Long-term dabls (i)

Armoun due for seftiernent within 12
manths

Amount dee for setilement after 12
months

Consolidated Financial Statements

For the fiscal year ended as al 31122024

0102024 D tha 32024
Qutatanding Amaount can be Increase Decrease Cutstanding Amount can be
balance paid balance paaid
VND VND VND VND VND VND
102,283,411,795 102,283,411, 785  100,137.532.071 148,574,513, 736 53,826,410,110 53,626,410,130
627179637122  627,179,637.122  14,000,000,000 214,400,000  G40965237 122  640,085,237,122
__720,443,048.617 _ 725,443,048,617 _ 114,137,632.071 _ 148,788 930,736 __ 694,791,647,252 _ 694,791,647,262

G665, 170637, 122  865,179,637,122

214,400,000 654965237122  664,965.237.122

_SSBITOEITIZE _BGSITOSITIZE . 214400000 96430823717 _ 664068837123

(627,179,637,122) (627,179.637.122)

38,000,000.000

36,000,000,000
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PetroVietnam Construction Joini Stock Corporation Consolidated Financlal Stateménts
VPl Towar, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hano! For the fiscal year endad as at 31/12/2024
Detailed information on Short-term borrowings:
Currency  Inlerest  Duration Loan purpose Guarantes Inziz0z4 010172024
Rate
VHD YHND
Shori-term borrowings 53.826,410,130 102,263 411,785
Vietnam Public Joint Stack VND Floating & Supplementing working capital  Unsecured 20,767,010,130 22.821,891,805
Commercial Bank monihs  for business activities
Fortune Vielnam Jaint Stock WHD 9.10% 4 Supplementing working capilal Secured - -
Commercial Bank moniths  for business aclivities
Joint Stock Commercial WD Floating 11 Supplement working capilal | Secued 9,336, 400,000 67 265 007 564
Bank for Imresiment and monihs  guarantes to open LT
Developrent of Vielnam
Mational Cilizen Commercial  VND Floating 1year Supplemenling working capital Secured - 1,705,612 426
Joint Stock Bank - Yung Tau for business aclivites
Branch
Others WHND ") 1year Supplementing working capital Unsecured 23.722,000,000 10,370,000,000
for business aciivities
Current partion of long-term debts 640,965,237,122 627,178,637, 122

694, 791,647,252 TI0.443,048 917

Loans from banks and other credit institutions are secured by the morigage contract/ collalerals! guarantoe with the lender and fully regisiered as secured
transactons.

("} Oiher loans are personal loans with interest rates from 0% 1o 12%.

As at 31 December 2024, he overdue principal balance of short-term loans payable by the Corporation amounied to WND 20,767.010,130 (as at 01 January
2024 was VND 22 541,820,9135). The Corporation is still leoking for solutions to repay the overdue lcan principal amounts mentioned above.
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PetroVietnam Construction Jolnt Stock Corporation Consolidated Financial Statements
VP1 Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

Dietailed information on Leng-term borrowings:
Currency  Interest Yearof  Loan purpose Guarantes JIMA2024 002024
raie maturity

WD WML
Long-term borrowings
Ocean Commercial One Member Limiled Liability Bank BTH.GMD 16T 122  GTEGTO 157 122
- GConfract No.6032011/HOTD- VND  4590%  Year 2017  Invesimenf in Lam Kinh Hotel Jont  Unsecwred  200.000,000,000  200.000.000.000
Oeeanbank-PVC daled Stock Company
20102010
= Contract No, 652201 1/HOTD- VN 4.90%  Year 2007 Invesimen! in Thai Bink Pelroderm  Unsecired 65,000,000,000 65, 000, 000,000
Oceanbank-PVC dated Irmvesiment and Tradieg Joind Siock
JOAOE20TT Compary
- Comirael No, 102071 0HDTD- YND 550% Year 2007 Paymem and offseling of Unsecihod 10,670,157, 122 310670157, 122
COeaanbank-PVC dated invesimaon! paymen! fecoaned from
J00E2011 PVFC under e Purchase and
Sate ConfractTransfer Contract
Vietnam Public Joint Stock Commercial Bank #9,295000,000 89,208 080,000
- Conlract No. VND  Floating Year 2017 Offselling the invesimeni capital of  Ungsecwed 89, 295,080,000 B9, 295080000
022 WsHDDHWPVE-CNTE Thai Binh Patroleum Haotal
dated 04 June 2015
HMational Citizen Cammercial YND  11.00% Year2024 Purchaze of machinery and  Secured - 214 400,000
Joint Slock Bank equipmant
B4 122 663,179,637 122
Amount due for setilement within 12 manths (640,965,237 122) (627.179,637.122)
Amount due for settlement within 12 months —23,000,000,000 ___38,000,000,000
Loans from banks and oiher credit institutions are secured by the morgage coniract’ collateralsd guarantes with the ender and fully regislered as secured
transactions,
According to Resolution Mo. T548/NC-DIKVN dated 29 October 2014 of PYN's Board of General Directors and OceanBank's Official Letter No. 78072201 4CV-
OceanBank dated 09 December 2014, the deadiine lor kxans from OceanBank has been extended until 31 December 2017. The interest rate applicable o the
loans from the time interest payments wera nol made until 31 December 2014 was 2.4% per year, and 1% per year from 01 January 2015. From 01 January
2018, overdue loans bear interest at 150% of the in-term inberas! rate. Al the date of preparing these Consolidated financial statements, the Corporation Is
actively seeking solutions to repay the principal amounis of these overdue loans.
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PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Consolidated Financial Staterments
VP Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hangi _For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

Z5 DWHNER'S EQUITY

a) Changes in ownar's eguity

Contributed Shane Othar capilal Treasury Irvearsiminnt Do Rotained samngs Man - Tatal
capital piemium ghares  developmen PEEEAES Controlling
funds Il eresi
VND WVND VND VND VND WD VND VND VND
Beginning balance of 4,000,000,000,000 6.831,719482 22684 220411 (25720,195) 150855427014 2162412217 (1B40,619,958,047) 463734675503 605619977380
previous year
Loss for previous year . : - - - - (21,340,851,149) (72,924,920,007) (94,265.771.248)
Oiher increase 4 . = . . . 188,204 777 180,910,679 350,205,456
Ending balance of
previous 4.000,000,000000 6.831,719462 22681210411 (29,720,195) 150859 477614 21624122327 (3861772514 419) 31090,990,B66,165 T11.T23.411.450
_  —_ /O e = e

Baginning balance of 4,000,000,000,000 6.831,719,482 22,681,220411 (29,720,195) 150,B59 427,814 231648426 (4,005332.783,992) 281.392,991,901 526,636,.503,647

this year
Loss for this year = - = = . . 7,380 885 195 (4,758,862 176) 2613023018
Ohers - - ’ ’ . . {449, 100,176) 209,450,204 (230,646 882)
Ending balance of
this 4,000,000,000,000 6.831,719,462 22,681,220411 (20,720,195) 150,859,427.814 233,648,426 (3.998,411,908,973) 246.B45580,019 529,009,876,984
m = e e = e e - = L ee———
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PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

VP Tower, 167 Trung Hinh Strest, Hano

b)

d)

)

a)

b)

Consolidated Financial Statements

For the figcal year ended as at 31/12/2024

Details of Contributed capital
211253024 Rale 01012024 Flabe
VHND VND
Vietnam Qi and Gas Group 2178733330000 5447% 2178733330000 54.47%
Others 1.821,266670.000 4553% 1821266670000 4553%
Total 4,000,000,000,000 100% _ 4.000,000,000,000 100%
Capital transactions with owners and distribution of dividends and profits
Year 2024 Year 2023
VHD WND
Owner's contributed capital
= Al the beginming of the paar 4 000.000,000.000 4 000 000,000,000
- Althe end of the year 4,000.000,000.000  4,000,000,000,000
Share
31212024 g 12024
VMDD WD
Quantity of Authorized issuing shares 400,000,000 400,000,000
Quanty of msued shares 400,000,000 400,000,000
= Common shares 400,000,000 400,000,000
Quantity of shares repurchased 2,871 2,871
=  Common sfocks 2871 2971
Cuantity of cutstanding shares in circutaton 399,907,029 280,097,020
- Common Socks 399,8997.029 J898 897 028
FPar value par share; 10000 WND
Company"s resernves
3N 22024 0110172024
WND WHD
Development and investment funds 150,859,427 814 150,850,427.814
Cther resernves 233 648 426 233 648 426

Foreign currencies

usD

Doubtful debts written-off

Doubtful debts written-off

151,093,076,240 151,053 240
OFF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION ITEMS AND OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT

_31122024 010172024
7,365,088.17 8,454,808.97
3171202024 01/01/2024
VND VND
11.112,006,001 11,112,006.001
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PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Consolidated Financlal Statements
VPl Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

2T TOTAL REVENUE FROM SALES OF GOODS AND RENDERING OF SERVICES

Year 2024 Yaar 2023

WHD WND

Revenus from rendering of sernvices 73,138,450 403 187, 503,077 524
Revenue from construction coniracts 1,061,700,329,453 857 585 570, 588
Revenue from real estate business 12.443,085,233 -
Cithers 65,723,197 B25 34 231,263,526
1213006106954 _1,183,720911675

Revenud deductons . -

Het revenue from sales of goods and rendering of 1.213.006.106.954  1,189.720.941,616

services
—_
In which: Revenue from related parfies 840,280 581 557 B56 441 558 446
{Dretailed in Mole 42)
28 COST OF GOODS SOLD
Year 2024 Year 2023
WHD WHD
Cost of services rendered 62 963,288 487 184,288 184 558
Cost of construction contracts 1,048,095 523 658 1,078,800 437,783
Cost of goods soid 7.540,768 826 -
Provision for devaluation of inveniories (25,388,397 265) (17 2458 233 471)
Others 70,124,234 420 38.515926.422
_L.161,337,416,194 _ 1,284,156, 315,702
In which: Purchase from related parties
Total purchase value; 1.B54, 288,043 2.172,748,0048
{Detailed in Note 42)
29  FINANCIAL INCOME
Year zﬂﬁ Year IU_EE
WHD WND
Interest income 12,228,695,796 23,680,562,035
Gain on exchange differance in the year 25,060, 748,105 13,881,770,251
Gain on exchangs difference at the year - end 427583135 285 054 554
Interest from deferred payment sale or payment discount 386,758,060 2,983,017,832
— 2134802 41635314687
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PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
VPI Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi

Consolidated Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended as at 3112/2024

30 FINANCIAL EXPENSES

3

Injeresi expenses

Payment discount or inerests from deferred payment
purchase

Loss on exchange difference in the vear

Loss on axchange difference ar the year - and
Provigion for diminution i valee of trading securities
&nd impairment ioss from investment

Other financial expenses

In which: Financial expenses from related narfies
(Delai'ed in Naote 42)

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE

Raw materials

Labour expenses

Teols, supplies office expenses
Depreciation expenses

Tax, Charge, Fee

Reversal of provision expenses
Expenses of cutsourcing sarvices
Oither expanses in cash

In which: Purchasad from related parties
{Deladled in Nate 432)

OTHER INCOME

Gain from liquidation, disposal of fixed assels
Collected fines

Gains from compensation

Income from unpayable commiasion
Reversal of construction warranty provision
Other income

Year 2024 Year 2023

WHD WHD

56,198 583,108 41,107 144 907
7535 363 -

32 431 380 287 22331 501,488
108,143 505 1,244 123 654
{10,087 865 289) 10.277.811
5,123,263 248 6,357 109.011
B3 7T 1T 190 71,090,156 881

—_— e, e

26 876 655 To1 25835872 213
Year 2034 Year 2023
WD WD
703,818,133 TT6 127 427
79,755 631 970 81,261 380,787
845 T84 350 858 022 548

3, TOE BO2 400 5,966 B98 553
7519 286 T48 6,863 980 032
{55,143 154 54T) (4,280,382 8849)
18,682, 891,770 12,980 .247 854
17,977,184, 312 21,687,353 858
74,128 1316 11!.1 !1‘&13&
117,800,000 121,800,000
Year 2024 Year 2023
VD G

4 380 681 38T 1,316, 451,174
1,325 025 483 1,720 548 012
d44 318,134 a14 0068 687
44 715422 210 -
B 720 524 900 2,616 500,000
3,304 241 726 1,389, 702,571
62899113840 ____7.357.200.444
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PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
WPl Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi

Consolidated Financial Statements.
For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

33 OTHER EXPENSES

b}

Year 2024 Year 2023
WHD VHD
Fines 2,533,444 1559 193,872 256
Penalties 7108413730 3,925,687 9562
Others 2,101 664,083 19,157 836,631
1743521972 __ 23277496839
CURRENT CORPORATE INCOME TAX EXPENSES
Year 2024 Year 2023
VMND VND
Currant corporate income fax exgense in Conporation - -
Current corporate income lax expense in subsidiares 2077618123 -
= Peiroieum Mechanical Execuling Amd Assembly TET 18123 -
Joint Stock Company
- Peirofeum [ndusirial and Chvil Consiruction Jownl 1,350 000,000
Shock Company
Total current corporate income tax expense [lax
rate 20%) 2,077.618,123 -

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets

311272024 01/01:2024
WND VND
Corporate income tax rate ysed to determine defarred 20% 20%
intome tax assels
Deferred income tax assets relsied o deductible 18,801,350,080 19,230,752 273
temporary differancss

1 50,080 1!.!!5?&!2!
Deferred corporate income tax expense

Year2024 _ Year2023

WHD YHD

Deferred CIT expense ralating to taxable temporary 116,962 081 {1,885 D66,065)
difference

116962081 __(1,895,066,065)

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic samings per share distributed to common shareholders of the Corporation are calculated as
foliowrs:

Year 2024 Year 2023

WMD WHD

Net profit after tax 7,360,885185  (158,622,569,.205)

Profit distributed to common shares 7,350 885185 (159,622 569 205)

Average number of outstanding common shares in 390 997 029 350,807,028
circulation in the year

Baslc sarnings per share d ——m
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PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
VPI Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi

Consolidated Financial Statements
For tha fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

The Cerparation has not planned to aliscate the Bonus and Welfare Fund or the Management
Bonus Fund from the after-tax profit at the time of preparing the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2024, the Corporation does not have shares with dilutive potential for eamings

per share.

BUSINESS AND PRODUCTICNS COST BY ITEMS

Year 2024 Year 2023

WHND VND
Raw malerials 167,260,774 429 210,608,132, 754
Labour expenses 238 E85.019 8583 275,666, 362 404
Tooks, supplies office expenses 1,117,633 493 2 B84 053,578
Depreciation expenses 349,785,216,032 43,987 463,802
Tax, fee and charge 8.402,.256,023 4,717,844 623
Reversal of provision expenses {55 404 E78.54T) (5.774,234.001)
Expenses of culsourcing services 826,516, 260,057 B42 341,556 615
Other expenses in cash 31,340 926 689 42 5TB, 157 418

1 135,208,049  1,418,010,517,284

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR THE ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

Proceeds from borrowings during the year

Year 2024 Year 2023

WHD YHD

Froceeds from ordinary conlracis 100.137.532,0M1 146,549 402 B95
Actual repayments on principal during the year

Year 2024 Year 2023

WND WHD

Repayment on principal from ordinary contracts 148,788,833 736 230,774 673,518




PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation GConsolidated Financlal Statements
WP Tower, 1687 Treng Kinh Streel, Hanoi __ For the fiscal year ended as at 311272024

38 CONTINGENCIES

a) Guarantees for borrowlings
As at 31 December 2024, the Corporation had guaraniees for overdue loans laken by other companies from credit institutions, specifically &s foliows:

Guaranteed unit Guarantor institution Guarantee period Guarantee Overdue loan  Provision for end-
balance at the balance atthe end  of-term liabilities

ond of the year __af thir year

VHND VHD WHD
Hanoi Petrolesm Construction  Vietnam Intemational Bank - From 31/12/2011 1o 73,668 464,073 73,668 464,073 73,660,464,073
Company Limited Haead Office 002012
Petroleum Maching Executing Fortune Vielnam Joini Stock  From D1/01/2012 1o a5 061,348,003 49 961,348,093 48, 061,348.083
Company Limited Commercial Bank - Dong Do 3070872012
Fetroleum Machine Execuling Vieinam Public Joinl Stock From 260772011 o 14,312, 967,325 14,312, 967,325 14,212,967 325
Company Limited Commercial Bank - Head Office  26/0772012
Sai Gon Petroleum Vietnam Hien Dal One Member From 31122011 1o 17,103,570,845 17.103,570,845 -
Construction And Investment Limited Liability Bank (formerly 30/08/2012
JEC (PVC-5G) (%) Cai Duwoang Ona Member Limited

Liability Bank) - Saigon Branch

ISE043503% 15504635059 _ 13T8ARTTA1

The Corporation, as @ guaranlor, has commitied 1o pay the credifors the amounts equal to the value of the relavant letters of guarantee plus any nterest,
penalties and other financial obligations incurred (f any) right afler receiving the first request document accompanigd with the records proving that the
guaranteed enlities fail to fulfil or in adequately fulfil repayment obligations (if any). Accumulated to 31 December 2024

- Credit instilutions have deducted approximately YND 91 billion from the Corporation’s deposil accounts for fulfilment of its guarantee cbligations:
- Guarantead entities have repasd the Corporation approximately VMD 49 billion cut of the amount as mentoned above
Thus, the autstanding balance of receivables relating to guarantes obligations as at 31 Decembar 2024 is approximately VND 42,8 billkon (detailed in Note 08)

Following the recommendations of the State Audit Office stated in the Audil Repor for the year 2014 dated 10 March 2016, the Corporation made provision
for all payable liabilities in respect of thase guarantees in the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014, At the reporting date of
these Consalidated financial statements, the guaranieed companies were still working with credit institutions about the extension of the repayment term. The
Corporation was still working with guaranteed companies and credil institutions 1o release its guarantee obligations in order to enhance the solvency of the

("} n 2016, the Corporation revieswed all of its letters of guarantee and assessed thal its obligation under the guarantea for Saigon Petrodeum Consinuction and
Investment Jaint Stock Company (PVC-5G) o bormow from Ocean Commercial Joint Siock Bank [(QosanBank) - Saigon Branch (now renamed as Modern
Bank of Vielinam — MBV - Saigon Branch) has changed. The Provision Appraisal Council of the Corporation assessed and decided to write off ihe provision
that had been made for the Corporation’s obligation under the said letter of guarantee for PVG-5G's Ican from OceanBank - Sal Goan Branch with the amount
of approximately VND 98.9 billion; the provision reversal reduces the Corporation's financial expenses for 2016,
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PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Consolidated Financial Statements

WPl Tower, 167 Tnmg_ﬁmh Street, Hanod

For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

€)

On 18 August 2016, PVC-SG sent Official Letter No. SB/XLDKSG to the Corporation to report some
contents related to the collateral for the entrusted loan and the siuation of working with
Oceanbank. Accordingly, on 10 August 2016, Oceanbank - Saigon Branch sent to PVC-5G Official
Letter Mo, 784/2018/CV-CNSG replying to the debt settiernent plan of PVC-5G. In this Official
Letter, Oceanbank - Saigon Branch approved for PVC-5G to cary out a business investment plan
for the Urban Development Project of Areas 2 and 3, Ward 5, Vi Thanh City, Hau Giang Province
i(vi Thanh Project} as well as fo partially disburse collateral for PVC-53G to sell goods/aseets to
create a source of repayment for Oceanbank and PVC-SG 1o pay all oulstanding principal
{approximately VND 148 billion).

As af 31 December 2023, PVC-5G has paid back WVND 131 bilon out of VND 148 billion of
principal: At the same time. PVC-5G performed quite well the debt repayment plan proposed by
Oceanbank - Saigen Branch. The Board of Management assesses that the payable obligations of
the Parent Company - the Corporation for the guaraniee will net incur because PVC 56 s able to
make payment to Deeanbank [now renamed as Modern Bank of Vietnam = MEV)

Payment guarantea

On 28 December 2070, the Hokging Company sgned Guaranige Agreement No.
CTZRMIVHDELTT-PVCTE with Thai Binh Pelroleumn Tourism Company Limited (currently known
gs Thal Binh Petrolevmn Trading and Investment Joiml Sicck Company (PYC Thal Binh - a
subsidiary of the Corporation)) and issued & letier of guarantee for the payment by this company
with the guaranteed valua of approximately VHD 111 8 billion. Accordingly, the Holding Company
guaraniead that PVC Thai Binh would fulfil all of its obligations o PetroVietnam Exploration
Froduction Corporation (PVEP) in-a timely manner in accordance with the agreement dated 28
December 2010 on the transfer of Thal Binh Petroleurn Hotel construction project between PVEP
and PVC Thai Binh. The letter of guarantee takes effect from the signing date 1o the time PYC Thai
Binh fulfils all of its obligations to PVEP in acoordance wilh the above transfer agreement.

Im 20118, the Haolding Company received a document from PVEP requesting the Holding Company
b Fulfil its guarantes obligation. The Board of Managemeant of the Corporation assesses thal such
obégation will not be incumed since PYGC Thai Binh is ebée 1o fulfil is payment obligation io PVEP.

Conclusion of the Government Inspectorate

The Corporation is the contractor of Northern ethanal biofuel factory construction project and Dinh

Vu polyester manufacturing plant construction project

On 24 November 2016, the Governance Inspeciorate issued Announcement No. 3128TB-TTCP
about the conclusion of the inspection of the biofuel projects funded by Vietnam Oil and Gas Group
and s subsidiares. Accordingly, the Government Inspectorate proposed that the Corporation
should be responsible for the economic loss ko the project owner as a result of the breach of EPC
Caontract on the construction of Narthem ethanal biofuel factory.

On 24 Movember 2016, the Governmaenl Inspeciorate issued the Announcement No, 3130/TB-
TTCP about the conclusion of the inspection of the construction of Dinh Vu polyester
manufacturing plant. According fo the Government Inspectorate:

{ii The acceptance value of the work performed by the Corporation should be reduced by
approximately VND 46.8 billion due o the Corporation’s violation of the Ordinance on Fareign
axchanga when signing confract;

(ii) The: acceptanca value of the work perfarmed by the Corporation under the EPC contract should
be reduced by approximately VND 8.1 billion and USD 23 thousand due to duplication of the same

atceptance value and the acceplance of some work volume incurred nol in sccordance with
regulations.

The Cerporation’'s Board of Management assessed that the conclusions of the Government
inspectorate as mentioned above are applicable to the cwners of the projecis to whom the
Corporation is a related pady under relevant economic contracts. As at the reporting date, the
Corporation was still working with the projects’ owners and the Government Inspectorale on the
above conclusions of the Government Inspectorate.
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aj

i i j No. 2000/KL-TTCP
In 2022, the Corporation received the conclusion of the _G-wernmenl Inspecior N ]
dated 23 November 2022 on the observance of policies and laws in production and business
activities of the Corporation during the period 2008-2013. The Corporation has been coordinating
with relevant parties to impement the recommendations of the Government Inspector in
accordance with the above document,

Other contingent liabilities

: ’ . us
At the reporting date of these Consolidated Financial Statements, (he Corporation ard
suhﬁdia:iefhang certain Itigation cases related to their receivables, payables, borrowings and
contingent liakilities relating to valued added lax and penalties for late payment of tax on revenue
generated but not yet billed. The cutcomes of these litigation cases could not be detarmined.

OTHER INFORMATION
The value of issuance has not yet been estimated at the Corporation's constructed works

Due to the influenca of flucteations in the economy, the Corporation’s operations contain risks af
Auctuations in market value of matenals vsed for consiruchon Majn:_a‘ c.hargus in the prica of
construction materials can greatly affect the benefits and economic obligations of the Corporation.
However, the Board of Management of the Gorporation saxd that the changes of the marret as wall
as the influence of the Government's macro management polickes are wery difficull to pradict
Therefore, the Board of Management of the Corporation cannct quantify the impact ni this issue on
the Corporation's cngoing construction prejects. The final resull will only be delermined when the
construction is comgpleted, and the acceptance is handed over to the investors,

Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant Project

The Corporation signed an EPC contract to build Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant with the Thai
Binh 2 Petroleum Power Project Management Board (under the Vietnam Of and Gas Group) with 3
value of about USD 918 million and YHD 5,874 billion, At the date of these consolidated financal
statements, the tofal value of the provisional contracts signed by the Corporation with
subeontractors for tha Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant project has exceeded the value of the EPC
contract signed with Thai Binh Petroleurn Power Project Management Board. According o Official
Letter No, 737/TTg-KTN dated 23 May 2014 of the Prime Minister, Thai Binh 2 thermal power plant
is added bo the list of urgenl power projects for the period 2013-2020.

The project applies specific mechanisms and policies issued in Decision No.2414/00-TTg dated
11 December 2013 of the Prime Minigter,

According lo the decision of the Board of Management of Petro Vietnam Construction Joint Stock
Corporation on lemporarily approving the implemantation plan of the EPC Contract of Thai Binh 2
Thermal Power Plant Project, the expected revenue for the project implementation is US0 926.6
million @nd VMND 11,076.2 billkon; the estimated cost of the project is USD 821.2 million and VND
11,402.1 bilion; the expected gross loss ratio of the whole project is 0.67%. Up to the date of this
Consoldated financial stalement, the Corporation and the Power Project Management Board of
Thai Binh 2 Pefroleum are negotiating, agreeing and signing the appendices to adjust the value of
the EPC confract At the same time, the Corporation has been working with subconiracions bo re-
sign the appendix to adjust the contract value with subcontractors. The Board of Management of
the Corporation considers this 1o be the best estimate a3l the time of preparation of these
consolidated financial statemants and this estimale is always reviewed and updated 1o refiect the
true movements of realized profitioss of Thal Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant Project. Accordingly, the
Corporation has recognized the revenue and cost of this project at the expected gross [oss ratio,

Vung Ang 1 Thermal Power Plant

On 28 September 2008, the Corporation signed a contract to bulld Vung Ang 1 Thermal Power
Flant with Viet Nam Machinery Installation Corporation (LILAMA) under Contract MNo.
2B0909/LILAMA-PVC with a fotal value of package is about VND 1,322 bilion. According to
Resolution Mo, BBE/MNO-DEVH dated 27 January 2014, the Vieinam Od and Gas Group [PVN) has
approved the unforeseeable costs of the entire Vung Ang 1 Thermal Power Plant project (include
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internal road and construction) is about WVND 1,080 bilion. The estimated value afler
varification/appraisal for construction items performed by the Corporation increased by about VND
290 billion (excluding the deductible value-added tax value) compared to the value of the package
construction contract signed by the Corporation. The Corporation has requesied PVN to consider
adjusting the unexpected arising value of this project At the date of these Consclidated Financial
Statemnents, PVN and the competent Stale sgencies have not yet made a decision on the
Corporation’s decision, the Board of Management of the Corporation befigvas that the value ansing
oulside the contract will be signed additonally.

Information on the Corporation’s restructuring

According to Resalution No. 332/NQ-XLDK-DHDCD dated 11 Oclober 2022 of the General
Meeting of Shareholders of PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation on approving the
resfructuring of the Corposation for the pencd of 2021-202%:

= The Corporation continues to hold at least 51% of charter capital in the period 2021-2025,
including; Petroleum Pipeline and Tank Construction Joant Slock Company (PVC-PT) and
Petroleum Equipment Assembly & Melal Structure., JEC (PVC-MS)

- The Corporation will dvest all investment capital in the remaining subsidiaries in the period of
2021-2025,

« Companies: Ha Mol Petroleum Consfruction JSC (PVC-HN), Peiroleumn Mechanical Executing
and Asgembly Joini Stock Company (PVC-MEA), Mientrung Petroleum Construchion JSC (PVC-
MT) and PetroVieinam Urban Development JSC (FVC-Mekong) will handle dissolution and
bankruptcy in case the Corporation cannot divest is capital

- The Corporation will divest all other long-term financial investments and trading securities in the
pericd 2021-2025.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Thene have been no significant events occurming after the reporting penod, which would require
adjustments or disclosures to ba made m the Consclidated financial stalemenis,
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42 TRANSACTION AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES
List and relation between related parties and the Company are as follows:

Related parties Relation

Vietnam Qil and Gas Group (PVN) Parent company _
Vung Ang - Quang Trach Petroleum Power Project PVIN's dependent entity
Management Board

Thai Binh 2 Petroleumn Power Project Management FWN's dependent entity
Board

Nghi Son Refinery and Petrochemical Complex Project PVN's dependent entity
Mangement Board

Song Hau 1 Petroleumn Powar Poject Management FWN's dependent entity
Board

Vietnam Petroleum Instiute PVN's dependent entity
PetroVietnam Technical Services Corporation Same owner
PetroVietnam Technical Services Corporation (FTSC) Same owner
Pelrovistnam Gas Jaint Stock Corporation Same cwnar

Peiro Vietnam Engincering Consutanicy JSC Same ownar
Petrovieinam Stesl Pipe JSC Same cwner
Petrovietnam Construction Land Corporation Same owner

Seuthern Shipbuilding Industry Investment Same owner
Development Company Limited

Fetroleum Internal and External Equipment JSC Same owner

Vietnam Public Joint Stock Commercial Bank Same awner
PetroVietnam Expioration Production Corporation Same owner
Petrovietnam Low Pressure Gas Distribution JSC Same pwner
Petroleum Mechanical Execuling And Assembly JSC  Asgsociate

Hanoi Petroleum Construction JSC Assaciate

Saigon Petroleum Construction and Invesment JSC Aszocisle
Duyen Hai Petrs Vietnam Investment and Construction Assbciate

JSC

Thanh Hoa Petre Vietnam Imvestment and Azzociate

Censtruction JSC

Mien Trung Petroleum Construction JSC Assoclate

Lam Kinh Hotel JSC Associate

Petro Vietnam Nghe An Construction JSC Associate

Fatrq.lel.rm Interior Decoration JSC Associate

Heerim-PVC Intemational Design JSC Aszociate

Putmlu:m Link Communication and Trading JSC Associate
Fmﬁmﬂurmﬁmmmuhtﬁmmc Thaﬂuwaﬁunislhamanahﬁuhﬁﬁa
Me-r.her:ufbru&nurqdnimﬂm. Board of Key management personnel of the
Management, Supenvisory Board, and other key Corporation

Mmanagement personnel of the Corporation

In addition to the refs i i
re Eﬂmnﬂumﬁuﬂpmunwmmamm.ﬂuﬂwmrmmm

with related parties during the year
mi‘ﬂ the year, the El:II'rIpan-_.- has |hﬂ-mm with relgted parties as follows:
—  Year2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Revenue from sale of goods
Thai Binh 2 Petreleum Power Pred 840,980,581, 557 856,441,508, 445
Vietnam Petroieum Instiyse. o 29ement Boar 473184613532 735572 184 711

PetraVistnam Technical Services Corpora . e
Vietnam Public Joint Stock Commercial B::: il Mlmimmﬁ "?.'f :;'ﬁ'ﬁ
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Consolidated Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
WPl Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi

Year 2024 Year 2023

VMDD VHND

Purchase of goods and services 28,848 554,794 29,230,420,222

Thanh Hoa Pefro Vietnam Investment and 1,654,288,043 2,172,748,009
Consiruction JSC

Patroleum Link Communication and Trading JSC - 4,200,000

‘fietnam Public Joint Stock Commescial Bank 26,876,666,751 26835872213

Vigtnam Petrobeurm Institule 147,600,000 117,600,000

Remuneration, salares and other income of members of the Board of Direclors, Board of
Management, Board of Supenvision and other managers are as follows:

Board of Directors

Wif. Mahiam Cuang Huy
Kr, Pham Van Khanh
Mr. Tran Hai Bang

Mr. Mguyen Hoai Nam
M. Chu Thanh Hai

Board of Management
M. Tran Quoc Hoan

Mr. Phain Tu Giang

M. Mauyen Van Dong
Mr. Mguyen Trung Tri

Mr. Wu Manh Quang
Mr. Pham Trung Kien
Mr. Hoang Quyel Thang

Mr. Bul Son Truong

Board of Supervision
Mr. Hua Xuan Nam
Mr. Phung Van Sy

Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Cuong

Fosition Year 2024
VND
2,207, 775,913
Chaitman 545647 303
Indapandent Membar 244 285 000
Member 479,808,106
Member 456008070
Member 471,828,434
2,014,722,793
General Director appoinied 449 814,857
on 010172024
General Direclor rezigned 108,537,217
on 01012024
Deputy General Director 507 748 575
Deputy General Director -
resigned on 01/07/2023
Deputy General Direclor -
resigned on 300052024
Deputy General Direclor 454 BO0 450
appointed on 01/10/2023
Deputy General Director .
resigned on 011172023
Deputy General Direcior 482,731,554
508,218,959
Head of the Board 441,418,959
Membar 32,400,000
Membar 32 400,000

Year 2023
VKD

2,258,749,896_
543,276,735,
249555000, - N,
504,420,370, .. "}
495.761.660. ... | =
465,736,130/ *|

E fped

:,15@;51.1;_1,-;\:;"
1)

580,148,335

497,083,200
328,677,304

85,347,000
76,673,500
102,897,000

484,725,812

502,385,625
432,185 625
35,100,000
35,100,000

Inmiﬁunhqmabnwuhtadparﬂa ransactions, other related parties did not have any
transactions during the period and have no balance at the end of the accounting period fiscal year

with the Corporation,

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The comparative figures are figures in the Consolidaied Elnan
mﬁm“mainwm.wwwswmﬂ 4
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Mguyen Thi Thu Anh
Preparer

Vu Minh Cong
Chief Accountant
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